
TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING  

AGENDA 
 

PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE MEMBERS 
OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL AND TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE 
FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL WILL HOLD A MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC ON 
MONDAY, JULY 21, 2014, AT 5:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL: Mayor Rankin___; Vice-Mayor Smith___;   

Councilmembers:  Tom Celaya___; Bill Hawkins___;  
Ruben Montaño___; Tara Walter___; Vallarie Woolridge___  
 

3. INVOCATION 
 
4. ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

For the purpose of discussion and consultation of the public body in 
accordance with A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(3) and  A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(4) to obtain 
legal advice from the Town Attorney and to discuss and consider the 
settlement of pending litigation. 
 

5. ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

6. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

7. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those 
commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter 
be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not 
discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless 
the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 

 
8. MOTION TO ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT 

NO. 1 BOARD.  
 

a. Ordinance No. MRCFD1 111-14:  Discussion and possible approval of AN 
ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 
1, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF 
THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT 
TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($100.00) OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT 

mariah
Highlight



ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 2015. 
(First reading on June 16, 2014 and second reading on July 7, 2014) 

 
9. MOTION TO ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY 

DISTRICT NO. 1 BOARD.  
 
10. MOTION TO ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT 

NO. 2 BOARD.  
 

a. Ordinance No. MRCFD2 210-14:  Discussion and possible approval of AN 
ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 
2, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF 
THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT 
TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($100.00) OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED 
TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 2015.  (First 
reading on June 16, 2014 and second reading on July 7, 2014) 

 
11. MOTION TO ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY 

DISTRICT NO. 2 BOARD. 
 
12. PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATIONS 

 
a. Public hearing on a Minor General Plan Amendment to amend the Town of 

Florence 2020 General Plan to change the land use designations on 
approximately 1,183 acres from Employment/Light Industrial (E/LI), High 
Density Residential-1 (HDR-1) and Community Commercial (CC) to Master 
Planned Community (MPC); and for Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of 
Resolution No. 1455-14:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE ARIZONA FARMS MINOR 
GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT FOR (CASE PZC-18-14-GPA). 

b. Public hearing on a Minor General Plan Amendment to amend the Town of 
Florence 2020 General Plan to amend the Future Land Use Map contained 
within the Land Use Element to adjust the Town’s conceptual alignment of 
the proposed North-South ADOT Freeway Corridor, as well as the proposed 
conceptual alignment of the ADOT Passenger Rail Corridor, based on 
information collected and analysis completed since the adoption of the 
2020 General Plan in 2010 and subsequent amendments; and for 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of Resolution No. 1456-14:  A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE NORTH-SOUTH ADOT FREEWAY CORRIDOR MINOR 
GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT (PZC-22-14-GPA). 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



c. Public hearing on a Minor General Plan Amendment to amend the Town of 
Florence 2020 General Plan to amend the Future Land Use Map for the 
removal of the Aggregate Resources (AR) Overlay from the proposed 
Reserve at Lookout Mountain planned community located at the southwest 
corner of Hunt Highway and the Heritage Road alignment due to the 
aggregate mining use being permanently eliminated from the subject site; 
and for Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of Resolution No. 1457-14:  A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE RESERVE AT LOOKOUT MOUNTAIN MINOR GENERAL 
PLAN AMENDMENT (PZC-23-14-GPA). 

d. Presentation by Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce recognizing the 
Business of the Month 

13. CONSENT: All items indicated by an (*) will be handled by a single vote as part 
of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called.   

 
a. *Authorization to enter into an agreement between Superstition Fire and 

Medical Department and the Town of Florence for maintenance services for 
the Town of Florence fire apparatus. 
 

b. *Authorization to enter into an agreement between the City of Mesa, the 
TRWC and the Town of Florence to become an associate member of 
TOPAZ.  

 
c. *Approval to hire Ripple Industries for installation of SCADA equipment at 

well sites and reservoirs, in an amount not to exceed $70,000.    
 

d. *Approval of a lease with Carol Johnson (Silver King Hair Co.) for Suite 201, 
in the Silver King Market Place.  
 

e. *Approval of the June 18 and June 23, 2014 Town Council Minutes. 
 

f. *Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 
i. April 17, 2014 Planning and Zoning Commission minutes.  

 
14.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a. Ordinance No. 612-14: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON 
EACH ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO 
RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR 
GENERAL MUNICIPAL EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



30th DAY OF JUNE 2015.  (First reading June 16, 2014, second reading July 
7, 2014) 

 
15. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Resolution No. 1461-14:  Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
WITH SUPERSTITION SPRINGS R-14 ASSOCIATES, AN ARIZONA LIMITED 
PARTNERSHIP; WOLFY’S R.E. HOLDINGS, LLC, AN ARIZONA LIMITED 
LIABILITY COMPANY; AND DAVID C. PHILLIPS, A MARRIED MAN DEALING 
WITH HIS SOLE AND SEPARATE PROPERTY, HEREAFTER 
CUMULATIVELY REFERRED TO AS “OWNER”, AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION OF SUCH PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT (ANNEXATION NO. 2013-02 – “COMMERCIAL/EMPLOYMENT 
AND PARKLINKS AT ARIZONA FARMS” PROPERTY). 

b. Resolution No. 1462-14: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
WITH RES-AZ CRESTVIEW, LLC, A FLORIDA LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY, AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF SUCH PRE-ANNEXATION 
AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (ANNEXATION NO. 2013-02 – 
CRESTFIELD MANOR “RIALTO” PROPERTY). 

c. Resolution No. 1463-14:  Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
WITH RMG LUCKY HUNT 65, LLC, AN ARIZONA LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY, AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF SUCH PRE-ANNEXATION 
AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (ANNEXATION NO. 2013-01 – “LUCKY 
HUNT” PROPERTY). 

d. Resolution No. 1464-14:  Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
WITH MAGIC LAKE 80, LLC, AN ARIZONA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, 
AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF SUCH PRE-ANNEXATION AND 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (ANNEXATION NO. 2013-01 – “LOOKOUT 
MOUNTAIN” PROPERTY). 

e. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the Town Manager to enter into an 
amendment to the Town’s current contract with Haydon Building Corp., in 
an amount not to exceed $172,000 for additional design-build construction 
services required to complete the proposed Padilla Park at Silver King 
Plaza project. 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



f. Authorization to enter into a three-year Employment Agreement with the 
Town Manager Charles A. Montoya.  
 

g. Authorization to enter into a one-year Employment Agreement with the 
Town Attorney James E. Mannato. 

 

16.  MANAGER’S REPORT 

17. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

18. CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 

19. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED JULY 15, 2014, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 NORTH MAIN 
STREET, 1000 SOUTH WILLOW STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT 
WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF 
DISABILITY REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A 
DISABILITY MAY REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY 
CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-
7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS 
POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATION.***  

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



 MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 
SPECIAL MEETING 

AGENDA 
 
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE MEMBERS 
OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT BOARD AND TO THE 
GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT 
BOARD WILL HOLD A SPECIAL MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC ON MONDAY, 
JULY 21, 2014, AT 5:00 P.M. (IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE EXECUTIVE 
SESSION OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING) IN THE CHAMBERS OF 
TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL   Chair Tom Rankin__, Vice-Chair Tom Smith__, 

Board  Members:  Vallarie Woolridge__, Tom Celaya__,   
Ruben Montaño__, Bill Hawkins__, and Tara Walter__.   

 
3. NEW BUSINESS 

a. 

 
4. AD
 
The B
purpo
agend
 
POSTE
STREE
WWW
 
***PUR
THE T
DISAB
DISAB
CONT
7574 
POSS
 
 

 
Ordinance No. MRCFD1 111-14:  Discussion and possible approval of AN 
ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 
1, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF 
THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT 
TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($100.00) OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT 
ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 2015. 
(First reading on June 16, 2014 and second reading on July 7, 2014) 
JOURNMENT 

oard may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
se of obtaining legal advice from the District Attorney(s) on any of the 
a items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 

D JULY 15, 2014, BY LISA GARCIA, BOARD CLERK, AT 775 NORTH MAIN 
T, 1000 SOUTH WILLOW STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT 

.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 

SUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), 
OWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF 
ILITY REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A 
ILITY MAY REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY 
ACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-
OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS 
IBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATION.***  

mariah
Highlight



  
MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT NO. 2 

SPECIAL MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE MEMBERS 
OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT NO. 2 BOARD AND 
TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY 
DISTRICT NO. 2 BOARD WILL HOLD A SPECIAL MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 
ON MONDAY, JULY 21, 2014, AT 5:00 P.M. (IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE 
EXECUTIVE SESSION OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING) IN THE 
CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, 
ARIZONA. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL: Chair Tom Rankin___; Vice-Chair Tom Smith___;   

Board Members:  Tom Celaya___; Bill Hawkins___;  
Ruben Montaño___; Tara Walter___; Vallarie Woolridge___;  

 
3. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Ordinance No. MRCFD2 210-14:  Discussion and possible approval of AN 
ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 
2, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF 
THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT 
TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($100.00) OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED 
TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 2015.  (First 
reading on June 16, 2014 and second reading on July 7, 2014) 

 
4. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Board may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the District Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED JULY 15, 2014, BY LISA GARCIA, BOARD CLERK, AT 775 NORTH MAIN 
STREET, 1000 SOUTH WILLOW STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT 
WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF 
DISABILITY REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A 
DISABILITY MAY REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY 
CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-
7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS 
POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATION.***  

mariah
Highlight



 

Community Facilities 
District No. 1 

ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
8a.  

MEETING DATE:  July 21, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mike Farina, District Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT:  Adoption of Ordinance No. MRCFD1 111-14 to 

levy secondary property tax 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Ordinance No. MRCFD1 111-14  Tax Levy                                          Meeting Date:  July 21, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. MRCFD1 111-14, adopting a secondary property tax levy in the 
amount of $3.55 per $100 of Net Assessed Valuation for Fiscal Year 2014-2015. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The District Board has authorized a secondary property tax levy for the payment of debt 
service, public improvements, and operations and maintenance of Community Facilities 
District No. 1.  The current property tax rate is $3.55 per $100 of Net Assessed 
Valuation (“NAV”). 
 
The estimates for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 have been determined.  This year’s budget 
includes anticipated revenues from assessments and secondary tax.  Expenditures 
include those for public improvements, debt service, and operations and maintenance. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Total collections in revenues, prior year fund balance and bond proceeds are 
anticipated to fund all expenditures.  A secondary tax will be levied on the District, which 
consists of $3.25 per $100 of NAV estimated at $504,900 for debt service, and an 
operations and maintenance levy of $0.30 per $100 of NAV estimated at $46,600, for a 
total of $3.55 per $100 of NAV or $551,500. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. MRCFD1 111-14, adopting a secondary property tax levy in the 
amount of $3.55 per $100 of NAV for Fiscal Year 2014-2015. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. MRCFD1 111-14 



MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. MRCFD1 111-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT NO. 1, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE 
ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF 
CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) OF 
VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO 
BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 
2015. 
 
WHEREAS, by the provision of State Law, the Ordinance levying a secondary 

property tax rate for the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 is required to be adopted no later than 
the third Monday in August; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County of Pinal is now the assessing and collecting authority for 

the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1, the District Clerk is hereby 
directed to transmit a certified copy of the Ordinance to the Assessor and Board of 
Supervisors of Pinal County, Arizona; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the District Board of Merrill Ranch 

Community Facilities District No. 1, as follows: 
 

Section 1:  There is hereby levied on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of the 
assessed value of all property, both real and personal, within the corporate limits of the 
Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1, except such property as may by law 
be exempt from taxation, a secondary property tax rate of $3.25 on each one hundred 
dollars ($100.00) for the purpose of providing debt service and enhanced municipal 
services, and $.30 on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) for operations and 
maintenance of the district, for a combined rate of $3.55 on each one hundred dollars 
($100.00) for the fiscal year ending on the 30th day of June 2015, but if the said sum 
exceeds the maximum levy allowed by law, the Board of Supervisors of Pinal County is 
hereby authorized to reduce the said sum to the maximum which is allowed by law. 

 
Section 2:  No failure by the officials of Pinal County, Arizona, to properly return the 
delinquent list and no irregularity in the assessment or commission in the same, or 
irregularity of any kind in any proceeding will invalidate such proceeding or invalidate 
any title conveyed by tax deed; nor will any failure or neglect of any officer or officers to 
perform any of the duties assigned to him or to them on the day within the time specified 
work an invalidation of any proceedings or of any such deed or sale or affect the validity 
of the assessment of a levy of taxes or of the judgment of sale by which the collection of 
the same may be enforced or in any manner affect the lien of the Town upon such 
property for the delinquent unpaid taxes thereon, and no overcharge as to part of the 



taxes or of costs will invalidate any of the proceeding upon the lien therefore, or a sale 
of the property under such foreclosure; and all acts of officers de facto will be valid as if 
performed by officer de jure. 

 
Section 3:  All Ordinances and parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

 
Section 4:  The immediate operation of the Ordinance is necessary for the preservation 
of the public peace, health, and safety of the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District 
No. 1, and an emergency is hereby declared to exist; and this Ordinance shall be in full 
force and effect from its passage and approval by the District Board and publication as 
required by the laws of the State of Arizona, and is hereby exempt from the referendum 
provisions of the constitution and laws of the State of Arizona. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the District Board of Merrill Ranch Community 

Facilities District No. 1, Pinal County, Arizona, the 21st day of July 2014. 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, District Board Chairperson 

 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________ ___________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, District Clerk James E. Mannato, District Attorney 
 



 

Community Facilities 
District No. 2 

ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
10a.  

MEETING DATE:  July 21, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mike Farina, District Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT:  Adoption of Ordinance No. MRCFD2 210-14 to 

levy secondary property tax 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Ordinance No. MRCFD2 210-14                                                              Meeting Date: July 21, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. MRCFD2 210-14, adopting a secondary property tax levy in the 
amount of $3.55 per $100 of Net Assessed Valuation for Fiscal Year 2014-2015. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The District Board has authorized a secondary property tax levy for the payment of debt 
service, public improvements, and operations and maintenance of Community Facilities 
District No. 2.  The current property tax rate is $3.55 per $100 of Net Assessed 
Valuation (“NAV”). 
 
The estimates for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 have been determined.  This year’s budget 
includes anticipated revenues from assessments and secondary tax.  Expenditures 
include those for public improvements, debt service, and operations and maintenance. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Total collections in revenues, prior year fund balance and bond proceeds are 
anticipated to fund all expenditures.  A secondary tax will be levied on the District, which 
consists of $3.25 per $100 of NAV estimated at $476,900 for debt service, and an 
operations and maintenance levy of $0.30 per $100 of NAV estimated at $44,000, for a 
total of $3.55 per $100 of NAV or $520,900. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. MRCFD2 210-14, adopting a secondary property tax levy in the 
amount of $3.55 per $100 of NAV for Fiscal Year 2014-2015. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. MRCFD2 210-14 



MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 
 

ORDINANCE NO. MRCFD2 210-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT NO. 2, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE 
ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF 
CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) OF 
VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO 
BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 
2015. 
 
WHEREAS, by the provision of State Law, the Ordinance levying a secondary 

property tax rate for the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 is required to be adopted no later than 
the third Monday in August; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County of Pinal is now the assessing and collecting authority for 

the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2, the District Clerk is hereby 
directed to transmit a certified copy of the Ordinance to the Assessor and Board of 
Supervisors of Pinal County, Arizona; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the District Board of Merrill Ranch 

Community Facilities District No. 2, as follows: 
 

Section 1:  There is hereby levied on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of the 
assessed value of all property, both real and personal, within the corporate limits of the 
Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2, except such property as may by law 
be exempt from taxation, a secondary property tax rate of $3.25 on each one hundred 
dollars ($100.00) for the purpose of providing debt service and enhanced municipal 
services, and $.30 on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) for operations and 
maintenance of the district, for a combined rate of $3.55 on each one hundred dollars 
($100.00) for the fiscal year ending on the 30th day of June 2015, but if the said sum 
exceeds the maximum levy allowed by law, the Board of Supervisors of Pinal County is 
hereby authorized to reduce the said sum to the maximum which is allowed by law. 

 
Section 2:  No failure by the officials of Pinal County, Arizona, to properly return the 
delinquent list and no irregularity in the assessment or commission in the same, or 
irregularity of any kind in any proceeding will invalidate such proceeding or invalidate 
any title conveyed by tax deed; nor will any failure or neglect of any officer or officers to 
perform any of the duties assigned to him or to them on the day within the time specified 
work an invalidation of any proceedings or of any such deed or sale or affect the validity 
of the assessment of a levy of taxes or of the judgment of sale by which the collection of 
the same may be enforced or in any manner affect the lien of the Town upon such 
property for the delinquent unpaid taxes thereon, and no overcharge as to part of the 



taxes or of costs will invalidate any of the proceeding upon the lien therefore, or a sale 
of the property under such foreclosure; and all acts of officers de facto will be valid as if 
performed by officer de jure. 

 
Section 3:  All Ordinances and parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

 
Section 4:  The immediate operation of the Ordinance is necessary for the preservation 
of the public peace, health, and safety of the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District 
No. 2, and an emergency is hereby declared to exist; and this Ordinance shall be in full 
force and effect from its passage and approval by the District Board and publication as 
required by the laws of the State of Arizona, and is hereby exempt from the referendum 
provisions of the constitution and laws of the State of Arizona. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the District Board of Merrill Ranch Community 

Facilities District No. 2, Pinal County, Arizona, the 21st day of July, 2014. 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, District Board Chairperson 

 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________ ___________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, District Clerk James E. Mannato, District Attorney 
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
12a.  

MEETING DATE:  July 21, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                     Community Development Director          
                                      
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1455-14:  Arizona Farms Minor  
                    General Plan Amendment (PZC-18-14-GPA) 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Arizona Farms 
PZC-18-14-GPA 

July 21, 2014 
1 
 

 
Conduct public hearing, and motion to adopt Resolution No. 1455-14 for the Arizona 
Farms Minor General Plan Amendment.  

REQUEST: 
 

A Minor General Plan Amendment (GPA) request by The WLB Group, Inc. 
on behalf of: El Dorado Arizona Farms, LLC; Langley AZ Farms 150, LLC; 
Wolfy’s R. E. Holdings, LLC; David C. Phillips c/o BGH Associates, LLC; 
and Superstition Springs R-14 Association.  This Minor GPA to the Town’s 
2020 General Plan Future Land Use Map proposes to change the land 
use designations on approximately 1,183 acres from Employment/Light 
Industrial (E/LI), High Density Residential-1 (HDR-1) and Community 
Commercial (CC) to Master Planned Community (MPC).  This change 
would facilitate a subsequent zoning case on the site, which is generally 
located on the south side of Arizona Farms Road, east of the Quail Run 
Lane alignment, north of the Heritage Road alignment and west of Felix 
Road.  The Copper Basin Railroad bisecting the site and the commercial 
parcel at the immediate southwest corner of Felix Road and Arizona 
Farms Road are not a part of this application.   

 
BACKGROUND: 

The proposed project known as Arizona Farms encompasses 1,183 acres located near 
the intersection of Arizona Farms Road and Felix Road in Pinal County, Arizona.  
 
The intent of this General Plan Amendment is to amend the land use designation on the 
site from Employment/Light Industrial (E/LI), High Density Residential-1 (HDR-1) and 



Arizona Farms 
PZC-18-14-GPA 

July 21, 2014 
2 
 

Community Commercial (CC) to Master Planned Community (MPC).  This designation 
is appropriate for the property and in the future considering surrounding designations. 
The minimum size for any property to apply for the MPC designation is 640 acres or 
greater.  All properties within the MPC shall be under the control of one master 
developer, have a Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning classification and be 
subject to a development agreement between the Town and master developer.  Factors 
such as locations, uses, areas, intensities and densities within the MPC shall be flexible, 
providing land use decisions regarding said factors are guided by good planning 
principles, a PUD development guide and the governing development agreement.  The 
applicant meets all the minimum requirements for the MPC designation. 
 
The proposed project intends to provide a mixture of uses that will provide diversity in 
housing, commercial conveniences and employment.  This property lies at the 
confluence of several planned major transportation corridors, those being the major 
arterial roadways (Arizona Farms Road, Felix Road and Attaway Road) as well as the 
future North-South ADOT Freeway Conceptual Corridor.   
 
The project is currently zoned Planned Area Development in Pinal County. Upon 
annexation, the site would receive comparable Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
Zoning District.  In addition, there may be a zoning amendment. 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
When the Planning and Zoning and Town Council are considering an amendment to the 
General Plan, the applicant must justify the need for Minor Amendment to the General 
Plan through a series of questions: 
 
1. Why is the current land use/circulation classification not suitable? 

 
An industrial user was in purchase negotiations with a previous land owner to 
develop the site as a solar power generation facility; however, the project did not 
move forward.  Fortunately, though, this enabled the current landowners to re-
assess the highest and best use of the property, and arrive at the determination that 
the property is highly suitable for a mixture of residential, commercial and 
employment land uses, which is consistent with the project’s current zoning.  

 
2. Does the proposal conform with land use goals? 

 
A. Support the goals and policies of the General Plan;  

 
This proposed amendment would contribute to the future growth of the Town of 
Florence in a manner that provides balanced growth.  Also, It will provide for a 
healthy balance between residential, commercial and employment land uses and 
assist in providing for an orderly pattern of land use types and intensities, 



Arizona Farms 
PZC-18-14-GPA 

July 21, 2014 
3 
 

especially in areas such as this that are being converted from agricultural uses to 
residential uses.  This will allow both the property owner and the Town of 
Florence to properly plan for the future infrastructure and services that would be 
required to serve this project.   

 
B. Conform to the proposed range of land uses, densities, and intensity of 

uses, hierarchy of transportation systems; and  
 

This amendment proposes a wide range of land uses( under the umbrella of the 
MPC land use designation), including different densities of residential and 
commercial.  The residential densities for the property will be consistent with the 
density ranges in the town of Florence 202 General Plan and will be established 
during the future amendment to the zoning of the property.    
 
As for intensity of uses, the project has located intense commercial/employment 
areas in the northern and northeastern portions of the property.  This area of the 
property lies adjacent to property at the southwest corner of Arizona Farms Road 
and Felix Road that is currently zoned B-2 (Highway Business Commercial).  
This property is also adjacent to planned major arterials (Arizona Farms Road 
and Attaway Road) as well as near the planned corridor for the North-South 
ADOT Freeway.  As such, the vision for the property respects the hierarchy of 
roadways that are shown in the Circulation Element of the Town of Florence 
2020 General Plan. 
 

C. Avoid creation of isolated uses that will cause incompatible community 
form and a burden on services and circulation systems?  

 
This proposal places more intense land uses along the future major 
transportation corridor of Arizona Farms Road and the North-South ADOT 
Freeway Conceptual Corridor.  

 
3. What unique physical characteristics of the site present opportunities or 

constraints for the development under the existing classification? 
 
The property is currently being farmed and has been for many years.  As such, any 
natural features have been removed from the property to make it suitable for 
farming.  The property slopes generally from east to west at a slope of less than 1%.  
There are no significant physical features on the site that would prevent 
development. 
 
The Copper Basin Railroad runs through the western portion of the site and the 2020 
General Plan Map identifies this corridor for open space purposes.  A negative for 
the railroad is that it poses challenges for vehicular connections within the site. 
Hence, no internal vehicular connections over the railroad are proposed and 



Arizona Farms 
PZC-18-14-GPA 

July 21, 2014 
4 
 

presence also means that appropriate buffering will be needed to occur between the 
railroad and adjacent residential properties.    

 
4. What is the ability and capacity of the water and sewer system to 

accommodate development that may occur as a result of the General Plan 
Amendment without system extensions or improvements? 
 
The property is located within the Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CC&N) 
of Johnson Utilities Company (JUC) for water and sewer.  This plant is located 
approximately one mile west of the western boundary of the site.  There are existing 
force mains in Heritage Road and Felix Road.  There is an existing wastewater 
treatment plant (named the Section 11 Plant) located within the Oasis at Magic 
Ranch project.  There are 12” water lines in Arizona Farms Road, Heritage Road 
and Felix Road.   
   

5. What is the ability of existing police and fire department personnel to provide 
adequate emergency services according to acceptable response standards set 
by the community? 
 
Police and fire protection for the property would be served by the Town of Florence.  
Also, with annexation, this property would be subject to the Development Impact 
Fees of the Town, as negotiated in a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement.  
A portion of these fees goes toward police protection as well as fire/emergency 
medical services.  The payment of these fees would assist in ensuring that proper 
services are available to this property. 
 
The main police station is located in downtown Florence, approximately 12 miles 
southeast.  A police substation has been included in Fire Station No. Two within the 
Anthem community along Hunt Highway.  

 
6. What is the ability of the proposed public and private open space, recreation, 

schools, and library facilities to meet the projected demand of future 
development without reducing services below community standards? 
 
The future development of this property will provide open space consistent with the 
Parks, Trails and Open Space Element of the General Plan.  It will also provide open 
space consistent with the requirements of the Planned Unit Development Zoning 
District, the details of which will be outlined in a future application for rezoning.  It is 
likely that any proposed park or open space on this property would be private and 
owned and operated by a homeowners association.  
 
The property is located within the boundaries of the Florence Unified School District.  
Walker Butte K-8 School is located in Johnson Ranch and Anthem K-8 School and 
located within the Anthem at Merrill Ranch Community.  Students would have the 



Arizona Farms 
PZC-18-14-GPA 

July 21, 2014 
5 
 

option of attending either Poston Butte High School or Florence High School.  At the 
time of re-zoning, the property owner will meet with representatives from the 
Florence Unified School District to determine the future needs of the district and 
arrive at a preliminary understanding of how the future students residing within the 
subject property might have their educational needs met.  It is possible that the 
developer of the project could provide a parcel of land for a future school site and 
could provide financial contributions on a rooftop basis or reach another form of 
agreement with the Florence School District.  
 
The future residents of this property would also enjoy the use of the public library 
system.  With annexation, this property will be subject to the Development Impact 
Fees of the Town, as negotiated in a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement, 
and a portion of these fees goes toward the library.  The payment of these fees will 
assist in ensuring that proper services are available to this property. 

 
7. What is the proposed fiscal impact of future development based on evaluation 

of projected revenues and the additional cost of providing public facilities and 
services to accommodate projected increases or decrease in population and 
development that could occur as a result of the General Plan amendment? 

 
First of all and as previously discussed, this property, once annexed, would be 
subject to the Development Impact Fees of the Town of Florence, as negotiated in a 
Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement.  With the future payment of these 
fees, the property would contribute to transportation, general government, police, 
fire/emergency medical services, parks and community facilities and the library. 
 
Also, the proposed amendment anticipates approximately 75 acres of Employment/ 
Commercial land area.  Based on this acreage and based on an approximate floor 
area ratio (FAR) of .22 for commercial property, it may be reasonable to expect 
approximately 480,000 square feet of gross leasable area within the Arizona Farms 
Development.  This number is only a preliminary estimate and subject to prevailing 
market conditions.  If the property is annexed, the Town of Florence would capture 
sales tax on transactions that occurred at this future commercial area, providing 
additional operating revenue for the Town.   
 

8. How will the proposed amendment affect the ability of the community to 
sustain the physical and cultural resources, including air quality, water 
quality, energy, natural and human-made resources necessary to meet the 
demands of present and future residents? 

 
This project will meet all local, State and Federal regulations that are applicable to 
the future uses as proposed by this application.  The property will connect to the 
private water and wastewater system of Johnson Utilities Company, which is 
governed by the Arizona Corporation Commission and the Arizona Department of 



Arizona Farms 
PZC-18-14-GPA 

July 21, 2014 
6 
 

Environmental Quality.  As such, the project will contribute to the protection of the 
water resources in the area. 
 
The project also does not propose any uses that will emit extraordinary pollutants 
into the air.  Energy needs, such as electric power and natural gas, may be provided 
by Arizona Public Service, Southwest Gas or Magma Gas (or other private utility 
company).  By planning the future land uses of the property today, these utility 
companies will also be able to plan and anticipate serving this property in the future.  
They will be able to estimate the number of future customers and develop 
preliminary strategies to provide service to this new area without sacrificing service 
to existing customers. 
 
As previously mentioned, this property, with annexation, would pay Development 
Impact Fees to the Town of Florence, as negotiated in a Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement.  These fees would be used in part by the Town to pay for 
services and amenities that are demanded by both its current and future residents.  
Also, the introduction of commercial uses would generate sales tax revenue that 
may provide additional financial resources required to meet the service and amenity 
demands of present and future residents of the Town of Florence. 
 

9. What changes, if any, in Federal or State Laws or policies substantiate the 
proposed amendment? 

 
This requested General Plan amendment is consistent with the statutes of the State 
of Arizona as well as with the amendment procedures established by the Town of 
Florence for amendments to the Town of Florence 2020 General Plan.   
 
FINDINGS: 

 The Master Planned Community (MPC) designation has been identified for 
suitable areas within the Town’s Planning Area; 

 
 The proposed designation will provide a mixture of uses that will provide diversity 

in housing, commercial conveniences and employment; 
 

 The properties in the subject area should be affected in a positive way by this 
General Plan Amendment as the amendment may encourage more diverse 
housing types and additional market base for employment and in retail goods 
and services; and 

 
 The proposed Minor General Plan Amendment is in compliance with the goals, 

objectives and strategies of the Town’s 2020 General Plan. 
 
 



Arizona Farms 
PZC-18-14-GPA 

July 21, 2014 
7 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

The Town has reached out to all Town residents and other property owners though a 
public participation process that includes: 
 
 A notice for the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearings was mailed to 

all property owners within three hundred (300) feet of the site; 
 

 Property Posting (Signs) - Notice of Public Hearing for a Minor General Plan 
Amendment was posted on the site; 
 

 Advertisements in the local Town paper; 
 

 One public hearing for the Planning and Zoning Commission; and 
  

 Town Council public hearing. 
 
Staff notes that a few property owners expressed interest in this case at the Planning 
and Zoning Commission public hearing on June 19, 2014 because of their concerns 
with the proposed State Land Zoning Case (PZC-22-14-PUD). 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Conduct public hearing, and in accordance with the findings presented on this request, 
staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1455-14 for approval of this Minor 
General Plan Amendment, subject to the following conditions: 
 

 Any conditions deemed necessary by the Town Council. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1455-14 
Exhibit A 
The Arizona Farms Minor General Plan Amendment Book 
  
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 1455-14 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE ARIZONA FARMS MINOR GENERAL 
PLAN AMENDMENT FOR (CASE PZC-18-14-GPA). 

 
WHEREAS, a Minor General Plan Amendment (Minor GPA) is requested for 

property located on the south side of Arizona Farms Road, east of the Quail Run 
alignment, north of the Heritage Road alignment and west of Felix Road; and 

WHEREAS, a significant public participation process, including the holding of a 
public hearing of the Town of Florence Planning and Zoning Commission, has been 
followed for the Minor GPA; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the Town of Florence has 

considered all public comments made at the public hearing; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission sent a unanimous favorable 
recommendation to the Town Council on the Arizona Farms Minor GPA; and 

WHEREAS, said proposal has been considered by the Council and the Minor 
GPA has been found to: be appropriate; be consistent with the goals, objectives and 
strategies of the Town’s General Plan; have a positive impact on the overall balance 
and mixture of land uses in the Town’s General Plan; be consistent with good planning 
principles; be beneficial for the Town’s orderly growth; and be favorable to the general 
welfare, health and safety of the public. Thus, a determination has been made that the 
Minor GPA should be approved.  
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
The Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence hereby approve the subject Minor 
General Plan Amendment as presented in Exhibit A. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 21st day of July, 2014. 
 
 
  ___________________________ 
  Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
                          

______________________                             _____________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk             James E.  Mannato, Town Attorney 
 



MPC

MDR1

CC

LD
R

E/
LI HD

R1
Copper Basin Railroad

N
High

Dunes Dr

E Si lo Rd

E H ay Loft Dr

N 
Fe

lix
 R

d

E Barley Rd

N
Seed
RdE Al falfa D r

E Cotton

R d

N C o b b lestone DrE Ha r ve st R d

E Arizona
Farms Rd

E Heritage Rd

E Twin Spurs Ln

E Cotton
Rd

N
Qu

ai
lR

un
Ln

N 
At

ta
wa

y 
Rd

W Arizona Farms Rd W Arizona Farms Rd

N
Att away

Rd

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping,
Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

This map  is created fo r reference p urp o ses o nly and is to  b e used 
at yo ur o w n risk .  The To w n o f Flo rence mak es no  w arranty as to
the accuracy o r co mp leteness o f the info rmatio n co ntained in this 
map  and assumes no  liab ility fo r any erro rs o r o missio ns co ntained
therein, no r fo r any direct, indirect, o r co nseq uential damages w hich
may b e caused b y its use.  It is the user’s resp o nsib ility to  verify all
info rmatio n co ntained herein.
6/27/2014     Arizo na Farms_Exhib it_A_Co lo r.mxd

Exhibit A
Proposed 2020 General

Plan Designation
Arizona Farms

Site Lo catio n
Lo w  Density Residential (LDR)
Medium Density Residential 1 (MDR1)
High Density Residential 1 (HDR1)
Co mmunity Co mmercial (CC)
Emp lo yment/Light Industrial (E/LI)
Master Planned Co mmunity (MPC)
No rth-So uth ADOT Freew ay
Co ncep tual Interchanges
No rth-So uth ADOT Freew ay
Co ncep tual Co rrido r

Town
of

Florence

/
0 800 1,600400

Feet



 

 

 

 

ARIZONA FARMS 
Application for Minor General 

Plan Amendment 
 

 

April 28, 2014 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared By: 

The WLB Group, Inc. 

Contact Persons: 

Robert G. Longaker III, P.L.A., Project Manager 

Clay Goodwin, Planner 

4444 East Broadway Boulevard 

Tucson, AZ 85711 

(520) 881-7480 

 

 

WLB Nos. 198026-C-001 

198026-D-001 



�������������

����������������������

 

 

�����������������

�

�

2�����
�(-� �����	���
����� �
���!�
��	����	
���
���
��

�

2�����
�&-� ���@�����	��	������

�

2�����
�%-� �#
��A����/���>	���
�$�����

�

2�����
�)-� .�+	������������
��

�

2�����
�5-�� �3/�<����

�

• �3/�<���-�0���
���� 	��

�

• �3/�<���:-�"	3����������	����� 	���

�

• �3/�<����-����	���/���+�	�/�

�

• �3/�<����-��3����
+�!�
��	����	
�.	
��B�������+
	���
��

�

• �3/�<����-����������!�
��	����	
�.	
��B�������+
	���
�

�

• �3/�<���$-���
�����	��.	
��B���C�������	���
���
�����

�

�

�

�

�

�



�

�������������

���������������������

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�


� �����!������� ���������	��������������������������

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�







�

�������������

���������������������

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�


� �����"�����#� �������$��

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�



(�

�������������

���������������������

�

���������	
�����	

�

"/������@����
	��	�����/	��<��
�����	�����
������������	
�	�����	���
�����	���
���	��
���
��

����/��"�#
����$����
���&'&'�!�
��	����	
���"/���	�����	���
����������������	����3��	�����(�(4%�

	����� ���	����
�	�� �/�� �
���������
������>�
	�$	������	��	
��$���3���	�������������3/�<���-�

0���
���� 	�������/�����@�������	���
����

�

"/������������ ��� �����
���� ���	��������������� �/�� �
������	���� ���������� �/��"�#
���� $����
��D�

/�#���������������	����#��/�
��/����	

�
+���	�����/��"�#
�	
������
��������
��/��$������.	
��

B��� 	����� �/��"�#
���� $����
���&'&'�!�
��	����	
�� � $���/�������� �/����������� ��� �
�������

#��/�
� �/�� ��������� ��>�
	� $	���� 	
�� 	+��� �	
�/� 	

�3	���
� 	��	��� �������
�� /	��� <��
�

������	���� ��� 	��� ��������� �#
���� #��/�
� �/�� 	

�3	���
� 	��	�� 	
�� ��� ��� 	
�����	���� �/	�� �/��

	

�3	���
���������#���� <�� ���������� <�� �/�� �	��� ��� &'()�� � "/�� �#
������� �/��� ��������� ���=�

���#	������<�����
+��	�������/��"�#
����$����
���	
��#����� ��=������	=���/����������
�������

��	
� ���� �������������� �/������������ ��� ���/�� �/���	�����	���
� ����	���
���	��
���
�� ��� �/��

"�#
����$����
���&'&'�!�
��	����	
����<��
+���<���������,������3��������/	��	������/�����������

	��
���
�� ��� �/�� !�
��	�� ��	
� ��� �����#��� 	
�� 	��������� 	
� 	�����	���
� ���� ��	

��� B
���

���������
�� >�
�
+� �
� �/��� ��������� #����� <�� ��<�������� � � ���9	

�3	���
� ���������
��

	+�����
�����	����	
�����	�������

�

,
����������<������	
������/���������+��#�/�� ��� ��� ��+��	�������	
�
�#�	
���
�����
��/�����������

�	
��������/	��	��������	�������	��������/�������������"/����������������<���/���	�����	���
�	���

�/�� �
��� �/	��#�� <�������#���� <��������� �/�����	
�� ��� �/���	�=��� 	
�� �/���� �/	��#���� <����

������ ��� 	������ �/�� "�#
� ��� $����
��� �
� �����
+� ���� +�	��� 	
�� �<@�������� 	�� �����
��� �
� �/��

!�
��	����	
���;��<��������/	���/���	
����������������<���/���	�����	���
������/������������	���

��
�����
��#��/� �/�������
������ �/��!�
��	����	
� 	
��#���� ��
���<���� ����������� 	
����	

���

+��#�/��
��/��"�#
����$����
����

�

"/�������
��!�
��	����	
��	
��������	������	���
�������/������������	���	�������#��6�����3/�<����7-�

�

• ��������
�E.�+/��,
������	��6�E.,7�

• *�+/���
�����������
��	��6*��(7�

• �����
������������	��6��7�

�

���������/�����<��
������/	���/������/92���/���"�$���#	����
�����	���������������/�#
��
�

�/��!�
��	����	
�$������.	
��B��� 	��	��<��
+����	����#��/�
��/���	����
�������
�����/��������

"/�� ��������� �#
����#���� #��=�#��/� �/�� "�#
���� $����
��� 	
�� ��"� ��� �������
�� �/�� ��
	��

	��+
��
������/������/92���/�$���#	���/���+/��/��������������

�



2 

Arizona Farms  

General Plan Amendment 

We propose and request your consideration and approval of a Master Planned Community 

(MPC) land use designation on the entire property.  Exhibit E illustrates the proposed MPC 

designation on the property and how it relates with surrounding land use designations.   

Exhibit F provides a conceptual illustration of how the property may be developed.  Please note 

that as a means of illustrating the potential land uses and densities that will be established in a 

future application for Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning, the exhibit lists potential uses 

and densities consistent with the land use classifications contained within the Land Use 

Element of the Town of Florence 2020 General Plan.  This exhibit also demonstrates how these 

proposed land uses relate to surrounding land uses and both existing and planned vehicular 

transportation corridors in the area.   

 

The overall motivating philosophy behind these proposed land uses was to provide a mixture of 

uses that will provide diversity in housing, commercial conveniences and employment.  This 

property lies at the confluence of several planned major transportation corridors, those being 

the major arterial roadways (Arizona Farms Road, Felix Road and Attaway Road) as well as the 

future North-South ADOT Freeway Conceptual Corridor.  The General Plan also shows a 

conceptual traffic interchange adjacent to this property.  As such, the most dense and intense 

land uses have been located in the areas of these transportation facilities.   

 

As a means of assisting your consideration of this application, we offer the following responses 

to the questions listed in the General Plan Amendment Process application packet: 

 

1. Why is the current land use/circulation classification not suitable? 

 

This property had been previously envisioned for industrial/employment land uses primarily 

due to its frontage on major arterial roadways and the presence of the Copper Basin 

Railroad. In fact, an industrial user was in purchase negotiations with a previous land owner 

to develop the site as a solar power generation facility; however, the project did not move 

forward.  Fortunately, though, this enabled the current landowners to re-assess the highest 

and best use of the property, and arrive at the determination that the property is highly 

suitable for residential uses and commercial uses. These uses are appropriate for the 

following reasons:    

 

• As previously stated, the property is located at the intersection of and adjacent to 

three roadways anticipated as major arterial roads.   Arizona Farms Road, Felix Road 

and Attaway Road are all identified in the General Plan Circulation Element and 

Coolidge-Florence Regional Transportation Plan as Major Arterial roads.  

 

• The property is adjacent to, and in the vicinity of, existing developed property.  

Crestfield Manor and Wild Horse Estates, residential communities, are located to the 



%�

�������������

���������������������

������	��� ����/� ��� �/�� ���������� � "/�� �	���� 	��  	+��� �	
�/� ��� ���	���� ��� �/��

������	�������/#��������/��������������

�

• "/���������������
����������3���������
�/���	�� ��������	
�/��"/������@�����#��/�����

������
��	��� ��������	�� 	
�� ���
� ��	��� ������ ����
���	���� �/	�� �/�� 	��	� ���

	�������	��������	�������	

��������
������������������
�����

�

• "/��������������	�@	��
�������/��������������#��/�!�
��	����	
��	
����������+
	���
��

�/	�� 	
�����	��� ���������
�� 	�� /�+/��� ��
������� 	
�� �
��
�������� � "/�� �	
�� ����

����+
	���
���
�������
��
+����������	���	�������#�-�

�

����/-�� 	�������	

��������
����6 ��7�6��<��
�$	�����B�7�����

�

;���-�� ��������
�E.�+/��,
������	��6�E.,7�	
�� ��������
������

������
��	��(�6 ��(7��

�

�	��-��  	�������	

��������
����6 ��7��"/�����
�$	���E�	��������B���

	
��2=����#�$	�����B���	������	����#��/�
��
�����������/���

��<@��������������

�

2���/-�� ��������
�����������
��	��(�6 ��(7��

�

�

��	 ����	 ���	�������	 ������	 ���	 ����	���	 !�����	����	 ���	�������	 ����!�	 ��	 ����	���	�	

����������	��	���	����� ��!"		

�

��	 
�����	���	!����	���	��������	��	���	#�����	$���%		

�

"/��� ��������� 	��
���
�� #����� ��
���<���� ��� �/�� ������� +��#�/� ��� �/�� "�#
� ���

$����
��� �
� 	� �	

��� �/	�� ��������� <	�	
���� +��#�/�� � ,�� #���� �������� ���� 	� /�	��/��

<	�	
���<��#��
�������
��	�����������	��	
����������
���	
���������,��#����	����	������

�
��������
+�����	
����������	����
�����	
������������	
���
��
��������������	�����
�	��	��

���/�	���/����/	��	���<��
+���
������������	+��������	���������������������������"/���#����

	���#�<��/��/������������#
���	
���/��"�#
����$����
�����������������	
������/���������

�
��	����������	
������������/	��#�����<����F����������������/������@�������

�

,
� �/����� �/��� ��������� 	��
���
�� ��� ��
�����
��#��/� �/�� +�	��� ��
�	�
���#��/�
� �/��

.	
��B��������
������/��!�
��	����	
������/�������#�
+���	��
�-�

�

• ,�����	<���/���	
����������	����
�����	
�������	
���
��
��������

�



)�

�������������

���������������������

• ,������������������
��������
�#�+��#�/�	
�����������
���

�

• "/������������	
�������	�������	��<���#��/��/��������
��
+��	
��������

�

• ,��#����� �������� 	����������� ��� /����
+�� ��������
��� ��������� 	
�� 	���������� ���

�������/��������	��
���������������������
����

�

• ,�����������	���+��	��	��	
+���
������	
������������
���>���/����
������<��#��
�

�������
���	
��������

�

• "/�� ���@���� #���� /	��� 	���3����� ��� �#����
+� �
��� ��>��� 	
�� �	������ �
� ������ ���

��������/����
+��������
����������	��	
+������
������	
��/����/��������

�

"/�����������	��
���
�������
�����
��#��/��/��+�	�����
�	�
���#��/�
��/��������	���
�

�����
������/��!�
��	����	
������/�������#�
+���	��
�-�

�

• ,�� #���� ��
���<���� ��� �/�� ���������
�� ��� 	� �	��� 	
�� �������
�� ��	
�����	���
�

������� �/���+/� �/�� ���������
�� ��� �/�� 	�@	��
�� �	@��� 	�����	�� ��	�#	����

��>�
	�$	������	�����	#	����	��	
��$���3���	�����

�

• ,��#����	������
�������������������	���#��/�
��/���������������	�����	����	���	������

����/��	�����	����	�#	���	
������/���
����������	�����������

�

• ,�� #���� �������� �/�� ��������� ����/92���/� ��"� $���#	�� ��
�����	�� ���������

	
����	
������	
��������/	��	���	�������	����
�	��	��	�@	��
������/������#	��	
��

	���/�������������	������
����/	
+�����

�

"/�� ��������� 	��
���
�� ��� ��
�����
�� #��/� �/�� +�	��� ��
�	�
��� #��/�
� �/�� *����
+�

�����
������/��!�
��	����	
������/�������#�
+���	��
�-�

�

• ,�� #���� �������� ���������� �
� ������ ��� /����
+� ��������� 	�	��	<��� ��� ������
���

#��/�
��/�������
������

�

• "/������@����#�����
����	+������	�
	<���<�����
+�	
������+
���	��������

�

• ,��#������������	������������	���	
��/�+/�F�	�����/����
+�����	��	���������/����/����

�
�������������

�

"/�����������	��
���
�������
�����
��#��/��/��+�	�����
�	�
���#��/�
��/���	�=���"�	����

	
�����
�2�	��������
������/��!�
��	����	
������/�������#�
+���	��
�-�

�



5�

�������������

���������������������

• "/��� ���@���� #���� �������� 	� �	
+�� ��� F�	����� �����	���
	�� ��	���� ���� ���� �������

������
�����

��

• ,��#�������������/���������
���������

��������/�������	�������	�=E��
�	���	�=��/	��

����
�����
���	��
+��/���������:	��
��	����	������������/	����
���/���+/��/��������

�

"/�� ��������� 	��
���
�� ��� 	���� ��
�����
�� #��/� �/�� +�	��� ��
�	�
��� #��/�
� �/��

���
��������������
�������
������/��!�
��	����	
������/�������#�
+���	��
�-���

�

• "/����������	��������
�����/�����������#��������������	�����	3�+�
��	��
+������

	
���������@�<���

�

• 2/����� �/�� ����/92���/� ��"� $���#	�� ��
�����	�� ��������� 	
�� 	�����	����

��	����� �
����/	
+�� <�� ��
��������� �
� ��� 	�@	��
�� ��� �/��� ���������� �/��

��������	�� ��������� ��	

��� �
� �/�� 
���/�	����
� ������
� ��� �/��� ����� #�����

��
���<���� ��� 	� ��<��	
��	�� ��������	�� ����� �/	�� ��� �
�����
��� 	�� �/�� �������

��	������
����/	
+�����

�

��	 &�����	 ��	 ���	 �������	 ��!�	 ��	 ����	 ����'	 ���������'	 ���	 ���������	 ��	 ����'	

�������	��	������������	�������%	���		

�

"/��� ��������� 	��
���
�� ��������� 	� #���� �	
+�� ��� �	
�� ������ �
�����
+� �������
��

��
����������������
��	���	
����������	����"/��������
��	����
������������/�����������#����

<����
�����
��#��/��/����
������	
+����
��/��!�
��	����	
�	
��#����<�����	<���/�������
+�

�/�����������>�
�
+�����/���������������

�

�� ���� �
��
���������������/�����@����/	�� ���	�����/������� �
��
�����������	��	��	�� �
�

�/��
���/��
�	
��
���/�	����
�������
������/�������������"/���	��	�����/����������������

	�@	��
��������������	���/������/#�������
��������>�
	�$	������	��	
��$���3���	���/	��

��������
����>�
���:9&�6*�+/#	��:���
������������	�7��"/���	��	�����/��������������	����

	�@	��
�������	

����	@���	�����	���6��>�
	�$	������	��	
����	#	����	�7�	��#����	��


�	���/����	

�
+���������������/������/92���/���"�$���#	����
�����	���������������

���/���/�����������
�������
������/���������������������/��/���	��/�������	�#	����/	��

	����/�#
��
��/��������	���
������
������/��!�
��	����	
��

�

��	 (����	�������	��	��������	����	����	 ���	�����	������������	���������	���	���	

�	�����	��	�������	���	����������	��������		

�

"/��� ������	�� ��	���� ����� ��
��� 	
�� �
��
��� �	
�� ����� 	��
+� �/�� ������� �	@���

��	
�����	���
���������������>�
	�$	������	����,��	������	�����/�����	
����������/��/	��



1�

�������������

���������������������

�/��� 	��� �
� �/�� ������	��� ����
���� ��� �/�� ����/92���/� ��"� $���#	�� ��
�����	��

�����������

�

"/�� ��������
� ��� ��������	�� ��������� #��/�
� �/�� ���@���� #���� �������� �����
����

������
���#��/�+�����	
������������/	��	���
�������
�	��	����<	������

�

)�	 ����	���*��	��������	�������������	��	���	����	������	������������	�	����������	��	

���	�����������	����	���	�������!	���������������		

�

"/�� ��������� ��� �����
���� <��
+� �	����� 	
�� /	�� <��
� ���� �	
�� ��	���� � �� ���/�� 	
��


	���	����	�������/	���	��/	���<��
������
��/	���<��
���������������/��������������

�	=���������	<��������	���
+���"/������������������+�
��	����������	������#����	��	�������

��� ����� �/	
� (G�� � "/���� 	��� 
�� ��+
����	
�� �/����	�� ��	������ �
� �/�� ����� �/	�� #�����

�����
�����������
���

�

"/���������:	��
��	����	����
���/���+/��/��#�����
�������
�����/�������	
���/��$������

.	
��B��� 	�� ���
��������/������������ �������
���	������������� ��
����#
����������/��

�	����	������/	�� ����������/	���
+���������/����	����

�����
��#��/�
��/��������*�
����
��

�
���
	����/����	����

�����
��������/���	����	��	������������� ,��������
���	������	
��

�/	�� 	�������	��� <������
+� #���� 
���� ��� ������ <��#��
� �/�� �	����	�� 	
�� 	�@	��
��

������
��	�������������� �*�#�������/�������������/���	����	�����	��������/���	����/	���/��

������������������<���/���	����	�������	

���	��	
����
���	������������	
���/������@����

/	���/���������
��������	=�����
���	�����

�����
������/���������������

�

+� ����	 ��	 ���	 �������	 ���	 ��������	 ��	 ���	  ���	 ���	 �� �	 ������	 ��	 �����������	

�����������	����	���	����	��	�	�����	��	���	#�����	$���	(��������	 ������	������	

����������	�	������������		

�

"/����������� ��� ���	����#��/�
��/����������	��������
��
��
���	
������������ 6��C�7����

H�/
��
�B�������������	
��6HB�7�����#	����	
����#������

�


� �	

�

"/���� 	��� �3����
+� ������ �	�
�� �
� *����	+�� ��	�� 	
�� $���3� ��	��� "/���� ��� 	
� �3����
+�

#	���#	���� ���	���
����	
�� 6
	���� �/�� 2�����
�((���	
�7� ���	����#��/�
� �/���	���� 	��

 	+��� �	
�/� ���@����� � "/��� ��	
�� �����
���� /	�� 	� ���������� �	�	����� ��� &� �+�� <��� ���

��
���������#��/�	��	�	��������(�1��+����"/�������
������	���
	�����#��	����
��/���	
+��

��� (�(��+�� ��� (�)��+��� HB�� ����
���� ��<������� 	
� 	�����	���
� ��� 	��
�� �/�� F������

���������
��������6��7����	���#�����	���	
���3�	
���
����1�)��+����"/�����	
���3�	
���
�

#����� �	�����	��� �/�� ��������
� ��� #	���#	���� ��������� ���� �/�� ���������� � "/��� ��	
�� ���

���	����	����3��	������
�������#��������/��#�����
�<��
�	�������/����������



?�

�������������

���������������������

����	

�

"/����	���(&I�#	������
����
���>�
	�$	������	���*����	+����	��	
��$���3���	�����

���

"/�� ��������� �#
��E���������� #���� #��=� #��/� HB�� ��� ��
����� ������� ������
+� 	
��


�+���	�����
���3��
���
�	+�����
������<��
+�6�����+�	��7��/��
�����	����
��	����������

����/������������

�

,� ����	��	���	�������	��	�������!	������	���	���	���������	��������	��	������	���*����	

���!����	�������	�������!	��	����������	�������	��������	���	��	���	����������		

�

������� 	
�� ��������������
� ���� �/�����������#�����<�� �������<�� �/�� "�#
���� $����
�����

�����#��/�	

�3	���
���/������������#�����<����<@��������/�����������
��,��	���$����

����/��"�#
��	��
�+���	�����
�	����9	

�3	���
����������
��	+�����
��� ��������
����

�/���� ����� +���� ��#	��� ������� ���������
� 	�� #���� 	�� ����E����+�
��������	�� �����������

"/���	���
������/���������#�����	�������
��
����
+��/	������������������	���	�	��	<������

�/�������������

�

-� ����	 ��	 ���	�������	��	 ���	�������	������	���	������	����	�����'	 ��������'	 �������'	

���	 �����	 ����������	 ��	 ����	 ���	 ��.�����	 ������	 ��	 �����	 �����������	  ������	

������!	�������	���� 	���������	���������		

�

"/�� ������� ���������
�� ��� �/��� ���������#���� �������� ���
� ��	��� ��
�����
��#��/� �/��

�	�=��� "�	���� 	
�� ���
� 2�	��� �����
�� ��� �/�� !�
��	�� ��	
�� � ,�� #���� 	���� �������� ���
�

��	��� ��
�����
�� #��/� �/�� ��F������
��� ��� �/�� ��	

��� B
��� ���������
�� ��
�
+�

���������� �/�����	�������#/��/�#����<�������
��� �
�	� �������	�����	���
�������>�
�
+�� � ,�� ���

��=���� �/	�� 	
�� ��������� �	�=� ��� ���
� ��	��� �
� �/��� ��������� #����� <�� ����	��� 	
��

�#
���	
������	����<��	�/����#
����	�����	���
���

�

"/����������� ��� ���	����#��/�
� �/�� <��
�	�������� �/�� $����
���B
������ 2�/���������������

;	�=���:������94�2�/����������	�����
�H�/
��
��	
�/�	
��
�/����94�2�/����������	����

#��/�
��/��
�/������@������2����
���#�����/	����/�������
����	���
��
+����/��������
�

:�����*�+/�2�/�������$����
���*�+/�2�/������� �/�� �������� >�
�
+�� �/������������#
���

#���������#��/� �������
�	������ ����� �/�� $����
���B
������ 2�/������������� ����������
��

�/�� �������
�������� �/����������� 	
��	������ 	�� 	� �������
	����
�����	
��
+���� /�#� �/��

������������
���������
+�#��/�
��/����<@���������������+/��/	����/��������	���
	��
�����

������,����������<����/	���/����������������/�����@������������������	��	���������	
������	�

������� ��/���� ������ ������ �������� ��
	
��	�� ��
���<����
�� �
� 	� �������� <	���� ��� ��	�/�

	
��/�����������	+�����
��#��/��/����/���������������

�



4�

�������������

���������������������

"/�� ������� ������
��� ��� �/��� ��������� #����� 	���� �
@��� �/�� ���� ��� �/�� ��<���� ��<�	���

���������;��/�	

�3	���
���/������������#����<����<@��������/�����������
��,��	���$����

����/��"�#
��	��
�+���	�����
�	����9	

�3	���
����������
��	+�����
���	
��	�������
�

����/���������+������#	����/����<�	����"/���	���
������/���������#����	�������
��
����
+�

�/	������������������	���	�	��	<�������/�������������

�

/�	 ����	 ��	 ���	 �������	 ������	 ������	 ��	 �����	 �����������	 �����	 ��	 ����������	 ��	

��.�����	 �������	���	 ���	����������	����	��	�������!	������	 ����������	���	�������	 ��	

�����������	 ��.�����	 ��������	 �	 ��������	 ��	 ����������	 ���	 �����������	 ����	

�����	����	��	�	�����	��	���	#�����	$���	����������		

	

$��������	���	
��	�������������������������/��������������
���	

�3����#�����<����<@�������

�/�� ���������
�� ,��	��� $���� ��� �/�� "�#
� ��� $����
���� 	�� 
�+���	���� �
� 	� ���9

	

�3	���
� ���������
�� 	+�����
��� ;��/� �/�� ������� �	���
�� ��� �/���� ������ �/��

��������� #����� ��
���<���� ��� ��	
�����	���
�� +�
��	�� +����
��
��� ��������

����E����+�
��������	�������������	�=��	
�������
�����	���������	
���/����<�	����

�

����� �/�� ��������� 	��
���
�� 	
�����	���� 	����3��	����� 5'� 	����� ��� ��������	����

:	�����
� �/��� 	���	+���	
��<	�����
�	
� 	����3��	��� ������ 	��	� �	���� 6$�7���� �&&� ����

��������	����������������	��<����	��
	<�������3�����	����3��	�����)4'�'''��F�	��������

���+�������	�	<���	��	���"/���
��<�����������������
���	��������
	��������	���	
����<@����

�������	���
+��	�=�����
�����
����,���/��������������	

�3�����/��"�#
����$����
���#�����

�	������ 	� &G� �	���� �	3� �
� ��	
�	����
�� �/	�� ��������� 	�� �/��� ������� ��������	�� 	��	��

�������
+�	������
	������	��
+�����
��������/��"�#
����

�

0�		 1� 	 ���	 ���	 �������	 ���������	 ������	 ���	 �������	 ��	 ���	 ���������	 ��	 �������	 ���	

��������	���	�������	�������'	��������!	��	*������'	 ���	*������'	���!�'	������	���	

�����2����	�������	��������	��	����	���	�������	��	������	���	�����	���������		

�

"/������@����#���������	��� ���	���2�	���	
��$����	����+��	���
���/	��	���	�����	<�������/��

������������ 	�����������<�� �/���	�����	���
�� � "/�����������#���� ��

���� ��� �/������	���

#	����	
��#	���#	�������������� H�/
��
�B�������������	
���#/��/� ���+����
���<���/��

��>�
	�������	���
����������
�	
���/����>�
	����	����
������
����
��
�	��J�	�������

�����/���/�����@����#������
���<��������/�����������
�����/��#	���������������
��/��	��	��

�

"/�����@����	���������
�����������	
��������/	��#����������3��	����
	���������	
����
���

�/�� 	���� � �
��+�� 
������ ���/� 	�� ��������� ��#��� 	
�� 
	���	�� +	��� �	�� <�� ��������� <��

��>�
	���<����2��������2	������������@�����2���/#����!	����� 	+�	�!	��6�����/�������	���

������������	
�7�� �:����	

�
+��/��������� �	
���������� �/��������������	��� �/������������

����	
����#���� 	����<��	<��� �����	
�	
��	
�����	��� �����
+� �/������������ �
� �/�� ���������

"/���#����<��	<�����������	����/��
��<�����������������������	
�����������������
	���



8�

�������������

���������������������

���	��+���� ��� �������� �������� ��� �/��� 
�#� 	��	� #��/���� �	�������
+� �������� ��� �3����
+�

�����������

�


���	���������������
���
�����/�������������#��/�	

�3	���
��#������	�����������
��

,��	���$���� ��� �/��"�#
���� $����
����	��
�+���	���� �
�	����9	

�3	���
����������
��

	+�����
��� � "/���� ����� #����� <�� ����� �
� �	��� <�� �/�� "�#
� ��� �	�� ���� ��������� 	
��

	��
������ �/	�� 	��� ���	
���� <�� <��/� ���� �����
�� 	
�� ������� ������
���� � ����� �/��

�
���������
� ��� ��������	�� ����� #����� +�
��	��� �	���� �	3� ����
��� �/	���	�� ��������

	������
	�� ��
	
��	�� ���������� ��F������ ��� ����� �/�� �������� 	
�� 	��
���� ���	
��� ���

�����
��	
���������������
�������/��"�#
����$����
����

�

3�		 ����	 ����!��'	 ��	 ���'	 ��	 ������	 �	 
����	 �� �	 �	 ��������	 ������������	 ���	 �������	

����������		

�

"/�����F�������!�
��	����	
�	��
���
�������
�����
��#��/��/����	����������/��2�	������

��>�
	�	��#����	��#��/��/��	��
���
����������������	<���/���<���/��"�#
����$����
���

���� 	��
���
��� ��� �/�� !�
��	�� ��	
�� � "/��� 	�����	���
� ��� <��
+� ��<������� �
�

��
����	
��� #��/� �/�� ����������� ��� �/�� "�#
� ��� $����
��� ���� 	���
��� !�
��	�� ��	
�

	��
���
���/	��/	���<��
����	<���/����
�	�����	
���#��/�2�	�����	�������

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�



�

�������������

���������������������

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�


� �����%���&���'���(�)���������������

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�















�

�������������

���������������������

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�


� �����*��+�,����� ���������

�

�



�

�������������

���������������������

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

���������+�,����� ���������

-�������������������.�++��

























































































�

�������������

���������������������

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

+�,����� ���������

+�,��/�������������!01.�++��

�





 

Arizona Farms  

General Plan Amendment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Legal Descriptions 

Superstition Springs R-14 Association, Wolfy’s R E Holdings LLC and David C. Phillips 

















�

�������������

���������������������

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�


� �����0��-6)������















 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
12b. 

MEETING DATE:  July 21, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                     Community Development Director          
                                      
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1456-14: North-South Freeway  
                    Corridor Minor General Plan Amendment (PZC- 
                    22-14-GPA) 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

North-South ADOT Corridor Minor  
PZC-22-14-GPA 

July 21, 2014 
1 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Conduct public hearing, and motion to adopt Resolution No. 1456-14 for the North-
South ADOT Freeway Corridor Minor General Plan Amendment.  
 
REQUEST: 
 
This is a request by the Town of Florence for approval of the following application: 

A request for a Minor General Plan Amendment to the Town of 
Florence 2020 General Plan. More specifically, this application 
requests an amendment to the Town of Florence 2020 General 
Plan Future Land Use Map contained within the Land Use Element 
to adjust the Town’s conceptual alignment of the proposed North-
South ADOT Freeway Corridor, as well as the proposed conceptual 
alignment of the ADOT Passenger Rail Corridor, based on 
information collected and analysis completed since the adoption of 
the 2020 General Plan in 2010 and subsequent amendments. This 
change may have some resultant changes to the supporting 
roadway network, including potential roadway changes.  

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The intent of this General Plan Amendment application is to amend the 2020 General 
Plan Future Land Use Map contained within the Land Use Element to adjust the Town’s 
conceptual alignment of the proposed North-South ADOT Freeway Corridor, as well as 
the proposed conceptual alignment of the ADOT Passenger Rail Corridor, based on 
information collected and analysis completed since the adoption of the 2020 General 
Plan in 2010 and subsequent amendments. 



 
North-South ADOT Corridor Minor GPA 

 PZC-22-14-GPA 
July 21, 2014 

2 
 

 
Over the past seven years, the Town has attended many ADOT agency meetings, 
ADOT public meetings and meetings with stakeholders, developers, builders and 
property owners in an effort to ultimately identify an appropriate North-South ADOT 
Freeway Corridor.  The Town has also worked closely with Pinal County, the State Land 
Department and all municipalities impacted by the Corridor.  Furthermore, the location 
of the Corridor was a critical consideration in the North End Framework Vision Plan. 
Once the Corridor is approved, the intent is then for ADOT to identify alternatives for 
actual centerlines or roadway alignments through the Corridor.  
 
The Town was a regional leader in identifying a tentative corridor on our Future Land 
Use Map.  Since the original designation, the Town has approved refinements to the 
conceptual corridor as ADOT studies progressed.  The Town is once again in a position 
to refine the conceptual location of the North-South ADOT Freeway Corridor on the 
2020 General Plan Future Land Use Map.  The revised location is generally consistent 
with many of ADOT’s findings to date and reflective of the following key guiding 
principles staff contends are critical to this project: 

 

1. The North-South ADOT Freeway Corridor must be planned in a manner that 
enhances regional and local circulation and accessibility. 

2. The North-South ADOT Freeway Corridor should be planned in a manner that 
considers the potential for this to be one of the first truly multi-modal 
transportation corridors in the State of Arizona. 

3. The North-South ADOT Freeway Corridor can not be planned as a bypass for 
the Town of Florence. 

4. The North-South ADOT Freeway Corridor must be planned in manner that 
enhances the long term sustainability of the historic core of Florence, while 
also not being too close as to damage the integrity and character of historic 
Florence. 

5. The North-South ADOT Freeway Corridor must be planned in a manner that 
would offer substantial economic advantages to the Town of Florence. 

6. The North-South ADOT Freeway Corridor should be planned in a manner that 
avoids existing development and limits the potential impacts to key natural or 
man-made features, such as, but not limited to, Magma Dam, Poston Butte, 
the Gila River, CAP canals and the Florence Retarding Structure. 

7. The North-South ADOT Freeway Corridor must be planned in a manner that 
recognizes Florence as the County Seat and the heart and core of Pinal 
County. 

 
Somewhat concurrent with the North-South Freeway Corridor project, ADOT is 
continuing a study of high capacity regional transportation to move passengers between 
the cities of Phoenix and Tucson.  ADOT's Passenger Rail Corridor Study builds on 
previous work performed by ADOT and other agencies.  



 
North-South ADOT Corridor Minor GPA 

 PZC-22-14-GPA 
July 21, 2014 

3 
 

 
The Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) and Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 
are providing funds for this study.  The agencies are designated as co-federal lead 
agencies for the study process.  NEPA contains certain requirements that all federal 
agencies must follow; however, the specific process for moving a project from a 
universe of alternatives to a preferred alternative and implementation of the 
environmental evaluation somewhat differs for each agency. 
 
Historically, Arizona metropolitan areas were served by many rail modes not unlike 
other American cities.  As the automobile age gained momentum and influence, those 
passenger rail programs were derailed. Streetcar programs in Phoenix disappeared and 
only a historic trolley continued operation in Tucson.  As connections to other metros in 
other states has waned, the final significant blow to passenger rail in Central and 
Southern Arizona was struck with the elimination of Amtrak service to Phoenix in 
1996—when Union Pacific closed the connecting rail infrastructure between Yuma and 
Phoenix forcing Amtrak to resort to mainline services only.  
 
Passenger Rail programs in Arizona have enjoyed a rebirth in the last decade, with 
three specific programs moving from planning into reality. METRO opened its program 
of light rail transit connecting the cities of Phoenix, Tempe and Mesa in 2008 after 
nearly two decades of planning, design, engineering, and construction.  Tucson’s 
Modern Street Car program is set for opening in 2014, after nearly a decade of 
preparations.  The city of Tempe is currently planning a similar system and seeking 
Federal participation.  Each of these programs highlights the need for high capacity 
urban and regional mobility solutions that can provide short, mid-range, and longer 
distance trips without the need for all things auto. 
 
On a much grander scale, ADOT envisions that someday there will be passenger rail 
service between the State’s two largest metropolitan areas.  Concurrently, the two most 
viable options for this route passing through Pinal County go through Florence.  One 
route proposes to parallel the existing UP Railroad corridor.  The other proposes to 
coincide with the alignment of the North-South Freeway Corridor.  Since the inception of 
this project, the Town has strongly advocated for a truly multi-modal approach of having 
the passenger rail service integrated with the Freeway.  This would present phenomenal 
land planning and development scenarios, particularly if there are one to two rail stops 
in the Town of Florence. 
 
The Town envisions that the rail stops, whether for commuter and or inter-city rail, 
should be located along Arizona Farms Road and on Butte Road, just west of 
downtown.  These two stops would allow the greatest access to more highly developed 
areas of the Town, with highly desirable access to major employment centers. 



 
North-South ADOT Corridor Minor GPA 

 PZC-22-14-GPA 
July 21, 2014 

4 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
When the Planning and Zoning Commission and Town Council are considering an 
Amendment to the General Plan, the applicant must justify the need for a Minor 
Amendment to the General Plan through a series of questions: 
 
1. Why is the current land use/circulation classification not suitable? 

 
This Minor General Plan Amendment is intended to keep the 2020 General Plan 
up-to-date with the evolving ADOT North-South Freeway Corridor study and the 
ADOT Passenger Rail Corridor plans that will impact future plans for major 
roadway corridors in this region.  The intent of this Minor General Plan 
Amendment is to adjust the proposed alignment of the conceptual North-South 
Freeway and Passenger Rail Corridors based on information collected and 
analysis completed since the adoption of the 2020 General Plan in 2010.   
 
Working to refine the final alignment of the North-South Freeway and Passenger 
Rail Corridors will allow the Town, property owners and potential developers 
impacted by the subject Corridors to more effectively plan for future land uses 
and developments. 

 
2. Does the proposal conform with land use goals?  Will the proposed change 

in land use or circulation do the following: 
 

a. Support the goals and policies of the General Plan; 
b. Conform to the proposed range of land uses, densities, and intensity 

of uses, hierarchy of transportation systems; and 
c. Avoid creation of isolated uses that will cause incompatible 

community form and a burden on services and circulation systems? 
 
Yes, by comprehensively anticipating and planning for future development and 
major roadway and passenger rail corridors, the Town will be able to continue to 
fulfill the goals, objectives and strategies of the 2020 General Plan.  The 
designation of the conceptual Corridors on the updated Future Land Use Map is 
based on a structured analysis of existing conditions, ongoing ADOT studies, 
planned developments, natural impediments, infrastructure planning and 
commonly accepted planning principles. 
 

3. What unique physical characteristics of the site present opportunities or 
constraints for the development under the existing classification? 
 
Factors such as existing developments, planned developments, existing 
roadways, planned roadways, the Magma Dam, Gila River, Central Arizona 
Project canal, desert washes, irrigation canals, railroads, state highways, the 



 
North-South ADOT Corridor Minor GPA 

 PZC-22-14-GPA 
July 21, 2014 

5 
 

Florence Military Reservation, topography and other natural and human made 
features have been taken into consideration in this planning effort. 
 

4. What is the ability and capacity of the water and sewer system to 
accommodate development that may occur as a result of the General Plan 
Amendment without system extensions or improvements? 

 
The Water and Wastewater, Growth Areas and Cost of Development elements of 
the 2020 General Plan address the requirements for water and sewer 
extensions, in addition to the related costs and impacts of such as a result of new 
development.  Other 2020 General Plan Elements also address these issues to 
ensure the Town’s growth is sustainable and fiscally responsible.  New 
developments are required to provide their share of infrastructure improvements 
and also contribute impact fees that go toward infrastructure development.   

 
5. What is the ability of existing police and fire department personnel to 

provide adequate emergency services according to acceptable response 
standards set by the community? 
 
The ability of Police and Fire Department personnel to provide adequate 
emergency services needs to be considered prior to the approval of any new 
developments. This consideration is routine when considering new 
developments, especially those furthest away from the Town core.  New police 
and fire stations will be strategically placed around Town within new 
developments as growth occurs to provide adequate emergency services. 
 

6. What is the ability of the proposed public and private open space, 
recreation, schools, and library facilities to meet the projected demand of 
future development without reducing services below community 
standards? 

 
The Parks, Trails, and Open Space Master Plan was approved and adopted by 
the Town Council on July 21, 2008 and the future demand for recreation centers, 
parks and open space was addressed through the Parks, Trails and Open Space 
Element of the 2020 General Plan.  Larger developments that will directly 
influence school enrollment will continue to work with the Florence Unified School 
District and/or Coolidge Unified School District to ensure that there continues to 
be adequate educational facilities available for residents. 
 

7. What is the proposed fiscal impact of future development based on 
evaluation of projected revenues and the additional cost of providing 
public facilities and services to accommodate projected increases or 
decreases in population and development that could occur as a result of 
the General Plan amendment? 



 
North-South ADOT Corridor Minor GPA 

 PZC-22-14-GPA 
July 21, 2014 

6 
 

Great efforts were made as part of the 2020 General Plan planning process to 
create a more sustainable mix and balance of land uses and to ensure adequate 
land is provided for employment centers, services and retail development.  Such 
provision encourages a positive fiscal result; however, as with other jurisdictions, 
substantial residential growth will likely occur prior to rapid development of 
additional non-residential land uses.  The future development of major 
transportation and passenger rail corridors, including the North-South ADOT 
Freeway, will facilitate appropriate development patterns and assist in the 
delivery of Town services and infrastructure planning.  Passenger Rail service 
and other modes of future transportation will ultimately supplement automobile 
related improvements. 

 
8. How will the proposed amendment affect the ability of the community to 

sustain the physical and cultural resources, including air quality, water 
quality, energy, natural and human-made resources necessary to meet the 
demands of present and future residents? 

 
Specific goals, objectives and strategies in the 2020 General Plan address the 
protection of open space and resources.  The 2020 General Plan has an 
Environmental Element that addresses the identification and conservation of 
natural resources and seeks to protect public health and prevent the destruction 
of significant natural areas.  Topics covered include: climate, water quality and 
supply, air quality, soils, biological habitats, cultural resources, energy efficiency 
and other environmental factors.  The 2020 General Plan also introduced an 
Energy Element that enhances the Town’s commitment towards sustainability. 

 
9. What changes, if any, in Federal or State laws or policies substantiate the 

proposed amendment? 
 

This Amendment is not in response to any changes in Federal or State laws, but 
is proposed to take a pro-active stance in suggesting the proper updated 
alignment of the proposed ADOT North-South Freeway and the Passenger Rail  
Corridors in the Florence region. 

FINDINGS: 

The following findings have been made on this request and are provided for the 
consideration of the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Town Council: 

 The proposed Major General Plan Amendment is in overall compliance with the 
goals, objectives and strategies of the Florence 2020 General Plan.  Specifically, 
the Amendment is consistent with Goals One and Two of the Circulation Element 
that support a safe, efficient, balanced and comprehensive transportation system 



 
North-South ADOT Corridor Minor GPA 

 PZC-22-14-GPA 
July 21, 2014 

7 
 

and Goal One of the Economic Development Element that states “Develop a 
sustainable economy in order to maintain a vibrant and healthy community”; 

 
 The proposed Amendment does not impact the overall balance and mixture of 

land uses within the Town’s Planning area;  
 

 The proposed changes is consistent with the Town Council endorsed North End 
Framework Vision Plan; and 

 
 The proposed Amendment is consistent with the guiding principles Town staff 

has followed with the ADOT North-South Freeway and Passenger Rail Corridor 
projects in order to protect the long-term vitality, sustainability and character of 
Florence.  
 

 The Town’s General Plan does allow for modifications to these Freeway and 
Passenger Rail corridors to be made via the Minor General Plan Amendment 
process. 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
The Town has reached out to all Town citizens and other property owners though a 
public participation process that includes: 
 

 Advertisements in the local Town paper; 
 One public hearing for the Planning and Zoning Commission; and 
 Town Council public hearing. 

  
As of this writing, staff has had no public response.  It is noted though, that staff has 
been working with all major stakeholders along these corridors to refine these 
alignments in a mutually beneficial manner. 
 
No opposition has been expressed on this case as of this writing. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None directly applicable to this request. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Conduct public hearing, and in accordance with the findings presented on this request, 
staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1456-14 for approval of this Minor 
General Plan Amendment as depicted in Exhibit A, subject to the following condition: 
 

 Any conditions deemed necessary by the Town Council. 
 



 
North-South ADOT Corridor Minor GPA 

 PZC-22-14-GPA 
July 21, 2014 

8 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1456-14 
Exhibit A 
Application Materials 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 1456-14 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE NORTH-SOUTH ADOT FREEWAY 
CORRIDOR MINOR GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT (PZC-22-14-
GPA). 

 
WHEREAS, a Minor General Plan Amendment (Minor GPA) is requested for the 

Town of Florence 2020 General Plan Future Land Use Map contained within the Land 
Use Element to adjust the Town’s conceptual alignment of the proposed North-South 
ADOT Freeway Corridor, as well as, the proposed conceptual alignment of the ADOT 
Passenger Rail Corridor; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Florence proactively worked to identify and support long 

term transportation needs for the Town; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Florence has been actively engaged with the ADOT 

North-South Freeway and Passenger Rail Corridor Studies to protect the long term 
needs of the Town; and 

 
WHEREAS, a public participation process, including the holding of a public 

hearing of the Town of Florence Planning and Zoning Commission and public outreach  
to impacted stakeholders has been followed for the Minor GPA; and 

    
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the Town of Florence has 

considered all public comments made at the public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission sent a unanimous favorable 

recommendation to the Town Council on the North-South ADOT Freeway Corridor 
Minor GPA; and 
 

WHEREAS, said proposal has been considered by the Council and the Minor 
GPA has been found to: be appropriate; be consistent with the goals, objectives and 
strategies of the Florence 2020 General Plan; specifically, the amendment is consistent 
with Goals One and Two of the Circulation Element that support a safe, efficient, 
balanced and comprehensive transportation system and Goal One of the Economic 
Development Element that states, “Develop a sustainable economy in order to maintain 
a vibrant and healthy community”.  Thus, a determination has been made that the Minor 
GPA should be approved.  

 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona 
as follows: 
 
The Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence hereby approve the subject Minor 
General Plan Amendment as presented in Exhibit A. 
 
 
 
 
 



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Common Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, this 21st day of July, 2014. 
 
 

 
  ___________________________ 
  Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
                          

______________________                             _____________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk             James E.  Mannato, Town Attorney 
 



Propos ed  Future Land  Us e
This  map is  created  for reference purpos es  only and  is  to be us ed  at your ow n ris k.
The Tow n of Florence makes  no w arranty as  to the accuracy or completenes s  of the
information contained  in this  map and  as s umes  no liability for any errors  or omis s ions
contained  therein, nor for any d irect, ind irect, or cons eq uential d amages  Which may
be caus ed  by its  us e.  It is  the us er’s  res pons ibility to verify all information contained
herein.

Biz
na

ga
 St

.

Wi
ldw

oo
d R

d.

Re
ed

 R
d.

Dif
fin

 R
d.

Qu
ail

 R
un

 R
d.

Do
gw

oo
d R

d.

Fu
lso

n R
d.

Ma
in 

St.

Pla
nt 

Rd
.

Co
oli

dg
e A

irp
ort

 R
d./

His
co

x R
d.

Va
lle

y F
arm

s R
d./

Co
op

er 
Rd

.

Cle
ma

ns
 R

d./
Fe

lix 
Rd

.

Att
aw

ay
 R

d.

Na
fzi

ge
r R

d./
Qu

ail
 R

un
 Ln

.

Ch
ris

ten
se

n R
d./

Sie
rra

 Vi
sta

 R
d.

Ar
izo

na
 B

lvd
./

Sc
hn

ep
f R

d.

Ke
nw

ort
hy

 R
d.

Sk
ou

se
n R

d./
Ga

ntz
el 

Rd
.

Ma
cra

e R
d./

Ga
ry 

Rd
.

Bartlett Rd.

Martin Rd./
Cactus Forest Rd.

Kenilworth Rd.

Vah Ki Inn Rd.

Mayfield Rd.

Palmer Rd./
Butte Ave.

Ranchview Rd.

Bonnybrook Rd.

Franklin Rd.

Hiller Rd.

Heritage Rd.

Arizona Farms Rd.

Magma Rd.

Judd Rd.

Bella Vista Rd.

Roberts Rd.

Skyline Dr.

Empire Rd./
Hash Knife Rd.

Riggs Rd./
Combs Rd.

Chandler Heights Rd.

Ocotillo Rd.

Merrill
Ranch

Merrill Ranch

Anthem at
Merrill Ranch

Paloroso

Skyview Farms

Dobson
Farms

Hunt Hwy.

Adamsville Rd.

Florence-Kelvin Hwy.

Cactus Forest Rd.

Florence
Military

Reservation

o
Coolidge
Airport

Coolidge

Casa Grande
National

Monument

Gila River
Indian

Community

Territory
Square

79

287
87

£¤60

79

17 16 15 14 13 18 17 18 1716 15 14 13

35 36

30 29 28 27 26 25 30 29 28 27 26 25 30 29 28 30 2927 26 25

11 12 7 8 9 10 11 12 7 8 9 10 11 12 7 8 9 10 11 12
7 8

31 32 33 34 35 36 31 32 33 34 35 36 31 32 33 34 31 32

26 25 30 29 28 27 26 29 28 27 26 25 30 29 28 27 26 25
30 29

35 36 31 32 33 34 35 343332 3536 31 36 31 32 33 36 31 32

2 1 6 5 4 3 2 3 24 151 6 6 5 4 3 2 1 6 5

26 25 30 29 28 27 26 25 30 29 2628 27 25 30 29 28 27 26 2925 30

35 36 31 32 33 34 35 36 31 32 33 34 35 36 31 32 33 34 35 3236

11

7 8 9 10 11 7 81212 9 107 1110 11 128 9 7 8

2
1

6 5 4 3 6 5 4 3 2 1 6 5 4 3 52 1 61

2726 252825 2930 30 29

18

30

17

2423

36 31 3235 3334 34 3533 3631 32 31 32

7 8 911 12 108 9 10 11 12

7 8

24 19 2022 23 22 2321 24 19 22 2220 21 23 24

19 20

11 12 7 8 9 10 11 11 12812 7 9 10 9 10 117 8 12 7

34 35

2

25 30

20 21 22 23 24
19 20

26 25

30 29

19 202423

12

23 24 19 20 21 22 23 2024 19 21 22 23 24 19

18 17 16 18 171315 16 1514 1413 1318 141517 16 18 17

23 24 19 20 21 22 23 20 2324 19 21 22 24 19 20 21 22 23 24 19 20

14 13 18 17 16 15 14 1713 18 16 15 14 13 18 17 16 15 14 13
18 17

27 2926 25 30 28 27 26 25 30

3635

31 32 33 34 35 36

3 2
1 6 5 4 3 62 1

1718 1613 15 1415 14 13 18

8 97 10 1112 12 710 11

19 20 21 22 23 24 19 20 21 22 23 24 19 20 1921 2022 23 24

18 17 16 15 14 13 18

1 6 5 4 3 2 1 6 5 4 3 2 1 6 5 4 3 62 51

25 2926 2827 272829

21

2 13 6 54 45 3 2 1

6 5

2526

30 29 28 25 30 29 2827 2726 26

19 20 21 2024 19 2122 22 2323 24 22 23 2419 20 21 19 29

1314

14 13 18 17 16 15 14 1713 18 14 1316 15 16 15 1418 17 13 18

8

1713 161416 15 1517 14 13

18 17

31

2

Gila River

Exhibit A
2020 General Plan

Fil
e L

oca
tio

n: 
Y:\

Pro
jec

ts\
Co

mm
un

ity 
De

vel
op

me
nt\

Lo
ng 

Te
rm

\N
ort

h S
ou

th 
Co

rrid
or\

Ag
enc

y U
pd

ate
\N

ort
h_

So
uth

_C
orr

ido
r_E

xh
ibi

t_A
_C

olo
r2.

mx
d

Date Created : 6/27/2014
Date Mod ified : 7/3/2014

Canals
CAP Canal
Railroads
Roads
Highways
Potential Utility/Multi-Use Corridor
Aggregate Resources Overlay
Planning Area
North-South ADOT Freeway Conceptual Corridor and
and ADOT Passenger Rail Conceptual Corridor
North-South ADOT Freeway Conceptual Interchanges
North-South ADOT Freeway Conceptual Interchanges and
ADOT Passenger Rail Conceptual Passenger Rail Stops

Res id ential
Rural Ranchette Residential (RRR)
Low Density Residential (LDR)
Medium Density Residential 1 (MDR1)
Medium Density Residential 2 (MDR2)
High Density Residential 1 (HDR1)
High Density Residential 2 (HDR2)

Commercial/Office/Ind us trial
Neighborhood Commercial (NC)
Community Commercial (CC)
Professional Office (PO)
Employment/Light Industrial (E/LI)

Heavy Industrial (HI)
Mixed -Us e

Master Planned Community (MPC)
Downtown Mixed Use (DMU)
Highway Mixed Use (HMU)
Prison/Employment/Light Industrial (P/E/LI)

Community/Public
Public/Governmental (P/G)
Prison (P)
Military Reservation (MR)
Parks and Recreation (P/R)
Open Space (OS)

Land  Ow ners hip
Bureau of  Land Management
National Forest
Indian Community
Nationa Monument
State Trust Land

0 2 4 61

Miles/Tow n of
Florence





 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
12c. 

MEETING DATE:  July 21, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                     Community Development Director          
                                      
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1457-14:  The Reserve at Lookout 
                    Mountain Minor General Plan Amendment 
                    (PZC-23-14-GPA) 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
The Reserve at Lookout Mountain Minor GPA 
PZC-23-14-GPA 

July 21 2014 
1 
 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Conduct public hearing and motion to adopt Resolution No. 1457-14 for the Reserve 
at Lookout Mountain Minor General Plan Amendment.  
 
REQUEST: 
 

A request by United Engineering Group on behalf of RMG Lucky Hunt LLC 
for a Minor General Plan Amendment to the Town of Florence 2020 
General Plan.  More specifically, this application requests an amendment 
to the Florence 2020 General Plan Future Land Use Map for the removal 
of the Aggregate Resources (AR) Overlay from the proposed Reserve at 
Lookout Mountain planned community located at the southwest corner of 
Hunt Highway and the Heritage Road alignment due to the aggregate 
mining use being permanently eliminated from the subject site.

BACKGROUND: 

The proposed project known as the Reserve at Lookout Mountain encompasses 65.07 
acres of potential residential development; however, this application pertains to 30 
acres located on the southwest corner of Hunt Highway and Heritage Road in Pinal 
County, Arizona.  Owners RMG Lucky Hunt 65, LLC, an entity of the McRae Group of 
companies, control the entire project.   
 
The purpose of this application is to remove an Aggregate Resources (AR) overlay that 
was a direct result from revisions to state statutes in 2011, specifically those enacted 
per Senate Bill 1598, that required General Plans to identify current sources of 
aggregate materials.  The intent of the statutory revisions was to provide opportunities 



 

 
The Reserve at Lookout Mountain Minor GPA 

 PZC-23-14-GPA 
July 21, 2014 

   2 
 

for communities and current/future aggregate producers to avoid unnecessary land use 
conflicts, ensure long-term availability of construction materials and to achieve the 
highest and best land uses for these sites once aggregate mining ceases.  The subject 
site is being considered for future residential development and the AR overlay is no 
longer necessary on this site.   
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
When Planning and Zoning Commission and Town Council are considering an 
amendment to the General Plan, the applicant must justify the need for Minor 
Amendment to the General Plan through a series of questions: 
 
1. Why is the current land use/circulation classification not suitable? 

 
This site has excellent characteristics that make it the ideal entry point along Hunt 
Highway into the future Town of Florence.  With the site’s topography and close 
proximity to the future commercial center located just south, this site has an 
opportunity as a highly desirable hillside community.  The granite mine previously 
located on the property is no longer in use.  Residential development within the AR 
overlay is not allowed therefore, we are requesting that it be removed.  

 
The land use designations on surrounding properties are as follows: 
 
North:   Medium Density Residential 1 (MDR1) and Community Commercial (CC) 
 
South:  Medium Density Residential 1 (MDR1) and Community Commercial (CC) 
 
East: Community Commercial (CC) 
 
West: Gila River Indian Community (GRIC) 

 
2. Does the proposal conform with land use goals? 

 
a. Support the goals and policies of the 2020 General Plan; and 

 
The proposed Minor GPA would support the overall policies and goals of the 
2020 General Plan by removing the AR overlay to allow for residential uses in 
proximity to similar land uses. 

 
This proposal does not suggest any changes to the overall circulation system 
of the Town of Florence 2020 General Plan. 



 

 
The Reserve at Lookout Mountain Minor GPA 

 PZC-23-14-GPA 
July 21, 2014 

   3 
 

 
This project will also conform to the 2008 Town of Florence Parks, Trails and 
Open Space Master Plan. 

 
b. Conform to the proposed range of land uses, densities, and             

intensity of uses, hierarchy of transportation systems; and  
 
The request to remove the AR overlay designation will not have an affect on 
the proposed range of land uses, densities or intensity of uses because this 
area will be largely comprised of hillside recreational uses.  The amendment 
will not conflict with the hierarchy of roadways previously proposed in the 
2020 General Plan. 

 
c. Avoid creation of isolated uses that will cause incompatible community 

form and a burden on services and circulation systems? 
 

The proposed removal of the AR overlay is consistent with the surrounding 
designations.  No incompatible or isolated land uses will be a direct result, nor 
will any additional burden on services and circulation systems be created. 

 
3. What unique physical characteristics of the site present opportunities or 

constraints for the development under the existing classification? 
 
With the site’s unique topography and location along Hunt Highway, the opportunity 
to develop a premier hillside residential community with amazing views of 
undisturbed desert far exceeds the need for a five acre granite mining operation. 

 
4. What is the ability and capacity of the water and sewer system to 

accommodate development that may occur as a result of the General Plan 
Amendment without system extensions or improvements? 

 
Water and Sewer services will be provided by Johnson Utilities, LLC (JUC).   
Johnson Utilities has a regional WWTP located directly across Hunt Highway for the 
project and has sufficient capacity to serve the site.  Additionally, JUC has regional 
water lines in Hunt Highway that the project will be able to tie into.    

 
5. What is the ability of existing police and fire department personnel to provide 

adequate emergency services according to acceptable response standards set 
by the community? 

 



 

 
The Reserve at Lookout Mountain Minor GPA 

 PZC-23-14-GPA 
July 21, 2014 

   4 
 

Police and Fire protection for the Project will be served by the Town of Florence 
upon annexation. Anthem at Merrill Ranch Fire Station No. Two is located 
approximately 4.5 miles south of this site, however, it is understood that the Town is 
anticipating an additional fire station near the Magic Ranch Area in the coming 
years.  

 
The main police station is located in downtown Florence, approximately 12 miles 
southeast.  A police substation will be included within the Fire Station No. Two.   

 
Ongoing conversations between the Town of Florence and the applicant will 
continue so that both the emergency and fire response needs can be satisfied as the 
property moves forward with development. 

 
6. What is the ability of the proposed public and private open space, recreation, 

schools, and library facilities to meet the projected demand of future 
development without reducing services below community standards? 

 
This application proposes the removal of the AR overlay to an already designated 
MDR1 area.  This land use and the specific development proposed for this property 
will not increase the projected densities and thus the need for the public services.  
Schools or parks will also remain as projected. 

 
7. What is the proposed fiscal impact of future development based on evaluation 

of projected revenues and the additional cost of providing public facilities and 
services to accommodate projected increases or decrease in population and 
development that could occur as a result of the General Plan amendment? 

 
The fiscal impact is expected to be beneficial to the Town once development 
commences.  The added rooftops/residents will bring added taxes and economic 
benefit to surrounding businesses.  

 
As previously stated, the added demand on public facilities will be minimal as wet 
utilities will be provided by JUC. 

 
8. How will the proposed amendment affect the ability of the community to 

sustain the physical and cultural resources, including air quality, water 
quality, energy, natural and human-made resources necessary to meet the 
demands of present and future residents? 

 



 

 
The Reserve at Lookout Mountain Minor GPA 

 PZC-23-14-GPA 
July 21, 2014 

   5 
 

This amendment and the proposed subdivision will be subject to and comply with all 
Town, County, State and Federal regulations as applicable. 
 
The water and sewer systems will be regulated by the Arizona Department of 
Environmental Quality.  Under the guidance of ADEQ, all water resource within this 
area will be held to the highest standards.   

 
9. What changes, if any, in Federal or State Laws or policies substantiate the 

proposed amendment? 
 

There are no changes in Federal or State Laws or Policies necessitated by this 
proposed Minor General Plan Amendment.    

FINDINGS: 

 The proposed Minor General Plan Amendment to remove the AG overlay will not 
change nor affect the existing Medium Density Residential 1 (MDR1) designation 
that has been identified for the subject area; 

 
 The properties in the area may be affected in a positive way by this General Plan 

Amendment as the amendment promotes housing development and provides 
additional market base for employment and in retail goods and services; and 

 
 The proposed Minor General Plan Amendment is in compliance with the goals, 

objectives and strategies of the Town’s General Plan. 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

The Town has reached out to all Town residents and other property owners though a 
public participation process that includes: 

 
 A notice for the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearings was mailed to 

all property owners within three hundred (300) feet of the site; 
 

 Property Posting (Sign) - Notice of Public Hearing for a Minor General Plan 
Amendment was posted on one location on the site; 

 
 Advertisements in the local Town paper; 

 
 One public hearing for the Planning and Zoning Commission; and 

  



 

 
The Reserve at Lookout Mountain Minor GPA 

 PZC-23-14-GPA 
July 21, 2014 

   6 
 

 Town Council public hearing.  
 

As of this writing, staff has received no public response on this case. 
 
FICAL IMPACT 
 
None directly applicable to this request. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Conduct public hearing, and in accordance with the findings presented on this request, 
staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1457-14 for approval of this Minor 
General Plan Amendment, subject to the following conditions: 
 

 Any conditions deemed necessary by the Town Council. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1457-14 
Exhibit A 
The Reserve at Lookout Mountain Minor General Plan Amendment Book 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 1457-14 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE RESERVE AT LOOKOUT MOUNTAIN 
MINOR GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT (PZC-23-14-GPA). 

 
WHEREAS, a Minor General Plan Amendment (Minor GPA) is requested for 

property located at the southwest corner of Hunt Highway and the Heritage Road 
alignment due to the aggregate mining use being permanently eliminated from the 
subject site; and 

 
WHEREAS, a significant public participation process, including the holding of a 

public hearing of the Town of Florence Planning and Zoning Commission, has been 
followed for the Minor GPA; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the Town of Florence has 

considered all public comments made at the public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission sent a unanimous favorable 

recommendation to the Town Council on the Reserve at Lookout Mountain Minor GPA; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, said proposal has been considered by the Council and the Minor 
GPA has been found to: be appropriate; be consistent with the goals, objectives and 
strategies of the Town’s General Plan; have a positive impact on the overall balance 
and mixture of land uses in the Town’s General Plan; be consistent with good planning 
principles; be beneficial for the Town’s orderly growth; and be favorable to the general 
welfare, health and safety of the public.  Thus, a determination has been made that the 
Minor GPA should be approved.  
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
The Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence hereby approve the subject Minor 
General Plan Amendment as presented in Exhibit A. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Common Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, this 21st day of July, 2014. 
 
  ___________________________ 
  Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
                          

______________________                             _____________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk              James E.  Mannato, Town Attorney 
 



CC

MDR1

E
/

L
I

M
D

R
1

L
D

R

E Heritage Rd

N Magma Butte Loop

E H
unt H

w
y

E H
unt H

w
y

E H
unt H

w
y

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS,
AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the
GIS User Community

CC

MDR1

E
/

L
I

L
D

R
M

D
R

1

E Heritage Rd

N Magma Butte Loop
E H

unt H
w

y

E H
unt H

w
y

E H
unt H

w
y

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS,
AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the
GIS User Community

Existing 2020 General Plan Proposed 2020 General Plan
This map is created for reference purposes only and is to be used at your own risk.
The Town of  Florence makes no warranty as to the accuracy or completeness of  the
information contained in this map and assumes no liability for any errors or omissions
contained therein, nor for any direct, indirect, or consequential damages Which may
be caused by its use.  It is the user’s responsibility to verify all information contained
herein.

Fi
le 

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 Y
:\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\C
om

m
un

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t\

20
14

\R
es

er
ve

 a
t L

oo
ko

ut
 M

ou
nt

ain
 G

PA
\R

es
er

ve
_G

PA
_E

xh
ib

it_
A

_C
ol

or
.m

xd

Site Location

Aggregate Resources

Low Density Residential (LDR)

Medium Density Residential 1 (MDR1)

Community Commercial (CC)

Employment/Light Industrial (E/LI)

/
0 300 600 900150

Feet
Date Created: 6/27/2014
Date Modified: 6/27/2014

Town of  Florence

Exhibit A

Reserve at
Lookout Mountain



Amended Planned Unit 

Development  

Narrative 

FOR 

Marabella 
Submitted to 

City of Casa Grande, Arizona 

January 2012 

 

 

APPLICANT/PROPERTY OWNER(S) 
LANGLEY RIGGINS 600, LLC 

2738 E. Guadalupe Road 
Gilbert, AZ 85234 
(480) 633-0999 

 
RMG MARABELLA SOUTH, LLC 

8800 N. Gainey Center Drive 
Suite 255 

Scottsdale, AZ 85258 
 (480) 609-1200 

 
 

AGENT/ENGINEER 
UNITED ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC 

3205 W. Ray Road 
Suite 1 

Chandler, AZ  85226 
(480) 705-5372 

May 23, 2014 

 

Minor General Plan 

Amendment  

Narrative 

 

Florence, Arizona 

3 2 0 5  W .  R A Y  R D . ,  S U I T E  1  |  C H A N D L E R ,  A Z   8 5 2 2 6  |  4 8 0 - 7 0 5 - 5 3 7 2   

P 
 
 

The Reserve  
at Lookout Mountain 

8800 N. Gainey Center Drive 
Suite 255 

Scottsdale, AZ 85258 
 
 
 



Minor General Plan 2 The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment United Engineering Group 

 

Project Data Sheet 
 

Project Location: A Portion of the Northeast Quarter of Section 10, Township 4 
South, Ranch 8 East of the Gila and Salt River Base and 
Meridian, Pinal County, Arizona 

 
Parcel Number(s): 200-25-001F 
 
Project Request: Minor General Plan Amendment to removed Aggregate 

Resources Overlay (AR) 
 
Gross Acreage: 30 acres  
 
Existing Use:    None, Raw Desert  
 
Proposed Use:    Single Family Residential Subdivision 
 
Existing General Plan:   Medium Density Residential (MDR1) with Aggregate Resource  
     Overlay (AR) Designation 
 
Proposed General Plan:   Medium Density Residential (MDR1) Designation 
 
Existing Zoning:    None, Property is located within County 
 
Proposed Zoning: Planned Unit Development (PUD)  
 
Flood Zone: Zone X 
 

  

 



Minor General Plan 3 The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment United Engineering Group 

 

 

APPLICATION FOR 

MINOR GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 

FOR 

The Reserve  

At Lookout Mountain 
Submitted to 

Town of Florence, Arizona 

May 23, 2014 

 

PROPERTY OWNER 
RMG Lucky Hunt 65. LLC 

8800 N. Gainey Center Drive 
Suite 255 

Scottsdale, AZ 85258 
 (480) 609-1200 

 

APPLICANT/DEVELOPER 
McRae Group of Companies 

8800 N Gainey Center Dr. 
Suite 255 

Scottsdale, AZ  85258 
(480) 609-1200 

 

AGENT/ENGINEER 
UNITED ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC 

3205 W. Ray Road 
Suite 1 

Chandler, AZ  85226 
(480) 705-5372 

 
UEG Project No. 15922  

 

 



Minor General Plan 4 The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment United Engineering Group 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. INTRODUCTION ..................................................................................................................................... 5 

2. PROJECT JUSTIFICATION ....................................................................................................................... 7 

3. CONCLUSION ....................................................................................................................................... 10 

 

 

FIGURES 

Figure 1 - Florence General Plan ................................................................................................................... 5 

Figure 2 - Hillside Photo ................................................................................................................................ 8 

 

 

EXHIBITS 

A. Vicinity Map 

B. Assessor Parcel Map 

C. General Plan Amendment Exhibit 

D. Surrounding Owners 

 

 

 

 

 

file://uegfs1/data/15922%20-%20Lucky%20Hunt%2065/docs/Entitlement/GPA/Lucky%20Hunt_GPA%20Narrative%205-21-2014.docx%23_Toc388605068


Minor General Plan 5 The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment United Engineering Group 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Purpose of Request 

The purpose of this request is to allow for the development of a 65.07 acre residential 

project know as The Reserve at Lookout Mountain (the Project). The Project is located on 

the southwest corner of Hunt Hwy and Heritage Road in Pinal County, Arizona (See Exhibit A 

– Vicinity Map). The project has recently changed hands and is currently owned by RMG 

Lucky Hunt, LLC (Owners), an entity of the McRae Group of Companies (MGC). The tax 

parcel numbers making up this project are 200-25-001C, 200-25-001E & 200-25-001F (See 

Exhibit B – Assessor Parcel Map).  Though the entire Project is comprised of 65.07 acres, 

this application is only requesting a Minor General Plan Amendment to the 30 acre parcel 

200-25-001. 

 

The Project is currently designated as Medium Density Residential 1 (MRD1) with an 

Aggregate Resources (AR) overlay per the Town of Florence (Town) 2020 General Plan.  It is 

the intent of this General Plan Amendment to remove the 30 acre AR overlay. (See Figure 1 

& Exhibit C – Existing & Proposed Florence General Plan).  This designation is appropriate 

for the property today and in the future considering its surrounding designations.  

 

This application, along with the attached exhibits, will provide the Town with the 

information and documents it needs to approve a Minor General Plan Amendment on the 

property. The Minor General Plan Amendment (GPA) Application can be found in Appendix 

A. 

 

 

 

Figure 1 - Florence General Plan 



Minor General Plan 6 The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment United Engineering Group 

 

 

1.2 Property Description 

The Project is located on the southwest corner of Hunt Highway and Heritage Road in Pinal 

County (Refer to Exhibit A – Vicinity Map).  This site, with additional land to the south 

currently held by a separate MGC LLC will make up a premier hillside residential community 

as a focal point of entry into the Town of Florence.  As mentioned, the property is currently 

within the jurisdiction of Pinal County and is part of the Florence Magic Ranch Annexation 

that is expected to be complete in 2014.  The APN for the requested amendment area is 

200-25-001F (Refer to Exhibit B – Assessor Parcel Map).  A legal description for the 30 acre 

portion being amended can be found in Appendix B. 

 

1.3 Proposed Minor General Plan Amendment 

The proposed Minor GPA will removed the Aggregate Resource (AR) Overlay designation 

(Refer to Exhibit C – Existing and Proposed General Plan Land Use Designation).  The 

Project is currently zoned GR within the County and carries no Town zoning.  Concurrently 

with the annexation and GPA, a PUD will be requested on the subject property.  

The removal of the AR designation proposed with this application is consistent with nearby 

land uses located in the vicinity of the property and is necessary to support the needs of this 

developing area.   

1.4 Relationship to Surrounding Properties 

The surrounding properties in the immediate area are mostly undeveloped raw desert, the 

Gila River Indian Community (GRIC) to the west, Arizona State Trust Land (ASTL) to the 

north, a private land owner to the east and another McRae Group entity, Magic Lake 80 LLC 

which carries an approved PAD within Pinal County.  Other surrounding property owners in 

the area include, Magic Ranch Subdivision & Country Club, future Fry’s grocery store within 

the Barclay Group Commercial Master Plan, and the Johnson Utilities WWTP and a refuse 

transfer station (See Exhibit D – Surrounding Owners Map). 

The surrounding General Plan land use designations are as follows: 

 North: Medium Density Residential (MDR1) & Community Commercial (CC) 

 South:  Medium Density Residential (MDR1) 

 East: Community Commercial (CC) 

 West: No Town GP Designation, Gila River Indian Community (GRIC) 

  

The Site is currently within the County and is in the process of being annexed into the Town 

of Florence. There is no surrounding Town zoning at this time.  

 

 

 



Minor General Plan 7 The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment United Engineering Group 

 

2. PROJECT JUSTIFICATION 

2.1 Why is the current land use/circulation classification not suitable? 

This site has excellent characteristics that make it the ideal entry point along Hunt Hwy into 

the Town of Florence.  With the sites topography and close proximity to the future Fry’s 

Grocery Store and Commercial Center located just south, this site has an excellent 

opportunity as a premiere hillside community with excellent views of the undisturbed desert 

of the surrounding GRIC and ASLD land. The granite mine previously located on the property 

is no longer in use nor needed.  Residential development within the AR overlay is not 

allowed therefore it is being requested that it be removed.     

 

2.1 Does the proposal conform with land use goals? Will the proposed change in land use or 
circulation do the following: 

 
a) Support the goals and policies of the General Plan; 

 
The proposed Minor GPA would support the overall policies and goals of the 

General Plan by removing the AR overlay to allow for residential uses in proximity 

to similar land uses. 

This proposal does not suggest any changes to the overall circulation system of the 

Town of Florence 2020 General Plan. 

This project will also conform to the park, trails and open space goal by providing 

ample hillside area to be uses by local and regional residents.  

b) Conform to the proposed range of land uses, densities, and intensity of uses, 

hierarchy of transportation system;  

The request to remove the AR overlay land use will not have an affect on the 

proposed range of land uses, densities or intensity of uses because this are will be 

largely comprised of hillside recreational uses.  The amendment will not conflict 

with the hierarchy of roadways previously proposed in the General Plan.  Hunt 

Highway will remain designated as a Major Arterial.    

c) Avoid creation of isolated uses that will cause incompatible community form and 

a burden on services and circulation systems? 

The proposed removal of the AR overlay is consistent with the surrounding 

designations.  No incompatible or isolated land uses will be created, nor will any 

additional burden on services and circulation systems be created as this 

surrounding land uses are MDR1 without the AR overlay.    



Minor General Plan 8 The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment United Engineering Group 

 

2.2 What unique physical characteristics of the site present opportunities or constraints for 
the development under the existing classification?  
 
With the sites unique topography and location along Hunt Hwy, the opportunity to develop 

a premier hillside residential community with amazing views of undisturbed desert, far 

exceeds the need for a small granite mining operation. (See Figure 2 – Hillside Photo)   

 

Figure 2 - Hillside Photo 

2.3 What is the ability and capacity of the water and sewer system to accommodate 
development that may occur as a result of the General Plan Amendment without system 
extension or improvements? 
 
Water and Sewer services will be provided by Johnson Utilities, LLC (JUC).   Johnson Utilities 

has a regional WWTP located directly across Hunt Hwy from the project and has sufficient 

capacity to serve the site.  Additionally, JUC has regional water lines in Hunt Hwy that the 

project will be able to tie into. 

2.4 What is the ability of the existing police and fire department personnel to provide 

adequate emergency services according to acceptable response standards set by the 

community? 

Police and Fire protection for the Project will be served by the Town of Florence.  Anthem at 

Merrill Ranch Fire Station is located approximately 4.5 miles south of this site.  However, it is 

understood that the Town is anticipating an additional Magic Ranch Fire Station in the 

coming years.  

 The nearest police station is located in downtown Florence, approximately 12 miles 

southeast.  With the pending Magic Ranch Annexation, it is anticipated that an additional 

police substation will be constructed in the vicinity of the project with the addition of the 

added rooftops.   



Minor General Plan 9 The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment United Engineering Group 

 

Ongoing conversation between the Town of Florence and the applicant will continue so that 

both the emergency and fire response needs can be satisfied as the property moves forward 

with development.  

 

2.5 What is the ability of the proposed public and private open space, recreation, schools, and 
library facilities to meet the projected demand of future development without reducing 
services below community standards?  

 
This application proposes the removal of the AR overlay to an already designated MDR1 

area. This land use and the specific development proposed for this property will not increase 

the projected densities and thus the need for public services such as schools or parks will 

also remain as projected.  

 
2.6 What is the proposed fiscal impact of future development based on evaluation of 

projected revenues and the additional cost of providing public facilities and services to 
accommodate projected increases or decreases in population and development that could 
occur as a result of the General Plan amendment?  

 
The proposed fiscal impact for the Project is expected to be beneficial to the Town once 

development commences. The added rooftops/residents will bring added tax revenue and 

economic benefit to surrounding businesses.  

 

As previously stated, the added demand on public facilities will be minimal as wet utilities 

(i.e. water and sewer services) will be provided by JUC. 

 
2.7 How will the proposed amendment affect the ability of the community to sustain the 

physical and cultural resources, including air quality, water quality, energy, natural and 
human-made resources necessary to meet the demands of present and future residents?  

 
This amendment and the proposed subdivision will be subject to and shall comply with all 
Town, County, State, and Federal regulations as applicable.  
 
The water and sewer systems will be regulated by the Arizona Department of Environmental 
Quality.  Under the guidance of ADEQ, all water resources within this area will be held to the 
highest standards.   
 
 

2.8  What changes, if any, in Federal or State laws or policies substantiate the proposed 
amendment?   

 
There are no changes in Federal or State Laws or Policies necessitated by this proposed 
General Plan Amendment. This application is being submitted in conformance with the 
procedures of the Town of Florence Minor General Plan Amendment procedures.   

  



Minor General Plan 10 The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment United Engineering Group 

 

3. CONCLUSION 

 In Conclusion, given the statement and justifications above, The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

project will conform with the goals and policies set forth by the Town in its 2020 General Plan 

and is a development that will provide a high quality of life for its future residents.   The vision of 

the premier hillside community in this location and the request to amend the General Plan 

would greatly benefit the town.  The intent of this request is to remove the Aggregate Resources 

Overlay on 30 acres of the project. 

 

  



Minor General Plan 12 The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment United Engineering Group 

 

 

EXHIBITS 

 
  



0 0.25
MilesThe Reserve at Lookout Mountain

Florence, Arizona Exhibit A - Vicinity Map

united 
engineering 
group



0
0.125Miles

The Reserve at Lookout MountainFlo
re

n
ce, A

rizo
n

a
E

x
h

ib
it B

 - A
sse

sso
r P

a
rce

l M
a

p

u
n

ited
 

en
g

in
e

erin
g

 
g

ro
u

p



0 1,300
Feet

The Reserve at Lookout Mountain
Florence, Arizona

united 
engineering 
group

Exhibit C - Town of Florence 2020 General Plan

Legend
Florence 2020 General Plan
LandUseCod

CC
E/LI
LDR
MDR1
RRR
Aggregate Resource Overlay

Existing 2020 Designation

Proposed 2020 Designation



0 0.3
MilesThe Reserve at Lookout Mountain

Florence, Arizona Exhibit D - Surrounding Ownership Map

united 
engineering 
group

Legend
Boundary
McRae Holdings Arizona
Surrounding Developments
Indian Res.
State Trust



Minor General Plan 13 The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment United Engineering Group 

 

Appendix A 

  







Minor General Plan 14 The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment United Engineering Group 

 

Appendix B 

 

  



Page 1 of 1 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
A PORTION OF LUCKY HUNT 65-TOWN OF FLORENCE GENERAL PLAN 

AMENDMENT 

 

THE SOUTH HALF OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF 

THE NORTHEAST QUARTER AND THE NORTH HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST 

QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 4 

SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER BASE AND 

MERIDIAN, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
13a. 

MEETING DATE:  July 21, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Fire 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Peter Zick, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:    Superstition Fire Maintenance Agreement 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject: Fire and Medical Services Agreement   Meeting Date: July 21, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

 
Fire Department is recommending approval of the agreement between the Town of 
Florence and the Superstition Fire and Medical Department for maintenance services 
for our fire apparatus. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town of Florence does not have the capability to perform this type of service at this 
time.  This agreement was amended to reflect the current rates and charges.  Apache 
Junction Fire District has changed their name to Superstition Fire and Medical 
Department.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Under this agreement, the Florence Fire Department will be authorized to use the 
Superstition Fire and Medical Department for work and maintenance of our fire 
apparatus using funds budgeted in the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 budget.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval the agreement with Superstition Fire and Medical 
Department. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Superstition Fire and Medical Service Agreement 
 



Page 1 of 4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

Repair and Maintenance of Fire Apparatus and Equipment 

 

Between 

The TOWN of FLORENCE, ARIZONA, 
a municipal corporation of the State of Arizona 

 
And 

 
The SUPERSTITION FIRE & MEDICAL DISTRICT, 

a political subdivision of the State of Arizona 
 
 
 
 

DATE:       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4 
 

 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
FOR  

REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE OF 
FIRE APPARATUS AND EQUIPMENT  

 
 This Agreement is entered into this __________ day of __________________, 2014, by and 
between the Town of Florence, a municipal corporation of the State of Arizona (“Town”), and 
the Superstition Fire & Medical District, a special taxing district existing pursuant to the 
authority of Title 48, Chapter 5 of the Arizona State Revised Statutes and a political subdivision 
of the State of Arizona (“District”).  
 

1. EFFECTIVE DATE: This Agreement shall become effective upon execution of the 
agreement. 

 
2. DESCRIPTION OF AGREEMENT: The District shall furnish the parts, supplies and 

labor services as listed below when and if  requested by the Town or an authorized 
representative of the Town during the contract period. 
 

3. INDIVIDUALS AUTHORIZED TO PURCHASE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT: The 
following individuals are authorized to make purchases under this agreement within their 
dollar limitations: 

 Town of Florence Fire Department Employees with proper identification with 
$1,000 single purchase limit. 

 Purchasing Agent with $2,000 single purchase limit. 
 

4. PURCHASE LIMITATION: Individual purchases under this Agreement shall not exceed 
$2,000. Purchases exceeding $2,000 are subject to competition requirement and can only 
be made by the Contracting Specialists and Purchasing Agents within their delegated 
procurement authority. 

 
5. PRICING:  

 Labor @ $67.00 per hour per mechanic during the work week hours as 
follows: 7 a.m. through 4 p.m., Monday through Friday excluding holidays. 

 After hours and/or holidays @ $100.00 per hour per mechanic. 
 Applicable parts, supplies, current sales tax and freight @ 100% reimbursable 

to the District. 
 Additional travel costs portal-to-portal for District Service Truck; under 30 

miles, flat $75; exceeding 30 miles, $2.00 per mile portal-to-portal. 
 

6. TERM / RENEWAL / TERMINATION: This Agreement shall remain in force and effect 
until June 30, 2017, and shall thereafter be automatically renewed for successive periods 
of one (1) year, unless either party shall give notice in writing to the other not less than 
one (1) month nor more than three (3) months prior to the initial expiration date, or of any 
renewal date hereof, canceling said Agreement. In the event of such notification and upon 
expiration of the term during which notice is given, this Agreement shall thereupon 



Page 3 of 4 
 

become of no further force or effect. It is understood that this Agreement may be 
amended, or suspended by mutual consent in writing of the parties hereto at any time 
with all other conditions set forth remaining in effect. Notwithstanding anything above to 
the contrary, this Agreement shall not be construed so as to require Town to make any 
purchases hereunder. 

 
7. INVOICES AND BILLING PROCEDURES: A summary invoice shall be submitted 

monthly on a 30-day billing cycle for all transactions made during the billing period. The 
summary invoice is to reflect total(s) for each work order and a total for the month’s 
purchases. Submit invoices to: 

 
Florence Fire Department 
P.O. Box 2670 
72 East 1st Street 
Florence, AZ 85132 
Attn:  Fire Chief 
 

8. PAYMENT: Payment is due within 30 days of the invoice date. 
 

9. LIABILITY: The District and the Town agree to mutually hold each other harmless from 
any and all claims, demands, causes of action or damages, whatsoever, arising out of or 
in connection with services provided for in this Agreement. 
 

10. NOTICE: All notices or demands required under this Agreement from either party to the 
other shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given when the notice is 
delivered in person or on the date deposited in the U.S. Mail addressed as follows: 

 
TO DISTRICT: 
Fire Chief 
Superstition Fire & Medical District 
565 N. Idaho Road 
Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
(480) 982-4440 
 
TO TOWN: 
Town Manager 
Town of Florence 
P.O. Box 2670 
Florence, AZ 85132 
(520) 868-7652 
 

11. MERGER: This Agreement, together with any attachment(s) thereto, shall constitute the 
entire Agreement between the parties. No services except for those listed herein shall be 
covered by the terms of this Agreement. No statement, promises or inducements made by 
either party, or by an agent of either party, that is not contained in this written Agreement 
shall be valid or binding. 

 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

12. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: This Agreement is subject to the cancellation provisions of 
A.R.S. 38-511. 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto caused this Agreement to be executed this 
___________ day of ______________________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      TOWN OF FLORENCE 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Charles Montoay, Town Manager                                            

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM and within the 
powers and authority granted under the laws 
of Arizona to the Town of Florence, Arizona  
 
 
_______________________________________ 
James E. Mannato, Town Attorney  

 
 

       
      SUPERSTITION FIRE & MEDICAL DISTRICT 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Chair Person of the Board    Date 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM and within the 
powers and authority granted under the laws 
of Arizona to the Superstition Fire & Medical District  
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Attorney for the Board           Date 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
13b. 

MEETING DATE:  July 7, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Fire 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Peter Zick, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:    TOPAZ Agreement with City of Mesa  
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  
TOPAZ Agreement  Meeting Date: July 21, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Fire Department is recommending approval of the agreement between the City of Mesa, 
and the Town of Florence to become an associate member of TOPAZ. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town of Florence Fire Department and all members of the TRWC (Mesa Fire, AJ 
Fire, Gilbert Fire, Queen Creek Fire) operate on two different radio networks for 
communications on emergency incidents.  The TRWC operates on a 700/800mhz 
trunked radio system and the Town of Florence utilizes VHF communications.  At the 
present time, we are unable to share radio frequencies or have access to use the 
TRWC radio network in the event we respond to emergencies with our mutual aid 
partners.  This gap in radio communication was a factor that had to be overcome at the 
elections building fire.  Staff would have access to the TRWC radio network and 
become associate members on the TRWC System, should the agreement be approved.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Under this agreement, the Florence Fire Department nor the Town of Florence will have 
no financial impact through this agreement.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of signing this agreement between the City of Mesa and the 
Town of Florence to become an associate member of TOPAZ.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
TOPAZ Agreement 
 



AGREEMENT TO 
PROVIDE FOR INTEROPERABILITY BETWEEN THE TOPAZ  

REGIONAL WIRELESS COOPERATIVE NETWORK  AND THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, ARIZONA 

 

{00092039.1}  

 
 The Parties to this agreement (“Agreement”) are the City of Mesa, a municipal 
corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Arizona (“Mesa”) and the 
Town of Florence, Arizona (“Florence”).  Mesa and Florence shall be referred to individually as 
a “Party” and collectively as “Parties”. 
 

RECITALS. 
 

WHEREAS, Mesa is the Administrative Manager of the Topaz Regional Wireless 
Cooperative Network (“TRWC”) and is entering into this Agreement in its capacity as 
Administrative Manager of the TRWC and with the authorization of the TRWC Board of 
Directors. 
 

WHEREAS, Florence is an Arizona municipal corporation that provides emergency and 
non-emergency medical transportation services, fire protection and other safety-related services. 
 

WHEREAS, when used in this Agreement, the “TRWC Network” shall mean the public 
safety/municipal communications system that includes, but is not limited to, the 700/800 MHz 
system originally procured and built by the City of Mesa and commonly referred to as “TOPAZ” 
or the Trunked Open Arizona Network. 

 
WHEREAS, when used in this Agreement, “TRWC Member” shall include the City of 

Apache Junction, the Apache Junction Fire District, the City of Mesa, the Town of Gilbert, the 
Town of Queen Creek and any other entity that subsequently becomes a Member of the TRWC. 

 
WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Parties desire to 

enter into this Agreement to allow Florence to use the TRWC Network for intermittent 
interoperable situations or circumstances.    
 

WHEREAS, this Agreement is entered into under the authority and pursuant to Section 
4.1.5 of the TRWC Governance Agreement and subject to the terms and conditions of Section 
4.1.5 of the TRWC Governance Agreement. 

 
AGREEMENT.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals, the mutual covenants 

herein contained, and good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows  
 
1. Term and Duration of Agreement; Termination  
 

1.1. The initial term of this Agreement is one (1) year, commencing when the 
Agreement has been executed by all Parties (the “Effective Date”) unless otherwise terminated in 
accordance with this Agreement; thereafter, this Agreement will automatically renew for terms 
of one (1) year unless otherwise terminated in accordance with this Agreement.   



 
                                                                                                                                  {00092039.1}
  
   

2

 
1.2. The Parties shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time, with or 

without cause, during the term of this Agreement or any extended term by first providing not less 
than sixty (60) days prior written notice to the other Party.  
 
2. Interoperability.    

 
2.1.  Use of TRWC Network. Subject to reasonable conditions imposed by the TRWC 

Board of Directors, Florence employees or contractors that will be using the TRWC Network 
(“Florence Interoperability Participants”) may use the TRWC Network to support TRWC 
Members and  Florence with intermittent interoperable situations.  The TRWC will develop 
policies, procedures and guidelines that govern how Florence Interoperability Participants obtain 
services, whether routine or emergency, establish Talkgroups, set priorities, determine 
roaming/site access, and operate on the TRWC Network.  When using the TRWC, the Florence 
Interoperability Participants shall abide by all policies, procedures and guidelines established by 
the TRWC as a condition for using the TRWC Network.   

 
2.2. No  Interoperability Participant Voting Rights.  Florence Interoperability 

Participants shall have no TRWC voting rights or representation on the TRWC Board of 
Directors or any TRWC committees.   

 
2.3. No Interoperability Participant Fees and Costs.  No fees and costs will be assessed 

to Florence Interoperability Participants for using the TRWC Network. 
 
2.4.  Restrictions on  Interoperability Participant Use of Networks.    Notwithstanding 

anything to the contrary in this Section 4, Mesa may restrict Florence Interoperability 
Participants from using the TRWC Network if the use by the Florence Interoperability 
Participants is adversely affecting the TRWC Network.  In addition, notwithstanding anything to 
the contrary herein, Florence Interoperability Participants use of the TRWC Network is 
conditioned upon the TRWC Network at all times having sufficient capacity to serve TRWC 
Members.   

 
2.5. Interoperability Defined. As used in this Agreement the word “Interoperability” 

shall mean:  “an essential communication link within Public Safety and Public Service wireless 
communications systems which permits units from two or more different agencies to interact 
with one another and to exchange information according to a prescribed method in order to 
achieve predictable results.”   
 
3. Records; Confidentiality.  Florence shall treat any information about the TRWC’s 
Network (“Network Information”) as proprietary and confidential.  Network Information 
includes, but is not limited to, technical data, engineering details, construction documents, 
equipment lists, programming configurations, and operational procedures.  If  Florence receives 
a request for information concerning the TRWC’s Network,  Florence shall promptly forward the 
request to Mesa for consideration and response.   
 



 
                                                                                                                                  {00092039.1}
  
   

3

4. Conflict of Interest.  The Parties understand and acknowledge that this Agreement may 
be subject to cancellation under A.R.S. § 38-511 (Arizona’s public employee conflict of interest 
law) in the event there is a conflict of interest of the type specified in A.R.S. § 38-511 by persons 
significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating this Agreement.    
 
5. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  Each Party shall comply with all applicable laws, 
statutes, ordinances, executive orders, rules, regulations, standards, and codes of federal and state 
governments whether or not specifically referred to in this Agreement.  
 
6. Cooperation.  The Parties agree to make, sign and deliver all documents and to perform 
all acts that are necessary to fully carry out the terms of this Agreement.   

 
7. MESA AND TRWC DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES.  Florence 
ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT NEITHER MESA NOR ANY OTHER TRWC 
MEMBER WARRANT THE RELIABILITY OR PERFORMANCE OF THE TRWC 
NETWORK.  MESA DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES WHETHER WRITTEN, ORAL, 
IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, APPLICABLE OR RELATING TO THE EQUIPMENT, 
SUPPLIES, MAINTENANCE OF THE EQUIPMENT, OR OTHER ITEMS PROVIDED 
UNDER THE AGREEMENT BY MESA OR ANY OTHER TRWC MEMBERS, INCLUDING 
BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND FLORENCE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT 
NO SUCH WARRANTIES HAVE BEEN MADE BY MESA OR ANY OTHER TRWC 
MEMBER.  FLORENCE ALSO HEREBY WAIVES ANY RIGHTS AND REMEDIES TO 
MAKE A CLAIM AGAINST MESA, THE TRWC OR ANY TRWC MEMBER INCLUDING, 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY GENERAL, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, FOR ANY REASON WHATSOEVER, BASED ON (1) 
FLORENCE’S USE OF THE TRWC NETWORK, OR (2) MESA OR ANY OTHER TRWC’S 
MEMBER’S OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE TRWC NETWORK.  
FLORENCE AGREES THAT THE TRWC NETWORK AND FLORENCE USE OF THE 
NETWORK IS PROVIDED ON AN “AS-IS” “WHERE IS” BASIS WITH ALL FAULTS. 
   
8. Indemnification.   Florence agrees to defend (with counsel reasonably acceptable to 
Mesa), indemnify and hold harmless Mesa and any other TRWC Member from all suits, legal or 
administrative proceeding liability, costs, attorney's fees, damages and penalties which may be 
incurred by or asserted against Mesa or any other TRWC Member arising from any accident, 
injury or damage resulting from Florence’s use of the TRWC Network.   Florence shall advance 
and pay all expenses, including actual attorney’s fees, incurred by Mesa or any other TRWC 
Member in defending against any such claims, demands, liabilities and causes of action.  The 
Florence agrees to notify Mesa promptly upon receiving any notice of any such asserted claim, 
liability, demand or cause of action.   
 
9. Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended only by a written document executed by 
a duly authorized representative of each of the Parties.  
 
10. Third Parties.  All TRWC Members are intended third party beneficiaries of this 
Agreement.  Except as otherwise provided by the first sentence of this Section 10, this 



 
                                                                                                                                  {00092039.1}
  
   

4

Agreement is entered into for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Parties, and no other person 
shall claim any implied right, benefit or interest in this Agreement.  The Parties do not intend to 
create rights in or remedies to any third party as a beneficiary of this Agreement or of any duty, 
obligation, or undertaking established under this Agreement.     
 
11. Notice.  Any notice, consent or other communication (“Notice”) required or permitted 
under this Agreement shall be in writing and either delivered in person, sent by facsimile 
transmission, deposited in the United States mail, return receipt requested, or deposited with any 
commercial air courier or express service addressed as follows: 
 
 If intended for Mesa: 
  
 TRWC Executive Director 
 City of Mesa 
 P.O. Box 968 
 Mesa, AZ 85211 
  
 If intended for  Florence: 
  
 _______________  
 _______________ 
 _______________  
 Attention: _____________________ 
  
Notice shall be deemed received at the time it is personally served, on the day it is sent by 
facsimile transmission, on the second day after its deposit with any commercial air courier or 
express service or, if mailed, five (5) days after the notice is deposited in the United States mail 
as above provided.  Any time period stated in a notice shall be computed from the time the notice 
is deemed received.  Either party may change its mailing address, telephone or FAX number, or 
the person to receive the notice, by notifying the other party as provided in this Section. 
 
Notices sent by facsimile transmission shall also be deposited in the United States mail to the 
recipient at the above address on the same day the facsimile transmission is sent.  This 
requirement for duplicate notice is not intended to change the effective date of the notice sent by 
facsimile transmission. 
 
12.  Dispute Resolution.  If a complaint, dispute or controversy arises under this Agreement, 
the Parties agree to negotiate, in good faith, a mutually agreeable solution.  In the event the 
Parties cannot agree on a solution, the Parties agree to use arbitration as provided in A.R.S. § 12-
1518.  Nothing in this Agreement will prohibit a Party from seeking injunctive relief after first 
pursuing arbitration under this Paragraph.    

 
13. Waiver.  The waiver by any Party of any breach of any term, covenant or condition of 
this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of such term, covenant or condition or any 
subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant or condition of this Agreement.   
 



 
                                                                                                                                  {00092039.1}
  
   

5

14. Uncontrollable Events.  No Party shall be considered to be in default in the performance 
of any obligations under this Agreement (other than obligations of a Party to pay costs and 
expenses) if failure of performance is due to an uncontrollable event.  The term “uncontrollable 
event” means any cause beyond the control of the Party affected, including but not limited to 
flood, earthquake, storm, fire, epidemic, war, riot, civil disturbance or disobedience, labor 
dispute, and action or non-action by or failure to obtain the necessary authorizations or approvals 
from any governmental agency or authority or the electorate, labor or material shortage, sabotage 
and restraint by court order or public authority, that by exercise of due diligence and foresight 
the Party reasonably could not have been expected to avoid and that by exercise of due diligence 
it will be unable to overcome.  A Party that is rendered unable to fulfill any obligation by reason 
of an uncontrollable event shall exercise due diligence to remove such inability with all 
reasonable dispatch.  
 
15. Assignment and Binding Effect.   Florence may not assign its rights or obligations 
under this Agreement without the prior written consent of Mesa which consent may be granted 
or denied at Mesa’s sole and absolute discretion.  Except as otherwise provided in the first 
sentence of this Section 14, this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of 
the Parties and their respective successors and assigns.  
 
16. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding 
among the Parties regarding the subject matter herein and supersedes and replaces all related 
prior negotiations, agreements and proposed agreements, written or oral.  Each Party 
acknowledges that no other Party, nor any agent or attorney of any Party, has made any promise, 
representation, or warranty whatsoever, expressed or implied, not contained in this Agreement 
and acknowledges that this Agreement has not been executed in reliance on any promise, 
representation or warranty not contained in this Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be 
amended, modified or supplemented at any time unless in writing.  
 
17. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Arizona applicable to contracts executed and intended to be 
performed entirely within the State of Arizona by residents of the State of Arizona.  Any action 
at law, suit in equity or judicial proceeding for the enforcement of this Agreement or any 
provision therefore shall be instituted only in the courts of Maricopa County, Arizona.  
 
18. Severability.  Except for each Party’s right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to 
Section 1.2, if any provision of this Agreement is declared void or unenforceable by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the provision shall be severed from this Agreement, which shall 
otherwise remain in full force and effect if the remaining provisions permit the Parties to obtain 
the practical benefits of this Agreement.  If any law or court of competent jurisdiction prohibits 
or excuses any Party from undertaking any contractual commitment to perform any act under this 
Agreement, this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, but the provisions requiring 
such action shall be deemed to permit the Party to take such action at its discretion, if such a 
construction is permitted by law.   
 
19. Attorneys Fees.  The prevailing party in any litigation or arbitration arising out of this 
Agreement shall be entitled to the recovery of its reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs and other 



 
                                                                                                                                  {00092039.1}
  
   

6

litigation related costs and fees from the other party.   
 
20. Headings.  Section headings are inserted in this Agreement solely for convenience and 
the section headings shall not by themselves alter, modify, limit, expand or otherwise affect the 
meaning of any provision of this Agreement.  
 
21. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
22. Recitals Incorporated.  The Parties acknowledge that the Recitals to this Agreement are 
true, accurate and correct, and are hereby incorporated into and made a part of the operative 
provisions of this Agreement as if fully set forth therein without difference or distinction. 
 
23.  Personnel.  This Agreement is not intended to and will not constitute, create, give rise 
to, or otherwise recognize a joint venture, partnership or formal business association or 
organization of any kind between the parties.  No employee, agent, or servant of a Party shall be 
deemed to be an employee, agent or servant of the other Party.  Except as otherwise provided by 
Sections 7 and 8 of this Agreement, each Party will be solely and entirely responsible for its acts 
and the acts of its employees, agents, servants, subcontractors, and volunteers during the 
performance of this Agreement.  Each Party will have total responsibility for all salaries, wages, 
bonuses, retirement withholdings, worker’s compensation, occupational disease compensation, 
unemployment compensation, other employment compensation, other employee benefits, and all 
employer’s taxes and premiums concerning the persons who are supplied by that Party in the 
performance of this Agreement, and each Party agrees to hold the other Party harmless from any 
liability thereof. 
 
24. E-Verify Laws.  To the extent applicable under A.R.S. § 41-4401 and 23-214, Florence 
represents and warrants compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate 
to their employees and their compliance with the E-verify requirements of A.R.S. 23-214(A).  
Breach of the above-mentioned warranty shall be deemed a material breach of the Agreement 
and may result in the termination of the Agreement by Mesa.  Mesa retains the legal right to 
randomly inspect the papers and records of any employee who works under this Agreement to 
ensure compliance with the above-mentioned laws.  
 
25. Authority to Execute. The individuals executing this Agreement on behalf of the 
parties hereto represent that they have authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of such 
parties, and represent that upon execution, this Agreement shall be binding and no further action 
is or shall be necessary to make the Agreement enforceable in its entirety. 
 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly 
authorized officers. 
 
CITY OF MESA 
 
By:        Date:     



 
                                                                                                                                  {00092039.1}
  
   

7

 
Title:       
 
 
 
The Town of Florence, Arizona 
An Arizona municipal corporation 
 
 
By:        Date:     
  
Title:_______________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:      
 
 
___________________________    Date:_____________________  
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________    Date:______________________ 
James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 
 
 
 
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
13c. 

MEETING DATE:  July 21, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Utilities Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  John V. Mitchell, Utilities Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Approval to hire Ripple Industries for installation  
                    of SCADA equipment at well sites and reservoirs 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Approval to hire Ripple Industries for installation of SCADA equipment         Meeting date: July 21, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve hiring Ripple Industries for the installation of SCADA equipment at 
well sites and reservoirs, in an amount not to exceed $70,000. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town has identified the need to install Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition 
(SCADA) equipment on Town well sites and reservoirs.  SCADA allows operators to 
remotely monitor equipment and to make system adjustments by computer.  
 
Ripple Industries has been selected to perform the work.  Ripple Industries has an 
existing contract with the City of Tucson for services for instrumentation and controls.  
The Tucson contract has specific “cooperative purchasing” language, and is eligible for 
use by the Strategic Alliance for Volume Expenditures (SAVE) cooperative.  The Town 
of Florence has signed a Cooperative Purchase Agreement with the SAVE Association 
as of June 18, 2014. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost to install the SCADA will not exceed $70,000; $85,000 has been identified in 
the current FY 2014/2015 budget. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval to hire Ripple Industries to install SCADA equipment, in an 
amount not to exceed $70,000. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
City of Tucson Contract Amendment 













































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
 13d.  

MEETING DATE:  July 21, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Jennifer Evans 
                                     Management Analyst 
 
SUBJECT:    Silver King Marketplace Lease Agreement  
                     renewal with Carol Johnson (Silver King Hair  
                     Co.) for Suite 201 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Silver King Lease Agreement with Carol Johnson (Silver King Hair Co.)          Meeting Date: July 21, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
A motion to approve a lease agreement with Carol Johnson, owner of the Silver King 
Hair Co., for Suite 201, in the Silver King Market Place. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Carol Johnson seeks to renew a lease for Suite 201, which is the south suite on the 
second floor.  Silver King Hair Co. is a hair salon.  Ms. Johnson has over 25 years of 
experience owning and operating hair salons in the cities of Bisbee, Sierra Vista, and 
Page, Arizona.  She is a 4th generation hairstylist.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The term of the lease is from August 1, 2014 to July 31, 2015.  The monthly rent will be 
$121.33. The tenant will pay the Town $444.08 per month for utilities.  The utilities 
payment may be adjusted twice a year to better reflect the total cost. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the lease with Carol Johnson, owner of the Silver King 
Hair Co.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Lease Agreement  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SILVER KING MARKET PLACE LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, 
an Arizona municipal corporation 

 
AND 

 
Carol Johnson 

a single woman, on her own behalf 
 

(Silver King Hair Co.) 
 
 
 

DATE:  August 1, 2014 
 



Page 2 of 15 

SILVER KING MARKET PLACE LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
This Commercial Lease Agreement ("Lease") is made and entered into on the ____ day of 
____________, 2014 by TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, a municipal corporation, 
hereinafter called "Landlord" and CAROL JOHNSON, a single woman, on her own behalf, 
hereinafter called “Tenant". 
 
1. LEASED PREMISES 
 
For and in consideration of the rent to be paid and of the covenants and agreements of the Tenant 
as hereinafter set forth, Landlord does hereby lease 728 square feet to Tenant of the premises 
located at 440 N. Main Street, Suite 201, Florence, Arizona, also known as the Silver King 
Market Place, and hereinafter referred to as the “Premises”, or, the “Leased Premises”. The 
Leased Premises are also described as Suite 201, which is located at the South end of the 
Premises on the 2nd floor. 
 
2. TERM 
The Lease term shall begin on the 1st day of August, 2014, and end on the 31st day of July, 
2015 (the “Term”).  
 
3. EXTENSIONS  
 
The parties hereto may elect to extend the Term upon such terms and conditions as may be 
agreed upon in writing and signed by the parties at the time of any such election, provided that 
Tenant gives notice of its request to extend the Term no later than sixty (60) days prior to the 
expiration of the Term. If Tenant does not elect to extend the Term in accordance with this 
paragraph, this Lease shall end on the 31st day of July, 2015 (the “Expiration Date”) and 
thereafter Tenant may only occupy the Premises on a month-to-month basis. Such month-to-
month tenancy may be terminated by Landlord upon thirty (30) days notice to Tenant. 
Landlord’s acceptance of rent payments after the Expiration Date shall not constitute a renewal 
of this Lease Agreement.  
 
4. RENTS 
 
Rent shall be paid at the rate of one hundred twenty-one dollars, thirty-three cents ($121.33) 
per month for the duration of the lease. In addition to the rent, the tenant is responsible for their 
portion of the commercial property lease transaction privilege tax and government property lease 
excise tax. Each monthly payment of rent due thereafter shall be payable on the first day of each 
calendar month for the balance of the Term. Payment of rent shall be made to Landlord at Town 
of Florence, P.O. Box 2670, 775 North Main Street, Florence, Arizona 85132, or at such other 
place designated by written notice from Landlord. The rental payment amount for any partial 
calendar months included in the lease term shall be prorated on a daily basis. If rent is not 
received by the close of the 5th business day then the late fee of $25.00 will be added to the 
Tenant’s account. 
 
5. SECURITY DEPOSIT 



Page 3 of 15 

 
The Tenant has deposited with the Landlord the sum of eight hundred dollars ($800.00) as 
security for the full and faithful performance by the Tenant of all the terms of this lease required 
to be performed by the Tenant. Such sum shall be returned to the Tenant after the expiration of 
this lease, provided the Tenant has fully and faithfully carried out all of its terms. At the 
expiration of this Lease or such other time as Tenant may request the return of the Security 
Deposit, Landlord shall make an inspection of the Leased Premises and deduct from the Security 
Deposit such sums as are necessary to repair and refurbish the Leased Premises to the condition 
which existed prior to Tenant’s occupancy thereof. In the event of a bona fide sale of the 
property of which the Leased Premises are a part, the Landlord shall have the right to transfer the 
security to the purchaser to be held under the terms of this lease, and the Landlord shall be 
released from all liability for the return of such security to the Tenant.  
 
6. PURPOSE 
 
A. The Landlord is maintaining the Silver King Market Place for the development of new 
businesses within the Downtown area of the Town of Florence. It is the Landlord’s desire to help 
in the creation of successful businesses by providing the necessary environment to help 
businesses survive. 
 
B. Tenant shall use the Leased Premises for the purpose of conducting the business of a Hair 
Salon known as the “Silver King Hair Co.”.  In the event Tenant desires to use the Leased 
Premises for a different business purpose not described above, Tenant shall first apply, in 
writing, for approval for such use to the Town of Florence and the Redevelopment Commission. 
As a further condition of the lease, Tenant must also maintain regular business hours and be open 
for at least thirty five (35) hours per week with exception of holidays.  When business 
enhancement classes are offered by the Town of Florence, Florence Main Street Program, and/or 
Florence Chamber of Commerce, free of charge, the Tenant shall make every effort to attend 
these programs. 
 
C. If Tenant fails to meet any of these requirements, then Landlord may terminate the lease 
after providing the Tenant no less than thirty (30) days written notice of Landlord’s intent to 
terminate the lease. If Tenant does not satisfy the above conditions or otherwise cure the 
deficiencies indicated in the notice within thirty (30) days, Landlord may terminate the lease as 
provided in section 17 below. 
 
The Premises shall not be used in violation of this Lease, any zoning laws applicable to the 
Premises, or in violation of any federal, state or local laws or regulations. 
 
7. PROHIBITED USES 
 
Notwithstanding the forgoing, Tenant shall not use the Leased Premises for the purposes of 
storing, manufacturing or selling any explosives, flammables or other inherently dangerous 
substance, chemical, thing or device. All uses must conform to the zoning code of the Town of 
Florence and the Silver King Market Place Reuse and Leasing Policy.   
 



Page 4 of 15 

8. SUBLEASE AND ASSIGNMENT 
 
A. Tenant shall not sublet or assign the lease without Landlord's consent. To assign this 
Lease to a business with which Tenant may merge or consolidate, to any subsidiary of Tenant, to 
any corporation under common control with Tenant, or to a purchaser of substantially all of 
Tenant's assets the Tenant must receive either written consent from the Landlord or enter into a 
new lease agreement.  
 
B. Except as set forth above, neither Tenant nor any assignee may sublease all or any part of 
the Leased Premises, or assign this Lease in whole or in part without Landlord's written consent.  
 
9. REPAIRS 
 
During the Lease term, Tenant shall make, at Tenant's expense, all necessary repairs and 
refurbishment of the Leased Premises. Repair and refurbishment shall include, but is not limited 
to, the repair and refurbishment of normal wear and tear to floors, walls, ceilings, and other parts 
of the Leased Premises caused by Tenant’s use and enjoyment of the Leased Premises, except for 
major mechanical systems, vandalism, or the roof, subject to the obligations of the parties as may 
otherwise be set forth in this Lease. 
 
10. TENANT IMPROVEMENTS  
 
A. Tenant, at Tenant's expense, shall have the right to remodel, redecorate, or make 
additions, improvements and replacements to all or any part of the Leased Premises from time-
to-time as Tenant may deem desirable (the “Tenant Modifications”), provided the same are made 
in a workmanlike manner and utilizing good quality materials. Tenant must obtain the written 
consent of Landlord prior to undertaking any such Tenant Modifications. Tenant shall have the 
right to place and install personal property, trade fixtures, equipment and other temporary 
installations in and upon the Leased Premises, and fasten the same to the premises. All personal 
property, equipment, machinery, trade fixtures and temporary installations, whether acquired by 
Tenant at the commencement of the Lease term or placed or installed on the Leased Premises by 
Tenant thereafter, shall remain Tenant's property free and clear of any claim by Landlord. Tenant 
shall have the right to remove the same at any time during the term of this Lease but not after the 
expiration thereof, provided that such removal does not cause any damage to the Premises. Any 
damage caused by the removal of Tenant’s personal property shall be repaired by Tenant at 
Tenant's expense. If Tenant fails to repair any such damage Landlord may repair the damage and 
deduct the costs thereof from Tenant’s security deposit. 
 
B. Tenant may have prepared plans and specifications for the construction of the Tenant 
Modifications, and, if so, such plans and specifications are attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and 
incorporated herein by reference. Tenant shall obtain all certificates, permits, licenses and other 
authorizations of governmental bodies or authorities which are necessary to permit the 
construction of the improvements on the Leased Premises and shall keep the same in full force 
and effect at Tenant's cost.  
 



Page 5 of 15 

C. Tenant shall negotiate, let and supervise all contracts for the furnishing of services, labor, 
and materials for the construction of the Tenant Modifications on the Leased Premises at its sole 
cost and expense. All such contracts shall require the contracting party to guarantee performance 
and all workmanship and materials installed by it for a period of one year following the date of 
completion of construction.  Tenant shall cause all contracts to be fully and completely 
performed in a good and workmanlike manner, all to the effect that the improvements shall be 
fully and completely constructed and installed in accordance with good engineering and 
construction practice. Tenant shall include in any contract for the construction of Tenant 
Modifications a requirement that bonds in the full amount of the contract sum be furnished 
guaranteeing the faithful performance of the contract requirements and the payment of any and 
all subcontractors. 
 
D. During the course of the Tenant Modifications, Tenant shall, at its cost, keep in full force 
and effect a policy of builder's risk and liability insurance in a sum equal to three times the 
amount expended for construction of the improvements. All risk of loss or damage to the 
improvements during the course of construction shall be on Tenant with the proceeds from 
insurance thereon payable to Landlord. 
 
E. If the Tenant seeks improvements that are permanent in nature (e.g. flooring, lighting, 
HVAC, etc.), and such improvements add value to the Leased Premise, the Town may consider 
extending a lease credit to the Tenant.  Any improvements that receive a lease credit will then 
become the property of the Town.  The Tenant is solely responsible for repairing any damage 
and all costs associated with maintenance of the improvement for the duration of the Lease. 
 
F. Nothing herein shall alter the intent of the parties that Tenant shall be fully and 
completely responsible for all aspects pertaining to the construction of the Tenant Modifications 
to Leased Premises and for the payment of all costs associated therewith. Landlord shall be under 
no duty to investigate or verify Tenant's compliance with the provisions contained herein. 
Moreover, neither Tenant nor any third party may construe the permission granted Tenant 
hereunder to create any responsibility on the part of the Landlord to pay for any improvements, 
alterations or repairs occasioned by the Tenant.  
 
11. UTILITIES 
 
The Leased Premises are not separately metered, therefore, Landlord shall pay the amount due 
for charges for water, sewer, gas, electricity and separately invoice Tenant for Tenant's pro rata 
share of the charges. Tenant shall pay four hundred forty-four dollars, eight cents ($444.08) 
upon the due date for the monthly payment of the lease or the first of the month, which ever 
comes first. The Landlord, from time-to-time, may adjust the above amount to accurately reflect 
the utilities being consumed but may not adjust the amount more than two (2) times per year. 
Tenant acknowledges that the Leased Premises are designed to provide standard office or retail 
use electrical facilities and standard office lighting. Tenant shall not use any equipment or 
devices that utilize excessive electrical energy or which may, in Landlord's reasonable opinion, 
overload the wiring or interfere with electrical services to other tenants.  
 
12. SIGNAGE 



Page 6 of 15 

 
A. Exterior Signs.  Landlord will provide one exterior side located on the east side of the 
building. Tenant shall have the right, at its sole risk and expense and in conformity with 
applicable laws and ordinances, to erect and thereafter, to repair or replace, if it shall so elect, 
signs on any portion of the Leased Premises, providing that Tenant shall remove any such signs 
upon termination of this lease, and repair all damage occasioned thereby to the Leased Premises 
at its sole cost and expense. 
 
B. Interior Signs.  Tenant shall have the right, at its sole risk and expense and in conformity 
with applicable laws and ordinances, to erect, maintain, place and install its usual and customary 
signs and fixtures in the interior of the Leased Premises.  
 
13. ENTRY 
 
Landlord shall have the right to enter upon the Leased Premises at reasonable hours to inspect 
the same, provided Landlord shall not thereby unreasonably interfere with Tenant's business on 
the Leased Premises. 
 
14.  PARKING 
During the term of this Lease, Tenant shall have the non-exclusive use in common with 
Landlord, other tenants of the Building, their guests and invitees, of the non-reserved common 
automobile parking areas, driveways, and footways, subject to rules and regulations for the use 
thereof as prescribed from time-to-time by Landlord. Landlord reserves the right to designate 
parking areas within the Building or in reasonable proximity thereto, for Tenant and Tenant's 
agents and employees. 
 
15. MECHANIC’S LIENS 
 
Tenant shall pay before delinquent all sums of money which, if unpaid, would entitle any person 
to a mechanic’s or material man’s or laborer’s lien against the Leased Premises, or on Lessee’s 
interest under this Lease.  Tenant agrees that it will neither do any act, nor fail to do any act, 
which would result in the recordation of any lien against the Leased Premises or the Silver King 
Market Place as a whole. 
 
16.  INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 
 
A. INDEMNIFICATION 
 
(i) To the fullest extent permitted by law, Tenant shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless 
the Town of Florence, its agents, officers, officials and employees from and against all tort 
claims, damages, losses and expenses (including but not limited to attorney fees, court costs, and 
the cost of appellate proceedings), relating to, arising out of, or alleged to have resulted either 
wholly or in part from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services of the Tenant, its 
agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors in the performance of this Agreement, and 
regardless of whether or not such claim, damages, loss or expenses are caused in part by 
Landlord.  



Page 7 of 15 

 
(ii) Tenant’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Town of Florence, its agents, 
officers, officials and employees shall arise in connection with any tort claims, damages, losses 
or expenses that are attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, 
impairment, or destruction of property including loss of use resulting therefrom, caused either 
wholly or in part by Tenant’s acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services in the 
performance of this Agreement including any employee of the Tenant or any other person for 
whose acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services the Tenant may be legally liable, and 
regardless of whether or not such claim, damages, losses or expenses are caused in part by 
Landlord. 
 
(iii) The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth herein will in no way 
be construed as limiting the scope of the indemnity in this paragraph. 
 
B. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
(i) The Tenant, at Tenant’s own expense, shall purchase and maintain the herein stipulated 
minimum insurance with companies duly licensed, possessing a current A.M. Best, Inc. rating of 
“A”, or approved and licensed to do business in the State of Arizona with policies and forms 
satisfactory to the Landlord/Town of Florence. 
 
(ii) All insurance required herein shall be maintained in full force and effect during any term 
of this Lease; failure to do so may, at the sole discretion of the Town of Florence, constitute a 
material breach of this Lease. 
 
(iii) The Tenant’s insurance shall be primary insurance, and any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the Town of Florence shall not contribute to it.  Any failure to comply with the 
claim reporting provisions of the policies or any breach of an insurance policy warranty shall not 
affect coverage afforded under the policy to protect the Town of Florence. 
 
(iv) The insurance policies required by this Agreement shall name the Town of Florence, its 
agents, officers, officials, and employees as Additional Insured. 
 
C. REQUIRED COVERAGES 
 
(i) General Liability 
 
(a) Tenant shall, at Tenant’s expense, maintain a policy of comprehensive  public  liability 
insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 for each occurrence and with a $1,000,000 
General Aggregate Limit.  The policy shall include coverage for bodily injury, broad form 
property damage, personal injury, and blanket contractual coverage including, but not limited to, 
the liability assumed under the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, which coverage 
will be at least as broad as Insurance Service Office, Inc. Policy Form CG 000211093(October 
2001 version).  The coverage shall not exclude X, C, U. 
 
(b)  Such policy shall contain a severability of interest provision, and shall not contain a 



Page 8 of 15 

sunset provision or commutation clause, nor any provision, which would serve to limit third 
party action over claims. 
 
(c) The Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement shall be at least as 
broad as the Insurance Service Office, Inc.’s, Additional Insured, Form B, CG2O101185 
(October 2001 version). 
 
(ii) Property Insurance 
 
(a) Landlord shall obtain and keep in force during any term of this Lease, a policy or policies 
of insurance covering loss or damage to the Leased Premises, in the amount of the full 
replacement value thereof, providing protection against all perils included within the 
classification of fire, flood, extended coverage, vandalism, malicious mischief and special 
extended perils. 
 
(b) Tenant shall obtain and keep in force during any term of this Lease, a policy or policies 
of insurance covering loss or damage to the contents of the Leased premises. Tenant agrees that 
Landlord shall not be liable for injury to Tenant’s business or any loss of income there from, or 
for loss or damage to goods, wares, merchandise or other property in or on the Leased premises 
owned or belonging to Tenant, Tenant’s employees, invitees, customers, or any other person in 
or about the Leased Premises; nor shall Landlord be liable for injury to the person of Tenant, 
Tenant’s employees, agents or contractors, whether such damage or injury to persons or property 
is caused by or results from fire, steam, electricity,  gas, water or rain, or from the breakage, 
leakage, obstruction, or other defects of pipes, sprinklers, wires, appliances, plumbing, air 
conditioning, or light fixtures or from any other cause; or whether the said damage or injury to 
person or property results from conditions arising upon the Leased Premises or from other 
sources or places, and regardless of whether the cause of such damage or injury or the means of 
repairing the same is inaccessible to Tenant. 
 
(iii) Certificates of Insurance 
 
(a) Prior to delivery of possession of the Leased Premises to Tenant, Tenant shall furnish the 
Landlord/Town of Florence with Certificates of Insurance, or formal endorsements as required 
by this Lease, issued by Tenant’s insurer(s), as evidence that policies providing the required 
coverage, conditions and limits required by this Lease are in full force and effect. 
 
(b) In the event any insurance policy (ies) required by this Lease is (are) written on a “claims 
made" basis, coverage shall extend for two years past the expiration of any term of this Lease as 
evidenced by annual Certificates of Insurance. 
 
(c) If a policy does expire during any term of this Lease, a renewal certificate must be sent to 
the Town of Florence fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration date. 
 
 
17. DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 
 



Page 9 of 15 

A. DEFAULTS 
 
 The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a material 
default and breach of this Lease by Tenant: 
 
(i) The vacating or abandonment of the Leased Premises by Tenant; 
 
(ii) The failure by Tenant to make any payment of rent or any other payment required to be 
made by Tenant hereunder, as and when due; 
 
(iii) The failure by Tenant to observe or perform any of the covenants, conditions, or 
provisions of this Lease to be observed or performed by Tenant, other than described in 
subsection (A) above, where such failure shall continue for a period of fifteen (15) days after 
written notice hereof from Landlord to Tenant; provided, however, that if the nature of Tenant’s 
default is such that more than fifteen (15) days are reasonably required for its cure, then Tenant 
shall not be deemed to be in default if Tenant commenced such cure within said fifteen (15) day 
period and thereafter diligently prosecutes such cure to completion. 
 
(iv) The making by Tenant of any general arrangement for the benefit of creditors; the filing 
by or against Tenant of a petition to have Tenant adjudged a bankrupt or a petition for 
reorganization or arrangement under any law relating to bankruptcy (unless, in the case of a 
petition filed against Tenant, the same is dismissed within sixty (60) days); the appointment of a 
trustee or receiver to take possession of substantially all of Tenants’ assets, located at the Leased 
Premises, or, of Tenant’s interest in this Lease, where possession is not restored to Tenant within 
thirty (30) days; or, the attachment, execution, or other judicial seizure of substantially all of 
Tenants’ assets located at the Leased Premises or of Tenants’ interest in this Lease where such 
seizure is not discharged within thirty (30) days. 
 
(v)  The filing or recordation of a lien against the Leased Premises or the Silver King Market 
Place as a whole due to any action or inaction of Tenant. 
 
B.  REMEDIES 
 
(i) In the event of any such material default or breach by Tenant, Landlord may at any time 
thereafter, with or without notice or demand and without limiting Landlord in the exercise of any 
right or remedy which Landlord may have by reason of such default or breach: 
 
(ii) Terminate Tenants’ right to possession of the Leased Premises by any lawful means in 
which case this Lease shall terminate and Tenant shall immediately surrender possession of the 
Leased Premises to Landlord. In such event Landlord shall be entitled to recover from Tenants 
all damages incurred by Landlord by reason of Tenants’ default, including but not limited to, the 
cost or recovering possession of the Premises; expenses of reletting, including necessary 
renovation and alteration of the Premises; reasonable attorney’s fees; and any real estate 
commission actually paid; the worth at the time of award by the court having jurisdiction thereof 
of the amount by which the unpaid rent for the balance of the term after the time of such award 
exceeds the amount of such rental loss for the same period that Tenant provides could be 



Page 10 of 15 

reasonably avoided. In the event Tenant shall have abandoned the Premises, Landlord shall have 
the option of 1) retaking possession of the Premises and recovering from Tenant the amount 
specified in this paragraph, or 2) proceeding under subsection 18 below. 
 
(iii) Maintain Tenant’s right to possession in which case this Lease shall remain in effect 
whether or not Tenant shall have abandoned the Premises. In such event, Landlord shall be 
entitled to enforce all of Landlord’s rights and remedies under this Lease, including the right to 
recover the rent as it becomes due hereunder. 
 
(iv) Pursue any other remedy now or hereafter available to Landlord under the laws or 
judicial decisions of the State of Arizona, including the right to declare a landlord’s lien on 
Tenant’s personal property located on the Leased Premises. Where a landlord’s lien is declared 
by Landlord, Landlord may, without notice or demand to Tenants, terminate Tenant’s right to 
possession of the premises until Landlord has secured sufficient personal property or full 
payment of rent to satisfy the amount of rent owed. Should Landlord declare a landlord’s lien on 
the Leased Premises pursuant to this paragraph, the Lease shall not be considered terminated, 
and Landlord shall have a right to recover rent as it becomes due. 
 
C. DEFAULT BY LANDLORD 
 
(i) Landlord shall not be in default unless Landlord fails to perform obligations required of 
Landlord within a reasonable time, but in no event later than fifteen (15) days after written notice 
by Tenant to Landlord and to the holder of any first mortgage or deed of trust covering the 
Premises whose name and address shall have theretofore been furnished to Tenant in writing, 
specifying wherein Landlord has failed to perform such obligations; provided however, that if 
the nature of Landlord’s obligation is such that more than fifteen (15) days are required for 
performance, then Landlord shall not be in default if Landlord commences performance within 
such thirty day period and thereafter diligently prosecutes the same to completion. If Landlord 
does not perform, the holder of any first mortgage may perform in Landlord’s place and Tenant 
must accept such performance. 
 
D. HOLDOVER BY TENANT 
 
(i) If Lessee shall hold over after expiration of the Initial Term, or any extension of the 
Initial Term, such tenancy shall be from month-to-month only upon such terms, covenants, and 
conditions as set forth herein except for those relating to the term of the Lease. Any such month-
to-month tenancy may be terminated by Landlord upon thirty (30) days notice to Tenant. 
However, nothing herein shall be construed as or deemed a waiver of any rights of Landlord to 
take such action in law or equity as Landlord may have under the provisions of this Lease or 
otherwise.  
 
E. BANKRUPTCY OF TENANT 
 
(i) If Lessee should make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or file a 
voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or be adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent, or permit a receiver to 
be appointed to take possession of a substantial portion of the Lessees’ assets or of this 



Page 11 of 15 

leasehold, and such bankruptcy, insolvency or receivership proceedings not be dismissed within 
thirty days, then Lessor may, without notice or demand, terminate this Lease and forthwith re-
enter and repossess the demised premises and remove all persons, and under no circumstances 
shall this Lease be assigned or transferred by operation of law. 
 
18. DAMAGE AND DESTRUCTION 
 
Subject to the Insurance provisions contained herein, if the Leased Premises or any part thereof 
or any appurtenance thereto is so damaged by fire, casualty or structural defects that the same 
cannot be used for Tenant's purposes, then Tenant shall have the right within ninety (90) days 
following damage to elect by notice to Landlord to terminate this Lease as of the date of such 
damage. In the event of minor damage to any part of the Leased Premises, and if such damage 
does not render the Leased Premises unusable for Tenant's purposes, Landlord shall promptly 
repair such damage at the cost of the Landlord. In making the repairs called for in this paragraph, 
Landlord shall not be liable for any delays resulting from strikes, governmental restrictions, 
inability to obtain necessary materials or labor or other matters which are beyond the reasonable 
control of Landlord. Tenant shall be relieved from paying rent and other charges during any 
portion of the Lease term that the Leased Premises are inoperable or unfit for occupancy, or use, 
in whole or in part, for Tenant's purposes. Rentals and other charges paid in advance for any such 
periods shall be credited on the next ensuing payments, if any, but if no further payments are to 
be made, any such advance payments shall be refunded to Tenant subject to the provisions of this 
Lease which may permit Landlord to retain such payments. The provisions of this paragraph 
extend not only to the matters aforesaid, but also to any occurrence which is beyond Tenant's 
reasonable control and which renders the Leased Premises, or any appurtenance thereto, 
inoperable or unfit for occupancy or use, in whole or in part, for Tenant's purposes. 
 
19. TITLE 
 
A.   Subordination.  Tenant shall, upon the request of Landlord in writing, subordinate this 
Lease to the lien of any present or future institutional mortgage upon the Leased Premises 
irrespective of the time of execution or the time of recording of any such mortgage. Provided, 
however, that as a condition to such subordination, the holder of any such mortgage shall enter 
first into a written agreement with Tenant in form suitable for recording to the effect that: 
 
(i)   Foreclosure.  In the event of foreclosure or other action taken under the mortgage by the 
holder thereof, this Lease and the rights of Tenant hereunder shall not be disturbed but shall 
continue in full force and effect so long as Tenant shall not be in default hereunder; and  
 
(ii)  Such holder shall permit insurance proceeds and condemnation proceeds to be used for 
any restoration and repair required by the Damage and Insurance provisions of this Lease.  
Tenant agrees that if the mortgagee or any person claiming under the mortgagee shall succeed to 
the interest of Landlord in this lease, Tenant will attorn to and recognize said mortgagee or 
person as its Landlord under the terms of this Lease, provided that said mortgagee or person for 
the period during which said mortgagee or person respectively shall be in possession of the 
Leased Premises and thereafter their respective successors in interest shall assume all of the 
obligations of Landlord hereunder. The word "mortgage", as used herein includes mortgages, 



Page 12 of 15 

deeds of trust or other similar instruments, and modifications, and extensions thereof. The term 
"institutional mortgage" means a mortgage securing a loan from a bank (commercial or savings) 
or trust company, insurance company or pension trust or any other lender institutional in nature 
and constituting a lien upon the Leased Premises.  
 
C.   Quiet Enjoyment.  Landlord covenants and agrees that upon Tenant paying the rent and 
observing and performing all of the terms, covenants and conditions on Tenant's part to be 
observed and performed hereunder, that Tenant may peaceably and quietly have, hold, occupy 
and enjoy the Leased Premises in accordance with the terms of this Lease without hindrance or 
molestation from Landlord or any persons lawfully claiming through Landlord. 
 
20. ATTORNEY’S FEES 
 
In the event of any legal action between Landlord and Tenant to enforce any of the provisions 
and/or rights hereunder, the unsuccessful party to such action agrees to pay to the other party all 
costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees incurred in prosecuting or defending 
such action, and if judgment is recovered in such action or proceeding, such costs, expenses and 
attorney’s fees shall be included in and as a part of such judgment. 
 
21. NOTICES 
 
Any notice required to be given by or to either Landlord or Tenant pursuant to this Lease, shall 
be in writing and shall be forwarded by certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 
 
For Landlord:      For Tenant: 
        
Town of Florence     Carol Johnson 
Town Manager     PO Box 2173 
PO Box 2670      60 S. Orlando Street  
775 North Main Street     Florence, AZ 85132 
Florence, AZ 85132     520-868-1876 
520-868-7500      
 
22. WAIVER 
 
 A waiver of any breach of this Lease, or of any of the terms or conditions by either party 
hereto, shall not be deemed a waiver of any repetition of such breach or in any way affect any 
other terms or conditions hereof. No waiver shall be valid or binding unless it shall be in writing 
and signed by the parties. 
 
  



Page 13 of 15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have executed this Lease as of the day and 
year first written above. 
 
LANDLORD: TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation 
 
 
            
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor    Date 
 
    
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
            
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 



Page 14 of 15 

TENANT: CAROL JOHNSON, a single woman, on her own behalf 
 
 
By:       
 
Its:     Owner     
 
Date:         
 
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
    )  ss. 
County of Pinal   ) 
 
On this ____ day of    , 2014, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, 
personally appeared Carol Johnson, and that as such, being authorized so to do, executed the 
foregoing instrument for the purpose therein contained. 
 
(Seal and Expiration Date) 
 
             
      Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
 
 
      



EXHIBIT A 
 

Tenant Modifications 
 

[PLACE HOLDER FOR ALL PERMANENT TENANT IMPROVEMENTS] 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 18, 2014, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Rankin, Smith, Celaya, Hawkins, Walter, Woolridge 
Absent:  Montaño 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 18, 2014 
Page 1 of 10 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
WORK SESSION REGARDING CONSTRUCTION OF MUNICIPAL FACILITIES 
CONSISTING OF A LIBRARY, OUTDOOR AQUATIC COMPLEX, RECREATION 
SPACE, PROGRAMMING OFFICES, OUTDOOR FIELDS, AND OTHER 
GOVERNMENT FACILITIES. 

 
Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, stated that they have met with the Library 
Advisory Board and the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board in a joint meeting to 
discuss the project and get input on the project.   
 
Mr. Montoya provided a presentation in which he discussed the following: 

- Long term vision of the downtown area and for services that the Town provides  
- Expansion of existing services 
- Future planning on services for library and recreation 
- Establish core level of service for the entire Town of Florence, including the core 

area itself 
 
Mr. Montoya explained that the Florence Unified School District (FUSD) notified the 
Town that it would no longer be able to allow the Town to share the use of the library as 
of May 2015.  The Town is able to utilize the school’s building until that time.  The Town 
also shares a joint use with their two pools and the pools will be gone as of next 
summer.  This does not leave much for the families to do in the core area with regards 
to facilities, recreation, or aquatics.  The residents in the downtown area cannot use the 
facilities in Anthem because those facilities are private. 
 
Mr. Montoya explained that the new facility will expand on the needed services and will 
allow all residents to enjoy the same amenities as others.  It will also allow for summer 
and seasonal job opportunities for high school students.  The facility will also be 
considered a regional facility, which will help pay for the facility, will generate foot traffic 
in the downtown area and will help spur growth in the downtown area.    
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 18, 2014 
Page 2 of 10 

Mr. Montoya stated that staff has considered the most conservative approach when 
considering the facility.  He explained that the impact fees only have a ten year life and 
if they are not utilized, they will be lost.  He said the library and recreation center are 
expected to open in May/June 2015, and the aquatic center is expected to open in 
August/September 2015. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated the drawing is conceptual only and will evolve based on feedback.  
He described what the conceptual drawing entails.  He stated that a combined facility 
saves in construction costs, requires less staff, and saves in operational costs.  It also 
allows for additional facilities within the 40 acres.  He had discussions with Pinal County 
regarding them donating their lot on Main Street for land north of Town Hall, and said 
the discussions are ongoing.  
 
Mr. Montoya stated that there is also opportunity for private and public buildings along 
the Main Street corridor on the remaining 125 acres.  The property is more affordable 
since the Town owns the property.   He explained the benefits of having this new facility. 
 
Mr. Bryan Hughes, Parks and Recreation Director, stated there are numerous 
recreational opportunities with a new facility such as: 

- Various type of classes such as Pinterest, fitness, dance, exercise, cooking, 
language 

- Teen programs 
- Health and wellness festivals  
- Art festivals  
- Partnership programs 
- Rental options to help reduce the cost of the facility 
- Various party events  
- HOA and civic meetings 
- Seminars and workshops 
- Staff retreats  
 

Mr. Hughes explained the possible set up of the building and how the different spaces 
can be utilized.  He explained their current challenge is lack of dedicated space for 
some of the programs that they would like to do.  The current facilities are too small, 
and at times, they are not able to utilize the school facilities.     

 
Mr. Hughes provided a description of what the aquatics center would entail, such as: 

- Eight lane 25 yard pool 
- Diving well 
- Zero depth entry  
- Play structure that drops water on you to a depth of three feet 
- Leisure pools with shade  
- Two water slides  
- Main pool is heated 
- Bath house has multi-purpose room 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 18, 2014 
Page 3 of 10 

Mr. Hughes stated some of things that can be offered at the new aquatics facility could 
include:   

- Start lessons for kids much younger with the new pool because of the depth 
- Water exercise classes could be expanded 
- Teen nights 
- Dive-in movies 
- Competitive swim meets 
- Partnership for physical therapy 

 
Mr. Hughes stated that the facility would also include multi-purpose fields, sports courts, 
tennis courts, and pickle ball courts.  He said the new fields could offer soccer 
tournaments, flag football, sports camps, tennis lessons, and will have a nice open 
space for events.  Currently the Town is limited on field space and it is not cohesive for 
the programming that they would like to do.     
 
Ms. Rosemary Bebris, Library Director, stated that the library has all the traditional 
library resources such as books, DVDs and audio; however, due to the limited space, 
the collection has decreased over the years.  As technology has become more 
prevalent, they have reduced the collection size to add more opportunities for the 
technology that the public needs.  She said the new library will allow for the expansion 
that is much needed and they will be able to provide more information on local history, 
as we well as expand the current collections.   
 
Ms. Bebris stated libraries are massive technology power houses that many patrons rely 
on.  Many people do not have high speed broadband internet access and use the library 
for the internet to complete various types of applications, etc.  The library currently has 
the following: 

- 21 public access computers, 30 laptops and 3 early literacy stations 
- 35 plus data bases such as ancestory.com  
- Several testing programs such as those who are studying for their GED or GRE 
- Approximately 5000 e-books, in which they partner with Pinal County and the 

State 
- Streaming media and digital services 
- Approximately 179 online magazines  
- Approximately 1000 audio books  
- Approximately 187 DVD movies 
- Approximately 3650 National Geographic and documentaries 
 

Ms. Bebris stated that they also provide several other programs for both adults and 
youth, which are well attended.  She stated that the library allows the community to 
connect and the new library will eliminate the need to borrow facilities.  Staff also can 
teach patrons how to use their electronic equipment such as Kindles, and will offer a 
demonstration on 3D printing.  She provided the total of users for each of the services 
and programs offered at the library. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 18, 2014 
Page 4 of 10 

Ms. Bebris stated that the new library will eliminate a lot of the current deficiencies.  
They will have a permanent place and can offer better programs such as having 
national exhibits, dedicated areas for children, youth, and adults, proctor of exams,  
Skype interviewing, storage space, collection growth, and new programs due to 
appropriate size meeting spaces. 
Vice-Mayor Smith inquired if the new facility is affordable. 
 
Mr. Montoya explained how the project will be funded.  He explained that a portion of 
the funding will come from restricted funds and if not utilized will be lost.  He said they 
estimate approximately $5 million will be funded through bonds.  He said Council has 
authorized staff to hire a project manager which will assist in working through the 
contract with Low Mountain.  If Council chooses not to do the bond, the Town has the 
funding available.  He recommends that the Town do bonding for $5 million for the 
project.  He said doing a bond is the most conservative approach and fiscally 
responsible.  He said they are working on the bond rating to ensure the best interest 
rate.   
 
Vice-Mayor Smith inquired about staffing. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that additional staffing will be necessary; however, they will be part-
time staff only and will be minimal and seasonal. 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith inquired if they can build the library now and the rest at a later time.   
 
Mr. Montoya stated if they do that, the funding will go away.  They would not be able to 
utilize the food tax money or park impact money, and will have to utilize millions out of 
the Town’s money.  Staff looked at the most conservative value to use the funds.     
 
Mr. Montoya stated if Council wishes to build the library now and build the aquatic and 
recreation center later, it will be more costly. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if the Town will lose the food tax. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that the food tax can only be utilized for recreational use and they 
would not be able to utilize it for the library.     
 
Councilmember Walter inquired if the existing surveys are being utilized for this project, 
or if the Town has to pay for new surveys.   
 
Mr. Montoya stated that the Town is not paying for additional surveys and explained that 
there is cost savings due to partnering with others, such as Swan Architects and 
Swaback, who have worked on the Territory Square. 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated they are following the same 
plans.  He said they have piggybacked on the engineering and floodplain work that has 
already been done.  They are using the same engineering firm who has invested 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 18, 2014 
Page 5 of 10 

several years on the project and who is also currently working on the LOMR process for 
engineering of the site.   
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that in previous discussions, the ball fields were to be 
located in the lower areas in case of flooding.  The ball fields are now being located 
closer to the Town.  He inquired how this fits in with the original design. 
Mr. Eckhoff explained that the immediate needs are being met with the soccer fields 
and facilities that are to be added.  He said it is a marginal cost compared to the library 
and aquatic center.  More work is needed with the floodplain mitigation and with land 
development before the Town obtains additional land along the river bed.   
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired if the Town is anticipating any expansion on the 
planned facility.   
 
Mr. Hughes stated that discussions have occurred on reconfiguring the layout of the 
buildings to allow for future expansion; however, the the expansion may not take 
advantage of the locker room or bath house, but would create a recreation complex.   
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired if the Town sought out partnership with Central Arizona 
College (CAC) with regards to the library for a conference area or a training center area.  
He also inquired if there is any interest in participation. 
 
Ms. Bebris stated that staff hasn’t explored that option.  She said there will not be space 
available within the library; however, there is general meeting space within the plan.  
She said there are several opportunities for partnership.  CAC has a new campus 
coming on in the near future and they will be doing a lot more at the new campus.   
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that he is concerned that the Town is putting all of their 
financial resources into this project and other entities may want to utilize the facility.  
 
Mr. Montoya stated that the FUSD is not at a point where they could do any funding.  
The Town does partner with FUSD with the pool and library and the Town assists them 
with the use of the Town’s fields.  The Town also does the before and after school 
programs at both K-8 schools.   He said CAC and the Town have an agreement to do 
generalized training for the Fire Department so that they can get their credit and training 
that they need.  CAC just built a brand new facility so he is not sure if they are willing to 
offer funding.  He said the Town would be developing IGAs with entities wishing to 
utilize the facility and the IGAs would be brought to Council for consideration.   
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired about the aesthetics of the building.   
 
Mr. Montoya explained that the Arts Program will be utilized for art inside and outside of 
the building.  
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired about internal services that may take away from 
outside businesses, such as a coffee or snack shop. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 18, 2014 
Page 6 of 10 

Mr. Montoya stated that there is a potential for a coffee kiosk, which may be a vending 
machine or a private vendor.   
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that he would like to see the IDA do the bonding for this 
project.  
 
Mr. Montoya stated they are currently working on the credit rating and he will make the 
recommendation to Mr. Reeder to see if the IDA can do the bonds.   
 
Councilmember Walter inquired what the square footage is for the proposed offices in 
the new facility and the existing fitness center.    
 
Mr. Montoya stated that he estimates the proposed office space to be approximately 
3,000 to 4,000 square feet and the existing fitness center to be approximately 5,500 
square feet.   
 
Councilmember Walter stated that the existing facility may be in need of repairs and she 
was wondering if that much office space is needed or if they could fit the exercise facility 
in the new location.   
 
Mr. Montoya explained what the office spaces will be used for and explained that they 
not only build for the current capacity but also for the near future use.   He explained 
how the impact fees must be utilized as well with regards to what must be incorporated 
in the construction.   
 
Councilmember Woolridge is glad that they are at this point and are moving forward on 
a new library. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if the Town will only have to finance $5 million for the 
project. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that $5 million will be the maximum that they will need to fund, but 
expect the cost to be less.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the weight equipment can be moved into the new facility. 
 
Mr. Hughes stated that the weight equipment will not be moved into the facility.  He said 
staff is focusing on the multi-purpose rooms, classrooms, meeting space, and exercise 
classes.  He said they will be able to add more equipment and do more in the facility if 
staff offices are moved out of the facility and minor renovations are done.  The current 
plan is to leave the fitness center where it is.   
 
Discussion occurred on the existing fitness center and the recreation center.   
 
Discussion occurred on various layouts of the new facility with regards to opportunities 
for expansion.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 18, 2014 
Page 7 of 10 

Mayor Rankin inquired about roadways into the new facility. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated they will expand 1st Street up to the 40 acres and create an 
entrance into the plaza from 1st Street.  They are working with San Carlos Irrigation 
District (SCID) regarding water.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff explained what the discussions with SCID pertain to their canal and 
placement alternatives.  He explained that staff has been working on the options of 1st 
Street and Main Street and the extension of Main Street to come together.  The goal is 
for a smooth transition.  He said this project is running concurrent with the library 
project.   
 
Mr. Wayne Costa, Public Works Director, stated that $500,000 has been budgeted for 
the project and explained what the project will entail.  He explained what the project with 
SCID will entail.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that there are no baseball or softball fields for practicing.   He 
inquired if the soccer fields can be utilized for practice fields by adding backstops. 
 
Mr. Hughes stated that the soccer fields could be utilized for practice fields.  He said 
lights have been budgeted for ball field # 3 for next year, which will allow for more 
practice time and the ball field can be utilized for another field for games.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that there will not be any pools available for the public next year, 
except for the canals, which is a problem.  He said the pool project needs to be pushed 
forward.  
 
Mr. Montoya stated that they will work with the school and with the contractor to come 
up with an arrangement so there is no loss of that pool for the kids.   
 
Mayor Rankin wanted to ensure that there is sufficient parking.   
 
Mr. Montoya stated that parking is included in the plan, and explained where the parking 
will be located.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated a parking calculation will be done to ensure there is sufficient parking 
for the facility.  He said there may be overflow parking for certain events and in those 
cases; the overflow may park in the overflow area, which will be a gravel parking area.  
The parking lot that is included will be pavement.  He added that the Town must also 
comply with Pinal County’s dust control requirements during construction and in the 
gravel area.   
 
Mayor Rankin said the maintenance cost for the aquatic area will be substantial 
because there is nothing to protect the pool.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 18, 2014 
Page 8 of 10 

Mr. Hughes stated that would do their best to mitigate the issues as much as possible in 
the design phase.  The pool is being turned to allow for the bath house to be on the 
west end, which will help mitigate the dust.  He said the fence around the pool will also 
have a foot which will help keep some of the dust out as well.   
 
Mayor Ranking inquired about signage. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that a uniform sign package will be developed for all of the parks so 
the signage will be consistent.  Additional signs will be placed throughout the Town to 
direct people to the various destinations.   
 
Discussion occurred on the aesthetics of the building including plants, shrubs, etc. and 
maintenance of the grounds, inclusive of utilizing reclaimed water.   
 
Mr. Montoya stated that reclaimed water may be used at Padilla Park should it become 
available.  He said they will plan for reclaimed water at the new facility should the 
reclaimed water become available.  Currently, there is not enough reclaimed water for 
Florence Gardens.   
 
Mr. Costa stated there are plans for installing reclaimed water lines at Padilla Park and 
Heritage Park.  He said an agreement for reclaimed water for the farms west of the 
Southwest Water Treatment Plant that will be coming up in the near future.   
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired if a new location is being proposed for the free dump 
day, which is currently held at Heritage Park.  
 
Mr. Montoya stated that they can look for an alternate location.   
 
Councilmember Celaya requested that a dirt amphitheater be left where they are 
removing the dirt and add some type of low cost grass.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff explained that there may be extra dirt left after the pad is completed and 
approved by FEMA and the LOMR.    They may be able to store the remaining dirt and 
do something with it at a later time.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired how the bid process was done. 
 
Mr. Montoya explained the bid process and how the vendor was selected.  
 
Discussion occurred on what would occur if the project was altered.   
 
Mr. Jess Knudson, Assistant Town Manager, explained the procurement and legal 
processes.  He stated that modifications can be done within the scope of work; 
however, there are some things that the Town is tied to with regards to use of funds and 
the way the State dictates the Town’s procurement process.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 18, 2014 
Page 9 of 10 

Ms. Bebris explained how the library will expand within the facility.   
 
Mr. Lyle Gilbertson, Florence Resident, stated that the location for the new facility is a 
great place to put it.  He said there is an assumption that if Main Street is extended, 
people will come downtown to shop. He proposed that the library be placed downtown 
with a parking lot, which will anchor downtown; otherwise there is nothing downtown.   
 
Mr. Art Buckley, Florence Resident, inquired how many square feet is the library, 
including parking. He said there was discussion that the library would be approximately 
12,000 square feet and questioned if that would be big enough.  
 
Mr. Montoya stated that building itself is approximately 30,000 square feet.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the parking count is still being determined.   
 
Mr. Buckley stated that the rule of thumb would be double the square footage for 
parking, landscaping and open space.  He said if he could show the Council a parcel of 
100,000 square foot at $6.00 per square foot, would they consider it. 
 
Ms. Ruth Harrison, Florence Resident, stated that her idea is to put the library where 
Padilla Park grass lawn is going to go.  She suggested the following: 

- Shade structures be installed in the parking area,  
- The parking area be in close proximity to the library 
- Parking lot to be of a permeable surface  
- Trees to be included to provide shade 
- Fitness center be at the new facility 
- Walking and bicycle access should be included at new facility 

 
Ms. Denise Kollert, Florence Resident, inquired why people think that the proposed 
location for the new facility not be considered downtown.  She said if the only place that 
Florence can expand is the small area on Main Street, Florence will go no place, and 
will go away.  She said there is not place downtown for the library.  She said parking will 
be limited around Padilla Park.   She doesn’t understand why people are against the 
location of the new facility for the library.  
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that location of the library has already been determined 
and the project is moving forward. 
 
Ms. Jaclyn Revis, Parks and Recreation Boardmember, stated that she supports 
moving forward with the new facilities, and they are much needed.  She said the project 
needs to move forward as planned.   
 
Ms. Chris Reid, Historic District Advisory Commissioner, asked that parking be in close 
proximity to the library.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 18, 2014 
Page 10 of 10 

Councilmember Walter inquired if the CART program will go to the facility, and if those 
in Anthem can utilize CART to come to the facilities as well.  She inquired if solar 
structures are considered.  
 
Mr. Knudson stated that the Town is one seat within the CART Board, but they can 
identify locations.  He said in the long term there will be one stop in Florence and then 
they will have intercity bus stops.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the building will be built to the 2006 Energy Code.  He said there 
are no solar canopies in the scope of work but they can include them in the design to 
add them later.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that FUSD is working with the San Tan YMCA for programs.  He 
inquired if it will conflict with them. 
 
Mr. Hughes said he does not foresee it being a conflict as the YMCA will serve those in 
the north part of Florence.   
 
Mr. Montoya explained the timeline for the next steps in the process.  He said the 
contract will be done in two pieces; with the first portion being a design contract.  It will 
take approximately six to ten weeks to get the dirt moved which will allow for the public 
participation and the design contract to be executed.  They will then come back to 
Council with a contract for construction.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Vice-Mayor Smith, and carried to 
adjourn the meeting at 7:34 pm. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on June 18, 2014, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
JUNE 23, 2014, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 
775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 6:03 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Rankin, Smith, Hawkins, Montaño, Woolridge 
Absent:  Celaya, Walter 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 23, 2014 
Page 1 of 6 

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
Mr. John Anderson, Florence Resident, stated that he is in favor of the project; however, 
he is concerned about the maintenance costs.  He was unable to find anything on the 
operational costs of the pool.  He said the park in Anthem’s park is open on a limited 
basis due to operational costs.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of authorizing the Town Manager to negotiate 
and enter into a contract for design-build construction services for the proposed 
Library/Recreation Center/Aquatic Complex with Low Mountain Construction for a 
cumulative amount not to exceed $390,000 for pre-construction and Schematic 
Design Services. 
 
Mr. Charles Montoya, Town Manager, stated that Council was provided information on 
the proposed facility in a worksession along with the timeline for the project up to this 
point.  The project is broken up into sections to allow for the design work of the facility 
so the Town doesn’t lose any time and to allow Low Mountain to begin working more in 
detail with the Council, Boards, Commissions, and the public for the design of the 
facilities.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired who was on the selection committee. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that the following individuals were part of the selection committee: 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 23, 2014 
Page 2 of 6 

Town Manager Charles Montoya, Assistant Town Manager Jess Knudson, Finance 
Director Mike Farina, Public Works Director Wayne Costa, Community Development 
Director Mark Eckhoff, Parks and Recreation Director Bryan Hughes, Library Director 
Rosemary Bebris, and Dan Bonow from Pulte.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if anyone from the community was included. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that there were no members from the public on the committee. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if staff has sought out estimates on maintenance 
costs from others with a like facility. 
 
Mr. Montoya responded that staff has not sought out estimates on maintenance costs.  
They will not know what the costs will be until they have a definitive design.  Part-time 
and seasonal staff will also be used to minimize the cost as well.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if they will have several options to choose from. 
 
Discussion occurred on the design process.  Council, Boards, and Commissions will be 
provided each rendition of the project as it evolves to ensure that staff is going in the 
direction of the Council. 
 
Discussion occurred on cost of the project, inclusive of costs for architects, and detailed 
documents of the project.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if the project must be done in its entirety or can they 
choose different parts of the project to be done and do the remaining at a later time. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that there can be some modifications; however, it is staff’s 
recommendation to use the impact fees and include them in the facility as a whole.       
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if they could do the project without having to do a 
bond. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that the Town has the cash available; however, it is not his 
recommendation to do so because funding is inexpensive; and the Town is doing the 
project as a regional attraction, so people, other than the Town of Florence, will pay for 
it.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired what the interest and time frame would be for the 
bond. 
 
Mr. Mark Reeder, Stifel, Nicolaus, and Co. Inc., stated that he is the Town’s financial 
advisor with regards to the possible sale of bonds.  He anticipates coming before the 
Council on July 21, 2014, for the sale of revenue bonds issued by the Town of Florence 
for approximately $5,000,000.  The debt will be amortized for 20 years.  He anticipates 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 23, 2014 
Page 3 of 6 

selling bonds with approximately 3% interest.  He said it is a good time to borrow money 
at an attractive rate, which will keep the debt service payment as low as possible.   He 
said they are currently working on the Town’s credit rating.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired how the credit rating is established. 
 
Mr. Reeder stated that four things are considered: budget, debt load, economy, and 
legal conveyance.  He said the payment would be approximately $390,000 annually. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the General Fund would be paying the annual payment. 
 
Mr. Montoya explained funding. He said the Town currently does not have a bond 
rating, nor has it had one in 15+ years.  
 
Mr. Reeder explained that they will have more information in the next few weeks. 
 
Discussion occurred on the WIFA loan, which has an approximate balance of $4.8 
million remaining and Florence Gardens bond has a remaining balance of 
approximately $337,000.  He said there is an additional $1.3 WIFA loan, which the 
Town has not drawn down from that money yet.      
 
Discussion occurred on the South Wastewater Plant, capacity, design stage when you 
reach 80% capacity, which is where the plant currently is, and construction when you 
reach 90% capacity.  The Town is approximately 150,000 – 200,000 gallons, or 800 
homes, away from being at 90% capacity.   
 
Mr. Wayne Costa, Public Works Director, stated that the Town would not change the 
infrastructure, but would change the process from a SBR plant to a MBR plant if they 
needed to extend the capacity, and explained the process.   
 
Vice-Mayor Smith inquired what the cost is to move the dirt. 
 
Mr. Montoya responded that the cost to move the dirt is approximately $1,050,000.    
 
Vice-Mayor Smith inquired if everything in the facility is needed within one year or if they 
can phase the project for a few years. He is concerned about the cost for the entire 
project.   
 
Mr. Montoya explained the funding and explained that there is additional $15 million if 
Council chooses to access those funds.   
 
Mr. Mike Farina, Finance Director, stated that the Town has the funds to complete the 
projects, and they are budgeted for.  There are also reserves available. 
 
Councilmember Montaño inquired why the Town is looking at a design-build and not 
siemens (inaudible) or general contract. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 23, 2014 
Page 4 of 6 

 
Mr. Montoya explained why the Town chose to go with a design-build for the project, 
and stated that it is the most affordable.      
 
Councilmember Montaño inquired if there will be Town staff working with the general 
contractor or a project manager.  
 
Mr. Montoya explained that Jeff Swan, Swan Architects, will be the Project Manager, for 
the Town along with Town staff, which includes Wayne Costa, Bryan Hughes, Mark 
Eckhoff, and Rose Bebris.   
 
Councilmember Montaño inquired if there will be a reduction in cost if they contractor 
falls behind schedule.   
 
Mr. Montoya stated that would be a negotiated item that Mr. Swan is working on along 
with other savings within the proposal submitted by Low Mountain.   
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, explained items that need to be 
considered when considering scheduling.   
 
Councilmember Montaño explained that there is sand in the area, and settling needs to 
be considered in the design-build.   
 
Discussion occurred on the the multiple levels of protection with regards to this project 
with regards to compaction and the build- up.   
 
Vice-Mayor Smith inquired if the Town Hall has had any issues with regards to 
compaction.   
 
Mr. Costa explained that the he soil was put in place without any compaction on the site 
where the Town is planning to place the fuel facility.  He said the Town will be doing five 
to six soil borings to test the loading of where the tanks are and where the road is going 
to be.  A geotechnical report addressing the building loadings will be required, as 
identified in the contract.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that inquired about the tiling the ditch or canal between 
Heritage Park and the project.   
 
Mr. Montoya stated there are several options including abandonment of the canal, 
including tile pipe.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that if the canal were to stay in place, they would consider putting the 
canal in a pipe underground in certain areas.  He stated that they are considering 
different scenarios, including relocation of the canal as well.   
 
Mr. Montoya explained the process to reach the 30% of the project.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 23, 2014 
Page 5 of 6 

 
Mayor Rankin stated that he would prefer to do the project in its entirety at one time.  
 
Councilmember Hawkins requested that staff research the maintenance costs for the 
pool including water and electrical cost and provide the estimates to the Council. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that she would prefer the project be done in it’s 
entirely and utilize bonding.  She inquired if there is a penalty for early payoff of the 
bonds.  
 
Mr. Montoya stated that Mr. Reeder is researching the cost for an earlier maturity.  
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if they can utilize the Florence IDA for the bonds. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated the Mr. Reeder, is researching the possibility of utilizing the 
Florence IDA and it is dependent on how the bonds are issued.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and 
carried to authorize the Town Manager to negotiate and enter into a contract for design-
build construction services for the proposed Library/Recreation Center/Aquatic Complex 
with Low Mountain Construction, for a cumulative amount not to exceed $390,000 for 
pre-construction and Schematic Design Services. 

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
Ms. Denise Kollert, Florence Resident, thanked the Council for the first good step to a 
great project.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the Council is moving the community forward.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Vice-Mayor Smith, and carried to 
adjourn the meeting at 6:42 pm. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 23, 2014 
Page 6 of 6 

I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on June 23, 2014, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 











 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
14a. 

MEETING DATE:  July 21, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mike Farina, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT:    Adoption of Ordinance No. 612-14: Property tax  
                      levy for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Ordinance No. 612-14 Tax Levy                                                     Meeting Date:  July 21, 2014 
Page 1 of 2  

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 612-14, adopting a property tax levy in the amount of $1.1182 per 
$100 of Net Assessed Valuation (“NAV”)  for Fiscal Year 2014-2015. A roll call vote 
must be taken. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town of Florence levies a primary property tax annually.  The rate that was levied 
last year was $1.0963 per $100 of NAV.  The current property tax rate is $1.1182 per 
$100 of NAV.  The recommended budget does not propose an increase in the property 
tax rate, leaving it at $1.1182 per $100 of NAV. 

As calculated by the Arizona Department of Revenue, the Truth-in-Taxation rate is 
$1.1016, which is the maximum rate the Town can have without having to hold a Truth-
in-Taxation (“TNT”) hearing; therefore, the Town must hold a TNT hearing. 

With no change to the current rate, which is $1.1182, the proposed property tax levy for 
the 2014-2015 Fiscal Year is $852,740. 

The Town levies an ad valorem or secondary property tax for the Merrill Ranch 
Streetlight Improvement Districts No. 1, No. 2, and No. 3.  This year, due to adequate 
fund balance, there will be no property tax levy. 
 
A ¾ vote of the Town Council is required to pass the levy. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Primary taxes are calculated using Limited Property Value (LPV), and are used to pay 
for basic maintenance and operation of the Town.   



Subject:  Ordinance No. 612-14 Tax Levy                                                     Meeting Date:  July 21, 2014 
Page 2 of 2  

At a rate of $1.1182 per $100 of NAV, a $100,000 LPV home would be $111.82.  Again, 
this is not an increase in the rate.  This is the same rate that was adopted for Fiscal 
Year 2013-2014. 

The levy would add to the General Fund revenue base and is essential to funding all of 
the departments within the General Fund that are necessary to maintain Town services. 

District Levies are as follows: 
Merrill Ranch Street Lighting District No. 1 - $0 or $0 per $100/FCV  
Merrill Ranch Street Lighting District No. 2 - $0 or $0 per $100/FCV 
Merrill Ranch Street Lighting District No. 3 - $0 or $0 per $100/FCV 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 612-14, adopting a property tax levy in the amount of $1.1182 per 
$100 of Net Assessed Valuation for Fiscal Year 2014-2015. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. 612-14 
ADOR Truth-in-Taxation Levy Limit Worksheet 
Truth-in-Taxation Analysis 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 612-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE TOWN OF FLORENCE SUBJECT TO 
TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED 
DOLLARS ($100.00) OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE 
AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR 
GENERAL MUNICIPAL EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING 
THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 2015. 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. §42-17151, the Ordinance levying a primary 

property tax rate for the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 is required to be adopted no later than 
the third Monday in August; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County of Pinal, is now the assessing and collecting authority for 

the Town of Florence.  The Town Clerk is hereby directed to transmit a certified copy of 
the Ordinance to the Assessor and Board of Supervisors of Pinal County, Arizona. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Town 
of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 

 
 Section 1:  There is hereby levied on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of the 

assessed value of all property, both real and personal, within the corporate limits 
of the Town of Florence, except such property as may by law be exempt from 
taxation, a primary property tax rate sufficient to raise the sum of $852,740 for 
the purpose of providing a General Fund of the Town of Florence, for the fiscal 
year ending on the 30th day of June 2015, but if the said sum exceeds the 
maximum levy allowed by law, the Board of Supervisors of Pinal County, is 
hereby authorized to reduce the said sum to the maximum which is allowed by 
law. 
 
Section 2:  There is hereby levied on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of the 
assessed value of all property, both real and personal, within the corporate limits 
of the Anthem at Merrill Ranch Street Lighting District No.1, Town of Florence, 
except such property as may by law be exempt from taxation, a secondary 
property tax rate of $0 per $100 of NAV for the purpose of providing operations 
and maintenance for the Anthem at Merrill Ranch Street Light Improvement 
District No. 1 for the fiscal year ending on the 30th day of June 2015, but if the 
said sum exceeds the maximum levy allowed by law, the Board of Supervisors of 
Pinal County, is hereby authorized to reduce the said sum to the maximum which 
is allowed by law. 
 
Section 3:  There is hereby levied on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of the 
assessed value of all property, both real and personal, within the corporate limits 
of the Anthem at Merrill Ranch Street Lighting District No. 2, Town of Florence, 



except such property as may by law be exempt from taxation, a secondary 
property tax rate of $0  per $100 of NAV for the purpose of providing operations 
and maintenance for the Street Light Improvement District No. 2 for the fiscal 
year ending on the 30th day of June 2015, but if the said sum exceeds the 
maximum levy allowed by law, the Board of Supervisors of Pinal County, is 
hereby authorized to reduce the said sum to the maximum which is allowed by 
law. 

 
Section 4:  There is hereby levied on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of the 
assessed value of all property, both real and personal, within the corporate limits 
of the Anthem at Merrill Ranch Street Lighting District No. 3, Town of Florence, 
except such property as may by law be exempt from taxation, a secondary 
property tax rate of $0 per $100 of NAV for the purpose of providing operations 
and maintenance for the Street Light Improvement District No. 3 for the fiscal 
year ending on the 30th day of June 2015, but if the said sum exceeds the 
maximum levy allowed by law, the Board of Supervisors of Pinal County, is 
hereby authorized to reduce the said sum to the maximum which is allowed by 
law. 

 
Section 5:  No failure by the officials of Pinal County, Arizona, to properly return 
the delinquent list and no irregularity in the assessment or commission in the 
same, or irregularity of any kind in any proceeding will invalidate such proceeding 
or invalidate any title conveyed by tax deed; nor will any failure or neglect of any 
officer or officers to perform any of the duties assigned to him or to them on the 
day within the time specified work an invalidation of any proceedings or of any 
such deed or sale or affect the validity of the assessment of a levy of taxes or of 
the judgment of sale by which the collection of the same may be enforced or in 
any manner affect the lien of the Town upon such property for the delinquent 
unpaid taxes; thereon, and no overcharge as to part of the taxes or of costs will 
invalidate any of the proceeding upon the lien, therefore, or a sale of the property 
under such foreclosure; and all acts of officers de facto will be valid as if 
performed by officer de jure. 
 
Section 6:  All Ordinances and parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are 
hereby repealed. 
 
Section 7:  The immediate operation of the Ordinance is necessary for the 
preservation of the public peace, health, and safety of the Town of Florence, and 
an emergency is hereby declared to exist; and this Ordinance shall be in full 
force and effect from its passage and approval by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, and publication as required by the laws of the State of 
Arizona, and is hereby exempt from the referendum provisions of the constitution 
and laws of the State of Arizona. 
 

  



 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, the 21st day of July 2014. 

 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
 
 ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 
 







Prior Year's Primary property tax levy:(Last year's primary property tax levy) $814,526

Current Year Estimate of net assessed valuation:(Current year net assessed values) - C4 $76,260,032

Current Year ESTIMATE OF VALUE OF NEW CONSTRUCTION: $2,319,383

Current year Net assessed value minus new construction: - B4 $73,940,649
(Current year net assessed value subject to taxation in prior year)

MAXIMUM TAX RATE THAT CAN BE IMPOSED
WITHOUT A TRUTH IN TAXATION HEARING: 1.1016$                

GROWTH IN PROPERTY TAX LEVY CAPACITY
ASSOCIATED WITH NEW CONSTRUCTION: $25,550

MAXIMUM PRIMARY PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR current year
WITHOUT A TRUTH IN TAXATION HEARING: $840,076

Proposed current year primary property tax levy: (This year's proposed primary propert tax 
levy) $852,740

PROPOSED current year INCREASE IN PRIMARY PROPERTY TAX
LEVY OVER TNT LEVY, EXCLUSIVE OF NEW CONSTRUCTION: $12,664

PROPOSED % INCREASE IN current year PRIMARY
PROPERTY TAX LEVY OVER TNT LEVY: 1.51%

PROPOSED current year PRIMARY PROPERTY TAX RATE: $1.1182

PROPOSED INCREASE IN PRIMARY PROPERTY TAX RATE OVER THE TNT RATE: 0.0166$                

PROPOSED current year PRIMARY PROPERTY
TAX LEVY ON A HOME VALUED AT $100,000: 111.82

current year PRIMARY PROPERTY TAX LEVY ON A HOME VALUED
AT $100,000 IF THE TAX LEVY WAS NOT RAISED: 110.16

1.66

Truth in Taxation Analysis for current year Proposed Levy



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
15a.  

MEETING DATE:  July 21, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                      Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1461-14:  Pre-Annexation and  
                    Development Agreement with SUPERSTITION 
                    SPRINGS R-14 ASSOCIATES, An Arizona      
                    Limited Partnership; WOLFY’S R.E. HOLDINGS,  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
 “COMMERCIAL/EMPLOYMENT AND PARKLINKS AT ARIZONA FARMS” PADA 
July 21, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

                    LLC, An Arizona Limited Liability Company; and  
                    DAVID C. PHILLIPS, a married man dealing with  
                    his sole and separate property. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1461-14, entering into a Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with SUPERSTITION SPRINGS R-14 ASSOCIATES, An 
Arizona Limited Partnership; WOLFY’S R.E. HOLDINGS, LLC, An Arizona Limited 
Liability Company; and DAVID C. PHILLIPS, A married man dealing with his sole and 
separate property. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The proposed Arizona Farms annexation area encompasses a land area of 
approximately 1,171 acres or 1.89 square miles.  The annexation area is generally 
bound by the Copper Basin Railroad to the west, Felix Road to the east, Arizona Farms 
Road to the north, and the Anthem at Merrill Ranch community to the south. 
 
Owner has approximately 31.6 acres within the subject annexation area, all of which are 
contained within proposed Arizona Farms East PUD.  Owners plans to go forward with 
plans to development a residential subdivision on a portion of the site in the near future. 
The remainder of the land is anticipated to develop with commercial land uses over 
time.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Overall positive, entering into this PADA facilitates the successful completion of the 
Arizona Farms annexation and promotes new development and population growth 
within the Town of Florence.  It is noted that the PADA commits to not increase 



 “COMMERCIAL/EMPLOYMENT AND PARKLINKS AT ARIZONA FARMS” PADA 
July 21, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

Development Impact Fees for the proposed residential development on the site for the 
first seven years of the term of the PADA.  As commercial development is expected to 
follow roof-tops, the reduced impact fee period for the planned commercial development 
on the site was extended to ten years. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1461-14, entering into a Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with SUPERSTITION SPRINGS R-14 ASSOCIATES, An 
Arizona Limited Partnership; WOLFY’S R.E. HOLDINGS, LLC, An Arizona Limited 
Liability Company; and DAVID C. PHILLIPS, a married man dealing with his sole and 
separate property. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1461-14 
Commercial/Employment and Parklinks at Arizona Farms PADA 
 



When recorded, return to: 
 
Town Clerk 
Town of Florence 
PO Box 2670 
775 North Main Street 
Florence, AZ  85132 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1461-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE PRE-ANNEXATION AND 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH SUPERSTITION SPRINGS R-14 
ASSOCIATES, AN ARIZONA LIMITED PARTNERSHIP; WOLFY’S R.E. 
HOLDINGS, LLC, AN ARIZONA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY; AND 
DAVID C. PHILLIPS, A MARRIED MAN DEALING WITH HIS SOLE AND 
SEPARATE PROPERTY, HEREAFTER CUMULATIVELY REFERRED 
TO AS “OWNER”, AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF SUCH PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (ANNEXATION NO. 
2013-02 – “COMMERCIAL/EMPLOYMENT AND PARKLINKS AT 
ARIZONA FARMS” PROPERTY). 

 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Florence is authorized, pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-500.05, 
to enter into development agreements and generally is authorized to enter into 
contracts; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the “Owner” plans to develop approximately 31.6 acres located as 
legally described on Exhibits “A-1”, “A-2” and “A-3” attached hereto (the “Property”), and 
desires to annex the Property into the town limits of Florence; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed development of the Property and the Pre-Annexation 
and Development Agreement are consistent with the Town of Florence General Plan 
applicable to the Property as of the date of this Resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement provides for 
various matters relating to the development of the Property, including the approval of a 
development plan, duration of the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement, the 
conditions, terms and requirements applicable to public services and infrastructure and 
the financing of same, the permitted uses of the Property and the density and intensity 
of such uses, the phasing over time of construction and development on the Property 
and other matters related to the development of the Property. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 



1. The Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between the Town of Florence 
and the Owner, which sets forth a development plan and the terms and conditions for 
the annexation and development of approximately 31.6 acres is hereby approved, 
adopted, and made a part hereof as if fully set out in this Resolution.  If the Town does 
not annex the Property in a timely manner following adoption of the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement, or if the Town rescinds the Resolution annexing the Property, 
the Town promptly and within thirty days of the adoption of this Resolution shall rescind 
this Resolution. 
 
2. The Mayor of the Town of Florence is authorized to and shall execute the Pre-
Annexation and Development Agreement. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 21st day of July, 2014.  
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 
 









 

WHEN RECORDED, RETURN TO: 
 
Town of Florence 
Attn: Town Clerk 
PO Box 2670 
775 North Main Street 
Florence, AZ 85132 
 
 
 
 

PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR 
ARIZONA FARMS ANNEXATION: ANNEXATION 2013-02 

“COMMERCIAL/EMPLOYMENT AND PARKLINKS AT ARIZONA FARMS” 
PROPERTY 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, an Arizona municipal corporation 
 

AND 
 

SUPERSTITION SPRINGS R-14 ASSOCIATES, An Arizona Limited Partnership (“SS R-14”), 
WOLFY’S R.E. HOLDINGS, LLC, An Arizona Limited Liability Company (“Wolfy”), and 

DAVID C. PHILLIPS, A Married Man Dealing with his Sole and Separate Property (“Phillips”) 

 

DATE: July _____, 2014 

 
 



 

1 
 

PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
FOR 

ARIZONA FARMS ANNEXATION: ANNEXATION 2013-02 
“COMMERCIAL/EMPLOYMENT AND PARKLINKS AT ARIZONA FARMS” 

PROPERTY 
 
THIS PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is 
entered into this   day of July, 2014 (the “Effective Date”) by and between the TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation (the “Town”), and  SUPERSTITION SPRINGS 
R-14 ASSOCIATES, An Arizona Limited Partnership as to Parcel C (“SS R-14”), WOLFY’S 
R.E. HOLDINGS, LLC, An Arizona Limited Liability Company as to Parcel D (“Wolfy”), and 
DAVID C. PHILLIPS, A Married Man Dealing with his Sole and Separate Property as to Parcel 
E (“Phillips”), (“Owner or Owners” as the context may require). 
 

RECITALS 
 
A.  The Owners own certain property located in Pinal County, Arizona consisting of three (3) 
separate tax parcels all as legally described on Exhibits A-1, A-2 and A-3 attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference (the “Property” or “Properties”). 
 
B.  Owners and the Town desire that the Property be annexed into the corporate limits of the 
Town and be developed as an integral part of the Town.  The annexation and development of the 
Property pursuant to this Agreement and the “Commercial/Employment” and “Residential High” 
zoning designations as defined in the Arizona Farms East PUD (Case #PZC-24-14-PUD) and 
incorporated herein by this reference, is acknowledged by the parties hereto to be consistent with 
the Town’s General Plan. The annexation of the Property would allow the Town to provide for 
high-quality development in the area and ensure orderly, controlled and quality growth in the 
Town.  
 
C.  Owners and the Town are entering into this Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Arizona 
Revised Statutes (“A.R.S.”) § 9-500.05 in order to facilitate the annexation, proper municipal 
zoning designation and development of the Property by providing for, among other things:  (i) 
conditions, terms, restrictions and requirements for the annexation of the Property by the Town;  
(ii) the permitted uses for the Property; (iii) the density and intensity of such uses; and (iv) other 
matters related directly or indirectly to the development of the Property. 
 
D.  A blank annexation petition has been filed with Pinal County and meetings and hearings have 
been held in connection with the annexation of the Property into the Town.  The Town agrees 
that the Commercial/Employment designation for Parcels C and D and the Residential High land 
use zoning designation for Parcel E as described in the Arizona Farms East Planned Unit 
Development zoning (“PUD”) are appropriate designations for the Property and that the PUD 
zoning is designed to establish proper and beneficial land use designations and regulations, 
densities, provisions for public facilities, design regulations, procedures for administration and 
implementation and other matters related to the development of the Property in accordance with 
the PUD zoning designation.   
 



 

2 
 

E.  Owner and the Town acknowledge that the ultimate development of the Property within the 
Town is a project of such magnitude that Owner requires assurances from the Town that Owner 
has the right to complete the development of the Property pursuant to, amongst other things, the 
PUD plan before it will expend substantial efforts and costs in the development of the Property, 
and the Town requires assurances from Owner that development of the Property will be in 
accordance with the Plan and the terms and conditions of this Agreement.   
 
F.  Without limiting the foregoing, the Town and Owner acknowledge that the development of 
the Property pursuant to this Agreement will result in significant planning and economic benefits 
to the Town by: (i) encouraging investment in and commitment to comprehensive planning, 
which will result in efficient utilization of municipal and other public resources; (ii) requiring 
development of the Property to be consistent with the Town’s General Plan and the approved 
PUD: (iii) providing for the planning, design, engineering, construction, acquisition, and/or 
installation of public infrastructure; (iv) increasing tax and other revenues to the Town based on 
improvements to be constructed on the Property; (v) creating employment through development 
of the Property consistent with this Agreement; and/or (vi) creating quality housing and other 
uses for citizens of the Town.  The Town and Owner acknowledge that the development of the 
Property pursuant to this Agreement will result in significant benefits to Owner, including 
present and future assurances to Owner that it will have the ability to develop the Property in 
accordance with this Agreement and the PUD. 
 
G.  Among other things, development of the Property in accordance with this Agreement and the 
PUD will result in the planning, design, engineering, construction, acquisition, installation, 
and/or provision of public services/infrastructure improvements that will support development of 
the Property.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual 
promises and agreements set forth herein, the parties hereto state, confirm and agree as follows: 

 

AGREEMENT 

1. Incorporation of Recitals. The foregoing Recitals are hereby incorporated into this 
Agreement as though fully restated. 
 
2. Annexation.  Subsequently or concurrently with its approval of this Agreement, the Town, 
having held public meetings thereon, will duly consider final approval of the annexation of the 
Property into the Town.  Prior to or concurrently with the execution of this Agreement by the 
Town and Owner, Owner will deliver to the Town an appropriate Petition for Annexation duly 
executed by the Owner and satisfying the applicable statutory requirements (the “Annexation 
Petition'').  Upon receipt of the Annexation Petition, the Town shall comply with the provisions 
of A.R.S. § 9-471 et seq. and, if determined to be in the best interest of the Town, adopt a final 
ordinance annexing the Property into the corporate limits of the Town (the “Annexation 
Ordinance”).  The Town and Owner hereby acknowledge and agree that this Agreement shall 
automatically terminate and be of no force or effect if the Town’s annexation of the Property 
does not become effective and final pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-471(D). 
 



 

3 
 

3. Zoning.  Upon annexation, the Town shall follow the legally prescribed procedures under 
State and Town statutes and ordinances to give the Property comparable zoning, which shall be a 
Planned Unit Development zoning (“PUD”) designation allowing underlying land usage 
consistent with the Commercial/Employment and Residential High designations in the PUD 
zoning case.  The Commercial/Employment designations on Parcels C and D shall include the 
additional allowed use of a temporary model home site for sales of the twin home villas on 
Parcel E.  Such temporary use shall not exceed three (3) years from the date of the Certificate of 
Occupancy for such model homes.  The site design and configuration of the model home area 
shall be approved by the Town’s Planning Director and all construction and occupancy of the 
model home structures shall be approved by the Town’s building official.  The Owner on behalf 
of itself and all other parties having an interest in the Property intends to encumber the Property 
with the following agreements and waivers.  Owner agrees and consents to all the conditions 
imposed by this Agreement and the PUD zoning, and by signing this Agreement waives any and 
all claims, suits, damages, compensation and causes of action for diminution in value of the 
Property the owner of the Property may have now or in the future under the provisions of the 
Private Property Rights Protection Act, A.R.S. 12-1131 et seq., (the “Act”) resulting from this 
Agreement, the comparable zoning, the underlying land use as identified in the PUD “land use 
law” (as such term is defined in the Act) enacted, adopted or applied by the Town during the 
term of this Agreement. Owner acknowledges and agrees the terms and conditions set forth in 
this Agreement and the zoning cause an increase in the fair market value of the Property and 
such increase exceeds any possible reduction in the fair market value of the Property caused by 
any future land use laws, rules, ordinances, resolutions or actions permitted by this Agreement 
and adopted or applied by the Town to the Property. Owner and the Town understand and agree 
that the waivers contained in this Paragraph 3 are binding upon Owner’s successors in interest 
and assigns pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. 9-500.05(D). The Town agrees to cooperate 
reasonably in processing, in a timely manner, any approvals of issuance of permits, plans, plats, 
or otherwise as may be necessary in order to allow for the development to be constructed in 
general conformance with the PUD. 
 
4. PUD Amendment.  The Town and the Owner acknowledge that amendments to the PUD 
may be necessary from time to time. When the parties agree that changes or adjustments are 
necessary or appropriate from time to time they shall, unless otherwise required by Town 
ordinance, by state or federal statute, effectuate minor changes or adjustments through 
administrative amendments which may be approved by the Town’s Community Development 
Director, and which, after execution, shall be attached to the PUD as an addendum and become a 
part thereof. If, in the future, the Town amends one or more of its zoning designations and/or 
districts, Owner shall have the option to convert the zoning designation(s) under the PUD to the 
equivalent zoning designations under such amended development ordinance(s), subject to notice 
and hearing requirements of applicable law. The exercise by Owner of such option and any 
approval by the Town shall not be deemed to constitute or to require an amendment of this 
Agreement, and, unless otherwise required by law, no such minor amendments shall require prior 
notice or hearing. All major changes or amendments shall be reviewed by the Planning 
Commission and approved by the Town Council. The following are major changes: 
 



 

4 
 

(a) Any material alteration to the list of permitted uses of the Property or locations of 
planned land uses set forth in the PUD as deemed to be substantial by the 
Community Development Director;  

 
(b) Any increase in the overall residential density in excess of ten percent; 

 
(c) Any material change in the development standards except as otherwise allowed 

by the PUD; and/or 
 

(d) Additional material circumstances as described in the PUD Narrative and PUD 
Ordinance. 

5. Additional Property. The Town hereby agrees to consider, and, if determined in its sole 
discretion to be in the best interest of the Town, amend this Agreement, from time to time and in 
accordance with typically applicable notice and hearing requirements solely at the request of 
Owner, to incorporate into this Agreement the whole or any portion of additional properties 
adjacent to or proximate to the Property (the “Additional Property”).  The Town and Owner 
agree that if Owner elects to request from Town the incorporation of such Additional Property or 
portions thereof: (1) thereafter, such Additional Property may be included in the Property and 
shall be subject to and shall benefit from all provisions of the Agreement applicable thereto and 
any reference herein to the Property shall include such Additional Property, which may increase 
the maximum density of the Property; (2) the Town and Owner shall cooperate in order for the 
Additional Property to receive the necessary land use approvals, including any necessary 
amendment to the PUD; and (3) the plans and land use designations approved for any Additional 
Property shall thereafter apply to the applicable Additional  Property. 

6. Regulation of Development. 

(a) The Applicable Rules.  Except as provided in Paragraphs 6(c) and 6(g) below, all 
exactions, fees, ordinances, rules and regulations of the Town applicable to and 
governing the development of the Property, shall be those ordinances, rules, 
regulations, permit requirements, development fees, impact fees, other exactions 
and requirements and/or official policies that are existing and in force for the 
Town as of the execution of this Agreement.  

(b)     The Permissible Additions to the Applicable Rules.  Notwithstanding the 
provisions of subparagraph (a) above and the provisions enumerated below, the 
Town may enact the following provisions, and take the following actions, which 
shall be applicable to and binding on the development of the Property: 

 
(i)   rules that the Owner may agree in writing apply to the development of the 

Property; 
 

(ii)   rules of the Town enacted as necessary to comply with mandatory 
requirements imposed on the Town by the state or federal governments, 
including court decisions, and other similar superior external authorities 
beyond the control of the Town, provided that, in the event any such 



 

5 
 

mandatory requirement prevents or precludes compliance with this 
Agreement, if permitted by law such affected provisions of this 
Agreement shall be modified as may be necessary to achieve the required 
level of compliance with such mandatory requirement; 

 
(iii)    rules of the Town reasonably necessary to alleviate legitimate severe threats 

to public health and safety, including, but not limited to, fire, flood, 
periodic inundation and  acts of war or terrorism, in which event any rules, 
imposed in an effort to contain or alleviate such a legitimate severe threat 
to public health and safety shall be the most minimal and the least 
intrusive alternative practicable and, except in a bona fide emergency, may 
be imposed only after public hearing and shall not, in any event, be 
imposed arbitrarily; and 

 
(iv)    technical codes adopted by the Town pursuant to the Florence Development 

Code, as well as future updates of, and amendments to, existing building, 
construction, plumbing, mechanical, electrical, drainage, and similar 
construction and safety related codes, such as the International Building 
Code, which updates and amendments are generated by a nationally 
recognized construction or safety organization, such as the International 
Conference of Building Officials, or by the county, state or federal 
governments or by the Maricopa Association of Governments (the 
“MAG”) provided that such code updates and amendments shall be 
applied uniformly and not arbitrarily. 

  
 (c) Development Impact Fees.  The Town’s Development Impact Fees that shall be 

imposed upon the Property for commercial/employment development for a period 
of ten (10) years and for residential development for a period of seven (7) years 
commencing from the effective date of the annexation, shall be the fees in the 
schedule which is attached as Exhibit “B”, unless a lesser fee is applicable at the 
time a building permit is issued by the Town.  The twin/patio home project on 
Parcel E shall be assessed impact fees under the multi-family category.  After the 
applicable seven (7) and ten (10) year periods and for the duration of this 
Agreement, the Town’s Development Impact Fees that will be imposed upon the 
Property shall be the fees then in effect and applicable at the time of permitting. 
Any fees which are due on residential dwelling units shall be payable when 
construction permits for the dwelling units are issued and on 
commercial/employment buildings when construction permits are issued.  

 
    (d) Filing, Review and Permit Fees. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 

Agreement, Owner will be required to pay the then applicable filing fees, plan 
review fees, permit fees and building fees in effect at the time of issuance of any 
filing, review or permit issuance. Development Impact Fees shall be paid in 
accordance with Paragraph 6(c) above.  

 



 

6 
 

    (e)  Reimbursements.  Promptly after the Town submits invoices to Owner, Owner 
shall pay the Town's costs and expenses incurred in connection with the exercise 
of the Town’s powers of condemnation or eminent domain at the request of the 
Owner or as required by the terms of this Agreement. 

 
 (f) Flood Control.  Flood control measures for the property shall comply with the 

requirements of the United States Army Corp of Engineers and all applicable state 
and local laws, regulations and ordinances; and, to the extent they are not 
superseded by the requirements of the United States Army Corp of Engineers or 
state and local laws, regulations and ordinances, the requirements of the Pinal 
County Flood Control District. 

 
 (g) Building Codes. For development in progress at the time this Agreement becomes 

effective, the Town will grandfather construction plans, including standard 
production home plans within active recorded subdivisions, approved by Pinal 
County. New subdivisions and plans introduced after annexation shall comply 
with minimum applicable Town standards and codes. 

 
7. Plat and Plan Approval. The Town hereby agrees to take in a timely manner all action 
necessary, including but not limited to processing plats which are in conformation with the PUD, 
so that the Owner is not unreasonably delayed in the development of the Property as provided in 
the PUD. In taking such actions, the Town may exercise its discretion in the manner provided by 
law. Town further agrees that Preliminary Plat approvals shall be valid for a period of two years, 
with possible extensions as permitted by Town codes.  

8. Vested Rights. The types of land uses, together with the densities of such uses on the 
Property, as shown in the PUD are hereby established.  The Town agrees that, for the term of this 
Agreement, Owner shall have an immediate right to develop the Property in accordance with this 
Agreement, the land uses established within the PUD and the Town’s General Plan.  

9. Infrastructure. 

(a) Infrastructure Plan.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, so long as 
Owner proceeds with the development of the Property, Owner may implement 
and phase the infrastructure improvements to the Property in conformance with an 
infrastructure plan jointly approved by the Town and Owner (the “Infrastructure 
Plan”), which Infrastructure Plan may be modified from time to time with the 
Town’s approval, which approval shall not unreasonably be withheld, conditioned 
or delayed.  Town hereby agrees that the Infrastructure Plan shall exclude, and the 
Owner shall not be required to obtain the approval by the Town, of water 
infrastructure improvements or wastewater infrastructure improvements, which 
improvements shall be the responsibility of the Owner and/or the Water Service 
Provider (as hereinafter defined) and Wastewater Service Provider (as hereinafter 
defined) to construct pursuant to Paragraphs 10(a) and 10(b).  Owner agrees to 
construct the water infrastructure improvements and wastewater infrastructure 
improvements in accordance with all other applicable regulations, laws and 
ordinances.  The Town agrees to consider Owner’s request for the condemnation 



 

7 
 

of sewer, utility, and drainage easements and rights-of-way if such easements and 
rights-of-way are determined by the Town to be necessary to complete the 
infrastructure anticipated by this Agreement, but in any event the use of eminent 
domain or condemnation is in the sole discretion of the Town.  Owner agrees to 
reimburse Town for the costs of any such condemnation, including, but not 
limited to, land and property rights acquisition costs, attorneys’ fees and costs of 
suit.  Town agrees to consult with Owner regarding offers of settlement in the 
event of eminent domain or condemnation actions. 

(b) Construction. The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that to the extent the 
Owner develops the Property, the Owner shall have the right and the obligation, at 
any time after the execution of this Agreement, to construct or cause to be 
constructed and installed, in accordance with all applicable rules, regulations, 
construction standards, and governmental review processes, all portions of the 
Infrastructure Plan that relate to the phase or portion of the Property to be 
developed by Owner at any given time.  All such construction performed by 
Owner shall be performed in a good and workmanlike manner and in compliance 
with all applicable requirements, standards, codes, rules or regulations of the 
Town.  The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that the Town, as necessary to 
implement the Infrastructure Plan, shall cooperate reasonably in facilitating 
construction of the infrastructure, including, but not limited to, the abandonment 
of any unnecessary public rights-of-way or easements currently located on the 
Property at such time as such rights-of-way or easements are demonstrated to be 
unnecessary by the final plat.  

(i) The construction and installation of public or private streets, curbs, 
gutters, sidewalks, traffic control, directional signs and other public 
infrastructure and public facilities on the Property as may be required by 
the PUD and any applicable state and local regulations, laws and 
ordinances (collectively, the “Infrastructure”) shall be subject to and in 
compliance with applicable state and local regulations, laws and 
ordinances.  Town agrees that the entrance to the twin home villa project 
on Parcel E shall be provided on a private easement approximately 40 feet 
in width extending approximately 800 feet south from Arizona Farms 
Road on the west end of Parcel E.  The Owner of Parcel E represents that 
he shall be responsible for obtaining the necessary permanent recorded 
private easement to provide access to Parcel E.  This private easement area 
shall be designed as a permanent improved access roadway according to 
Town standards.  At the time this private easement access is  improved to 
Arizona Farms Road, the Owner of Parcel E shall have no obligation to 
dedicate or improve Arizona Farms Road.  If Parcel E is developed prior 
to Attaway Road being improved on the east end of Parcel E, the Owner 
shall dedicate the required one-half (1/2) street right-of-way on Attaway 
Road adjacent to Parcel E and install an emergency fire and public safety 
access gate at the east end of Parcel E according to Town standards.  This 
gate shall not be used by residents of the patio home project for ingress or 
egress until such access is approved by the Town.  The Owner shall, at 



 

8 
 

Owner’s expense, also improve Attaway Road within the existing right-of-
way or dedication from the emergency access point on Parcel E to Arizona 
Farms Road to an interim standard approved by the Town’s Fire and 
Engineering Department and subject to approval by Pinal County’s air 
quality requirements.  If it is determined by the Town that no right-of-way 
or dedication exists on Attaway or that such right-of-way or dedication is 
not sufficiently wide to accommodate this interim access roadway, Owner 
shall be responsible to obtain the necessary right-of-way or dedication 
from adjoining owners so that the interim roadway can be constructed.  
When Parcels C and D develop, the Owners of such parcels shall, at that 
time, dedicate the one-half (1/2) street widths on Arizona Farms Road and 
Attaway Road adjacent to the parcels.  Owner shall also, at the time of 
construction of buildings on Parcels C and D, pay for the improvement of 
such one-half (1/2) street dedications or make a cash-in-lieu payment to 
the Town or Master Developer of the Arizona Farms East PUD, as 
determined by the Town, for such improvements.  If Parcels C, D or E 
develop as a twin/patio home project, the private streets within such 
development shall be 24 feet in width with no parking allowed on the 
street.  All Infrastructure shall be installed in a workmanlike manner in 
conformity with the plans and specifications that are submitted to and 
approved by the Town. 

(ii) Dedication of Infrastructure by Owner shall not constitute acceptance of 
the Infrastructure for purposes of transferring the obligation to maintain 
and repair the Infrastructure to the Town or for purposes of starting the 
Town’s warranty period.  Acceptance of any and all Infrastructure by the 
Town for purposes of the Town assuming any maintenance and repair 
obligations and for purposes of commencing the warranty period shall be 
expressly evidenced in writing by the Town as provided herein. 

(iii) Upon completion by Owner of any Infrastructure pursuant to Paragraph 
10(a), Owner shall notify the Town in writing of the presumptive 
completion of such Infrastructure.  So long as such Infrastructure is 
constructed in accordance with the approved plans and the requirements of 
Paragraph 10(a), as verified by the inspection of the completed 
improvements by the Town Engineer including the completion of all 
punch list items, the Town shall accept the Infrastructure, unless such 
Infrastructure is to be owned or accepted by some other governmental 
entity.  The Town shall notify Owner, in writing, of the Town’s 
acceptance of the Infrastructure as of the day of the final inspection.  
Acceptance of any Infrastructure is expressly conditioned upon the usual 
and customary Town warranty for such Infrastructure.  Owner, at no cost 
to Town, shall dedicate rights-of-way or convey public easements 
necessary for the construction, installation, operation and maintenance of 
the Infrastructure as required by Town, which rights-of-way or easements 
may be located adjacent to or in other public and private rights-of-way or 
easements. 



 

9 
 

(iv) Owner shall give to Town a one (1) year warranty for all Infrastructure, 
which warranty shall begin on the date that Town accepts the 
Infrastructure as provided in this section or such other date as set forth in a 
service agreement.  Any deficiencies in material or workmanship 
identified by Town’s staff during the warranty period that would adversely 
impact the public health and safety of residents shall be brought to the 
attention of Owner, who shall promptly remedy or cause to be remedied 
such deficiencies to the reasonable satisfaction of Town’s staff.  Any other 
deficiencies in material or workmanship identified by Town’s staff during 
the warranty period shall be remedied collectively to the reasonable 
satisfaction of Town’s staff at the conclusion of the warranty period.  
Continuing material deficiencies in a particular portion of the 
Infrastructure shall be sufficient grounds for Town to require (1) an 
extension of the warranty for an additional period, or (2) the proper repair 
of, or (3) the removal and reinstallation of that portion of the Infrastructure 
that is subject to such continuing deficiencies. Regardless of whether the 
warranty period has expired, the Owner agrees to repair any damage to the 
Infrastructure caused by Owner’s construction activities on the Property.  
Nothing contained herein shall prevent the Town or Owner from seeking 
recourse against any other third party for damage to the Infrastructure 
caused by such third party. 

(v) The Owner agrees to forever maintain all (i) rights-of-way designated as 
private rights-of-way on the Property by the PUD, unless such rights-of-
way are dedicated by Owner and accepted by the Town; and (ii) 
landscaping located within the public easements and rights-of-way located 
on the Property and such obligations shall survive the termination or 
expiration of this Agreement; provided, however, Owner may assign these 
obligations to one or more home owners’ associations (“HOA”) provided 
such HOA is legally bound to such rights-of-way and landscaping 
maintenance obligations and has adequate financial ability, acceptable to 
the Town, to bear such obligations.  Once the Town has consented to the 
assignment of these obligations to an HOA, Owner shall be relieved of 
any further obligation to maintain the rights-of-way and landscaping. 

(c) Infrastructure Assurance.  The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that the 
Town, prior to the recording of the final plat for each phase of the subdivision 
within the Property, shall require the Owner and/or its designees, successors, 
assigns, grantees or buyers under contract, to provide assurances that are 
reasonable to assure that the installation of Infrastructure within that subdivision, 
or other subdivision improvements directly related to such building permit or 
permits, will be completed (“Infrastructure Assurance”).  In such case, the Owner 
may elect, with the approval of the Town, which approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, any one or a combination of the following methods of 
Infrastructure Assurance.  All Infrastructure Assurances provided by the Owner 
shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Town’s Subdivision Ordinance 
relating to such Infrastructure Assurances.  Final Plats recorded in Pinal County 



 

10 
 

shall have their Infrastructure Assurances transferred to the Town immediately 
upon annexation. The options are as follows: 

(i) Owner and/or its assignees, designees, grantees and purchasers under 
contract is required to file with the Town a performance bond; or 

(ii) Owner and/or its assignees, designees, grantees and purchasers under 
contract is required to deliver to the Town an irrevocable and 
unconditional declining letter of credit which, if necessary, will be 
acknowledged by the Town in accordance with the appropriate Lender’s 
requirements; or 

(iii) Letter of financial assurance from Owner’s lender or the lender of 
Owner’s assignees, designees, grantees and purchasers under contract; or 

(iv) Contractor’s performance bond; or 

(v) Dual beneficiary declining letter of credit; or 

(vi) Performance deed of trust; or 

(vii) Third party trust; or 

(viii) Any other method approved by the Town and Owner consistent with State 
statutes and Town’s subdivision ordinance. 

Once the required Infrastructure Assurance has been complied with, the Owner (or, as 
applicable, the Owner’s assignees, designees, grantees and purchasers under contract) shall have 
the right, with the approval of the Town, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, to 
replace such initial method of Infrastructure Assurance, either in whole or in part, with any of the 
other above methods of Infrastructure Assurance.  The Town agrees that within ten (10) working 
days from the Town’s approval of the particular completed Infrastructure for which the Town 
has required and the Owner has provided Infrastructure Assurance, the Town shall release such 
Infrastructure Assurance, in whole or in part, as may be appropriate under the circumstances, in 
the manner provided in the applicable Subdivision Ordinance. 

(d) Infrastructure and Improvement Financing. The Parties acknowledge that a 
primary purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the coordinated planning, 
design, engineering, construction and/or provision of the range of public 
services/infrastructure improvements necessary to serve new development of the 
Property.  The Town acknowledges and agrees that such infrastructure 
improvements may be constructed, at Owner’s request, through the formation of a 
Community Facilities District (the “CFD”) pursuant to Arizona law, including, 
but not limited to, A.R.S. § 48-701 et seq.  In the event Owner requests the Town 
to form any CFD, the Town will consider such request in accordance with the 
Town’s adopted CFD Policies and Procedures, and if approved, shall adopt the 
necessary resolution of intention, and conduct such procedures as are necessary to 
form the applicable CFDs as required by Arizona law.  However, nothing 



 

11 
 

contained herein shall be construed to compel the Town to form a CFD or for the 
CFD, if formed, to finance any Infrastructure.  Owner shall provide all necessary 
information and shall pay all reasonable and customary Town costs, including 
costs of legal review by Town counsel, as specified in the Town’s CFD Policies 
and Procedures and the Town’s Schedule of Fees, as such may be amended from 
time to time, in connection with its request for any CFD formation.  The Parties 
agree that the Town must act in accordance with its CFD Policies and Procedures 
as to the formation of any CFD contemplated under this Paragraph 9(d). 

(e) Street Lights. There will be no Street Lighting Improvement District (SLID) on 
the Property excepted as mutually agreed upon, however, streetlights will be 
required within the Property and will be constructed according to either of: 1) 
Town standards; 2) as grandfathered by existing development; or 3) as may be 
approved in the PUD. 

(f) Oversized Infrastructure. The Town agrees not to impose upon Owner the 
obligation to oversize its infrastructure improvements or to provide additional 
public improvements to facilitate the ultimate development of a larger land area in 
the vicinity of the Property.   

 
10. Utility Services. 

(a) Potable Water Service.  The Town acknowledges and agrees that Johnson 
Utilities, L.L.C. (“JUC”), or another entity under the common control of JUC 
(collectively, the “Water Service Provider”) has, or is in the process of obtaining 
the necessary governmental approvals (collectively, the “Water Service 
Approvals”) to become the potable water service provider to the Property.  At no 
cost or expense to the Town, the Town agrees to cooperate with and support the 
Water Service Provider in obtaining the Water Service Approvals if necessary.  
Upon the Water Service Provider demonstrating that it has the Water Service 
Approvals, the Property will no longer be considered within the municipal service 
area of the Town with respect to water service and Owner shall have no 
responsibility to the Town to construct water infrastructure improvements of any 
kind or to pay water hook-up fees, water impact fees or other similar fees to the 
Town.   

(b) Wastewater Service.  The Town acknowledges and agrees that JUC, or another 
entity under the common control of JUC (collectively, the “Wastewater Service 
Provider”)has, or is in the process of obtaining the necessary governmental 
approvals (collectively, the “Wastewater Service Approvals”) to become the 
wastewater service provider to the Property.  At no cost or expense to the Town, 
the Town agrees to cooperate with and support the Wastewater Service Provider 
in obtaining the Wastewater Service Approvals if necessary.  Upon the 
Wastewater Service Provider demonstrating that it has the Wastewater Service 
Approvals, the Property will no longer be considered within the municipal service 
area of the Town with respect to wastewater service and Owner shall have no 
responsibility to the Town to construct wastewater infrastructure improvements of 



 

12 
 

any kind or to pay wastewater hook-up fees, wastewater impact fees or other 
similar fees to the Town.   

(c) Other Services.  The Town, or an entity designated by Town, shall provide trash 
collection services to the Property.  The Town shall provide police and fire 
protection services to the same extent and upon the same terms, conditions and 
timeliness as those services are being provided to other properties throughout the 
Town.  

(d) Reclaimed Water. Owner shall supply reclaimed water or effluent to the Property 
as needed by Owner, any successor to Owner, or to any HOA. 

 
11. Plans Submittal.  Owner shall submit all plats and plans to Town Staff.  Development of 
the Property cannot occur until the Town has concurred that the plans comply with the PUD and 
Town standards.  Town shall review said plans and provide Owner with its comments on these 
submittals in a timely manner.  The Town may retain the services of a private company or 
individual (“Outside Review Agency”) to provide expedited development review processes only 
upon the request of Owner.  The Town and Owner shall mutually agree on the Outside Review 
Agency selected from the Town’s list and the fee for such expedited review. 

12. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 
hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereof.  All prior and contemporaneous agreements, 
representations, and understanding of the parties, oral or written, are hereby superseded and 
merged herein. 

13. Amendment. No change or addition is to be made to this Agreement except by a written 
amendment executed by the Owner (of the affected parcel) and the Town.  Within ten (10) days 
after any amendment to this Agreement has been executed, such amendment shall be recorded in 
the official records of Pinal County, Arizona. 

14. Default; Remedies. Failure or unreasonable delay by any Party to perform any term or 
provision of this Agreement for a period of ten (10) days after written notice thereof from 
another Party shall constitute a default under this Agreement. If the default is of a nature which is 
not capable of being cured within ten (10) days, the cure shall be commenced within such period, 
and diligently pursued to completion. The notice shall specify the nature of the alleged default 
and the manner in which the default may be satisfactorily cured. In the event of a default 
hereunder by any Party, the non-defaulting Party shall be entitled to all remedies at both law and 
in equity, including, without limitation, specific performance. 

(a) Dispute Resolution. To further the cooperation of the parties in implementing this 
Agreement, the Town and the Owner each shall designate and appoint a 
representative to act as a liaison between the Town and its various departments 
and the Owner. The initial representative for the Town (the “Town 
Representative”) shall be the Town Manager and the initial representative for the 
Owner shall be its project manager, as identified by the Owner from time to time 
(the “Owner Representative”). The representatives shall be available at all 



 

13 
 

reasonable times to discuss and review the performance of the Parties and the 
development of the Property. 

(b) Mediation.  If a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement, or the breach 
thereof, and if the dispute cannot be settled through negotiations, the Parties agree 
first to try to settle the dispute through mediation before resorting to arbitration, 
litigation or some other dispute procedure.  In the event that the Parties cannot 
agree upon the selection of a mediator within seven (7) days, either Party may 
request the Presiding Judge of the Pinal County Superior Court to assign a 
mediator from a list of mediators maintained by the Arizona Municipal Risk 
Retention Pool. 

15. Arbitration.  If the mediation procedure set forth in Paragraph 14(b) above does not 
resolve a dispute, either party may submit, by demand letter, correspondence or notice, to 
the other party, such dispute to arbitration pursuant to this Paragraph 15.  In such event, 
the dispute shall be subject to and decided by arbitration in accordance with the Rules for 
Non-Administered Arbitration of Business Disputes (the “Rules”) of the Center for 
Public Resources (the “CPR”) currently in effect, except as provided herein and except 
where modified by the provisions hereof. 

(a) Any arbitration arising out of this Agreement may include, by consolidation or 
joinder, or in any other manner, at the discretion of either the Owner or the Town, 
any other entities or persons whom the Owner of the Town, as the case may be, 
believes to be substantially involved in a common question of law or fact and who 
consent to jurisdiction of the arbitrator. 

(b) The parties agree that the remedies available for the award by the arbitrator(s) 
under this Paragraph 15 in a dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement or 
breach thereof shall be limited to specific performance and declaratory relief and 
the arbitrator may not issue an award of monetary damages, whether characterized 
as actual, consequential or otherwise, except as provided in Sub-paragraphs 15(e) 
and 15(h), and provided, however, that the arbitrator(s) may award the payment of 
an amount owed or may enjoin the withholding of amounts due under this 
Agreement. 

(c) Demand for arbitration shall be filed with the other party in accordance with the 
Rules and the notice provisions of the Agreement. A demand for arbitration shall 
be made within a reasonable time after the claim, dispute, or other matter in 
question has arisen. In no event shall the demand for arbitration be made after the 
date when institution of legal or equitable proceedings based upon such claim, 
dispute or other matter in question could be barred by the applicable statute of 
limitations. 

(d) In the event the amount in controversy is less than $100,000, a sole arbitrator shall 
be appointed in accordance with the Rules. In the event the amount in controversy 
is $100,000 or more, the demanding party shall appoint one party-appointed 
arbitrator in its notice demand for arbitration. The responding party may within 



 

14 
 

ten (10) days, appoint a second party-appointed arbitrator. The party-arbitrators 
shall appoint a third arbitrator in accordance with the Rules. If the party-
arbitrators fail to appoint a third arbitrator, the third arbitrator shall be appointed 
in accordance with the Rules. If the responding party fails to appoint a second 
party-arbitrator within the time so provided, selection of the second arbitrator 
shall be in accordance with the Rules. 

(e) The decision of the arbitrator(s) shall be in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Arizona and the United States. The arbitrator(s) shall prepare written findings 
of fact and conclusions of law upon which the decision and award shall be based. 
The arbitrator(s) may award compensatory damages pursuant to Paragraphs 15(b), 
15(g) and 15(h) and reasonable attorneys’ fees and reasonable costs to the 
prevailing party. 

(f) The arbitration shall occur within the municipal limits of the Town unless the 
parties agree otherwise in writing. 

(g) This agreement to arbitrate shall be specifically enforceable by either party under 
the prevailing laws of the State of Arizona and the United States. Any award 
rendered by the arbitrator(s) shall be final and enforceable by any party to the 
arbitration, and judgment shall be made upon it in accordance with the applicable 
laws of any court having jurisdiction thereof. The arbitrator(s) decision shall be 
final and conclusive as to the facts. Either party may appeal manifest errors of law 
to a court of competent jurisdiction within fifteen (15) days of the award. 
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if either party fails to 
take action consistent with the arbitrator(s) award within fifteen (15) days after 
demand, then the other party may either utilize the arbitration process set forth in 
this Paragraph 15 (but without limitation on remedy) or pursue in court any 
remedy available to it at law or in equity, including, without limitation, monetary 
damages, resulting from the failure to take action consistent with the arbitrator(s) 
award and/or the underlying dispute that was the subject of the arbitration. 

(h) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if either party 
believes the other party is exercising the rights under this Agreement in bad faith, 
the aggrieved party must notify the other party of the facts forming the basis of 
the aggrieved party’s assertion of bad faith. If the other party fails to cure the facts 
forming the basis of the aggrieved party’s assertion of bad faith within fifteen (15) 
days after notice thereof, then such dispute shall be submitted to arbitration. If the 
arbitrator finds that a party has acted in bad faith, then the aggrieved party may 
request, and the arbitrator may award, any remedy available to the aggrieved 
party, at law or in equity, including without limitation, monetary damages. 

(i) Unless otherwise agreed in writing, and notwithstanding any other rights or 
obligations of either party under the Agreement, the Owner and the Town shall 
carry on with the performance of their respective duties, obligations and services 
hereunder during the pendency of any claim, dispute, or other matter in question 
giving rise to arbitration or mediation, as the case may be. 



 

15 
 

(j) The dispute resolution process set forth in this Paragraph 15 shall not apply to an 
action by the Town to condemn or acquire by inverse condemnation all or any 
portion of the Property or to claims for injunctive relief or mandamus by either 
party. The failure by either party to perform or otherwise act in accordance with 
any term or provision of this Agreement for a period of thirty (30) days (the “Cure 
Period”) after written notice thereof from the other party shall constitute a default. 
In the event such default is not cured within the Cure Period, the non-defaulting 
party shall have the right to seek injunctive relief or mandamus in a court of 
competent jurisdiction. 

(k)  Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the provisions of 
Paragraphs 14 and 15 shall not be construed or applied so as to prevent Owner or 
Town from seeking injunctive relief on an emergency basis to prevent immediate 
or irreparable harm. 

 
16. Waiver.  No delay in exercising any right or remedy shall constitute a waiver thereof, and 
no waiver by the Town or the Owner of the breach of any covenant of this Agreement shall be 
construed as a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach of the same or any other covenant 
or condition of this Agreement. 

17. Future Effect.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement.  All of the provisions hereof shall 
inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereof 
including, without limitation, to third party builders; provided, however, the Owner’s rights and 
obligations hereunder may only be assigned to a person or entity that has acquired the Property 
or a portion thereof and only by a written instrument, recorded in the Official Records of Pinal 
County, Arizona, expressly assigning such rights and obligations. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Town agrees that the ongoing ownership, operation and 
maintenance obligations provided by this Agreement, other than those pertaining to construction 
of public infrastructure improvements, may be assigned to one or more HOAs to be established 
by the Owner.  The Owner agrees to provide the Town with written notice of any assignment of 
the Owner’s rights or obligations within 15 days after such assignment.  In the event of a 
complete assignment by Owner of all rights and obligations of Owner hereunder, Owner’s 
liability hereunder shall terminate effective upon the assumption by Owner’s assignee.  Nothing 
in this Agreement shall operate to restrict the Owner’s ability to assign any of its rights and 
obligations under this Agreement to those entities that acquire all or any portion of the Property. 

18. Names and Plans. The Owner shall be the sole owner of all names, plans, drawings, 
specifications, ideas, programs, designs and work products of every nature at any time 
developed, formulated or prepared by or at the instance of the Owner in connection with the 
Property; provided, however, that in connection with any conveyance of portions of the Property 
to the Town such rights pertaining to the portions of the Property so conveyed shall be assigned, 
to the extent that such rights are assignable to the Town. 

19. No Owner Representations. Nothing contained herein or in the PUD shall be deemed   
obligate the Town or the Owner to complete any part or all of the development of the Property. 



 

16 
 

20. Good Standing; Authority. Each of the parties that is not an individual person and their 
assigns represents (and will represent) and warrants to the other that: (i) it is duly formed and 
validly existing under the laws of Arizona, with respect to the Owner, or a municipal corporation 
within the State of Arizona, with respect to the Town; (ii) that it is qualified to do business in the 
State of Arizona and is in good standing under applicable state laws, and (iii) that the 
individual(s) executing this Agreement (or who will execute this Agreement) on behalf of their 
respective parties are authorized and empowered to bind the party on whose behalf each such 
individual is signing. 

21. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is declared void or unenforceable, such 
provision shall be severed from this Agreement, which shall otherwise remain in full force and 
effect.  If any applicable law or court of competent jurisdiction prohibits or excuses the Town 
from undertaking any contractual commitment to perform any act hereunder, this Agreement 
shall remain in full force and effect, but the provision requiring such action shall be deemed to 
permit the Town to take such action at its discretion, if such a construction is permitted by law. 

22. Governing Law. This Agreement is entered into in Arizona and shall be construed and 
interpreted under the laws of Arizona. 

23. Choice of Forum. Notwithstanding A.R.S. § 12-408, any suit or action brought under this 
Agreement shall be commenced in Superior Court of the State of Arizona in and for the County 
of Pinal and may be removed therefrom only upon the mutual agreement of the Town and 
Owner. 

24. Recordation. This Agreement shall be recorded in its entirety in the official records of 
Pinal County, Arizona, not later than ten (10) days after this Agreement is executed by the Town 
and the Owner. 

25. Notice.  Any notice, (delivered by mail, hand or federal express) assignment, payment or 
other communication provided for or required by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 
deemed to have been given when delivered by hand or when deposited in the United States 
Postal Service, certified or registered, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, properly 
addressed to the person to whom such notice is intended to be given at its respective addresses as 
follows: 

The Town:  Town Manager 
Town of Florence 
775 N. Main Street 
PO Box 2670 
Florence, Arizona 85132 

 
With Copy To: Town Attorney 

Town of Florence 
775 N. Main Street 
PO Box 2670 
Florence, Arizona 85132 

 



 

17 
 

The Owner:  Superstition Springs R-14 Associates 
c/o John Hill 
2453 North Keystone Drive 
Flagstaff, AZ  86004 
 
Wolfy’s R. E. Holdings, LLC 
c/o John Hill 
2453 North Keystone Drive 
Flagstaff, AZ  86004 
 
David C. Phillips 
c/o John Hill 
2453 North Keystone Drive 
Flagstaff, AZ  86004 
 

With Copy To:  
W. Ralph Pew 
Pew & Lake, PLC 
1744 South Val Vista Drive 
Suite 217 
Mesa, AZ  85204 
 

 
The parties entitled to notice, including any assignees of this Agreement, may be changed 
by sending notice to the other parties of the name and address of the individual thereafter 
entitled to notice under this Agreement. 

 
26. Effective Date and Term.  This Agreement shall become effective and shall be binding 
upon and enforceable by all parties hereto, their successors and assigns, immediately upon the 
approval by the Town Council of this document. The term of this Agreement (the “Term”) shall 
be for a period of the earlier of: (i) complete build-out of the Property, (ii) mutual termination by 
the parties, or (iii) fifteen (15) years from the date of recordation of this Agreement. 

27. Attorneys’ Fees.  If any legal proceeding is initiated by any party hereto (or their 
successor(s)) with respect to this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, in 
addition to any other relief to which it is entitled, its cost of suit incurred in connection with such 
legal proceeding, and its reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

28. Insurance Requirements.  The Owner, at its own expense, shall purchase and maintain the 
herein stipulated minimum insurance with companies duly licensed, possessing a current A.M. 
Best, Inc. rating of “A”, or approved and licensed to do business in the State of Arizona with 
policies and forms satisfactory to the Town.  All insurance required herein shall be maintained in 
full force and effect during the time that construction improvements are being made during the 
term of this Agreement; failure to do so may, at the sole discretion of the Town, constitute an 
event of default by the Owner under this Agreement.  The Owner’s insurance shall be primary 
insurance, and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Town shall not contribute to it.  
Any failure to comply with the claim reporting provisions of the policies or any breach of an 



 

18 
 

insurance policy warranty shall not affect coverage afforded under the policy to protect the 
Town.  The insurance policies required by this Agreement shall name the Town, its agents, 
officers, officials and employees as additional Insureds. 

(a) General Liability. The Owner shall, at its expense, maintain a policy of 
comprehensive public liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 
for each occurrence and with a $1,000,000 general aggregate limit.  The policy 
shall include coverage for bodily injury, broad form property damage, personal 
injury, and blanket contractual coverage including, but not limited to, the liability 
assumed under the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, which coverage 
will be at least as broad as Insurance Service Office, Inc., Policy Form CG 
000211093 (October 2001 version).  The coverage shall not exclude X, C, and U.  
Such policy shall contain a severability of interest provision, and shall not contain 
a sunset provision or commutation clause, or any provision which would serve to 
limit third party action over claims.  The Commercial General Liability additional 
insured endorsement shall be at least as broad as Insurance Service Office, Inc., 
Additional Insured, Form B, CG2O101185 (October 2001 version). 

(b) Automobile Liability. The Owner shall, at its expense, maintain a commercial / 
business automobile liability insurance policy with a combined single limit for 
bodily injury and property damage of not less than $1,000,000.00 each occurrence 
with respect to any of the Owner’s owned, hired and non-owned vehicles assigned 
to or used in performance of this Agreement.  Coverage will be at least as broad 
as coverage code I, “any auto”, Insurance Service Office, Inc., Policy Form CA 
00011293, or any replacements thereof. Such insurance shall include coverage for 
loading and off loading hazards. If hazardous substances, materials or wastes are 
to be transported, MCS 90 endorsement shall be included and $5,000,000.00 per 
accident limits for bodily injury and property shall apply. 

(c) Indemnification.  Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, to 
the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall protect, defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless the Town, its Council members, agents, officers, officials and 
employees from and against all suits, claims, demands, damages, losses, 
liabilities, fines, charges, penalties, administrative and judicial proceedings and 
orders, judgments, remedial actions of any kind, and all costs and cleanup actions 
of any kind, together with expenses (including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, 
court costs, the cost of appellate proceedings, and all claim adjusting and handling 
expenses), relating to, arising out of, resulting from or alleged to have resulted 
from the Owner’s acts, errors, mistakes or omissions relating to any action or 
inaction of the Owner under this Agreement, including but not limited to the acts, 
errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services of the Owner’s agents, employees, 
contractors, subcontractors or anyone for whose acts they or the Owner may be 
liable in the performance of this Agreement, and regardless of whether or not such 
claims, demands, damages, losses, liabilities, fines, charges, penalties, 
administrative and judicial proceedings, orders, judgments, remedial actions, 
costs, cleanup actions and expenses are caused in part by the passive negligence 
of the Town, its Council members, agents, officers, officials and employees.  The 



 

19 
 

Town shall remain responsible to the fullest extent permitted by law for any acts 
of active negligence by the Town, its Council members, agents, officers, officials 
and employees. 

(i) The Owner’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Town, its 
Council members, agents, officers, officials and employees shall arise in 
connection with any suits, claims, damages, losses or expenses that are 
attributable to or otherwise relate to, result from, or are alleged to have 
resulted from the Owner’s acts, errors, mistakes or omissions relating to 
any action or inaction of the Owner under this Agreement, including but 
not limited to the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services of the 
Owner’s agents, employees, contractors or anyone for whose acts they or 
Owner may be liable in the performance of this Agreement, regardless of 
the legal or equitable grounds upon which such suits, claims, damages, 
losses and expenses are based.  

(ii) The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth herein 
are separate and independent from the indemnity provisions of this 
Agreement and shall not be construed in any way to limit the scope and 
magnitude of the indemnity provisions of this Agreement. The indemnity 
provisions of this Agreement shall not be construed in any way to limit the 
scope, magnitude and applicability of the insurance provisions of this 
Agreement.   

(iii) The indemnity provisions of this Agreement shall survive the termination 
of this Agreement. 

29. Lot Sale.  It is the intention of the parties that although recorded, this Agreement shall not 
create conditions or exceptions to title or covenants running with any individual lots into which 
the Property is subdivided.  Any title insurer can rely on this section when issuing any 
commitment to insure title to any individual lot or when issuing a title insurance policy for any 
individual lot. So long as not prohibited by law, this Agreement shall automatically terminate as 
to any individual lot (and not in bulk), without the necessity of any notice, agreement or 
recording by or between the parties, upon conveyance of the lot to a homebuyer by a recorded 
deed.  For this section, “lot” shall be any lot upon which a home has been approved by the Town 
or any portion of the Property that has been subdivided in a final plat or has final site plan 
approval for Commercial/Employment development uses. 

30. No Partnership; Third Parties.  This Agreement is not intended to, and nothing contained 
in this Agreement shall, create any partnership, joint venture or other arrangement between 
Owner and the Town or between any parties comprising Owner. 

31. Compliance With Certain Federal and State Laws. The Owner hereby agrees to comply 
with all applicable provisions of the American with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform 
and Control Act of 1986 and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989. If the Agreement contains 
provisions relating to the construction of public infrastructure improvements or the formation of 
a Community Facilities District pursuant to A.R.S. § 48 - 701 et seq., the Owner hereby agrees to 



 

20 
 

comply with all applicable provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes (“A.R.S.”) § 34 - 301 
“Employment of Aliens on Public Works Prohibited”, A.R.S. § 34 - 302 “Residence 
Requirements for Employees”, and A.R.S. § 41-4401 “Government Procurement” (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Immigration Laws”).  A breach of the Immigration Laws shall constitute a 
default of this Agreement and, if uncured, may subject the Owner to additional penalties 
including termination of the Agreement at the sole discretion of the Town.  Notwithstanding 
anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, Town retains the legal right to inspect the 
immigration papers or other residency documents of the Owner’s, contractor’s or any 
subcontractor’s employees who perform work under this Agreement, to ensure that Owner, 
contractor and any subcontractors are complying with the Immigration Laws. Owner agrees not 
to hinder the Town in regard to any such inspections.  The Town may, in its sole discretion, 
conduct random verification of the employment records of the Owner, contractor and any 
subcontractors to ensure compliance with the Immigration Laws.  Owner shall not be deemed to 
have materially breached the Immigration Laws if the Owner establishes that it has complied 
with the employment verification requirements of the federal Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 
U.S.C.A. §1324(a) and 8 U.S.C.A. §1324 (b)(1)(A), et seq., the E-Verify requirements of A.R.S. 
§ 23 - 214(A) and if Owner includes the provisions of this section in any contract the Owner 
enters into with any and all of its contractors, which contracts shall contain provisions which 
require such contractors to include the provisions of this section in such contractors’ contracts 
with any subcontractors who provide services relating to the construction of public infrastructure 
improvements. “Services”, as used herein, are defined as the furnishing of labor, time or effort in 
the State of Arizona by Owner, a contractor or any subcontractor. “Services” also includes 
construction or maintenance of any structure, building, transportation facility or improvement of 
real property. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   



 

21 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the dates 
written below. 

 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation 
 
 
 
    
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor  Date 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  James Mannato, Town Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

22 
 

PARCEL C 
 
 
 
SUPERSTITION SPRINGS R-14 ASSOCIATES, 
An Arizona Limited Partnership 
 
 
 
By:      
 
Its:___________________________ 
 
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
    ) ss. 
County of   ) 
 
 
 The foregoing Development Agreement for      was acknowledged 
before me this   day of   , 2014, by _______________, the _______________ of 
Superstition Springs R-14 Associates, an Arizona limited partnership, personally known to me to 
be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he 
executed the same and acknowledged, signed and delivered the instrument as his free and 
voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein set forth, on behalf of the limited partnership. 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 
 
 
 
              
      Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires: 
 
      
 
 
 



 

23 
 

PARCEL D 
 
 
 
WOLFY’S R.E. HOLDINGS, LLC, 
An Arizona Limited Liability Company 
 
 
 
By:      
 
Its:___________________________ 
 
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
    ) ss. 
County of   ) 
 
 
 The foregoing Development Agreement for      was acknowledged 
before me this   day of   , 2014, by _______________, the _______________ of 
Wolfy’s R.E. Holdings, LLC, an Arizona limited liability company, personally known to me to 
be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he 
executed the same and acknowledged, signed and delivered the instrument as his free and 
voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein set forth, on behalf of the limited liability 
company. 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 
 
 
 
              
      Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires: 
 
      
 
 
 



 

24 
 

PARCEL E 
 
 
      
David C. Phillips 
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
    ) ss. 
County of   ) 
 
 
 The foregoing Development Agreement for      was acknowledged 
before me this   day of   , 2014, by David C. Phillips, personally known to me to be 
the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he 
executed the same and acknowledged, signed and delivered the instrument as his free and 
voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein set forth. 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 
 
 
 
              
      Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires: 
 
      
 
 
 
  



 

25 
 

EXHIBITS 
 
 
 
Exhibit A-1  Parcel C Legal Description and APN 
 
Exhibit A-2  Parcel D Legal Description and APN 
 
Exhibit A-3  Parcel E Legal Description and APN 
 
Exhibit B  Development Impact Fee Schedule 

 









EXHIBIT D

Page 1-2

EXHIBIT CEXHIBIT B



Page 2-2



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
15b. 

MEETING DATE:  July 21, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                      Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1462-14. Pre-Annexation and  
                    Development Agreement with RES-AZ  
                    CRESTVIEW, LLC. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

RES-AZ CRESTVIEW, LLC. PADA 
July 21, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1462-14, entering into a Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with RES-AZ CRESTVIEW, LLC. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The proposed Arizona Farms annexation area encompasses a land area of 
approximately 1,171 acres or 1.89 square miles.  The annexation area is generally 
bound by the Copper Basin Railroad to the west, Felix Road to the east, Arizona Farms 
Road to the north, and the Anthem at Merrill Ranch community to the south. 
 
RES-AZ CRESTVIEW, LLC, owns approximately 11.4 acres within the subject 
annexation area, all of which are contained within the platted Crestfield Manor 
subdivision.  Within the 11.4 acres, the owner has 57 lots that are ready for new home 
development.  The owner expects to commence development on these lots within the 
next one to three years, depending upon market conditions. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Overall positive, entering into this PADA facilitates the successful completion of the 
Arizona Farms annexation and promotes new development and population growth 
within the Town of Florence.  It is noted that the PADA commits to not increase 
Development Impact Fees for the subject lots for the first seven years of the term of the 
PADA.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1462-14, entering into a Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with RES-AZ CRESTVIEW, LLC. 



RES-AZ CRESTVIEW, LLC. PADA 
July 21, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1462-14 
PADA with RES-AZ CRESTVIEW, LLC. 
 



When recorded, return to: 
 
Town Clerk 
Town of Florence 
PO Box 2670 
775 North Main Street 
Florence, AZ  85132 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1462-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE PRE-ANNEXATION AND 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH RES-AZ CRESTVIEW, LLC., A 
FLORIDA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION OF SUCH PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT (ANNEXATION NO. 2013-02 – CRESTFIELD MANOR 
“RIALTO” PROPERTY). 

 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Florence is authorized pursuant, to A.R.S. § 9-500.05, 
to enter into development agreements and generally is authorized to enter into 
contracts; and 
 
 WHEREAS, RES-AZ CRESTVIEW, LLC., the “Owner” plans to develop 57 
residential lots located as legally described on Exhibit “A” and shown on Exhibit “B” 
attached hereto (the “Property”), and desires to annex the Property into the town limits 
of Florence; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed development of the Property and the Pre-Annexation 
and Development Agreement are consistent with the Town of Florence General Plan 
applicable to the Property as of the date of this Resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement provides for 
various matters relating to the development of the Property, including the approval of a 
development plan, duration of the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement, the 
conditions, terms and requirements applicable to public services and infrastructure and 
the financing of same, the permitted uses of the Property and the density and intensity 
of such uses, the phasing over time of construction and development on the Property 
and other matters related to the development of the Property. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 
1. The Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between the Town of Florence 
and the Owner, which sets forth a development plan and the terms and conditions for 
the annexation and development of 57 residential lots is hereby approved, adopted, and 
made a part hereof as if fully set out in this Resolution.  If the Town does not annex the 



Property in a timely manner following adoption of the Pre-Annexation and Development 
Agreement, or if the Town rescinds the Resolution annexing the Property, the Town 
promptly and within thirty days of the adoption of this Resolution shall rescind this 
resolution. 
 
2. The Mayor of the Town of Florence is authorized to and shall execute the Pre-
Annexation and Development Agreement. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 21st day of July, 2014.  
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 
 



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 20 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

LOTS 4 THROUGH 18, INCLUSIVE, 20, 24, 28 THROUGH 30, INCLUSIVE, 39, 42 
THROUGH 77, INCLUSIVE, OF CRESTFIELD MANOR AT ARIZONA FARMS VILLAGE 
PARCEL 1, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF RECORD IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY 
RECORDER OF PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, RECORDED IN CABINET F, SLIDE 7. 



SEED C IR

HARVEST RD

SILO RD

CORN C IR

HARVEST RD

B ARLEY RD

ALFALFA D R

HAY LOFT DR

APPLE RD

TANGERINE RD

H ARVEST RD

COTTON CIR

ORANGE GROVE ST

BARLEY
CIR

SEED RD

TANGERINE RD

OX
EN

 R
D

WHEAT RD

TANGERINE RD

S ILO CIR

PLOW
RD

BARLEY RD

CORN ST

PLUM RD

GRAPEFRUIT DR

ALFALFA DR

HAY LOFT DR

GREENHOUSE RD

HERITAGE RD

COTTON RD

FE
LIX

 R
D

SIC
KL

E R
D

COTTON RD

BARN CIR

FIELD RD

RO
OS

TE
R

RD
COBBLESTONE DR

CORN ST

Town
of

Florence
Exhibit B:

Legal Description Map

Th is  map is  crea ted  fo r refe rence purposes  on ly  and is to  be  used
at your own risk.  The  Town of Florence m akes no warran ty  as  to
the accuracy o r com pleteness  o f the info rmation  conta ined  in  th is 
map and assumes no liability for any  e rrors  or om issions conta ined
there in , no r fo r any direc t, ind irect, or consequentia l damages wh ich
may be  caused by its  use .  It is  the user's respons ib ility  to  ve rify a ll
in fo rmation conatined here in .

/
0 275 550

Feet

Parcel Owners
Others
RES-AZ CRESTVIEW LLC



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final  

WHEN RECORDED, RETURN TO: 

 

Town of Florence 

Attn: Town Clerk 

PO Box 2670 

775 North Main Street 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

 

 

 

PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR 

ARIZONA FARMS ANNEXATION: ANNEXATION 2013-02 

CRESTFIELD MANOR “RIALTO” PROPERTY 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, an Arizona municipal corporation 

 

AND 

 

RES-AZ CRESTVIEW, LLC, a Florida limited liability company 

 

DATE:____________ ________, 2014 

 

 



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 1 

PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

FOR 

ARIZONA FARMS ANNEXATION 2013-02 

CRESTFIELD MANOR “RIALTO” PROPERTY  

 

THIS PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is 

entered into this   day of   , 2014 (the “Effective Date”) by and between the 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation (the “Town”), and RES-AZ 

CRESTVIEW, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, its successors and assigns (the 

“Owner”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

A.  The Owner is the owner of certain property, or has received the necessary consent to include 

certain property located in Pinal County, Arizona consisting of 57 vacant, finished and 

developed lots, as legally described in Exhibit “A” and depicted on Exhibit “B” attached hereto 

and incorporated herein by reference (the “Property”). 

 

B.  Owner and the Town desire that the Property, which consists of vacant, finished and 

developed lots, be annexed into the corporate limits of the Town and be developed as an integral 

part of the Town.  The annexation and development of the Property pursuant to this Agreement 

and the Arizona Farms Planned Area Development Narrative (“PAD Narrative”) approved by 

Pinal County, is acknowledged by the parties hereto to be consistent with the Town’s General 

Plan. The annexation of the Property would allow the Town to provide for high-quality 

development in the area and ensure orderly, controlled and quality growth in the Town.  

 

C.  Owner and the Town are entering into this Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Arizona 

Revised Statutes (“A.R.S.”) § 9-500.05 in order to facilitate the annexation, proper municipal 

zoning designation and development of the Property by providing for, among other things:  (i) 

conditions, terms, restrictions and requirements for the annexation of the Property by the Town;  

(ii) the permitted uses for the Property; (iii) the density and intensity of such uses; and (iv) other 

matters related directly or indirectly to the development of the Property. 

 

D.  A blank annexation petition has been filed with Pinal County and meetings and hearings have 

been held in connection with the annexation of the Property into the Town.  The Town agrees 

that the Planned Unit Development zoning (“PUD”) designation allowing underlying land usage 

consistent with Town of Florence R1-6 Zoning District, as modified per the PAD Narrative, is an 

appropriate designation for this Property and that the PUD zoning is designed to establish proper 

and beneficial land use designations and regulations, densities, provisions for public facilities, 

design regulations, procedures for administration and implementation and other matters related 

to the development of the Property in accordance with the PUD zoning designation.   

 

E.  Owner and the Town acknowledge that the ultimate development of the Property within the 

Town is a project of such magnitude that Owner requires assurances from the Town that Owner 

has the right to complete the development of the Property pursuant to, amongst other things, the 

PUD plan before it will expend substantial efforts and costs in the development of the Property, 



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 2 

and the Town requires assurances from Owner that development of the Property will be in 

accordance with the Plan and the terms and conditions of this Agreement.   

 

F.  Without limiting the foregoing, the Town and Owner acknowledge that the development of 

the Property pursuant to this Agreement will result in significant planning and economic benefits 

to the Town by: (i) encouraging investment in and commitment to comprehensive planning, 

which will result in efficient utilization of municipal and other public resources; (ii) requiring 

development of the Property to be consistent with the Town’s General Plan and the approved 

PUD plan: (iii) providing for the planning, design, engineering, construction, acquisition, and/or 

installation of public infrastructure in order to support anticipated development of the Property 

and the larger land area that includes the Property; (iv) increasing tax and other revenues to the 

Town based on improvements to be constructed on the Property; (v) creating employment 

through development of the Property consistent with this Agreement; and/or (vi) creating quality 

housing and other uses for citizens of the Town.  The Town and Owner acknowledge that the 

development of the Property pursuant to this Agreement will result in significant benefits to 

Owner, including present and future assurances to Owner that it will have the ability to develop 

the Property in accordance with this Agreement and the PUD plan. 

 

G.  Among other things, development of the Property in accordance with this Agreement and the 

PUD plan will result in the planning, design, engineering, construction, acquisition, installation, 

and/or provision of public services/infrastructure improvements that will support development of 

the Property.   

 

H.  The public services/infrastructure improvements to be provided by Owner, while necessary 

to serve development within the Property, may also be needed in certain instances to facilitate 

and support the ultimate development of a larger land area that includes the Property.   

 

I.  Town acknowledges that the Property has been entitled and developed within unincorporated 

Pinal County and Town will apply comparable zoning on the Property and accept existing 

recorded plats and all infrastructure improvements relating to the Property in their current as-is, 

where-is condition, with no extended warranty period upon annexation.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual 

promises and agreements set forth herein, the parties hereto state, confirm and agree as follows: 

 

AGREEMENT 

1.  Incorporation of Recitals. The foregoing Recitals are hereby incorporated into this 

Agreement as though fully restated. 

 

2. Annexation.  Subsequently or concurrently with its approval of this Agreement, the Town, 

having held public meetings thereon, will duly consider final approval of the annexation of the 

Property into the Town.  Prior to or concurrently with the execution of this Agreement by the 

Town and Owner, Owner will deliver to the Town an appropriate Petition for Annexation duly 

executed by all necessary property owners and satisfying the applicable statutory requirements 

(the “Annexation Petition”').  The Annexation Petition shall contain a provision requiring, upon 

Owner’s written request, the immediate rescission and termination of the Annexation Petition by 



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 3 

the Town if: (a) any person or entity files any protest, appeal, referendum, litigation or other 

petition (including but not limited to, any petition filed pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-471(C)) 

challenging the validity or approval of the Annexation Petition; (b) any person or entity files any 

protest, appeal, referendum, litigation or other petition challenging the validity or approval of the 

PUD plan; or (c) any person or entity files any protest, appeal, referendum, litigation or other 

petition challenging the validity or approval of this Agreement.  Upon receipt of the Annexation 

Petition, the Town shall comply with the provisions of A.R.S. § 9-471 et seq. and, if determined 

to be in the best interest of the Town, adopt a final ordinance annexing the Property into the 

corporate limits of the Town (the “Annexation Ordinance”).  The Town and Owner hereby 

acknowledge and agree that this Agreement shall automatically terminate and be of no force or 

effect if the Town’s annexation of the Property does not become effective and final pursuant to 

A.R.S. § 9-471(D). 

 

3. Zoning.  Upon annexation, the Town shall follow the legally prescribed procedures under 

State and Town statutes and ordinances to give the property comparable zoning, which shall be a 

Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) zoning designation allowing underlying land usage 

consistent with Town of Florence R1-6 Zoning District, as modified per the PAD Narrative. The 

Owner on behalf of itself and all other parties having an interest in the Property intends to 

encumber the Property with the following agreements and waivers.  Owner agrees and consents 

to all the conditions imposed by this Agreement and the comparable zoning, and by signing this 

Agreement waives any and all claims, suits, damages, compensation and causes of action for 

diminution in value of the Property the owner of the Property may have now or in the future 

under the provisions of the Private Property Rights Protection Act, A.R.S. 12-1131 et seq., (the 

“Act”) resulting from this Agreement, the comparable zoning, the underlying land uses or from 

any “land use law” (as such term is defined in the Act) enacted, adopted or applied by the Town 

during the term of this Agreement. Owner acknowledges and agrees the terms and conditions set 

forth in this Agreement and the comparable zoning cause an increase in the fair market value of 

the Property and such increase exceeds any possible reduction in the fair market value of the 

Property caused by any future land use laws, rules, ordinances, resolutions or actions permitted 

by this Agreement and adopted or applied by the Town to the Property. Owner and the Town 

understand and agree that the waivers contained in this Paragraph 3 are binding upon Owner’s 

successors in interest and assigns pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. 9-500.05(D). The Town 

agrees to cooperate reasonably in processing, in a timely manner, any approvals of issuance of 

permits, plans, plats, or otherwise as may be necessary in order to allow for the development to 

be constructed in general conformance with the PUD. 

 

4. PUD Amendment.  The Town and the Owner acknowledge that amendments to the PUD 

may be necessary from time to time, including but not limited to the location of rights-of-way 

and easements. When the parties agree that changes or adjustments are necessary or appropriate 

from time to time they shall, unless otherwise required by Town ordinance, by state or federal 

statute, effectuate minor changes or adjustments through administrative amendments which may 

be approved by the Town’s Community Development Director, and which, after execution, shall 

be attached to the PUD as an addendum and become a part thereof. If, in the future, the Town 

amends one or more of its zoning designations and/or districts, Owner shall have the option to 

convert the zoning designation(s) under the PUD to the equivalent zoning designations under 

such amended development ordinance(s), subject to notice and hearing requirements of 



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 4 

applicable law. The exercise by Owner of such option and any approval by the Town shall not be 

deemed to constitute or to require an amendment of this Agreement, and, unless otherwise 

required by law, no such minor amendments shall require prior notice or hearing. All major 

changes or amendments shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission and approved by the 

Town Council. The following are major changes: 

 

(a) Any substantial alteration to the list of permitted uses of the Property or locations 

of planned land uses set forth in the PUD as reasonably deemed to be substantial 

by the Community Development Director;  

(b) Any increase in the overall residential density set forth in the PUD;  

(c) Any substantial change in the development standards except as otherwise allowed 

by the PUD; and/or 

(d) Additional circumstances as described in the PUD Narrative and PUD Ordinance. 

5. Additional Property. The Town hereby agrees to consider, and, if determined in its sole 

discretion to be in the best interest of the Town, amend this Agreement, from time to time and in 

accordance with typically applicable notice and hearing requirements solely at the request of 

Owner, to incorporate into this Agreement the whole or any portion of additional properties 

adjacent to or proximate to the Property (the “Additional Property”).  The Town and Owner 

agree that if Owner elects to request from Town the incorporation of such Additional Property or 

portions thereof: (1) thereafter, such Additional Property may be included in the Property and 

shall be subject to and shall benefit from all provisions of the Agreement applicable thereto and 

any reference herein to the Property shall include such Additional Property, which may increase 

the maximum density of the Property; (2) the Town and Owner shall cooperate in order for the 

Additional Property to receive the necessary land use approvals, including any necessary 

amendment to the PUD; and (3) the plans and land use designations approved for any Additional 

Property shall thereafter apply to the applicable Additional  Property. 

6. Regulation of Development. 

(a) The Applicable Rules.  Except as provided in Paragraphs 6 (c) and 6 (f) below, all 

exactions, fees, ordinances, rules and regulations of the Town applicable to and 

governing the development of the Property, shall be those ordinances, rules, 

regulations, permit requirements, development fees, impact fees, other exactions 

and requirements and/or official policies that are existing and in force for the 

Town as of the execution of this Agreement.  

(b)     The Permissible Additions to the Applicable Rules. Notwithstanding the 

provisions of subparagraph (a) above and the provisions enumerated below, the 

Town may enact the following provisions, and take the following actions, which 

shall be applicable to and binding on the development of the Property: 

 

(i)   rules that the Owner may agree in writing apply to the development of the 

Property; 



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 5 

 

(ii)   rules of the Town enacted as necessary to comply with mandatory 

requirements imposed on the Town by the state or federal governments, 

including decisions of courts having competent jurisdiction, and other 

similar superior external authorities beyond the control of the Town, 

provided that, in the event any such mandatory requirement prevents or 

precludes compliance with this Agreement, if permitted by law such 

affected provisions of this Agreement shall be modified as may be 

necessary to achieve the required level of compliance with such 

mandatory requirement; 

 

(iii)     rules of the Town reasonably necessary to alleviate legitimate severe 

threats to public health and safety, including, but not limited to, fire, flood, 

periodic inundation and  acts of war or terrorism, in which event any rules, 

imposed in an effort to contain or alleviate such a legitimate severe threat 

to public health and safety shall be the most minimal and the least 

intrusive alternative practicable and, except in a bona fide emergency, may 

be imposed only after public hearing and shall not, in any event, be 

imposed arbitrarily; and 

 

(iv)    technical codes adopted by the Town pursuant to the Florence 

Development Code, as well as future updates of, and amendments to, 

existing building, construction, plumbing, mechanical, electrical, drainage, 

and similar construction and safety related codes, such as the International 

Building Code, which updates and amendments are generated by a 

nationally recognized construction or safety organization, such as the 

International Conference of Building Officials, or by the county, state or 

federal governments or by the Maricopa Association of Governments (the 

“MAG”) provided that such code updates and amendments shall be 

applied uniformly and not arbitrarily. 

  

 (c) Development Impact Fees.  The Town’s Development Impact Fees that shall be 

imposed upon the Property for a period of seven (7) years commencing from the 

effective date of the Annexation shall be in an amount equal to Three Thousand 

Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($3,500.00) per single-family residential 

dwelling unit, unless a lesser Development Impact Fee is applicable at the time a 

building permit is issued by the Town. After the seven (7) year period, and for the 

duration of this Agreement, the Town’s Development Impact Fees that will be 

imposed upon the Property shall be the Development Impact Fees then in effect 

and applicable at the time of permitting. Any Development Impact Fees which are 

due on residential dwelling units shall be payable when construction permits for 

the residential dwelling units are issued by the Town.  The Town can allocate the 

Development Impact Fee, in the amount of Three Thousand Five Hundred and 

00/100 Dollars ($3,500.00), among any eligible Development Impact Fee 

categories provided such allocation does not negatively impact or adversely affect 

any Development Impact Fee credits due to Owner.   



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 6 

 

    (d) Development Impact Fee Credits.  To the extent permitted by Arizona Revised 

Statutes ("A.R.S.") and the Florence Development Code, Owner shall be entitled 

to a credit against the category of Development Impact Fees that are assessed (or 

that are to be assessed) against the Property (or any portion thereof) for any land, 

improvements or other contributions provided by Owner to the Town or accepted 

by the Town pursuant to Section 7 for any land, capital facility improvements or 

contributions required to provide public services and which is related to the 

existing or future category of Development Impact Fees for which such credit is 

sought.  Such credits may be assignable by Owner to entities constructing single-

family residential dwelling units on the Property.  Any credits for which Owner 

may be entitled under this Paragraph shall not exceed the maximum Development 

Impact Fee applicable in any particular category. 

 

 (e) Filing, Review and Permit Fees. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 

Agreement, Owner will be required to pay the then applicable filing fees, plan 

review fees, permit fees and building fees in effect at the time of any filing, plan 

review or permit issuance. Development Impact Fees shall be paid in accordance 

with Paragraph 6(c) above.  

 

(f) Flood Control.  Flood control measures for the Property shall comply with the 

requirements of the United States Army Corp of Engineers and all applicable state 

and local laws, regulations and ordinances; and, to the extent they are not 

superseded by the requirements of the United States Army Corp of Engineers or 

state and local laws, regulations and ordinances, the requirements of the Pinal 

County Flood Control District to the extent the Property is within the Pinal 

County Flood Control District. 

 

 (g) Building Codes. For development in progress at the time this Agreement becomes 

effective, the Town will grandfather construction plans, including standard 

production home plans within active recorded subdivisions, approved by Pinal 

County. New subdivisions and plans introduced after annexation shall comply 

with minimum applicable Town standards and codes. 

 

7. Plat and Plan Approval. The Town hereby agrees to take in a timely manner all action 

necessary, including but not limited to processing plats which are in conformation with the PUD, 

so that the Owner is not unreasonably delayed in the development of the Property as provided in 

the PUD. In taking such actions, the Town may exercise its discretion in the manner provided by 

law. Town further agrees that Preliminary Plat approvals shall be valid for a period of two years, 

with two (2) one-year extensions. Preliminary/Tentative Plats and Final Plats, as well as 

accompanying civil improvement plans, approved by Pinal County and consistent with the PUD 

shall be transferable to the Town so long as approvals are current at the time of annexation, 

approved plans are provided to the Town and any applicable public safety concerns are 

adequately addressed. Transferred approved plans and plats shall be valid for two (2) years from 

the effective date of annexation, with two (2) one-year extensions, except in the case of recorded 

Final Plats, which shall remain valid if infrastructure assurances are in place and/or subdivision 



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 7 

improvements are completed and accepted by the Town. The Town acknowledges that the 

Property currently consists of vacant, finished and developed lots within a recorded subdivision.  

The Town agrees that the existing Final Plat for the Property is vested and accepts all 

infrastructure improvements relating to the Property in their current as-is, where-is condition, 

with no extended warranty period upon annexation. 

8. Vested Rights. The types of land uses, together with the densities of such uses for each 

development parcel on the Property, as shown in the PUD are hereby established.  The Town 

agrees that, for the term of this Agreement, Owner shall have an immediate right to develop the 

Property in accordance with this Agreement, the PUD, the land uses established within the PUD 

and the Town’s General Plan.  

9. Utility Services.  

(a) Potable Water Service.  The Town acknowledges and agrees that Johnson 

Utilities, L.L.C. (“JUC”), or another entity under the common control of JUC 

(collectively, the “Water Service Provider”) has, or is in the process of obtaining 

the necessary governmental approvals (collectively, the “Water Service 

Approvals”) to become the potable water service provider to the Property.  At no 

cost or expense to the Town, the Town agrees to cooperate with and support the 

Water Service Provider in obtaining the Water Service Approvals if necessary.  

Upon the Water Service Provider demonstrating that it has the Water Service 

Approvals, the Property will no longer be considered within the municipal service 

area of the Town with respect to water service and Owner shall have no 

responsibility to the Town to construct water infrastructure improvements of any 

kind or to pay water hook-up fees, water impact fees or other similar fees to the 

Town.   

(b) Wastewater Service.  The Town acknowledges and agrees that JUC, or another 

entity under the common control of JUC, its successors and assigns (collectively, 

the “Wastewater Service Provider”) has, or is in the process of obtaining the 

necessary governmental approvals (collectively, the “Wastewater Service 

Approvals”) to become the wastewater service provider to the Property.  At no 

cost or expense to the Town, the Town agrees to cooperate with and support the 

Wastewater Service Provider in obtaining the Wastewater Service Approvals if 

necessary.  Upon the Wastewater Service Provider demonstrating that it has the 

Wastewater Service Approvals, the Property will no longer be considered within 

the municipal service area of the Town with respect to wastewater service and 

Owner shall have no responsibility to the Town to construct wastewater 

infrastructure improvements of any kind or to pay wastewater hook-up fees, 

wastewater impact fees or other similar fees to the Town.   

(c) Assured Water Supply.  If Owner expends funds to obtain a Certificate of Assured 

Water Supply to the Property or the Water Service Provider expends funds to 

receive a Designation of Assured Water Supply, Town agrees to consider 

formation of a CFD to permit reimbursement of additional costs incurred to 

provide water to the Property through public financing. 



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 8 

(d) Other Services.  The Town, or an entity designated by Town, shall provide trash 

collection services to the Property.  The Town shall provide police and fire 

protection services to the same extent and upon the same terms, conditions and 

timeliness as those services are being provided to other properties throughout the 

Town. Owner, or an entity designated by Owner, shall provide cable television 

service to the Property, provided that any such cable television service provider 

has obtained a franchise agreement with the Town. 

(e) Reclaimed Water. Owner, or an entity designated by Owner, shall supply 

reclaimed water or effluent to the Property as needed by Owner, any successor to 

Owner, or to any HOA. 

10. Plans Submittal.  Owner shall submit all plats and plans to Town Staff.  Development of 

the Property cannot occur until the Town has concurred that the plans comply with the PUD and 

Town standards.  Town shall review said plans and provide Owner with its comments on these 

submittals in a timely manner.  The Town may retain the services of a private company or 

individual (“Outside Review Agency”) to provide expedited development review processes only 

upon the request of Owner.  The Town and Owner shall mutually agree on the Outside Review 

Agency selected from the Town’s list and the fee for such expedited review. 

 

11. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 

hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereof.  All prior and contemporaneous agreements, 

representations, and understanding of the parties, oral or written, are hereby superseded and 

merged herein. 

12. Amendment. No change or addition is to be made to this Agreement except by a written 

amendment executed by the Owner and the Town.  Within ten (10) days after any amendment to 

this Agreement has been executed, such amendment shall be recorded in the official records of 

Pinal County, Arizona. 

13. Default; Remedies. Failure or unreasonable delay by any Party to perform any term or 

provision of this Agreement for a period of ten (10) days after written notice thereof from 

another Party shall constitute a default under this Agreement. If the default is of a nature which is 

not capable of being cured within ten (10) days, the cure shall be commenced within such period, 

and diligently pursued to completion. The notice shall specify the nature of the alleged default 

and the manner in which the default may be satisfactorily cured. In the event of a default 

hereunder by any Party, the non-defaulting Party shall be entitled to all remedies at both law and 

in equity, including, without limitation, specific performance. 

(a) Dispute Resolution. To further the cooperation of the parties in implementing this 

Agreement, the Town and the Owner each shall designate and appoint a 

representative to act as a liaison between the Town and its various departments 

and the Owner. The initial representative for the Town (the “Town 

Representative”) shall be the Town Manager and the initial representative for the 

Owner shall be its project manager, as identified by the Owner from time to time 

(the “Owner Representative”). The representatives shall be available at all 



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 9 

reasonable times to discuss and review the performance of the Parties and the 

development of the Property. 

(b) Mediation.  If a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement, or the breach 

thereof, and if the dispute cannot be settled through negotiations, the Parties agree 

first to try to settle the dispute through mediation before resorting to arbitration, 

litigation or some other dispute procedure.  In the event that the Parties cannot 

agree upon the selection of a mediator within seven (7) days, either Party may 

request the Presiding Judge of the Pinal County Superior Court to assign a 

mediator from a list of mediators maintained by the Arizona Municipal Risk 

Retention Pool. 

14. Arbitration.  If the mediation procedure set forth in Paragraph 13(b) above does not 

resolve a dispute within a reasonable time, as determined in either party’s reasonable 

discretion, either party may submit, by demand letter, correspondence or notice, to the 

other party, such dispute to arbitration pursuant to this Paragraph 14.  In such event, the 

dispute shall be subject to and decided by arbitration in accordance with the Rules for 

Non-Administered Arbitration of Business Disputes (the “Rules”) of the Center for 

Public Resources (the “CPR”) currently in effect, except as provided herein and except 

where modified by the provisions hereof. 

(a) Any arbitration arising out of this Agreement may include, by consolidation or 

joinder, or in any other manner, at the discretion of either the Owner or the Town, 

any other entities or persons whom the Owner of the Town, as the case may be, 

reasonably believes to be substantially involved in a common question of law or 

fact and who consent to jurisdiction of the arbitrator. 

(b) The parties agree that the remedies available for the award by the arbitrator(s) 

under this Paragraph 14 in a dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement or 

breach thereof shall be limited to specific performance and declaratory relief and 

the arbitrator may not issue an award of monetary damages, whether characterized 

as actual, consequential or otherwise, except as provided in Sub-paragraphs 14(e) 

and 14(h), and provided, however, that the arbitrator(s) may award the payment of 

an amount owed or may enjoin the withholding of amounts due under this 

Agreement. 

(c) Demand for arbitration shall be filed with the other party in accordance with the 

Rules and the notice provisions of the Agreement. A demand for arbitration shall 

be made within a reasonable time after the claim, dispute, or other matter in 

question has arisen. In no event shall the demand for arbitration be made after the 

date when institution of legal or equitable proceedings based upon such claim, 

dispute or other matter in question could be barred by the applicable statute of 

limitations. 

(d) In the event the amount in controversy is less than $100,000, a sole arbitrator shall 

be appointed in accordance with the Rules. In the event the amount in controversy 

is $100,000 or more, the demanding party shall appoint one party-appointed 



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 10 

arbitrator in its notice demand for arbitration. The responding party may within 

ten (10) days, appoint a second party-appointed arbitrator. The party-arbitrators 

shall appoint a third arbitrator in accordance with the Rules. If the party-

arbitrators fail to appoint a third arbitrator, the third arbitrator shall be appointed 

in accordance with the Rules. If the responding party fails to appoint a second 

party-arbitrator within the time so provided, selection of the second arbitrator 

shall be in accordance with the Rules. 

(e) The decision of the arbitrator(s) shall be in accordance with the laws of the State 

of Arizona and the United States. The arbitrator(s) shall prepare written findings 

of fact and conclusions of law upon which the decision and award shall be based. 

The arbitrator(s) may award compensatory damages pursuant to Paragraphs 14(b), 

14(g) and 14(h) and reasonable attorneys’ fees and reasonable costs to the 

prevailing party. 

(f) The arbitration shall occur within the municipal limits of the Town unless the 

parties agree otherwise in writing. 

(g) This agreement to arbitrate shall be specifically enforceable by either party under 

the prevailing laws of the State of Arizona and the United States. Any award 

rendered by the arbitrator(s) shall be final and enforceable by any party to the 

arbitration, and judgment shall be made upon it in accordance with the applicable 

laws of any court having jurisdiction thereof. The arbitrator(s) decision shall be 

final and conclusive as to the facts. Either party may appeal manifest errors of law 

to a court of competent jurisdiction within fifteen (15) days of the award. 

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if either party fails to 

take action consistent with the arbitrator(s) award within fifteen (15) days after 

demand, then the other party may either utilize the arbitration process set forth in 

this Paragraph 14 (but without limitation on remedy) or pursue in court any 

remedy available to it at law or in equity, including, without limitation, monetary 

damages, resulting from the failure to take action consistent with the arbitrator(s) 

award and/or the underlying dispute that was the subject of the arbitration. 

(h) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if either party 

believes the other party is exercising the rights under this Agreement in bad faith, 

the aggrieved party must notify the other party of the facts forming the basis of 

the aggrieved party’s assertion of bad faith. If the other party fails to cure the facts 

forming the basis of the aggrieved party’s assertion of bad faith within fifteen (15) 

days after notice thereof, then such dispute shall be submitted to arbitration. If the 

arbitrator finds that a party has acted in bad faith, then the aggrieved party may 

request, and the arbitrator may award, any remedy available to the aggrieved 

party, at law or in equity, including without limitation, monetary damages. 

(i) Unless otherwise agreed in writing, and notwithstanding any other rights or 

obligations of either party under the Agreement, the Owner and the Town shall 

carry on with the performance of their respective duties, obligations and services 



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 11 

hereunder during the pendency of any claim, dispute, or other matter in question 

giving rise to arbitration or mediation, as the case may be. 

(j) The dispute resolution process set forth in this Paragraph 14 shall not apply to an 

action by the Town to condemn or acquire by inverse condemnation all or any 

portion of the Property or to claims for injunctive relief or mandamus by either 

party. The failure by either party to perform or otherwise act in accordance with 

any term or provision of this Agreement for a period of thirty (30) days (the “Cure 

Period”) after written notice thereof from the other party shall constitute a default. 

In the event such default is not cured within the Cure Period, the non-defaulting 

party shall have the right to seek injunctive relief or mandamus in a court of 

competent jurisdiction. 

(k)  Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the provisions of 

Paragraphs 13 and 14 shall not be construed or applied so as to prevent Owner or 

Town from seeking injunctive relief on an emergency basis to prevent immediate 

or irreparable harm. 

 

15.    Waiver.  No delay in exercising any right or remedy shall constitute a waiver thereof, and 

no waiver by the Town or the Owner of the breach of any covenant of this Agreement shall be 

construed as a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach of the same or any other covenant 

or condition of this Agreement. 

16.      Future Effect.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement.  All of the provisions hereof 

shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereof 

including, without limitation, to third party builders; provided, however, the Owner’s rights and 

obligations hereunder may only be assigned to a person or entity that has acquired the Property 

or a portion thereof and only by a written instrument, recorded in the Official Records of Pinal 

County, Arizona, expressly assigning such rights and obligations. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Town agrees that the ongoing ownership, operation and 

maintenance obligations provided by this Agreement, other than those pertaining to construction 

of public infrastructure improvements, may be assigned to one or more HOAs to be established 

by the Owner.  The Owner agrees to provide the Town with written notice of any assignment of 

the Owner’s rights or obligations within fifteen (15) days after such assignment.  In the event of 

a complete assignment by Owner of all rights and obligations of Owner hereunder, Owner’s 

liability hereunder shall terminate effective upon the assumption by Owner’s assignee.  Nothing 

in this Agreement shall operate to restrict the Owner’s ability to assign any of its rights and 

obligations under this Agreement to those entities that acquire all or any portion of the Property. 

17. Names and Plans. The Owner shall be the sole owner of all names, plans, drawings, 

specifications, ideas, programs, designs and work products of every nature at any time 

developed, formulated or prepared by or at the instance of the Owner in connection with the 

Property; provided, however, that in connection with any conveyance of portions of the Property 

to the Town such rights pertaining to the portions of the Property so conveyed shall be assigned, 

to the extent that such rights are assignable to the Town. 



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 12 

18. No Owner Representations. Nothing contained herein or in the PUD shall be deemed   

obligate the Town or the Owner to complete any part or all of the development of the Property. 

19. Good Standing; Authority. Each of the parties and their assigns represents and warrants 

(and will represent and warrant) to the other that: (i) it is duly formed and validly existing under 

the laws of Arizona, with respect to the Owner, or a municipal corporation within the State of 

Arizona, with respect to the Town; (ii) that it is an Arizona corporation or municipal corporation 

or limited liability company duly qualified to do business in the State of Arizona and is in good 

standing under applicable state laws, and (iii) that the individual(s) executing this Agreement (or 

who will execute this Agreement) on behalf of their respective parties are authorized and 

empowered to bind the party on whose behalf each such individual is signing. 

20. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is declared void or unenforceable, such 

provision shall be severed from this Agreement, which shall otherwise remain in full force and 

effect.  If any applicable law or court of competent jurisdiction prohibits or excuses the Town 

from undertaking any contractual commitment to perform any act hereunder, this Agreement 

shall remain in full force and effect, but the provision requiring such action shall be deemed to 

permit the Town to take such action at its discretion, if such a construction is permitted by law. 

21. Governing Law. This Agreement is entered into in Arizona and shall be construed and 

interpreted under the laws of Arizona. 

22. Choice of Forum. Notwithstanding A.R.S. § 12-408, any suit or action brought under this 

Agreement shall be commenced in Superior Court of the State of Arizona in and for the County 

of Pinal and may be removed therefrom only upon the mutual agreement of the Town and 

Owner. 

23. Recordation. This Agreement shall be recorded in its entirety in the official records of 

Pinal County, Arizona, not later than ten (10) days after this Agreement is executed by the Town 

and the Owner. 

24. Notice.  Any notice, (delivered by mail, hand or federal express) assignment, payment or 

other communication provided for or required by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 

deemed to have been given when delivered by hand or when deposited in the United States 

Postal Service, certified or registered, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, properly 

addressed to the person to whom such notice is intended to be given at its respective addresses as 

follows: 

The Town:  Town Manager 

Town of Florence 

775 N. Main Street 

PO Box 2670 

Florence, Arizona 85132 

 

 

 

 



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 13 

With Copy To: Town Attorney 

Town of Florence 

775 N. Main Street 

PO Box 2670 

Florence, Arizona 85132 

 

The Owner:  RES-AZ Crestview, LLC 

c/o Rialto Capital Management, LLC 

1725 West Greentree Drive, Suite 114 

Tempe, Arizona  85284 

Attention: James Mullany 

Fax: (480) 777-4698 

Email: james.mullany@rialtocapital.com  

 

With Copy to:  Anthony Grafitti 

Berry Riddell & Rosensteel LLC 

6750 East Camelback Road, Suite 100 

Scottsdale, Arizona  85251 

Fax: 866.263.1627 

Email: ag@brrlawaz.com  

 

The parties entitled to notice, including any assignees of this Agreement, may be changed 

by sending notice to the other parties of the name and address of the individual thereafter 

entitled to notice under this Agreement. 

 

25. Effective Date and Term.  This Agreement shall become effective and shall be binding 

upon and enforceable by all parties hereto, their successors and assigns, immediately upon the 

approval by the Town Council of this document. The term of this Agreement (the “Term”) shall 

be for a period of the earlier of: (i) complete build-out of the Property, (ii) mutual termination by 

the parties, or (iii) fifteen (15) years from the date of recordation of this Agreement. 

26. Attorneys’ Fees.  If any legal proceeding is initiated by any party hereto (or their 

successor(s)) with respect to this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, in 

addition to any other relief to which it is entitled, its cost of suit incurred in connection with such 

legal proceeding, and its reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

27. Insurance Requirements.  The Owner, at its own expense, shall purchase and maintain the 

herein stipulated minimum insurance with companies duly licensed, possessing a current A.M. 

Best, Inc. rating of “A”, or approved and licensed to do business in the State of Arizona with 

policies and forms satisfactory to the Town.  All insurance required herein shall be maintained in 

full force and effect during the time that construction improvements are being made during the 

term of this Agreement; failure to do so may, at the sole discretion of the Town, constitute an 

event of default by the Owner under this Agreement.  The Owner’s insurance shall be primary 

insurance, and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Town shall not contribute to it.  

Any failure to comply with the claim reporting provisions of the policies or any breach of an 

insurance policy warranty shall not affect coverage afforded under the policy to protect the 

mailto:james.mullany@rialtocapital.com
mailto:ag@brrlawaz.com


 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 14 

Town.  The insurance policies required by this Agreement shall name the Town, its agents, 

officers, officials and employees as additional Insureds. 

(a) General Liability. The Owner shall, at its expense, maintain a policy of 

comprehensive public liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 

for each occurrence and with a $1,000,000 general aggregate limit.  The policy 

shall include coverage for bodily injury, broad form property damage, personal 

injury, and blanket contractual coverage including, but not limited to, the liability 

assumed under the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, which coverage 

will be at least as broad as Insurance Service Office, Inc., Policy Form CG 

000211093 (October 2001 version).  The coverage shall not exclude X, C, and U.  

Such policy shall contain a severability of interest provision, and shall not contain 

a sunset provision or commutation clause, or any provision which would serve to 

limit third party action over claims.  The Commercial General Liability additional 

insured endorsement shall be at least as broad as Insurance Service Office, Inc., 

Additional Insured, Form B, CG2O101185 (October 2001 version). 

(b) Automobile Liability. The Owner shall, at its expense, maintain a commercial / 

business automobile liability insurance policy with a combined single limit for 

bodily injury and property damage of not less than $1,000,000.00 each occurrence 

with respect to any of the Owner’s owned, hired and non-owned vehicles assigned 

to or used in performance of this Agreement.  Coverage will be at least as broad 

as coverage code I, “any auto”, Insurance Service Office, Inc., Policy Form CA 

00011293, or any replacements thereof. Such insurance shall include coverage for 

loading and off loading hazards. If hazardous substances, materials or wastes are 

to be transported, MCS 90 endorsement shall be included and $5,000,000.00 per 

accident limits for bodily injury and property shall apply. 

(c) Indemnification.  Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, to 

the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall protect, defend, indemnify 

and hold harmless the Town, its Council members, agents, officers, officials and 

employees from and against all suits, claims, demands, damages, losses, 

liabilities, fines, charges, penalties, administrative and judicial proceedings and 

orders, judgments, remedial actions of any kind, and all costs and cleanup actions 

of any kind, together with expenses (including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, 

court costs, the cost of appellate proceedings, and all claim adjusting and handling 

expenses), relating to, arising out of, resulting from or alleged to have resulted 

from the Owner’s acts, errors, mistakes or omissions relating to any action or 

inaction of the Owner under this Agreement, including but not limited to the acts, 

errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services of the Owner’s agents, employees, 

contractors, subcontractors or anyone for whose acts they or the Owner may be 

liable in the performance of this Agreement, and regardless of whether or not such 

claims, demands, damages, losses, liabilities, fines, charges, penalties, 

administrative and judicial proceedings, orders, judgments, remedial actions, 

costs, cleanup actions and expenses are caused in part by the passive negligence 

of the Town, its Council members, agents, officers, officials and employees.  The 

Town shall remain responsible to the fullest extent permitted by law for any acts 



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 15 

of active negligence by the Town, its Council members, agents, officers, officials 

and employees. 

(i) The Owner’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Town, its 

Council members, agents, officers, officials and employees shall arise in 

connection with any suits, claims, damages, losses or expenses that are 

attributable to or otherwise relate to, result from, or are alleged to have 

resulted from the Owner’s acts, errors, mistakes or omissions relating to 

any action or inaction of the Owner under this Agreement, including but 

not limited to the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services of the 

Owner’s agents, employees, contractors or anyone for whose acts they or 

Owner may be liable in the performance of this Agreement, regardless of 

the legal or equitable grounds upon which such suits, claims, damages, 

losses and expenses are based.  

(ii) The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth herein 

are separate and independent from the indemnity provisions of this 

Agreement and shall not be construed in any way to limit the scope and 

magnitude of the indemnity provisions of this Agreement. The indemnity 

provisions of this Agreement shall not be construed in any way to limit the 

scope, magnitude and applicability of the insurance provisions of this 

Agreement.   

(iii) The indemnity provisions of this Agreement shall survive the termination 

of this Agreement. 

28. Lot Sale.  It is the intention of the parties that although recorded, this Agreement shall not 

create conditions or exceptions to title or covenants running with any individual lots into which 

the Property is subdivided.  Any title insurer can rely on this section when issuing any 

commitment to insure title to any individual lot or when issuing a title insurance policy for any 

individual lot. So long as not prohibited by law, this Agreement shall automatically terminate as 

to any individual lot (and not in bulk), without the necessity of any notice, agreement or 

recording by or between the parties, upon conveyance of the lot to a homebuyer by a recorded 

deed.  For this section, “lot” shall be any lot upon which a home has been approved by the Town. 

29. No Partnership; Third Parties.  This Agreement is not intended to, and nothing contained 

in this Agreement shall, create any partnership, joint venture or other arrangement between 

Owner and the Town or between any parties comprising Owner. 

30. Compliance With Certain Federal and State Laws. The Owner hereby agrees to comply 

with all applicable provisions of the American with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform 

and Control Act of 1986 and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989. If the Agreement contains 

provisions relating to the construction of public infrastructure improvements or the formation of 

a Community Facilities District pursuant to A.R.S. § 48 - 701 et seq., the Owner hereby agrees to 

comply with all applicable provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes (“A.R.S.”) § 34 - 301 

“Employment of Aliens on Public Works Prohibited”, A.R.S. § 34 - 302 “Residence 

Requirements for Employees”, and A.R.S. § 41-4401 “Government Procurement” (hereinafter 



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 16 

referred to as the “Immigration Laws”).  A breach of the Immigration Laws shall constitute a 

default of this Agreement and, if uncured, may subject the Owner to additional penalties 

including termination of the Agreement at the sole discretion of the Town.  Notwithstanding 

anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, Town retains the legal right to inspect the 

immigration papers or other residency documents of the Owner’s, contractor’s or any 

subcontractor’s employees who perform work under this Agreement, to ensure that Owner, 

contractor and any subcontractors are complying with the Immigration Laws. Owner agrees not 

to hinder the Town in regard to any such inspections.  The Town may, in its sole discretion, 

conduct random verification of the employment records of the Owner, contractor and any 

subcontractors to ensure compliance with the Immigration Laws.  Owner shall not be deemed to 

have materially breached the Immigration Laws if the Owner establishes that it has complied 

with the employment verification requirements of the federal Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 

U.S.C.A. §1324(a) and 8 U.S.C.A. §1324 (b)(1)(A), et seq., the E-Verify requirements of A.R.S. 

§ 23 - 214(A) and if Owner includes the provisions of this section in any contract the Owner 

enters into with any and all of its contractors, which contracts shall contain provisions which 

require such contractors to include the provisions of this section in such contractors’ contracts 

with any subcontractors who provide services relating to the construction of public infrastructure 

improvements. “Services”, as used herein, are defined as the furnishing of labor, time or effort in 

the State of Arizona by Owner, a contractor or any subcontractor. “Services” also includes 

construction or maintenance of any structure, building, transportation facility or improvement of 

real property. 

31. Estoppel Certificate. Either party may request of the other party, and the requested party 

shall, within twenty-one (21) calendar days, respond and certify by written instrument to the 

requesting party that (a) this Agreement is unmodified and in full force and effect, or if there 

have been modifications, that this Agreement is in full force and effect as modified, stating the 

nature and date of such modification; (b) the existence of any default under this Agreement and 

the scope and nature of the default; (c) the existence of any counterclaims, which the requested 

party has against the other party; and (d) any other matters that may reasonably be requested in 

connection with the development of land, development of the Property, or any material aspect of 

this Agreement.  In the event the requesting party has not received the foregoing within such 

twenty-one (21) day period, then in such event, the requesting party shall be entitled to prepare a 

certificate attesting to the foregoing and deliver the same to the other party, which certificate 

shall be binding upon the requested party. 

32. Lien Financing. Owner shall have the right at any time, and as often as it desires, to 

finance the Property and to secure the financing with a lien or liens against the Property. 

33. Anti-Moratorium. The parties hereby acknowledge and agree that the for the term of this 

Agreement, no moratorium, or future ordinance, resolution or other land use rule or regulation 

imposing a limitation on the conditioning, rate, timing or sequencing of development of property 

within the Town and affecting the Property or any portion thereof shall apply to or govern the 

development of the Property during the term hereof, whether affecting parcel or subdivision 

maps, building permits, occupancy permits or other entitlements to use issued or granted by the 

Town, except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement.  



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 17 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the dates 

written below. 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation 

 

 

 

    

Tom J. Rankin, Mayor  Date 

 

 

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

    

Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  James Mannato, Town Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 18 

RES-AZ CRESTVIEW, LLC, a Florida limited liability company 

 

By: Multibank 2009-1 RES-ADC Venture, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, its 

sole member 

By: RL RES 2009-1 Investments, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, its 

manager 

By: _______________________ 

Name: _______________________ 

Title: _______________________ 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA  ) 

     )  §. 

COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE ) 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of June, 2014, by 

________________ as _______________ of RL RES 2009-1 Investments, LLC, a Delaware 

limited liability company, as manager of Multibank 2009-1 RES-ADC Venture, LLC, a 

Delaware limited liability company, as the sole member of RES-AZ CRESTVIEW, LLC, a 

Florida limited liability company, on behalf of the company.  S/He ___ is personally known to 

me or ___ has produced a driver’s license as identification. 

              

       Notary Public 

       Print Name:      

       Serial No. (if any):     

 

 

 



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 19 

EXHIBITS 
 

Exhibit A - Legal Description 

 

Exhibit B – Legal Description Map 

 



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 20 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

LOTS 4 THROUGH 18, INCLUSIVE, 20, 24, 28 THROUGH 30, INCLUSIVE, 39, 42 

THROUGH 77, INCLUSIVE, OF CRESTFIELD MANOR AT ARIZONA FARMS VILLAGE 

PARCEL 1, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF RECORD IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY 

RECORDER OF PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, RECORDED IN CABINET F, SLIDE 7. 



 

JEM M V3 RES-AZ Crestview, LLC Final 21 

EXHIBIT “B” 

 

 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
15c.  

MEETING DATE:  July 21, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                      Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1463-14. Pre-Annexation and  
                    Development Agreement with RMG LUCKY  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
LUCKY HUNT PADA 
Page 1 of 1 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1463-14, entering into a Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with RMG LUCKY HUNT 65, LLC., an Arizona Limited Liability 
Company. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The subject site encompasses a land area of approximately 65 acres located within the 
pending Magic Ranch annexation.  The site is located west of Hunt Highway, north and 
east of the Magic Ranch community.  According to the Preliminary Development Plan 
for this parcel, 260 single-family residential lots are planned for this project. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Overall positive, entering into this PADA facilitates the successful completion of the 
Magic Ranch annexation and promotes future rooftop development within the Town of 
Florence.  It is noted that the PADA commits to not increase Development Impact Fees 
for the subject site for the first seven years of the term of the PADA.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1463-14, entering into a Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with RMG LUCKY HUNT 65, LLC, an Arizona Limited Liability 
Company. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1463-14 
LUCKY HUNT PADA  

                    HUNT 65, LLC, an Arizona Limited Liability  
                    Company 



When recorded, return to: 
 
Town Clerk 
Town of Florence 
PO Box 2670 
775 North Main Street 
Florence, AZ  85132 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1463-14 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE PRE-ANNEXATION AND 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH RMG LUCKY HUNT 65, LLC., AN 
ARIZONA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION OF SUCH PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT (ANNEXATION NO. 2013-01 – “LUCKY HUNT” 
PROPERTY). 

 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Florence is authorized, pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-500.05, 
to enter into development agreements and generally is authorized to enter into 
contracts; and 
 
 WHEREAS, RMG LUCKY HUNT 65, LLC., the “Owner” plans to develop 
approximately 65 acres located as legally described on Exhibit “A” and shown on Exhibit 
“B” attached hereto (the “Property”), and desires to annex the Property into the town 
limits of Florence; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed development of the Property and the Pre-Annexation 
and Development Agreement are consistent with the Town of Florence General Plan 
applicable to the Property as of the date of this Resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement provides for 
various matters relating to the development of the Property, including the approval of a 
development plan, duration of the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement, the 
conditions, terms and requirements applicable to public services and infrastructure and 
the financing of same, the permitted uses of the Property and the density and intensity 
of such uses, the phasing over time of construction and development on the Property 
and other matters related to the development of the Property. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 
1. The Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between the Town of Florence 
and the Owner, which sets forth a development plan and the terms and conditions for 
the annexation and development of approximately 65 acres is hereby approved, 
adopted, and made a part hereof as if fully set out in this Resolution.  If the Town does 



not annex the Property in a timely manner following adoption of the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement, or if the Town rescinds the Resolution annexing the Property, 
the Town promptly and within thirty days of the adoption of this Resolution shall rescind 
this resolution. 
 
2. The Mayor of the Town of Florence is authorized to and shall execute the Pre-
Annexation and Development Agreement. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 21st day of July, 2014.  
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 
 



Exhibit A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTOINS: 

 

PARCEL NO.  1 

 

THE  NORTH  HALF  OF  THE  NORTHWEST  QUARTER   OF  THE  NORTHEAST  QUARTER   AND  THE 

NORTH  HALF  OF  THE  SOUTH  HALF  OF  THE  NORTHWEST  QUARTER   OF  THE  NORTHEAST 

QUARTER  OF SECTION  10, TOWNSHIP  4 SOUTH,  RANGE 8 EAST OF THE GILA  AND  SALT  RIVER 

BASE AND  MERIDIAN,  PINAL COUNTY,  ARIZONA. 

 

PARCEL NO. 2 

 

THE  NORTH  HALF  OF  THE  NORTHEAST  QUARTER  OF  THE  NORTHEAST  QUARTER  OF  SECTION  

10, TOWNSHIP  4 SOUTH,  RANGE  8 EAST OF THE GILA  AND  SALT  RIVER  BASE  AND  MERIDIAN, 

PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LYING WEST OF HUNT HIGHWAY RIGHT OF WAY LINE. 

 

PARCEL NO. 3 

 

THE  SOUTH  HALF  OF  THE  SOUTH  HALF  OF  THE  NORTHWEST  QUARTER   OF  THE  NORTHEAST 

QUARTER  AND  THE  NORTH  HALF  OF  THE  SOUTHWEST  QUARTER  OF  THE NORTHEAST  

QUARTER OF SECTION  10, TOWNSHIP  4 SOUTH,  RANGE 8 EAST OF THE GILA  AND  SALT  RIVER  

BASE  AND MERIDIAN, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA. 

 



3205 W. Ray Road

united engineering group

Phone: 480.705.5372

Fax: 480.705.5376

Chandler, AZ 85226

www.unitedeng.com









 

  

WHEN RECORDED, RETURN TO: 
 
Town of Florence 
Attn: Town Clerk 
PO Box 2670 
775 North Main Street 
Florence, AZ 85132 
 
 
 
 

PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR 
MAGIC RANCH ANNEXATION: ANNEXATION 2013-01 

“LUCKY HUNT 65” PROPERTY 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, an Arizona municipal corporation 
 

AND 
 

RMG LUCKY HUNT 65, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company 
 

 

DATE:  July       , 2014 

 
 



 

 B-1 

PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
FOR 

MAGIC RANCH ANNEXATION 20013-01 
“LUCKY HUNT 65” PROPERTY 

 
THIS PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is 
entered into this   day of July, 2014 (the “Effective Date”) by and between the TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation (the “Town”), and RMG LUCKY HUNT 65, 
L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company (the “Owner”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
A.  The Owner is the owner of certain property, or has received the necessary consent to include 
certain property located in Pinal County, Arizona consisting of approximately 65 acres all as 
legally described in Exhibit “A” and depicted on Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference (the “Property”). 
 
B.  Owner and the Town desire that the Property be annexed into the corporate limits of the 
Town and be developed as an integral part of the Town.  The annexation and development of the 
Property pursuant to this Agreement and the Land Use Plan, which is attached as Exhibit “C” 
and Planned Unit Development Narrative (“PUD Narrative”), which is  acknowledged by the 
parties hereto to be generally consistent with the Town’s General Plan, which may be amended 
prior to or concurrent with this annexation. The annexation of the Property would allow the 
Town to provide for high-quality development in the area and ensure orderly, controlled and 
quality growth in the Town.  
 
C.  Owner and the Town are entering into this Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Arizona 
Revised Statutes (“A.R.S.”) § 9-500.05 in order to facilitate the annexation, proper municipal 
zoning designation and development of the Property by providing for, among other things:  (i) 
conditions, terms, restrictions and requirements for the annexation of the Property by the Town;  
(ii) the permitted uses for the Property; (iii) the density and intensity of such uses; and (iv) other 
matters related directly or indirectly to the development of the Property. 
 
D.  A blank annexation petition has been filed with Pinal County and meetings and hearings have 
been held in connection with the annexation of the Property into the Town.  The Town agrees 
that the Planned Unit Development zoning (“PUD”) designation allowing underlying land usage 
consistent with Town of Florence R1-6 and R-2 Zoning Districts as modified per Exhibit "C" 
and the PUD Narrative is an appropriate designation for this Property and that the PUD zoning is 
designed to establish proper and beneficial land use designations and regulations, densities, 
provisions for public facilities, design regulations, procedures for administration and 
implementation and other matters related to the development of the Property in accordance with 
the PUD zoning designation.   
 
E.  Owner and the Town acknowledge that the ultimate development of the Property within the 
Town is a project of such magnitude that Owner requires assurances from the Town that Owner 
has the right to complete the development of the Property pursuant to, amongst other things, the 



 

 B-2 

PUD plan before it will expend substantial efforts and costs in the development of the Property, 
and the Town requires assurances from Owner that development of the Property will be in 
accordance with the Plan and the terms and conditions of this Agreement.   
 
F.  Without limiting the foregoing, the Town and Owner acknowledge that the development of 
the Property pursuant to this Agreement will result in significant planning and economic benefits 
to the Town by: (i) encouraging investment in and commitment to comprehensive planning, 
which will result in efficient utilization of municipal and other public resources; (ii) requiring 
development of the Property to be consistent with the Town’s General Plan and the approved 
PUD plan: (iii) providing for the planning, design, engineering, construction, acquisition, and/or 
installation of public infrastructure in order to support anticipated development of the Property 
and the larger land area that includes the Property; (iv) increasing tax and other revenues to the 
Town based on improvements to be constructed on the Property; (v) creating employment 
through development of the Property consistent with this Agreement; and/or (vi) creating quality 
housing and other uses for citizens of the Town.  The Town and Owner acknowledge that the 
development of the Property pursuant to this Agreement will result in significant benefits to 
Owner, including present and future assurances to Owner that it will have the ability to develop 
the Property in accordance with this Agreement and the PUD plan. 
 
G.  Among other things, development of the Property in accordance with this Agreement and the 
PUD plan will result in the planning, design, engineering, construction, acquisition, installation, 
and/or provision of public services/infrastructure improvements that will support development of 
the Property.   
 
H.  The public services/infrastructure improvements to be provided by Owner, while necessary 
to serve development within the Property, may also be needed in certain instances to facilitate 
and support the ultimate development of a larger land area that includes the Property.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual 
promises and agreements set forth herein, the parties hereto state, confirm and agree as follows: 

 

AGREEMENT 

1.  Incorporation of Recitals. The foregoing Recitals are hereby incorporated into this 
Agreement as though fully restated. 
 
2. Annexation.  Concurrently with its approval of this Agreement, the Town, having held 
public meetings thereon, will duly consider final approval of the annexation of the Property into 
the Town. Prior or concurrently with the execution of this Agreement by the Town and Owner, 
Owner will deliver to the Town an appropriate Petition for Annexation duly executed by all 
necessary property owners and satisfying the applicable statutory requirements (the “Annexation 
Petition'').  The Annexation Petition shall contain a provision requiring, upon Owner's written 
request, the immediate rescission and termination of the Annexation Petition by the Town if:  (a) 
any person or entity files any protest, appeal, referendum, litigation or other petition (including 
but not limited to, any petition filed pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-471(C)) challenging the validity or 
approval of the Annexation Petition; (b) the Town does not, at the same Town Council meeting 



 

 B-3 

in which the Annexation Petition is adopted, approve the PUD plan; (c) any person or entity files 
any protest, appeal, referendum, litigation or other petition challenging the validity or approval 
of the PUD plan; or (d) any person or entity files any protest, appeal, referendum, litigation or 
other petition challenging the validity or approval of this Agreement.  Upon receipt of the 
Annexation Petition, the Town shall comply with the provisions of A.R.S. § 9-471 et seq. and, if 
determined to be in the best interest of the Town, adopt a final ordinance annexing the Property 
into the corporate limits of the Town (the “Annexation Ordinance”).  The Town and Owner 
hereby acknowledge and agree that this Agreement shall automatically terminate and be of no 
force or effect if the Town’s annexation of the Property does not become effective and final 
pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-471(D). 
 
3. Zoning.  Upon annexation, the Town shall follow the legally prescribed procedures under 
State and Town statutes and ordinances to give the property comparable zoning, which shall be a 
Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) zoning designation allowing underlying land usage 
consistent with Town of Florence R1-6 and R-2 Zoning Districts as modified per Exhibit "C" 
and the PUD Narrative.  The Owner on behalf of itself and all other parties having an interest in 
the Property intends to encumber the Property with the following agreements and waivers.  
Owner agrees and consents to all the conditions imposed by this Agreement and the comparable 
zoning, and by signing this Agreement waives any and all claims, suits, damages, compensation 
and causes of action for diminution in value of the Property the owner of the Property may have 
now or in the future under the provisions of the Private Property Rights Protection Act, A.R.S. 
12-1131 et seq., (the “Act”) resulting from this Agreement, the comparable zoning, the 
underlying land use as identified in Exhibit "C" and the PUD Narrative or from any “land use 
law” (as such term is defined in the Act) enacted, adopted or applied by the Town during the 
term of this Agreement. Owner acknowledges and agrees the terms and conditions set forth in 
this Agreement and the comparable zoning cause an increase in the fair market value of the 
Property and such increase exceeds any possible reduction in the fair market value of the 
Property caused by any future land use laws, rules, ordinances, resolutions or actions permitted 
by this Agreement and adopted or applied by the Town to the Property. Owner and the Town 
understand and agree that the waivers contained in this Paragraph 3 are binding upon Owner’s 
successors in interest and assigns pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. 9-500.05(D). The Town 
agrees to cooperate reasonably in processing, in a timely manner, any approvals of issuance of 
permits, plans, plats, or otherwise as may be necessary in order to allow for the development to 
be constructed in general conformance with the PUD. 
 
4. PUD Amendment.  The Town and the Owner acknowledge that amendments to the PUD 
may be necessary from time to time, including but not limited to the location of rights-of-way 
and easements. When the parties agree that changes or adjustments are necessary or appropriate 
from time to time they shall, unless otherwise required by Town ordinance, by state or federal 
statute, effectuate minor changes or adjustments through administrative amendments which may 
be approved by the Town’s Community Development Director, and which, after execution, shall 
be attached to the PUD as an addendum and become a part thereof. If, in the future, the Town 
amends one or more of its zoning designations and/or districts, Owner shall have the option to 
convert the zoning designation(s) under the PUD to the equivalent zoning designations under 
such amended development ordinance(s), subject to notice and hearing requirements of 
applicable law. The exercise by Owner of such option and any approval by the Town shall not be 



 

 B-4 

deemed to constitute or to require an amendment of this Agreement, and, unless otherwise 
required by law, no such minor amendments shall require prior notice or hearing. All major 
changes or amendments shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission and approved by the 
Town Council. The following are major changes: 
 

(a) Any substantial alteration to the list of permitted uses of the Property or locations 
of planned land uses set forth in the PUD as deemed to be substantial by the 
Community Development Director;  

(b) Any increase in the overall residential density set forth in the PUD;  
(c) Any substantial change in the development standards except as otherwise allowed 

by the PUD; and/or 
 

(d) Additional circumstances as described in the PUD Narrative and PUD Ordinance. 

5. Additional Property. The Town hereby agrees to consider, and, if determined in its sole 
discretion to be in the best interest of the Town, amend this Agreement, from time to time and in 
accordance with typically applicable notice and hearing requirements solely at the request of 
Owner, to incorporate into this Agreement the whole or any portion of additional properties 
adjacent to or proximate to the Property (the “Additional Property”).  The Town and Owner 
agree that if Owner elects to request from Town the incorporation of such Additional Property or 
portions thereof: (1) thereafter, such Additional Property may be included in the Property and 
shall be subject to and shall benefit from all provisions of the Agreement applicable thereto and 
any reference herein to the Property shall include such Additional Property, which may increase 
the maximum density of the Property; (2) the Town and Owner shall cooperate in order for the 
Additional Property to receive the necessary land use approvals, including any necessary 
amendment to the PUD; and (3) the plans and land use designations approved for any Additional 
Property shall thereafter apply to the applicable Additional  Property. 

6. Regulation of Development. 

(a) The Applicable Rules.  Except as provided in Paragraphs 6(c), 6(h), 6(i), 6(j), and 
6(k) below, all exactions, fees, ordinances, rules and regulations of the Town 
applicable to and governing the development of the Property, shall be those 
ordinances, rules, regulations, permit requirements, development fees, impact 
fees, other exactions and requirements and/or official policies that are existing and 
in force for the Town as of the execution of this Agreement.  

(b)     The Permissible Additions to the Applicable Rules.  Notwithstanding the 
provisions of subparagraph (a) above and the provisions enumerated below, the 
Town may enact the following provisions, and take the following actions, which 
shall be applicable to and binding on the development of the Property: 

 
(i)   rules that the Owner may agree in writing apply to the development of the 

Property; 
 



 

 B-5 

(ii)   rules of the Town enacted as necessary to comply with mandatory 
requirements imposed on the Town by the state or federal governments, 
including court decisions, and other similar superior external authorities 
beyond the control of the Town, provided that, in the event any such 
mandatory requirement prevents or precludes compliance with this 
Agreement, if permitted by law such affected provisions of this 
Agreement shall be modified as may be necessary to achieve the required 
level of compliance with such mandatory requirement; 

 
(iii)    rules of the Town reasonably necessary to alleviate legitimate severe threats 

to public health and safety, including, but not limited to, fire, flood, 
periodic inundation and  acts of war or terrorism, in which event any rules, 
imposed in an effort to contain or alleviate such a legitimate severe threat 
to public health and safety shall be the most minimal and the least 
intrusive alternative practicable and, except in a bona fide emergency, may 
be imposed only after public hearing and shall not, in any event, be 
imposed arbitrarily; and 

 
(iv)    technical codes adopted by the Town pursuant to the Florence Development 

Code, as well as future updates of, and amendments to, existing building, 
construction, plumbing, mechanical, electrical, drainage, and similar 
construction and safety related codes, such as the International Building 
Code, which updates and amendments are generated by a nationally 
recognized construction or safety organization, such as the International 
Conference of Building Officials, or by the county, state or federal 
governments or by the Maricopa Association of Governments (the 
“MAG”) provided that such code updates and amendments shall be 
applied uniformly and not arbitrarily. 

  
 (c) Development Impact Fees.  The Town’s existing or future Development Impact 

Fees that shall be imposed upon the Property for a period of seven (7) years 
commencing from the effective date of the Annexation, shall be in an amount 
equal to Three Thousand Five Hundred and 00/00 Dollars ($3,500.00) per single-
family residential dwelling unit, unless a lesser Development Impact Fee is 
applicable at the time a building permit is issued by the Town. After the seven (7) 
year period and for the duration of this Agreement, the Town’s Development 
Impact Fees that will be imposed upon the Property shall be the Development 
Impact Fees then in effect and applicable at the time of permitting. Any 
Development Impact Fees which are due on residential dwelling units shall be 
payable when construction permits for the residential dwelling units are issued by 
the Town. The Town can allocate the Development Impact Fee, in the amount of 
Three Thousand Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($3,500.00), among any 
eligible Development Impact Fee categories provided such allocation does not 
negatively impact or adversely affect any Development Impact Fee credits due to 
Owner. 

 



 

 B-6 

 (d) Development Impact Fee Credits.  To the extent permitted by Arizona Revised 
Statutes ("A.R.S.") and the Florence Development Code, Owner shall be entitled 
to a credit against the category of Development Impact Fees that are assessed (or 
that are to be assessed) against the Property (or any portion thereof) for any land, 
improvements or other contributions provided by Owner to the Town for any 
land, capital facility improvements or contributions required to provide public 
services and which is related to the existing or future category of Development 
Impact Fees for which such credit is sought.  Such credits may be assignable by 
Owner to entities constructing single-family residential dwelling units on the 
Property.  Any credits for which Owner may be entitled under this Paragraph shall 
not exceed the maximum Development Impact Fee applicable in any particular 
category. 

 
    (e) Filing, Review and Permit Fees. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 

Agreement, Owner will be required to pay the then applicable filing fees, plan 
review fees, permit fees and building fees in effect at the time of any filing, plan 
review or permit issuance. Development Impact Fees shall be paid in accordance 
with Paragraph 6(c) above.  

 
    (f)  Reimbursements.  Promptly after the Town submits invoices to Owner, Owner 

shall pay the Town's costs and expenses incurred in connection with: (i) any suit, 
claim, referendum or legal challenge however described which challenges the 
validity of this Agreement or the PUD; (ii) any suit, claim, referendum or legal 
challenge however described which challenges any council action approving this 
Agreement, the PUD or other council actions relating to the development 
described in the PUD; and (iii) the exercise of the Town’s powers of 
condemnation or eminent domain at the request of the Owner or as required by 
the terms of this Agreement.  Prior to instigation of any such action or decision to 
settle or not to settle any such action as described in this subparagraph, Town 
shall consult with Owner.  Town shall not deny Owner the opportunity to 
intervene in such action. 

 
 (g) Flood Control.  Flood control measures for the Property shall comply with the 

requirements of the United States Army Corp of Engineers and all applicable state 
and local laws, regulations and ordinances; and, to the extent they are not 
superseded by the requirements of the United States Army Corp of Engineers or 
state and local laws, regulations and ordinances, the requirements of the Pinal 
County Flood Control District to the extent the Property is within the Pinal 
County Flood Control District. 

 
 (h) Building Codes. For development in progress at the time this Agreement becomes 

effective, the Town will grandfather construction plans, including standard 
production home plans within active recorded subdivisions, approved by Pinal 
County. New subdivisions and plans introduced after annexation shall comply 
with minimum applicable Town standards and codes. 

 



 

 B-7 

 (i) Roadway Design Criteria.  For local residential streets located within the 
Property, the Town Engineer has the discretion and authority to waive the 
requirement of the minimum horizontal curve length of one hundred (100) feet. 

  
 (j) Slope Line.  The Town agrees that the Owner may construct improvements on the 

Property up to and including the eighteen percent 18% slope line, including but 
not limited to residential lots, roads, recreational parks and trails, provided such 
improvements comply with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act. 

 
 (k) Access.  Subject to design specifications approved by the Town Engineer, the 

Property shall have permanent legal and physical access to Hunt Highway by 
either public right-of-way and/or private right-of-way. 

 
7. Plat and Plan Approval. The Town hereby agrees to take in a timely manner all action 
necessary, including but not limited to processing plats which are in conformation with the PUD, 
so that the Owner is not unreasonably delayed in the development of the Property as provided in 
the PUD. In taking such actions, the Town may exercise its discretion in the manner provided by 
law. Town further agrees that Preliminary Plat approvals shall be valid for a period of two (2) 
years, with two (2) one-year extensions. Preliminary/Tentative Plats and Final Plats, as well as 
accompanying civil improvement plans, approved by Pinal County and consistent with the PUD 
shall be transferable to the Town so long as approvals are current at the time of annexation, 
approved plans are provided to the Town and any applicable public safety concerns are 
adequately addressed. Transferred approved plans and plats shall be valid for two (2) years from 
the effective date of annexation, with two (2) one-year extensions, except in the case of recorded 
Final Plats, which shall remain valid if infrastructure assurances are in place per Paragraph 9 (c) 
and/or subdivision improvements are completed and accepted by the Town.  

8. Vested Rights. The types of land uses, together with the densities of such uses for each 
development parcel on the Property, as shown in the PUD are hereby established.  The Town 
agrees that, for the term of this Agreement, Owner shall have an immediate right to develop the 
Property in accordance with this Agreement, the PUD, the land uses established within the PUD 
and the Town’s General Plan.  

9. Infrastructure. 

(a) Infrastructure Plan.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, so long as 
Owner proceeds with the development of the Property, Owner may implement 
and phase the infrastructure improvements to the Property in conformance with an 
infrastructure plan jointly approved by the Town and Owner (the “Infrastructure 
Plan”), which Infrastructure Plan may be modified from time to time with the 
Town’s approval, which approval shall not unreasonably be withheld, conditioned 
or delayed.  Town hereby agrees that the Infrastructure Plan shall exclude, and the 
Owner shall not be required to obtain the approval by the Town, of water 
infrastructure improvements or wastewater infrastructure improvements, which 
improvements shall be the responsibility of the Owner and/or the Water Service 
Provider (as hereinafter defined) and Wastewater Service Provider (as hereinafter 



 

 B-8 

defined) to construct pursuant to Paragraphs 10(a) and 10(b).  Owner agrees to 
construct the water infrastructure improvements and wastewater infrastructure 
improvements in accordance with all other applicable regulations, laws and 
ordinances.  The Town agrees to consider Owner’s request for the condemnation 
of sewer, utility, and drainage easements and rights-of-way if such easements and 
rights-of-way are determined by the Town to be necessary to complete the 
infrastructure anticipated by this Agreement, but in any event the use of eminent 
domain or condemnation is in the sole discretion of the Town.  Owner agrees to 
reimburse Town for the costs of any such condemnation, including, but not 
limited to, land and property rights acquisition costs, attorneys’ fees and costs of 
suit.  Town agrees to consult with Owner regarding offers of settlement in the 
event of eminent domain or condemnation actions. 

(b) Construction. The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that to the extent the 
Owner develops the Property, the Owner shall have the right and the obligation, at 
any time after the execution of this Agreement, to construct or cause to be 
constructed and installed, in accordance with all applicable rules, regulations, 
construction standards, and governmental review processes, all portions of the 
Infrastructure Plan that relate to the phase or portion of the Property to be 
developed by Owner at any given time.  All such construction performed by 
Owner shall be performed in a good and workmanlike manner and in compliance 
with all applicable requirements, standards, codes, rules or regulations of the 
Town.  The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that the Town, as necessary to 
implement the Infrastructure Plan, shall cooperate reasonably in facilitating 
construction of the infrastructure, including, but not limited to, the abandonment 
of any unnecessary public rights-of-way or easements currently located on the 
Property at such time as such rights-of-way or easements are demonstrated to be 
unnecessary by the final plat.  

(i) The construction and installation of public or private streets, curbs, 
gutters, sidewalks, traffic control, directional signs and other public 
infrastructure and public facilities on the Property as required by the PUD 
and any applicable state and local regulations, laws and ordinances 
(collectively, the “Infrastructure”) shall be subject to and in compliance 
with applicable state and local regulations, laws and ordinances.  Owner 
shall cause all Infrastructure required by the PUD to be constructed and 
installed at no cost to the Town.  Such Infrastructure may be constructed 
in segments that correspond to the phases, if any, set forth in the PUD.  All 
Infrastructure shall be installed in a workmanlike manner in conformity 
with the plans and specifications that are submitted to and approved by the 
Town in connection with the PUD or each phase. 

(ii) Dedication of Infrastructure by Owner shall not constitute acceptance of 
the Infrastructure for purposes of transferring the obligation to maintain 
and repair the Infrastructure to the Town or for purposes of starting the 
Town’s warranty period.  Acceptance of any and all Infrastructure by the 
Town for purposes of the Town assuming any maintenance and repair 



 

 B-9 

obligations and for purposes of commencing the warranty period shall be 
expressly evidenced in writing by the Town as provided herein. 

(iii) Upon completion by Owner of any Infrastructure pursuant to Paragraph 
9(a), Owner shall notify the Town in writing of the presumptive 
completion of such Infrastructure.  So long as such Infrastructure is 
constructed in accordance with the approved plans and the requirements of 
Paragraph 9(a), as verified by the inspection of the completed 
improvements by the Town Engineer including the completion of all 
punch list items, the Town shall accept the Infrastructure, unless such 
Infrastructure is to be owned or accepted by some other governmental 
entity.  The Town shall notify Owner, in writing, of the Town’s 
acceptance of the Infrastructure as of the day of the final inspection.  
Acceptance of any Infrastructure is expressly conditioned upon the usual 
and customary Town warranty for such Infrastructure.  Owner, at no cost 
to Town, shall dedicate rights-of-way or convey public easements 
necessary for the construction, installation, operation and maintenance of 
the Infrastructure as required by Town, which rights-of-way or easements 
may be located adjacent to or in other public and private rights-of-way or 
easements. 

(iv) Owner shall give to Town a one (1) year warranty for all Infrastructure, 
which warranty shall begin on the date that Town accepts the 
Infrastructure as provided in this section or such other date as set forth in a 
service agreement.  Any deficiencies in material or workmanship 
identified by Town’s staff during the warranty period that would adversely 
impact the public health and safety of residents shall be brought to the 
attention of Owner, who shall promptly remedy or cause to be remedied 
such deficiencies to the reasonable satisfaction of Town’s staff.  Any other 
deficiencies in material or workmanship identified by Town’s staff during 
the warranty period shall be remedied collectively to the reasonable 
satisfaction of Town’s staff at the conclusion of the warranty period.  
Continuing material deficiencies in a particular portion of the 
Infrastructure shall be sufficient grounds for Town to require (1) an 
extension of the warranty for an additional period, or (2) the proper repair 
of, or (3) the removal and reinstallation of that portion of the Infrastructure 
that is subject to such continuing deficiencies. Regardless of whether the 
warranty period has expired, the Owner agrees to repair any damage to the 
Infrastructure caused by Owner’s construction activities on the Property.  
Nothing contained herein shall prevent the Town or Owner from seeking 
recourse against any other third party for damage to the Infrastructure 
caused by such third party. 

(v) The Owner agrees to forever maintain all (i) rights-of-way designated as 
private rights-of-way by the PUD, unless such rights-of-way are dedicated 
by Owner and accepted by the Town; and (ii) landscaping located within 
the public easements and rights-of-way located on any arterial or collector 



 

 B-10 

streets on the Property and such obligations shall survive the termination 
or expiration of this Agreement; provided, however, Owner may assign 
these obligations to one or more home owners (“HOA”) provided such 
HOA is legally bound to such rights-of-way and landscaping maintenance 
obligations and has adequate financial ability, acceptable to the Town, to 
bear such obligations.  Once the Town has consented to the assignment of 
these obligations to an HOA, Owner shall be relieved of any further 
obligation to maintain the rights-of-way and landscaping. 

(c) Infrastructure Assurance.  The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that the 
Town, prior to the recording of the final plat for each phase of the subdivision 
within the Property, shall require the Owner and/or its designees, successors, 
assigns, grantees or buyers under contract, to provide assurances which are 
appropriate and necessary to assure that the installation of Infrastructure within 
that subdivision, or other subdivision improvements directly related to such 
building permit or permits, will be completed (“Infrastructure Assurance”).  In 
such case, the Owner may elect, with the approval of the Town, which approval 
shall not be unreasonably withheld, any one or a combination of the following 
methods of Infrastructure Assurance.  All Infrastructure Assurances provided by 
the Owner shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Town’s Subdivision 
Ordinance relating to such Infrastructure Assurances.  Final Plats recorded in 
Pinal County shall have their Infrastructure Assurances transferred to the Town 
immediately upon annexation. The options are as follows: 

(i) Owner and/or its assignees, designees, grantees and purchasers under 
contract is required to file with the Town a performance bond; or 

(ii) Owner and/or its assignees, designees, grantees and purchasers under 
contract is required to deliver to the Town an irrevocable and 
unconditional declining letter of credit which, if necessary, will be 
acknowledged by the Town in accordance with the appropriate Lender’s 
requirements; or 

(iii) Letter of financial assurance from Owner’s lender or the lender of 
Owner’s assignees, designees, grantees and purchasers under contract; or 

(iv) Contractor’s performance bond; or 

(v) Dual beneficiary declining letter of credit; or 

(vi) Performance deed of trust; or 

(vii) Third party trust; or 

(viii) Any other method approved by the Town and Owner consistent with State 
statutes and Town’s subdivision ordinance. 



 

 B-11 

Once the required Infrastructure Assurance has been complied with, the Owner (or, as 
applicable, the Owner’s assignees, designees, grantees and purchasers under contract) shall have 
the right, with the approval of the Town, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, to 
replace such initial method of Infrastructure Assurance, either in whole or in part, with any of the 
other above methods of Infrastructure Assurance.  The Town agrees that within ten (10) working 
days from the Town’s approval of the particular completed Infrastructure for which the Town 
has required and the Owner has provided Infrastructure Assurance, the Town shall release such 
Infrastructure Assurance, in whole or in part, as may be appropriate under the circumstances, in 
the manner provided in the applicable Subdivision Ordinance. 

(d) Infrastructure and Improvement Financing. The Parties acknowledge that a 
primary purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the coordinated planning, 
design, engineering, construction and/or provision of the range of public 
services/infrastructure improvements necessary to serve new development of the 
Property.  The Town acknowledges and agrees that such infrastructure 
improvements may be constructed, at Owner’s request, through the formation of a 
Community Facilities District (the “CFD”) pursuant to Arizona law, including, 
but not limited to, A.R.S. § 48-701 et seq.  In the event Owner requests the Town 
to form any CFD, the Town will consider such request in accordance with the 
Town’s adopted CFD Policies and Procedures, and if approved, shall adopt the 
necessary resolution of intention, and conduct such procedures as are necessary to 
form the applicable CFDs as required by Arizona law.  However, nothing 
contained herein shall be construed to compel the Town to form a CFD or for the 
CFD, if formed, to finance any Infrastructure.  Owner shall provide all necessary 
information and shall pay all reasonable and customary Town costs, including 
costs of legal review by Town counsel, as specified in the Town’s CFD Policies 
and Procedures and the Town’s Schedule of Fees, as such may be amended from 
time to time, in connection with its request for any CFD formation.  The Parties 
agree that the Town must act in accordance with its CFD Policies and Procedures 
as to the formation of any CFD contemplated under this Paragraph 9(d). 

(e) Street Lights. There will be no Street Lighting Improvement District (SLID) on 
the Property excepted as mutually agreed upon, however, streetlights will be 
required within the Property and will be constructed according to either of: 1) 
Town standards; 2) as grandfathered by existing development; or 3) as may be 
approved in the PUD. 

(f) Infrastructure Payback Agreement. In the event that the Town imposes upon 
Owner the obligation to oversize its infrastructure improvements or to provide 
additional public improvements (“Additional Improvements”), the Town agrees 
not to impose said obligation on Owner in such a manner that will impede or 
delay the Owner’s ability to complete the development of its Property on the 
schedule or in the manner originally planned by Owner prior to the Town’s 
imposition of such a requirement.   

 
(i) Upon completion of the Additional Improvements, Owner’s 

project engineer will provide the Town with the actual costs of the 



 

 B-12 

land and construction of such improvements, together with a 
diagram of any benefited properties other than Owner’s property, 
and a statement of the proportionate share attributable to each of 
the benefited properties (“Proportionate Share”).  The Town shall 
have the right to review and approve the project engineer’s 
submittal for a period of thirty (30) days, said approval to be 
commercially reasonable.  The Town shall thereafter require each 
owner of a benefited property, prior to the issuance of a building 
permit for the benefited property, to pay to the Town its 
Proportionate Share plus an additional five percent (5%) to pay for 
the administrative fee retained by the Town as provided below. 

 
(ii) At the time of payment calculation for benefited properties, the 

payment due shall be adjusted as follows: 
 

1. Calculate the percent increase in either the Engineering News 
Record (ENR) – Construction Cost Index (CCI) or Building Cost 
Index (BCI) between: 

a. the most recently published ENR-CCI or ENR-BCI at the            
time of the adjustment; and 

b. the ENR-CCI or ENR-BCI for the same month of the   
previous year. 
2. Multiply the development impact fee in effect in the year 
immediately prior to the Adjustment; and 
3. Add the resulting amount to the development impact fee in 
effect in the year immediately prior to the adjustment. 

 
(iii) Within thirty (30) days of receiving payment pursuant to Paragraph 

9(e)(i) above, Town will reimburse Owner in the amount of such 
payment, less an administrative fee equal to five percent (5%) of 
each payment which shall be retained by Town.  Any credit or 
offset to which Owner is entitled to pursuant to this Paragraph 9(f) 
shall be credited to Owner pursuant to a written amendment to this 
Agreement, which the Town and Owner agree to negotiate at such 
time as the costs of such Additional Improvements have been 
determined and the benefited properties have been identified. 

 
10. Utility Services. 

(a) Potable Water Service.  The Town acknowledges and agrees that Johnson 
Utilities, L.L.C. (“JUC”), or another entity under the common control of JUC, its 
successors and assigns (collectively, the “Water Service Provider”) has, or is in 
the process of obtaining the necessary governmental approvals (collectively, the 
“Water Service Approvals”) to become the potable water service provider to the 
Property.  At no cost or expense to the Town, the Town agrees to cooperate with 
and support the Water Service Provider in obtaining the Water Service Approvals 
if necessary.  Upon the Water Service Provider demonstrating that it has the 



 

 B-13 

Water Service Approvals, the Property will no longer be considered within the 
municipal service area of the Town with respect to water service and Owner shall 
have no responsibility to the Town to construct water infrastructure improvements 
of any kind or to pay water hook-up fees, water impact fees or other similar fees 
to the Town.   

(b) Wastewater Service.  The Town acknowledges and agrees that JUC, or another 
entity under the common control of JUC, its successors and assigns (collectively, 
the “Wastewater Service Provider”) has, or is in the process of obtaining the 
necessary governmental approvals (collectively, the “Wastewater Service 
Approvals”) to become the wastewater service provider to the Property.  At no 
cost or expense to the Town, the Town agrees to cooperate with and support the 
Wastewater Service Provider in obtaining the Wastewater Service Approvals if 
necessary.  Upon the Wastewater Service Provider demonstrating that it has the 
Wastewater Service Approvals, the Property will no longer be considered within 
the municipal service area of the Town with respect to wastewater service and 
Owner shall have no responsibility to the Town to construct wastewater 
infrastructure improvements of any kind or to pay wastewater hook-up fees, 
wastewater impact fees or other similar fees to the Town.   

(c) Assured Water Supply.  If Owner is forced to expend funds to obtain a Certificate 
of Assured Water Supply to the Property or the Water Service Provider is forced 
to expend funds to receive a Designation of Assured Water Supply, Town agrees 
to consider formation of a CFD to permit reimbursement of additional costs 
incurred to provide water to the Property through public financing. 

(d) Other Services.  The Town, or an entity designated by Town, shall provide trash 
collection services to the Property.  The Town shall provide police and fire 
protection services to the same extent and upon the same terms, conditions and 
timeliness as those services are being provided to other properties throughout the 
Town. Owner, or an entity designated by Owner, shall provide cable television 
service to the Property, provided that any such cable television service provider 
has obtained a franchise agreement with the Town. 

(e) Reclaimed Water. Owner, or an entity designated by Owner, shall supply 
reclaimed water or effluent to the Property as needed by Owner, any successor to 
Owner, or to any HOA. 

 
11. Plans Submittal.  Owner shall submit all plats and plans to Town Staff.  Development of 
the Property cannot occur until the Town has concurred that the plans comply with the PUD and 
Town standards.  Town shall review said plans and provide Owner with its comments on these 
submittals in a timely manner.  The Town may retain the services of a private company or 
individual (“Outside Review Agency”) to provide expedited development review processes only 
upon the request of Owner.  The Town and Owner shall mutually agree on the Outside Review 
Agency selected from the Town’s list and the fee for such expedited review. 



 

 B-14 

12. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 
hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereof.  All prior and contemporaneous agreements, 
representations, and understanding of the parties, oral or written, are hereby superseded and 
merged herein. 

13. Amendment. No change or addition is to be made to this Agreement except by a written 
amendment executed by the Owner and the Town.  Within ten (10) days after any amendment to 
this Agreement has been executed, such amendment shall be recorded in the official records of 
Pinal County, Arizona. 

14.    Default; Remedies. Failure or unreasonable delay by any Party to perform any term or 
provision of this Agreement for a period of ten (10) days after written notice thereof from 
another Party shall constitute a default under this Agreement. If the default is of a nature which is 
not capable of being cured within ten (10) days, the cure shall be commenced within such period, 
and diligently pursued to completion. The notice shall specify the nature of the alleged default 
and the manner in which the default may be satisfactorily cured. In the event of a default 
hereunder by any Party, the non-defaulting Party shall be entitled to all remedies at both law and 
in equity, including, without limitation, specific performance. 

(a) Dispute Resolution. To further the cooperation of the parties in implementing this 
Agreement, the Town and the Owner each shall designate and appoint a 
representative to act as a liaison between the Town and its various departments 
and the Owner. The initial representative for the Town (the “Town 
Representative”) shall be the Town Manager and the initial representative for the 
Owner shall be its project manager, as identified by the Owner from time to time 
(the “Owner Representative”). The representatives shall be available at all 
reasonable times to discuss and review the performance of the Parties and the 
development of the Property. 

(b) Mediation.  If a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement, or the breach 
thereof, and if the dispute cannot be settled through negotiations, the Parties agree 
first to try to settle the dispute through mediation before resorting to arbitration, 
litigation or some other dispute procedure.  In the event that the Parties cannot 
agree upon the selection of a mediator within seven (7) days, either Party may 
request the Presiding Judge of the Pinal County Superior Court to assign a 
mediator from a list of mediators maintained by the Arizona Municipal Risk 
Retention Pool. 

15. Arbitration.  If the mediation procedure set forth in Paragraph 14(b) above does not 
resolve a dispute, either party may submit, by demand letter, correspondence or notice, to 
the other party, such dispute to arbitration pursuant to this Paragraph 15.  In such event, 
the dispute shall be subject to and decided by arbitration in accordance with the Rules for 
Non-Administered Arbitration of Business Disputes (the “Rules”) of the Center for 
Public Resources (the “CPR”) currently in effect, except as provided herein and except 
where modified by the provisions hereof. 



 

 B-15 

(a) Any arbitration arising out of this Agreement may include, by consolidation or 
joinder, or in any other manner, at the discretion of either the Owner or the Town, 
any other entities or persons whom the Owner of the Town, as the case may be, 
believes to be substantially involved in a common question of law or fact and who 
consent to jurisdiction of the arbitrator. 

(b) The parties agree that the remedies available for the award by the arbitrator(s) 
under this Paragraph 15 in a dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement or 
breach thereof shall be limited to specific performance and declaratory relief and 
the arbitrator may not issue an award of monetary damages, whether characterized 
as actual, consequential or otherwise, except as provided in Sub-paragraphs 15(e) 
and 15(h), and provided, however, that the arbitrator(s) may award the payment of 
an amount owed or may enjoin the withholding of amounts due under this 
Agreement. 

(c) Demand for arbitration shall be filed with the other party in accordance with the 
Rules and the notice provisions of the Agreement. A demand for arbitration shall 
be made within a reasonable time after the claim, dispute, or other matter in 
question has arisen. In no event shall the demand for arbitration be made after the 
date when institution of legal or equitable proceedings based upon such claim, 
dispute or other matter in question could be barred by the applicable statute of 
limitations. 

(d) In the event the amount in controversy is less than $100,000, a sole arbitrator shall 
be appointed in accordance with the Rules. In the event the amount in controversy 
is $100,000 or more, the demanding party shall appoint one party-appointed 
arbitrator in its notice demand for arbitration. The responding party may within 
ten (10) days, appoint a second party-appointed arbitrator. The party-arbitrators 
shall appoint a third arbitrator in accordance with the Rules. If the party-
arbitrators fail to appoint a third arbitrator, the third arbitrator shall be appointed 
in accordance with the Rules. If the responding party fails to appoint a second 
party-arbitrator within the time so provided, selection of the second arbitrator 
shall be in accordance with the Rules. 

(e) The decision of the arbitrator(s) shall be in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Arizona and the United States. The arbitrator(s) shall prepare written findings 
of fact and conclusions of law upon which the decision and award shall be based. 
The arbitrator(s) may award compensatory damages pursuant to Paragraphs 15(b), 
15(g) and 15(h) and reasonable attorneys’ fees and reasonable costs to the 
prevailing party. 

(f) The arbitration shall occur within the municipal limits of the Town unless the 
parties agree otherwise in writing. 

(g) This agreement to arbitrate shall be specifically enforceable by either party under 
the prevailing laws of the State of Arizona and the United States. Any award 
rendered by the arbitrator(s) shall be final and enforceable by any party to the 



 

 B-16 

arbitration, and judgment shall be made upon it in accordance with the applicable 
laws of any court having jurisdiction thereof. The arbitrator(s) decision shall be 
final and conclusive as to the facts. Either party may appeal manifest errors of law 
to a court of competent jurisdiction within fifteen (15) days of the award. 
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if either party fails to 
take action consistent with the arbitrator(s) award within fifteen (15) days after 
demand, then the other party may either utilize the arbitration process set forth in 
this Paragraph 15 (but without limitation on remedy) or pursue in court any 
remedy available to it at law or in equity, including, without limitation, monetary 
damages, resulting from the failure to take action consistent with the arbitrator(s) 
award and/or the underlying dispute that was the subject of the arbitration. 

(h) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if either party 
believes the other party is exercising the rights under this Agreement in bad faith, 
the aggrieved party must notify the other party of the facts forming the basis of 
the aggrieved party’s assertion of bad faith. If the other party fails to cure the facts 
forming the basis of the aggrieved party’s assertion of bad faith within fifteen (15) 
days after notice thereof, then such dispute shall be submitted to arbitration. If the 
arbitrator finds that a party has acted in bad faith, then the aggrieved party may 
request, and the arbitrator may award, any remedy available to the aggrieved 
party, at law or in equity, including without limitation, monetary damages. 

(i) Unless otherwise agreed in writing, and notwithstanding any other rights or 
obligations of either party under the Agreement, the Owner and the Town shall 
carry on with the performance of their respective duties, obligations and services 
hereunder during the pendency of any claim, dispute, or other matter in question 
giving rise to arbitration or mediation, as the case may be. 

(j) The dispute resolution process set forth in this Paragraph 15 shall not apply to an 
action by the Town to condemn or acquire by inverse condemnation all or any 
portion of the Property or to claims for injunctive relief or mandamus by either 
party. The failure by either party to perform or otherwise act in accordance with 
any term or provision of this Agreement for a period of thirty (30) days (the “Cure 
Period”) after written notice thereof from the other party shall constitute a default. 
In the event such default is not cured within the Cure Period, the non-defaulting 
party shall have the right to seek injunctive relief or mandamus in a court of 
competent jurisdiction. 

(k)  Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the provisions of 
Paragraphs 14 and 15 shall not be construed or applied so as to prevent Owner or 
Town from seeking injunctive relief on an emergency basis to prevent immediate 
or irreparable harm. 

 
16.    Waiver.  No delay in exercising any right or remedy shall constitute a waiver thereof, and 
no waiver by the Town or the Owner of the breach of any covenant of this Agreement shall be 
construed as a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach of the same or any other covenant 
or condition of this Agreement. 



 

 B-17 

17.    Future Effect.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement.  All of the provisions hereof shall 
inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereof 
including, without limitation, to third party builders; provided, however, the Owner’s rights and 
obligations hereunder may only be assigned to a person or entity that has acquired the Property 
or a portion thereof and only by a written instrument, recorded in the Official Records of Pinal 
County, Arizona, expressly assigning such rights and obligations. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Town agrees that the ongoing ownership, operation and 
maintenance obligations provided by this Agreement, other than those pertaining to construction 
of public infrastructure improvements, may be assigned to one or more HOAs to be established 
by the Owner.  The Owner agrees to provide the Town with written notice of any assignment of 
the Owner’s rights or obligations within fifteen (15) days after such assignment.  In the event of 
a complete assignment by Owner of all rights and obligations of Owner hereunder, Owner’s 
liability hereunder shall terminate effective upon the assumption by Owner’s assignee.  Nothing 
in this Agreement shall operate to restrict the Owner’s ability to assign any of its rights and 
obligations under this Agreement to those entities that acquire all or any portion of the Property. 

18. Names and Plans. The Owner shall be the sole owner of all names, plans, drawings, 
specifications, ideas, programs, designs and work products of every nature at any time 
developed, formulated or prepared by or at the instance of the Owner in connection with the 
Property; provided, however, that in connection with any conveyance of portions of the Property 
to the Town such rights pertaining to the portions of the Property so conveyed shall be assigned, 
to the extent that such rights are assignable to the Town. 

19. No Owner Representations. Nothing contained herein or in the PUD shall be deemed   
obligate the Town or the Owner to complete any part or all of the development of the Property. 

20.    Good Standing; Authority. Each of the parties and their assigns represents and warrants 
(and will represent and warrant) to the other that: (i) it is duly formed and validly existing limited 
liability company under the laws of Arizona, with respect to the Owner, or a municipal 
corporation within the State of Arizona, with respect to the Town; (ii) that it is an Arizona 
municipal corporation or limited liability company duly qualified to do business in the State of 
Arizona and is in good standing under applicable state laws, and (iii) that the individual(s) 
executing this Agreement (or who will execute this Agreement) on behalf of their respective 
parties are authorized and empowered to bind the party on whose behalf each such individual is 
signing. 

20. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is declared void or unenforceable, such 
provision shall be severed from this Agreement, which shall otherwise remain in full force and 
effect.  If any applicable law or court of competent jurisdiction prohibits or excuses the Town 
from undertaking any contractual commitment to perform any act hereunder, this Agreement 
shall remain in full force and effect, but the provision requiring such action shall be deemed to 
permit the Town to take such action at its discretion, if such a construction is permitted by law. 

21. Governing Law. This Agreement is entered into in Arizona and shall be construed and 
interpreted under the laws of Arizona. 



 

 B-18 

22. Choice of Forum. Notwithstanding A.R.S. § 12-408, any suit or action brought under this 
Agreement shall be commenced in Superior Court of the State of Arizona in and for the County 
of Pinal and may be removed therefrom only upon the mutual agreement of the Town and 
Owner. 

23. Recordation. This Agreement shall be recorded in its entirety in the official records of 
Pinal County, Arizona, not later than ten (10) days after this Agreement is executed by the Town 
and the Owner. 

24. Notice.  Any notice (delivered by mail, hand or federal express), assignment, payment or 
other communication provided for or required by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 
deemed to have been given when delivered by hand or when deposited in the United States 
Postal Service, certified or registered, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, properly 
addressed to the person to whom such notice is intended to be given at its respective addresses as 
follows: 

The Town:  Town Manager 
Town of Florence 
775 N. Main Street 
PO Box 2670 
Florence, Arizona 85132 

 
With Copy To: Town Attorney 

Town of Florence 
775 N. Main Street 
PO Box 2670 
Florence, Arizona 85132 

 
The Owner:  Robert L. Shaw 

RMG Lucky Hunt 65, L.L.C. 
c/o McRae Group 
8800 N. Gainy Center Drive, Suite 255 
Scottsdale, Arizona 85258 

 
 
The parties entitled to notice, including any assignees of this Agreement, may be changed 
by sending notice to the other parties of the name and address of the individual thereafter 
entitled to notice under this Agreement. 

 
25. Effective Date and Term.  This Agreement shall become effective and shall be binding 
upon and enforceable by all parties hereto, their successors and assigns, immediately upon the 
approval by the Town Council of this document. The term of this Agreement (the “Term”) shall 
be for a period of the earlier of: (i) complete build-out of the Property, (ii) mutual termination by 
the parties, or (iii) twenty (20) years from the date of recordation of this Agreement. 

26. Attorneys’ Fees.  If any legal proceeding is initiated by any party hereto (or their 
successor(s)) with respect to this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, in 



 

 B-19 

addition to any other relief to which it is entitled, its cost of suit incurred in connection with such 
legal proceeding, and its reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

27. Insurance Requirements.  The Owner, at its own expense, shall purchase and maintain the 
herein stipulated minimum insurance with companies duly licensed, possessing a current A.M. 
Best, Inc. rating of “A”, or approved and licensed to do business in the State of Arizona with 
policies and forms satisfactory to the Town.  All insurance required herein shall be maintained in 
full force and effect during the time that construction improvements are being made during the 
term of this Agreement; failure to do so may, at the sole discretion of the Town, constitute an 
event of default by the Owner under this Agreement.  The Owner’s insurance shall be primary 
insurance, and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Town shall not contribute to it.  
Any failure to comply with the claim reporting provisions of the policies or any breach of an 
insurance policy warranty shall not affect coverage afforded under the policy to protect the 
Town.  The insurance policies required by this Agreement shall name the Town, its agents, 
officers, officials and employees as additional Insureds. 

(a) General Liability. The Owner shall, at its expense, maintain a policy of 
comprehensive public liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 
for each occurrence and with a $1,000,000 general aggregate limit.  The policy 
shall include coverage for bodily injury, broad form property damage, personal 
injury, and blanket contractual coverage including, but not limited to, the liability 
assumed under the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, which coverage 
will be at least as broad as Insurance Service Office, Inc., Policy Form CG 
000211093 (October 2001 version).  The coverage shall not exclude X, C, and U.  
Such policy shall contain a severability of interest provision, and shall not contain 
a sunset provision or commutation clause, or any provision which would serve to 
limit third party action over claims.  The Commercial General Liability additional 
insured endorsement shall be at least as broad as Insurance Service Office, Inc., 
Additional Insured, Form B, CG2O101185 (October 2001 version). 

(b) Automobile Liability. The Owner shall, at its expense, maintain a commercial/ 
business automobile liability insurance policy with a combined single limit for 
bodily injury and property damage of not less than $1,000,000.00 each occurrence 
with respect to any of the Owner’s owned, hired and non-owned vehicles assigned 
to or used in performance of this Agreement.  Coverage will be at least as broad 
as coverage code I, “any auto”, Insurance Service Office, Inc., Policy Form CA 
00011293, or any replacements thereof. Such insurance shall include coverage for 
loading and off loading hazards. If hazardous substances, materials or wastes are 
to be transported, MCS 90 endorsement shall be included and $5,000,000.00 per 
accident limits for bodily injury and property shall apply. 

(c) Indemnification.  Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, to 
the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall protect, defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless the Town, its Council members, agents, officers, officials and 
employees from and against all suits, claims, demands, damages, losses, 
liabilities, fines, charges, penalties, administrative and judicial proceedings and 
orders, judgments, remedial actions of any kind, and all costs and cleanup actions 



 

 B-20 

of any kind, together with expenses (including but not limited to reasonable 
attorneys’ fees, court costs, the cost of appellate proceedings, and all claim 
adjusting and handling expenses), relating to, arising out of, resulting from or 
alleged to have resulted from the Owner’s acts, errors, mistakes or omissions 
relating to any action or inaction of the Owner under this Agreement, including 
but not limited to the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services of the 
Owner’s agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors or anyone for whose acts 
they or the Owner may be liable in the performance of this Agreement, and 
regardless of whether or not such claims, demands, damages, losses, liabilities, 
fines, charges, penalties, administrative and judicial proceedings, orders, 
judgments, remedial actions, costs, cleanup actions and expenses are caused in 
part by the passive negligence of the Town, its Council members, agents, officers, 
officials and employees.  The Town shall remain responsible to the fullest extent 
permitted by law for any acts of active negligence or intentional misconduct by 
the Town, its Council members, agents, officers, officials and employees. 

(i) The Owner’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Town, its 
Council members, agents, officers, officials and employees shall arise in 
connection with any suits, claims, damages, losses or expenses that are 
attributable to or otherwise relate to, result from, or are alleged to have 
resulted from the Owner’s acts, errors, mistakes or omissions relating to 
any action or inaction of the Owner under this Agreement, including but 
not limited to the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services of the 
Owner’s agents, employees, contractors or anyone for whose acts they or 
Owner may be liable in the performance of this Agreement, regardless of 
the legal or equitable grounds upon which such suits, claims, damages, 
losses and expenses are based.  

(ii) The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth herein 
are separate and independent from the indemnity provisions of this 
Agreement and shall not be construed in any way to limit the scope and 
magnitude of the indemnity provisions of this Agreement. The indemnity 
provisions of this Agreement shall not be construed in any way to limit the 
scope, magnitude and applicability of the insurance provisions of this 
Agreement.   

(iii) The indemnity provisions of this Agreement shall survive the termination 
of this Agreement. 

28. Lot Sale.  It is the intention of the parties that although recorded, this Agreement shall not 
create conditions or exceptions to title or covenants running with any individual lots into which 
the Property is subdivided.  Any title insurer can rely on this section when issuing any 
commitment to insure title to any individual lot or when issuing a title insurance policy for any 
individual lot. So long as not prohibited by law, this Agreement shall automatically terminate as 
to any individual lot (and not in bulk), without the necessity of any notice, agreement or 
recording by or between the parties, upon conveyance of the lot to a homebuyer by a recorded 
deed.  For this section, “lot” shall be any lot upon which a home has been approved by the Town. 



 

 B-21 

29. No Partnership; Third Parties.  This Agreement is not intended to, and nothing contained 
in this Agreement shall, create any partnership, joint venture or other arrangement between 
Owner and the Town or between any parties comprising Owner. 

30. Compliance With Certain Federal and State Laws. The Owner hereby agrees to comply 
with all applicable provisions of the American with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform 
and Control Act of 1986 and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989. If the Agreement contains 
provisions relating to the construction of public infrastructure improvements or the formation of 
a Community Facilities District pursuant to A.R.S. § 48 - 701 et seq., the Owner hereby agrees to 
comply with all applicable provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes (“A.R.S.”) § 34 - 301 
“Employment of Aliens on Public Works Prohibited”, A.R.S. § 34 - 302 “Residence 
Requirements for Employees”, and A.R.S. § 41-4401 “Government Procurement” (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Immigration Laws”).  A breach of the Immigration Laws shall constitute a 
default of this Agreement and, if uncured, may subject the Owner to additional penalties 
including termination of the Agreement at the sole discretion of the Town.  Notwithstanding 
anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, Town retains the legal right to inspect the 
immigration papers or other residency documents of the Owner’s, contractor’s or any 
subcontractor’s employees who perform work under this Agreement, to ensure that Owner, 
contractor and any subcontractors are complying with the Immigration Laws. Owner agrees not 
to hinder the Town in regard to any such inspections.  The Town may, in its sole discretion, 
conduct random verification of the employment records of the Owner, contractor and any 
subcontractors to ensure compliance with the Immigration Laws.  Owner shall not be deemed to 
have materially breached the Immigration Laws if the Owner establishes that it has complied 
with the employment verification requirements of the federal Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 
U.S.C.A. §1324(a) and 8 U.S.C.A. §1324 (b)(1)(A), et seq., the E-Verify requirements of A.R.S. 
§ 23 - 214(A) and if Owner includes the provisions of this section in any contract the Owner 
enters into with any and all of its contractors, which contracts shall contain provisions which 
require such contractors to include the provisions of this section in such contractors’ contracts 
with any subcontractors who provide services relating to the construction of public infrastructure 
improvements. “Services”, as used herein, are defined as the furnishing of labor, time or effort in 
the State of Arizona by Owner, a contractor or any subcontractor. “Services” also includes 
construction or maintenance of any structure, building, transportation facility or improvement of 
real property. 
 
  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the dates 
written below. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 B-22 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation 
 
 
 
    
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor  Date 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  James Mannato, Town Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 B-23 

RMG LUCKY HUNT 65, L.L.C., 
an Arizona limited liability company 
 

By: RMG Real Estate Services XXIII, L.L.C., 
 an Arizona limited liability company 

Its: Administrator      
 

By:___________________________      
 
Its: Authorized Officer      
 
Date: July ____, 2014 

 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
    ) ss. 
County of   ) 
 
 
 The foregoing Development Agreement for      was acknowledged 
before me this    day of July, 2014, by    , Authorized Officer of RMG Real 
Estate Services XXIII, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company, Administrator of RMG 
LUCKY HUNT 65, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company, and being authorized to do so 
executed the forgoing instrument on behalf of the company for the purposes therein stated. 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 
 
 
 
              
      Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires: 
 
      
 
 
 



 

 B-24 

EXHIBITS 
 
Exhibit A - Legal Description 
 
Exhibit B – Legal Description Map 
 
Exhibit C - Land Use Plan 
 
 

 



Exhibit A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTOINS: 

 

PARCEL NO.  1 

 

THE  NORTH  HALF  OF  THE  NORTHWEST  QUARTER   OF  THE  NORTHEAST  QUARTER   AND  THE 

NORTH  HALF  OF  THE  SOUTH  HALF  OF  THE  NORTHWEST  QUARTER   OF  THE  NORTHEAST 

QUARTER  OF SECTION  10, TOWNSHIP  4 SOUTH,  RANGE 8 EAST OF THE GILA  AND  SALT  RIVER 

BASE AND  MERIDIAN,  PINAL COUNTY,  ARIZONA. 

 

PARCEL NO. 2 

 

THE  NORTH  HALF  OF  THE  NORTHEAST  QUARTER  OF  THE  NORTHEAST  QUARTER  OF  SECTION  

10, TOWNSHIP  4 SOUTH,  RANGE  8 EAST OF THE GILA  AND  SALT  RIVER  BASE  AND  MERIDIAN, 

PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LYING WEST OF HUNT HIGHWAY RIGHT OF WAY LINE. 

 

PARCEL NO. 3 

 

THE  SOUTH  HALF  OF  THE  SOUTH  HALF  OF  THE  NORTHWEST  QUARTER   OF  THE  NORTHEAST 

QUARTER  AND  THE  NORTH  HALF  OF  THE  SOUTHWEST  QUARTER  OF  THE NORTHEAST  

QUARTER OF SECTION  10, TOWNSHIP  4 SOUTH,  RANGE 8 EAST OF THE GILA  AND  SALT  RIVER  

BASE  AND MERIDIAN, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA. 

 



3205 W. Ray Road

united engineering group

Phone: 480.705.5372

Fax: 480.705.5376

Chandler, AZ 85226

www.unitedeng.com









Exhibit C

0 500Feet



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
15d. 

MEETING DATE:  July 21, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                      Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution 1464-14. Pre-Annexation and  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
LOOKOUT MOUNTAIN PADA 
Page 1 of 1 

                    Development Agreement with MAGIC LAKE 80,  
                    LLC, an Arizona Limited Liability Company 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1464-14, entering into a Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with MAGIC LAKE 80, LLC, an Arizona Limited Liability 
Company. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The subject site encompasses a land area of approximately 80 acres located within the 
pending Magic Ranch annexation.  The site is located west of Hunt Highway, north and 
east of the Magic Ranch community.  According to the Preliminary Development Plan 
for this parcel, 124 single-family residential lots are planned for this project. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Overall positive, entering into this PADA facilitates the successful completion of the 
Magic Ranch annexation and promotes future rooftop development within the Town of 
Florence.  It is noted that the PADA commits to not increase Development Impact Fees 
for the subject site for the first seven years of the term of the PADA.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1464-14, entering into a Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with MAGIC LAKE 80, LLC, an Arizona Limited Liability 
Company. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1464-14 
Lookout Mountain PADA   



When recorded, return to: 
 
Town Clerk 
Town of Florence 
PO Box 2670 
775 North Main Street 
Florence, AZ  85132 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1464-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE PRE-ANNEXATION AND 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH MAGIC LAKE 80, LLC., AN 
ARIZONA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION OF SUCH PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT (ANNEXATION NO. 2013-01 – “LOOKOUT MOUNTAIN” 
PROPERTY). 

 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Florence is authorized pursuant, to A.R.S. § 9-500.05, 
to enter into development agreements and generally is authorized to enter into 
contracts; and 
 

WHEREAS, MAGIC LAKE 80, LLC., the “Owner” plans to develop approximately 
80 acres located as legally described on Exhibit “A” and shown on Exhibit “B” attached 
hereto (the “Property”), and desires to annex the Property into the town limits of 
Florence; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed development of the Property and the Pre-Annexation 
and Development Agreement are consistent with the Town of Florence General Plan 
applicable to the Property as of the date of this Resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement provides for 
various matters relating to the development of the Property, including the approval of a 
development plan, duration of the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement, the 
conditions, terms and requirements applicable to public services and infrastructure and 
the financing of same, the permitted uses of the Property and the density and intensity 
of such uses, the phasing over time of construction and development on the Property 
and other matters related to the development of the Property. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 
1. The Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between the Town of Florence 
and the Owner, which sets forth a development plan and the terms and conditions for 
the annexation and development of approximately 80 acres is hereby approved, 
adopted, and made a part hereof as if fully set out in this Resolution.  If the Town does 



not annex the Property in a timely manner following adoption of the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement, or if the Town rescinds the Resolution annexing the Property, 
the Town promptly and within thirty days of the adoption of this Resolution shall rescind 
this resolution. 
 
2. The Mayor of the Town of Florence is authorized to and shall execute the Pre-
Annexation and Development Agreement. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 21st day of July, 2014.  
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 
 



Page 1 of 2 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LOOKOUT MOUNTAIN LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
A portion of the Northeast Quarter of Section 10, Township 4 South, Range 8 East of the Gila and 
Salt River Meridian, Pinal County, Arizona, more particularly described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at the East Quarter corner of said Section 10 from which the Northeast corner of said 
Section 10 bears N00°11’14”W a distance of 2,636.06 feet; 
 
THENCE S89°34’14”W along the East-West Mid-Section line of said Section 10, a distance of 
2,645.47 to the center of said Section; 
 
THENCE N00°13’24”W along the North-South Mid-Section line of said Section, a distance of 
665.53 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE N89°42’10”E, a distance of 1,322.83 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE N00°13’06”W, a distance of 662.17 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE N00°12’13”W, a distance of 661.88 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE N89°59’07”E, a distance of 555.42 feet to a point on the Southwesterly right-of-way line 
of Hunt Highway as recorded in Docket 974, Page 739 of Pinal County Records; 
 
THENCE S37°38’44”E along said right-of-way line, a distance of 194.78 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE S52°21’16”W, a distance of 380.64 feet; 
 
THENCE S00°25’46”E, a distance of 320.97 feet; 
 
THENCE S52°21’16”W, a distance of 98.77 feet; 
 
THENCE S00°01’34”E, a distance of 270.62 feet; 
 
THENCE S37°38’44”E, a distance of 59.70 feet; 
 
THENCE S00°12’59”E, a distance of 368.30 feet; 
 
THENCE N89°34’14”E, a distance of 818.22 feet to a point of curvature of a non tangent curve to 
the right, of which the radius point bears N78°48’29”E, a radial distance of 613.00 feet; 
 
THENCE Northerly along said arc, through a central angle of 50°30’08”, a distance of 540.32 feet, 
to a point on the Southwesterly right-of-way line of Hunt Highway; 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

THENCE S37°38’53”E along said right-of-way line, a distance of 76.05 feet, to a point on the East 
line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 10; 
 
THENCE S00°11’14”E along said East line, a distance of 975.81 feet, to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 
 
Containing 2,226,732.75 square feet or 51.1188 acres, more or less. 



3205 W. Ray Road

united engineering group

Phone: 480.705.5372

Fax: 480.705.5376

Chandler, AZ 85226

www.unitedeng.com









 

  

WHEN RECORDED, RETURN TO: 
 
Town of Florence 
Attn: Town Clerk 
PO Box 2670 
775 North Main Street 
Florence, AZ 85132 
 
 
 
 

PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR 
MAGIC RANCH ANNEXATION: ANNEXATION 2013-01 

“LOOKOUT MOUNTAIN” PROPERTY 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, an Arizona municipal corporation 
 

AND 
 

MAGIC LAKE 80, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company 
 

 

DATE:  July       , 2014 

 
 



 

 B-1 

PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
FOR 

MAGIC RANCH ANNEXATION 20013-01 
“LOOKOUT MOUNTAIN” PROPERTY 

 
THIS PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is 
entered into this   day of July, 2014 (the “Effective Date”) by and between the TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation (the “Town”), and MAGIC LAKE 80, L.L.C., 
an Arizona limited liability company (the “Owner”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
A.  The Owner is the owner of certain property, or has received the necessary consent to include 
certain property located in Pinal County, Arizona consisting of approximately 80 acres all as 
legally described in Exhibit “A” and depicted on Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference (the “Property”). 
 
B.  Owner and the Town desire that the Property be annexed into the corporate limits of the 
Town and be developed as an integral part of the Town.  The annexation and development of the 
Property pursuant to this Agreement and the Land Use Plan, which is attached as Exhibit “C” 
and Planned Unit Development Narrative (“PUD Narrative”), which is  acknowledged by the 
parties hereto to be generally consistent with the Town’s General Plan, which may be amended 
prior to or concurrent with this annexation. The annexation of the Property would allow the 
Town to provide for high-quality development in the area and ensure orderly, controlled and 
quality growth in the Town.  
 
C.  Owner and the Town are entering into this Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Arizona 
Revised Statutes (“A.R.S.”) § 9-500.05 in order to facilitate the annexation, proper municipal 
zoning designation and development of the Property by providing for, among other things:  (i) 
conditions, terms, restrictions and requirements for the annexation of the Property by the Town;  
(ii) the permitted uses for the Property; (iii) the density and intensity of such uses; and (iv) other 
matters related directly or indirectly to the development of the Property. 
 
D.  A blank annexation petition has been filed with Pinal County and meetings and hearings have 
been held in connection with the annexation of the Property into the Town.  The Town agrees 
that the Planned Unit Development zoning (“PUD”) designation allowing underlying land usage 
consistent with Town of Florence R1-6 and R-2 Zoning Districts as modified per Exhibit "C" 
and the PUD Narrative is an appropriate designation for this Property and that the PUD zoning is 
designed to establish proper and beneficial land use designations and regulations, densities, 
provisions for public facilities, design regulations, procedures for administration and 
implementation and other matters related to the development of the Property in accordance with 
the PUD zoning designation.   
 
E.  Owner and the Town acknowledge that the ultimate development of the Property within the 
Town is a project of such magnitude that Owner requires assurances from the Town that Owner 
has the right to complete the development of the Property pursuant to, amongst other things, the 



 

 B-2 

PUD plan before it will expend substantial efforts and costs in the development of the Property, 
and the Town requires assurances from Owner that development of the Property will be in 
accordance with the Plan and the terms and conditions of this Agreement.   
 
F.  Without limiting the foregoing, the Town and Owner acknowledge that the development of 
the Property pursuant to this Agreement will result in significant planning and economic benefits 
to the Town by: (i) encouraging investment in and commitment to comprehensive planning, 
which will result in efficient utilization of municipal and other public resources; (ii) requiring 
development of the Property to be consistent with the Town’s General Plan and the approved 
PUD plan: (iii) providing for the planning, design, engineering, construction, acquisition, and/or 
installation of public infrastructure in order to support anticipated development of the Property 
and the larger land area that includes the Property; (iv) increasing tax and other revenues to the 
Town based on improvements to be constructed on the Property; (v) creating employment 
through development of the Property consistent with this Agreement; and/or (vi) creating quality 
housing and other uses for citizens of the Town.  The Town and Owner acknowledge that the 
development of the Property pursuant to this Agreement will result in significant benefits to 
Owner, including present and future assurances to Owner that it will have the ability to develop 
the Property in accordance with this Agreement and the PUD plan. 
 
G.  Among other things, development of the Property in accordance with this Agreement and the 
PUD plan will result in the planning, design, engineering, construction, acquisition, installation, 
and/or provision of public services/infrastructure improvements that will support development of 
the Property.   
 
H.  The public services/infrastructure improvements to be provided by Owner, while necessary 
to serve development within the Property, may also be needed in certain instances to facilitate 
and support the ultimate development of a larger land area that includes the Property.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual 
promises and agreements set forth herein, the parties hereto state, confirm and agree as follows: 

 

AGREEMENT 

1.  Incorporation of Recitals. The foregoing Recitals are hereby incorporated into this 
Agreement as though fully restated. 
 
2. Annexation.  Concurrently with its approval of this Agreement, the Town, having held 
public meetings thereon, will duly consider final approval of the annexation of the Property into 
the Town. Prior or concurrently with the execution of this Agreement by the Town and Owner, 
Owner will deliver to the Town an appropriate Petition for Annexation duly executed by all 
necessary property owners and satisfying the applicable statutory requirements (the “Annexation 
Petition'').  The Annexation Petition shall contain a provision requiring, upon Owner's written 
request, the immediate rescission and termination of the Annexation Petition by the Town if:  (a) 
any person or entity files any protest, appeal, referendum, litigation or other petition (including 
but not limited to, any petition filed pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-471(C)) challenging the validity or 
approval of the Annexation Petition; (b) the Town does not, at the same Town Council meeting 



 

 B-3 

in which the Annexation Petition is adopted, approve the PUD plan; (c) any person or entity files 
any protest, appeal, referendum, litigation or other petition challenging the validity or approval 
of the PUD plan; or (d) any person or entity files any protest, appeal, referendum, litigation or 
other petition challenging the validity or approval of this Agreement.  Upon receipt of the 
Annexation Petition, the Town shall comply with the provisions of A.R.S. § 9-471 et seq. and, if 
determined to be in the best interest of the Town, adopt a final ordinance annexing the Property 
into the corporate limits of the Town (the “Annexation Ordinance”).  The Town and Owner 
hereby acknowledge and agree that this Agreement shall automatically terminate and be of no 
force or effect if the Town’s annexation of the Property does not become effective and final 
pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-471(D). 
 
3. Zoning.  Upon annexation, the Town shall follow the legally prescribed procedures under 
State and Town statutes and ordinances to give the property comparable zoning, which shall be a 
Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) zoning designation allowing underlying land usage 
consistent with Town of Florence R1-6 and R-2 Zoning Districts as modified per Exhibit "C" 
and the PUD Narrative.  The Owner on behalf of itself and all other parties having an interest in 
the Property intends to encumber the Property with the following agreements and waivers.  
Owner agrees and consents to all the conditions imposed by this Agreement and the comparable 
zoning, and by signing this Agreement waives any and all claims, suits, damages, compensation 
and causes of action for diminution in value of the Property the owner of the Property may have 
now or in the future under the provisions of the Private Property Rights Protection Act, A.R.S. 
12-1131 et seq., (the “Act”) resulting from this Agreement, the comparable zoning, the 
underlying land use as identified in Exhibit "C" and the PUD Narrative or from any “land use 
law” (as such term is defined in the Act) enacted, adopted or applied by the Town during the 
term of this Agreement. Owner acknowledges and agrees the terms and conditions set forth in 
this Agreement and the comparable zoning cause an increase in the fair market value of the 
Property and such increase exceeds any possible reduction in the fair market value of the 
Property caused by any future land use laws, rules, ordinances, resolutions or actions permitted 
by this Agreement and adopted or applied by the Town to the Property. Owner and the Town 
understand and agree that the waivers contained in this Paragraph 3 are binding upon Owner’s 
successors in interest and assigns pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. 9-500.05(D). The Town 
agrees to cooperate reasonably in processing, in a timely manner, any approvals of issuance of 
permits, plans, plats, or otherwise as may be necessary in order to allow for the development to 
be constructed in general conformance with the PUD. 
 
4. PUD Amendment.  The Town and the Owner acknowledge that amendments to the PUD 
may be necessary from time to time, including but not limited to the location of rights-of-way 
and easements. When the parties agree that changes or adjustments are necessary or appropriate 
from time to time they shall, unless otherwise required by Town ordinance, by state or federal 
statute, effectuate minor changes or adjustments through administrative amendments which may 
be approved by the Town’s Community Development Director, and which, after execution, shall 
be attached to the PUD as an addendum and become a part thereof. If, in the future, the Town 
amends one or more of its zoning designations and/or districts, Owner shall have the option to 
convert the zoning designation(s) under the PUD to the equivalent zoning designations under 
such amended development ordinance(s), subject to notice and hearing requirements of 
applicable law. The exercise by Owner of such option and any approval by the Town shall not be 



 

 B-4 

deemed to constitute or to require an amendment of this Agreement, and, unless otherwise 
required by law, no such minor amendments shall require prior notice or hearing. All major 
changes or amendments shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission and approved by the 
Town Council. The following are major changes: 
 

(a) Any substantial alteration to the list of permitted uses of the Property or locations 
of planned land uses set forth in the PUD as deemed to be substantial by the 
Community Development Director;  

(b) Any increase in the overall residential density set forth in the PUD;  
 

(c) Any substantial change in the development standards except as otherwise allowed 
by the PUD; and/or 

 
(d) Additional circumstances as described in the PUD Narrative and PUD Ordinance. 

5. Additional Property. The Town hereby agrees to consider, and, if determined in its sole 
discretion to be in the best interest of the Town, amend this Agreement, from time to time and in 
accordance with typically applicable notice and hearing requirements solely at the request of 
Owner, to incorporate into this Agreement the whole or any portion of additional properties 
adjacent to or proximate to the Property (the “Additional Property”).  The Town and Owner 
agree that if Owner elects to request from Town the incorporation of such Additional Property or 
portions thereof: (1) thereafter, such Additional Property may be included in the Property and 
shall be subject to and shall benefit from all provisions of the Agreement applicable thereto and 
any reference herein to the Property shall include such Additional Property, which may increase 
the maximum density of the Property; (2) the Town and Owner shall cooperate in order for the 
Additional Property to receive the necessary land use approvals, including any necessary 
amendment to the PUD; and (3) the plans and land use designations approved for any Additional 
Property shall thereafter apply to the applicable Additional  Property. 

6. Regulation of Development. 

(a) The Applicable Rules.  Except as provided in Paragraphs 6(c) and 6(h) through 
6(m) below, all exactions, fees, ordinances, rules and regulations of the Town 
applicable to and governing the development of the Property, shall be those 
ordinances, rules, regulations, permit requirements, development fees, impact 
fees, other exactions and requirements and/or official policies that are existing and 
in force for the Town as of the execution of this Agreement.  

(b)     The Permissible Additions to the Applicable Rules.  Notwithstanding the 
provisions of subparagraph (a) above and the provisions enumerated below, the 
Town may enact the following provisions, and take the following actions, which 
shall be applicable to and binding on the development of the Property: 

 
(i)   rules that the Owner may agree in writing apply to the development of the 

Property; 
 



 

 B-5 

(ii)   rules of the Town enacted as necessary to comply with mandatory 
requirements imposed on the Town by the state or federal governments, 
including court decisions, and other similar superior external authorities 
beyond the control of the Town, provided that, in the event any such 
mandatory requirement prevents or precludes compliance with this 
Agreement, if permitted by law such affected provisions of this 
Agreement shall be modified as may be necessary to achieve the required 
level of compliance with such mandatory requirement; 

 
(iii)    rules of the Town reasonably necessary to alleviate legitimate severe threats 

to public health and safety, including, but not limited to, fire, flood, 
periodic inundation and  acts of war or terrorism, in which event any rules, 
imposed in an effort to contain or alleviate such a legitimate severe threat 
to public health and safety shall be the most minimal and the least 
intrusive alternative practicable and, except in a bona fide emergency, may 
be imposed only after public hearing and shall not, in any event, be 
imposed arbitrarily; and 

 
(iv)    technical codes adopted by the Town pursuant to the Florence Development 

Code, as well as future updates of, and amendments to, existing building, 
construction, plumbing, mechanical, electrical, drainage, and similar 
construction and safety related codes, such as the International Building 
Code, which updates and amendments are generated by a nationally 
recognized construction or safety organization, such as the International 
Conference of Building Officials, or by the county, state or federal 
governments or by the Maricopa Association of Governments (the 
“MAG”) provided that such code updates and amendments shall be 
applied uniformly and not arbitrarily. 

  
 (c) Development Impact Fees.  The Town’s existing or future Development Impact 

Fees that shall be imposed upon the Property for a period of seven (7) years 
commencing from the effective date of the Annexation, shall be in an amount 
equal to Three Thousand Five Hundred and 00/00 Dollars ($3,500.00) per single-
family residential dwelling unit, unless a lesser Development Impact Fee is 
applicable at the time a building permit is issued by the Town. After the seven (7) 
year period and for the duration of this Agreement, the Town’s Development 
Impact Fees that will be imposed upon the Property shall be the Development 
Impact Fees then in effect and applicable at the time of permitting. Any 
Development Impact Fees which are due on residential dwelling units shall be 
payable when construction permits for the residential dwelling units are issued by 
the Town. The Town can allocate the Development Impact Fee, in the amount of 
Three Thousand Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($3,500.00), among any 
eligible Development Impact Fee categories provided such allocation does not 
negatively impact or adversely affect any Development Impact Fee credits due to 
Owner. 

 



 

 B-6 

 (d) Development Impact Fee Credits.  To the extent permitted by Arizona Revised 
Statutes ("A.R.S.") and the Florence Development Code, Owner shall be entitled 
to a credit against the category of Development Impact Fees that are assessed (or 
that are to be assessed) against the Property (or any portion thereof) for any land, 
improvements or other contributions provided by Owner to the Town for any 
land, capital facility improvements or contributions required to provide public 
services and which is related to the existing or future category of Development 
Impact Fees for which such credit is sought.  Such credits may be assignable by 
Owner to entities constructing single-family residential dwelling units on the 
Property.  Any credits for which Owner may be entitled under this Paragraph shall 
not exceed the maximum Development Impact Fee applicable in any particular 
category. 

 
    (e) Filing, Review and Permit Fees. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 

Agreement, Owner will be required to pay the then applicable filing fees, plan 
review fees, permit fees and building fees in effect at the time of any filing, plan 
review or permit issuance. Development Impact Fees shall be paid in accordance 
with Paragraph 6(c) above.  

 
    (f)  Reimbursements.  Promptly after the Town submits invoices to Owner, Owner 

shall pay the Town's costs and expenses incurred in connection with: (i) any suit, 
claim, referendum or legal challenge however described which challenges the 
validity of this Agreement or the PUD; (ii) any suit, claim, referendum or legal 
challenge however described which challenges any council action approving this 
Agreement, the PUD or other council actions relating to the development 
described in the PUD; and (iii) the exercise of the Town’s powers of 
condemnation or eminent domain at the request of the Owner or as required by 
the terms of this Agreement.  Prior to instigation of any such action or decision to 
settle or not to settle any such action as described in this subparagraph, Town 
shall consult with Owner.  Town shall not deny Owner the opportunity to 
intervene in such action. 

 
 (g) Flood Control.  Flood control measures for the Property shall comply with the 

requirements of the United States Army Corp of Engineers and all applicable state 
and local laws, regulations and ordinances; and, to the extent they are not 
superseded by the requirements of the United States Army Corp of Engineers or 
state and local laws, regulations and ordinances, the requirements of the Pinal 
County Flood Control District to the extent the Property is within the Pinal 
County Flood Control District. 

 
 (h) Building Codes. For development in progress at the time this Agreement becomes 

effective, the Town will grandfather construction plans, including standard 
production home plans within active recorded subdivisions, approved by Pinal 
County. New subdivisions and plans introduced after annexation shall comply 
with minimum applicable Town standards and codes. 

 



 

 B-7 

 (i) Setback Requirements.  Except to the extent required by federal or state law, the 
Town shall not impose additional requirements upon the Property as a result of 
the proximity of the Property to the Johnson Utilities Section 11 Wastewater 
Treatment Plant and the Central Arizona Solid Waste Transfer Station. 

  
 (j) Roadway Design Criteria.  For local residential streets located within the 

Property, the Town Engineer has the discretion and authority to waive the 
requirement of the minimum horizontal curve length of one hundred (100) feet. 

 
 (k) Slope Line.  The Town agrees that the Owner may construct improvements on the 

Property up to and including the eighteen percent (18%) slope line, including but 
not limited to residential lots, roads, recreational parks and trails, provided such 
improvements comply with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act. 

 
 (l) Walker Butte Parkway.  Owner shall have the right at any time following 

annexation to dedicate Walker Butte Parkway substantially in the location and 
alignment depicted on Exhibit “D” (“Parkway”) to the Town.  In addition, the 
Town Engineer has the discretion and authority to reduce the minimum centerline 
radius without super elevation for Minor Arterial/Couplet roads from one 
thousand eight hundred (1,800) feet to five hundred fifty-eight (558) feet and the 
design speed from forty-five (45) miles per hour to thirty (30) miles per hour. 

 
 (m) Reciprocal Easement.  The Town agrees that the reciprocal easement area 

substantially in the location and the dimensions depicted on Exhibit “D” 
(“Reciprocal Easement Area’) may either be a public right-of-way or a private-
right-of-way.  In addition, the Town agrees that the Reciprocal Easement Area 
shall be deemed a permanent access point for ingress and egress from the 
Property to an existing public road for purposes of the Town’s public access 
requirements. 

 
7. Plat and Plan Approval. The Town hereby agrees to take in a timely manner all action 
necessary, including but not limited to processing plats which are in conformation with the PUD, 
so that the Owner is not unreasonably delayed in the development of the Property as provided in 
the PUD. In taking such actions, the Town may exercise its discretion in the manner provided by 
law. Town further agrees that Preliminary Plat approvals shall be valid for a period of two (2) 
years, with two (2) one-year extensions. Preliminary/Tentative Plats and Final Plats, as well as 
accompanying civil improvement plans, approved by Pinal County and consistent with the PUD 
shall be transferable to the Town so long as approvals are current at the time of annexation, 
approved plans are provided to the Town and any applicable public safety concerns are 
adequately addressed. Transferred approved plans and plats shall be valid for two (2) years from 
the effective date of annexation, with two (2) one-year extensions, except in the case of recorded 
Final Plats, which shall remain valid if infrastructure assurances are in place per Paragraph 9 (c) 
and/or subdivision improvements are completed and accepted by the Town.  

8. Vested Rights. The types of land uses, together with the densities of such uses for each 
development parcel on the Property, as shown in the PUD are hereby established.  The Town 



 

 B-8 

agrees that, for the term of this Agreement, Owner shall have an immediate right to develop the 
Property in accordance with this Agreement, the PUD, the land uses established within the PUD 
and the Town’s General Plan.  

9. Infrastructure. 

(a) Infrastructure Plan.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, so long as 
Owner proceeds with the development of the Property, Owner may implement 
and phase the infrastructure improvements to the Property in conformance with an 
infrastructure plan jointly approved by the Town and Owner (the “Infrastructure 
Plan”), which Infrastructure Plan may be modified from time to time with the 
Town’s approval, which approval shall not unreasonably be withheld, conditioned 
or delayed.  Town hereby agrees that the Infrastructure Plan shall exclude, and the 
Owner shall not be required to obtain the approval by the Town, of water 
infrastructure improvements or wastewater infrastructure improvements, which 
improvements shall be the responsibility of the Owner and/or the Water Service 
Provider (as hereinafter defined) and Wastewater Service Provider (as hereinafter 
defined) to construct pursuant to Paragraphs 10(a) and 10(b).  Owner agrees to 
construct the water infrastructure improvements and wastewater infrastructure 
improvements in accordance with all other applicable regulations, laws and 
ordinances.  The Town agrees to consider Owner’s request for the condemnation 
of sewer, utility, and drainage easements and rights-of-way if such easements and 
rights-of-way are determined by the Town to be necessary to complete the 
infrastructure anticipated by this Agreement, but in any event the use of eminent 
domain or condemnation is in the sole discretion of the Town.  Owner agrees to 
reimburse Town for the costs of any such condemnation, including, but not 
limited to, land and property rights acquisition costs, attorneys’ fees and costs of 
suit.  Town agrees to consult with Owner regarding offers of settlement in the 
event of eminent domain or condemnation actions. 

(b) Construction. The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that to the extent the 
Owner develops the Property, the Owner shall have the right and the obligation, at 
any time after the execution of this Agreement, to construct or cause to be 
constructed and installed, in accordance with all applicable rules, regulations, 
construction standards, and governmental review processes, all portions of the 
Infrastructure Plan that relate to the phase or portion of the Property to be 
developed by Owner at any given time.  All such construction performed by 
Owner shall be performed in a good and workmanlike manner and in compliance 
with all applicable requirements, standards, codes, rules or regulations of the 
Town.  The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that the Town, as necessary to 
implement the Infrastructure Plan, shall cooperate reasonably in facilitating 
construction of the infrastructure, including, but not limited to, the abandonment 
of any unnecessary public rights-of-way or easements currently located on the 
Property at such time as such rights-of-way or easements are demonstrated to be 
unnecessary by the final plat.  



 

 B-9 

(i) The construction and installation of public or private streets, curbs, 
gutters, sidewalks, traffic control, directional signs and other public 
infrastructure and public facilities on the Property as required by the PUD 
and any applicable state and local regulations, laws and ordinances 
(collectively, the “Infrastructure”) shall be subject to and in compliance 
with applicable state and local regulations, laws and ordinances.  Owner 
shall cause all Infrastructure required by the PUD to be constructed and 
installed at no cost to the Town.  Such Infrastructure may be constructed 
in segments that correspond to the phases, if any, set forth in the PUD.  All 
Infrastructure shall be installed in a workmanlike manner in conformity 
with the plans and specifications that are submitted to and approved by the 
Town in connection with the PUD or each phase. 

(ii) Dedication of Infrastructure by Owner shall not constitute acceptance of 
the Infrastructure for purposes of transferring the obligation to maintain 
and repair the Infrastructure to the Town or for purposes of starting the 
Town’s warranty period.  Acceptance of any and all Infrastructure by the 
Town for purposes of the Town assuming any maintenance and repair 
obligations and for purposes of commencing the warranty period shall be 
expressly evidenced in writing by the Town as provided herein. 

(iii) Upon completion by Owner of any Infrastructure pursuant to Paragraph 
9(a), Owner shall notify the Town in writing of the presumptive 
completion of such Infrastructure.  So long as such Infrastructure is 
constructed in accordance with the approved plans and the requirements of 
Paragraph 9(a), as verified by the inspection of the completed 
improvements by the Town Engineer including the completion of all 
punch list items, the Town shall accept the Infrastructure, unless such 
Infrastructure is to be owned or accepted by some other governmental 
entity.  The Town shall notify Owner, in writing, of the Town’s 
acceptance of the Infrastructure as of the day of the final inspection.  
Acceptance of any Infrastructure is expressly conditioned upon the usual 
and customary Town warranty for such Infrastructure.  Owner, at no cost 
to Town, shall dedicate rights-of-way or convey public easements 
necessary for the construction, installation, operation and maintenance of 
the Infrastructure as required by Town, which rights-of-way or easements 
may be located adjacent to or in other public and private rights-of-way or 
easements. 

(iv) Owner shall give to Town a one (1) year warranty for all Infrastructure, 
which warranty shall begin on the date that Town accepts the 
Infrastructure as provided in this section or such other date as set forth in a 
service agreement.  Any deficiencies in material or workmanship 
identified by Town’s staff during the warranty period that would adversely 
impact the public health and safety of residents shall be brought to the 
attention of Owner, who shall promptly remedy or cause to be remedied 
such deficiencies to the reasonable satisfaction of Town’s staff.  Any other 



 

 B-10 

deficiencies in material or workmanship identified by Town’s staff during 
the warranty period shall be remedied collectively to the reasonable 
satisfaction of Town’s staff at the conclusion of the warranty period.  
Continuing material deficiencies in a particular portion of the 
Infrastructure shall be sufficient grounds for Town to require (1) an 
extension of the warranty for an additional period, or (2) the proper repair 
of, or (3) the removal and reinstallation of that portion of the Infrastructure 
that is subject to such continuing deficiencies. Regardless of whether the 
warranty period has expired, the Owner agrees to repair any damage to the 
Infrastructure caused by Owner’s construction activities on the Property.  
Nothing contained herein shall prevent the Town or Owner from seeking 
recourse against any other third party for damage to the Infrastructure 
caused by such third party. 

(v) The Owner agrees to forever maintain all (i) rights-of-way designated as 
private rights-of-way by the PUD, unless such rights-of-way are dedicated 
by Owner and accepted by the Town; and (ii) landscaping located within 
the public easements and rights-of-way located on any arterial or collector 
streets on the Property and such obligations shall survive the termination 
or expiration of this Agreement; provided, however, Owner may assign 
these obligations to one or more home owners (“HOA”) provided such 
HOA is legally bound to such rights-of-way and landscaping maintenance 
obligations and has adequate financial ability, acceptable to the Town, to 
bear such obligations.  Once the Town has consented to the assignment of 
these obligations to an HOA, Owner shall be relieved of any further 
obligation to maintain the rights-of-way and landscaping. 

(c) Infrastructure Assurance.  The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that the 
Town, prior to the recording of the final plat for each phase of the subdivision 
within the Property, shall require the Owner and/or its designees, successors, 
assigns, grantees or buyers under contract, to provide assurances which are 
appropriate and necessary to assure that the installation of Infrastructure within 
that subdivision, or other subdivision improvements directly related to such 
building permit or permits, will be completed (“Infrastructure Assurance”).  In 
such case, the Owner may elect, with the approval of the Town, which approval 
shall not be unreasonably withheld, any one or a combination of the following 
methods of Infrastructure Assurance.  All Infrastructure Assurances provided by 
the Owner shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Town’s Subdivision 
Ordinance relating to such Infrastructure Assurances.  Final Plats recorded in 
Pinal County shall have their Infrastructure Assurances transferred to the Town 
immediately upon annexation. The options are as follows: 

(i) Owner and/or its assignees, designees, grantees and purchasers under 
contract is required to file with the Town a performance bond; or 

(ii) Owner and/or its assignees, designees, grantees and purchasers under 
contract is required to deliver to the Town an irrevocable and 



 

 B-11 

unconditional declining letter of credit which, if necessary, will be 
acknowledged by the Town in accordance with the appropriate Lender’s 
requirements; or 

(iii) Letter of financial assurance from Owner’s lender or the lender of 
Owner’s assignees, designees, grantees and purchasers under contract; or 

(iv) Contractor’s performance bond; or 

(v) Dual beneficiary declining letter of credit; or 

(vi) Performance deed of trust; or 

(vii) Third party trust; or 

(viii) Any other method approved by the Town and Owner consistent with State 
statutes and Town’s subdivision ordinance. 

Once the required Infrastructure Assurance has been complied with, the Owner (or, as 
applicable, the Owner’s assignees, designees, grantees and purchasers under contract) shall have 
the right, with the approval of the Town, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, to 
replace such initial method of Infrastructure Assurance, either in whole or in part, with any of the 
other above methods of Infrastructure Assurance.  The Town agrees that within ten (10) working 
days from the Town’s approval of the particular completed Infrastructure for which the Town 
has required and the Owner has provided Infrastructure Assurance, the Town shall release such 
Infrastructure Assurance, in whole or in part, as may be appropriate under the circumstances, in 
the manner provided in the applicable Subdivision Ordinance. 

(d) Infrastructure and Improvement Financing. The Parties acknowledge that a 
primary purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the coordinated planning, 
design, engineering, construction and/or provision of the range of public 
services/infrastructure improvements necessary to serve new development of the 
Property.  The Town acknowledges and agrees that such infrastructure 
improvements may be constructed, at Owner’s request, through the formation of a 
Community Facilities District (the “CFD”) pursuant to Arizona law, including, 
but not limited to, A.R.S. § 48-701 et seq.  In the event Owner requests the Town 
to form any CFD, the Town will consider such request in accordance with the 
Town’s adopted CFD Policies and Procedures, and if approved, shall adopt the 
necessary resolution of intention, and conduct such procedures as are necessary to 
form the applicable CFDs as required by Arizona law.  However, nothing 
contained herein shall be construed to compel the Town to form a CFD or for the 
CFD, if formed, to finance any Infrastructure.  Owner shall provide all necessary 
information and shall pay all reasonable and customary Town costs, including 
costs of legal review by Town counsel, as specified in the Town’s CFD Policies 
and Procedures and the Town’s Schedule of Fees, as such may be amended from 
time to time, in connection with its request for any CFD formation.  The Parties 
agree that the Town must act in accordance with its CFD Policies and Procedures 
as to the formation of any CFD contemplated under this Paragraph 9(d). 



 

 B-12 

(e) Street Lights. There will be no Street Lighting Improvement District (SLID) on 
the Property excepted as mutually agreed upon, however, streetlights will be 
required within the Property and will be constructed according to either of: 1) 
Town standards; 2) as grandfathered by existing development; or 3) as may be 
approved in the PUD. 

(f) Infrastructure Payback Agreement. In the event that the Town imposes upon 
Owner the obligation to oversize its infrastructure improvements or to provide 
additional public improvements (“Additional Improvements”), the Town agrees 
not to impose said obligation on Owner in such a manner that will impede or 
delay the Owner’s ability to complete the development of its Property on the 
schedule or in the manner originally planned by Owner prior to the Town’s 
imposition of such a requirement.   

 
(i) Upon completion of the Additional Improvements, Owner’s 

project engineer will provide the Town with the actual costs of the 
land and construction of such improvements, together with a 
diagram of any benefited properties other than Owner’s property, 
and a statement of the proportionate share attributable to each of 
the benefited properties (“Proportionate Share”).  The Town shall 
have the right to review and approve the project engineer’s 
submittal for a period of thirty (30) days, said approval to be 
commercially reasonable.  The Town shall thereafter require each 
owner of a benefited property, prior to the issuance of a building 
permit for the benefited property, to pay to the Town its 
Proportionate Share plus an additional five percent (5%) to pay for 
the administrative fee retained by the Town as provided below. 

 
(ii) At the time of payment calculation for benefited properties, the 

payment due shall be adjusted as follows: 
 

1. Calculate the percent increase in either the Engineering News 
Record (ENR) – Construction Cost Index (CCI) or Building Cost 
Index (BCI) between: 

a. the most recently published ENR-CCI or ENR-BCI at the            
time of the adjustment; and 

b. the ENR-CCI or ENR-BCI for the same month of the   
previous year. 
2. Multiply the development impact fee in effect in the year 
immediately prior to the Adjustment; and 
3. Add the resulting amount to the development impact fee in 
effect in the year immediately prior to the adjustment. 

 
(iii) Within thirty (30) days of receiving payment pursuant to Paragraph 

9(e)(i) above, Town will reimburse Owner in the amount of such 
payment, less an administrative fee equal to five percent (5%) of 
each payment which shall be retained by Town.  Any credit or 



 

 B-13 

offset to which Owner is entitled to pursuant to this Paragraph 9(f) 
shall be credited to Owner pursuant to a written amendment to this 
Agreement, which the Town and Owner agree to negotiate at such 
time as the costs of such Additional Improvements have been 
determined and the benefited properties have been identified. 

 
10. Utility Services. 

(a) Potable Water Service.  The Town acknowledges and agrees that Johnson 
Utilities, L.L.C. (“JUC”), or another entity under the common control of JUC, its 
successors and assigns (collectively, the “Water Service Provider”) has, or is in 
the process of obtaining the necessary governmental approvals (collectively, the 
“Water Service Approvals”) to become the potable water service provider to the 
Property.  At no cost or expense to the Town, the Town agrees to cooperate with 
and support the Water Service Provider in obtaining the Water Service Approvals 
if necessary.  Upon the Water Service Provider demonstrating that it has the 
Water Service Approvals, the Property will no longer be considered within the 
municipal service area of the Town with respect to water service and Owner shall 
have no responsibility to the Town to construct water infrastructure improvements 
of any kind or to pay water hook-up fees, water impact fees or other similar fees 
to the Town.   

(b) Wastewater Service.  The Town acknowledges and agrees that JUC, or another 
entity under the common control of JUC, its successors and assigns (collectively, 
the “Wastewater Service Provider”) has, or is in the process of obtaining the 
necessary governmental approvals (collectively, the “Wastewater Service 
Approvals”) to become the wastewater service provider to the Property.  At no 
cost or expense to the Town, the Town agrees to cooperate with and support the 
Wastewater Service Provider in obtaining the Wastewater Service Approvals if 
necessary.  Upon the Wastewater Service Provider demonstrating that it has the 
Wastewater Service Approvals, the Property will no longer be considered within 
the municipal service area of the Town with respect to wastewater service and 
Owner shall have no responsibility to the Town to construct wastewater 
infrastructure improvements of any kind or to pay wastewater hook-up fees, 
wastewater impact fees or other similar fees to the Town.   

(c) Assured Water Supply.  If Owner is forced to expend funds to obtain a Certificate 
of Assured Water Supply to the Property or the Water Service Provider is forced 
to expend funds to receive a Designation of Assured Water Supply, Town agrees 
to consider formation of a CFD to permit reimbursement of additional costs 
incurred to provide water to the Property through public financing. 

(d) Other Services.  The Town, or an entity designated by Town, shall provide trash 
collection services to the Property.  The Town shall provide police and fire 
protection services to the same extent and upon the same terms, conditions and 
timeliness as those services are being provided to other properties throughout the 
Town. Owner, or an entity designated by Owner, shall provide cable television 



 

 B-14 

service to the Property, provided that any such cable television service provider 
has obtained a franchise agreement with the Town. 

(e) Reclaimed Water. Owner, or an entity designated by Owner, shall supply 
reclaimed water or effluent to the Property as needed by Owner, any successor to 
Owner, or to any HOA. 

 
11. Plans Submittal.  Owner shall submit all plats and plans to Town Staff.  Development of 
the Property cannot occur until the Town has concurred that the plans comply with the PUD and 
Town standards.  Town shall review said plans and provide Owner with its comments on these 
submittals in a timely manner.  The Town may retain the services of a private company or 
individual (“Outside Review Agency”) to provide expedited development review processes only 
upon the request of Owner.  The Town and Owner shall mutually agree on the Outside Review 
Agency selected from the Town’s list and the fee for such expedited review. 

12. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 
hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereof.  All prior and contemporaneous agreements, 
representations, and understanding of the parties, oral or written, are hereby superseded and 
merged herein. 

13. Amendment. No change or addition is to be made to this Agreement except by a written 
amendment executed by the Owner and the Town.  Within ten (10) days after any amendment to 
this Agreement has been executed, such amendment shall be recorded in the official records of 
Pinal County, Arizona. 

14.    Default; Remedies. Failure or unreasonable delay by any Party to perform any term or 
provision of this Agreement for a period of ten (10) days after written notice thereof from 
another Party shall constitute a default under this Agreement. If the default is of a nature which is 
not capable of being cured within ten (10) days, the cure shall be commenced within such period, 
and diligently pursued to completion. The notice shall specify the nature of the alleged default 
and the manner in which the default may be satisfactorily cured. In the event of a default 
hereunder by any Party, the non-defaulting Party shall be entitled to all remedies at both law and 
in equity, including, without limitation, specific performance. 

(a) Dispute Resolution. To further the cooperation of the parties in implementing this 
Agreement, the Town and the Owner each shall designate and appoint a 
representative to act as a liaison between the Town and its various departments 
and the Owner. The initial representative for the Town (the “Town 
Representative”) shall be the Town Manager and the initial representative for the 
Owner shall be its project manager, as identified by the Owner from time to time 
(the “Owner Representative”). The representatives shall be available at all 
reasonable times to discuss and review the performance of the Parties and the 
development of the Property. 

(b) Mediation.  If a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement, or the breach 
thereof, and if the dispute cannot be settled through negotiations, the Parties agree 
first to try to settle the dispute through mediation before resorting to arbitration, 



 

 B-15 

litigation or some other dispute procedure.  In the event that the Parties cannot 
agree upon the selection of a mediator within seven (7) days, either Party may 
request the Presiding Judge of the Pinal County Superior Court to assign a 
mediator from a list of mediators maintained by the Arizona Municipal Risk 
Retention Pool. 

15. Arbitration.  If the mediation procedure set forth in Paragraph 14(b) above does not 
resolve a dispute, either party may submit, by demand letter, correspondence or notice, to 
the other party, such dispute to arbitration pursuant to this Paragraph 15.  In such event, 
the dispute shall be subject to and decided by arbitration in accordance with the Rules for 
Non-Administered Arbitration of Business Disputes (the “Rules”) of the Center for 
Public Resources (the “CPR”) currently in effect, except as provided herein and except 
where modified by the provisions hereof. 

(a) Any arbitration arising out of this Agreement may include, by consolidation or 
joinder, or in any other manner, at the discretion of either the Owner or the Town, 
any other entities or persons whom the Owner of the Town, as the case may be, 
believes to be substantially involved in a common question of law or fact and who 
consent to jurisdiction of the arbitrator. 

(b) The parties agree that the remedies available for the award by the arbitrator(s) 
under this Paragraph 15 in a dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement or 
breach thereof shall be limited to specific performance and declaratory relief and 
the arbitrator may not issue an award of monetary damages, whether characterized 
as actual, consequential or otherwise, except as provided in Sub-paragraphs 15(e) 
and 15(h), and provided, however, that the arbitrator(s) may award the payment of 
an amount owed or may enjoin the withholding of amounts due under this 
Agreement. 

(c) Demand for arbitration shall be filed with the other party in accordance with the 
Rules and the notice provisions of the Agreement. A demand for arbitration shall 
be made within a reasonable time after the claim, dispute, or other matter in 
question has arisen. In no event shall the demand for arbitration be made after the 
date when institution of legal or equitable proceedings based upon such claim, 
dispute or other matter in question could be barred by the applicable statute of 
limitations. 

(d) In the event the amount in controversy is less than $100,000, a sole arbitrator shall 
be appointed in accordance with the Rules. In the event the amount in controversy 
is $100,000 or more, the demanding party shall appoint one party-appointed 
arbitrator in its notice demand for arbitration. The responding party may within 
ten (10) days, appoint a second party-appointed arbitrator. The party-arbitrators 
shall appoint a third arbitrator in accordance with the Rules. If the party-
arbitrators fail to appoint a third arbitrator, the third arbitrator shall be appointed 
in accordance with the Rules. If the responding party fails to appoint a second 
party-arbitrator within the time so provided, selection of the second arbitrator 
shall be in accordance with the Rules. 



 

 B-16 

(e) The decision of the arbitrator(s) shall be in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Arizona and the United States. The arbitrator(s) shall prepare written findings 
of fact and conclusions of law upon which the decision and award shall be based. 
The arbitrator(s) may award compensatory damages pursuant to Paragraphs 15(b), 
15(g) and 15(h) and reasonable attorneys’ fees and reasonable costs to the 
prevailing party. 

(f) The arbitration shall occur within the municipal limits of the Town unless the 
parties agree otherwise in writing. 

(g) This agreement to arbitrate shall be specifically enforceable by either party under 
the prevailing laws of the State of Arizona and the United States. Any award 
rendered by the arbitrator(s) shall be final and enforceable by any party to the 
arbitration, and judgment shall be made upon it in accordance with the applicable 
laws of any court having jurisdiction thereof. The arbitrator(s) decision shall be 
final and conclusive as to the facts. Either party may appeal manifest errors of law 
to a court of competent jurisdiction within fifteen (15) days of the award. 
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if either party fails to 
take action consistent with the arbitrator(s) award within fifteen (15) days after 
demand, then the other party may either utilize the arbitration process set forth in 
this Paragraph 15 (but without limitation on remedy) or pursue in court any 
remedy available to it at law or in equity, including, without limitation, monetary 
damages, resulting from the failure to take action consistent with the arbitrator(s) 
award and/or the underlying dispute that was the subject of the arbitration. 

(h) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if either party 
believes the other party is exercising the rights under this Agreement in bad faith, 
the aggrieved party must notify the other party of the facts forming the basis of 
the aggrieved party’s assertion of bad faith. If the other party fails to cure the facts 
forming the basis of the aggrieved party’s assertion of bad faith within fifteen (15) 
days after notice thereof, then such dispute shall be submitted to arbitration. If the 
arbitrator finds that a party has acted in bad faith, then the aggrieved party may 
request, and the arbitrator may award, any remedy available to the aggrieved 
party, at law or in equity, including without limitation, monetary damages. 

(i) Unless otherwise agreed in writing, and notwithstanding any other rights or 
obligations of either party under the Agreement, the Owner and the Town shall 
carry on with the performance of their respective duties, obligations and services 
hereunder during the pendency of any claim, dispute, or other matter in question 
giving rise to arbitration or mediation, as the case may be. 

(j) The dispute resolution process set forth in this Paragraph 15 shall not apply to an 
action by the Town to condemn or acquire by inverse condemnation all or any 
portion of the Property or to claims for injunctive relief or mandamus by either 
party. The failure by either party to perform or otherwise act in accordance with 
any term or provision of this Agreement for a period of thirty (30) days (the “Cure 
Period”) after written notice thereof from the other party shall constitute a default. 



 

 B-17 

In the event such default is not cured within the Cure Period, the non-defaulting 
party shall have the right to seek injunctive relief or mandamus in a court of 
competent jurisdiction. 

(k)  Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the provisions of 
Paragraphs 14 and 15 shall not be construed or applied so as to prevent Owner or 
Town from seeking injunctive relief on an emergency basis to prevent immediate 
or irreparable harm. 

 
16.    Waiver.  No delay in exercising any right or remedy shall constitute a waiver thereof, and 
no waiver by the Town or the Owner of the breach of any covenant of this Agreement shall be 
construed as a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach of the same or any other covenant 
or condition of this Agreement. 

17.    Future Effect.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement.  All of the provisions hereof shall 
inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereof 
including, without limitation, to third party builders; provided, however, the Owner’s rights and 
obligations hereunder may only be assigned to a person or entity that has acquired the Property 
or a portion thereof and only by a written instrument, recorded in the Official Records of Pinal 
County, Arizona, expressly assigning such rights and obligations. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Town agrees that the ongoing ownership, operation and 
maintenance obligations provided by this Agreement, other than those pertaining to construction 
of public infrastructure improvements, may be assigned to one or more HOAs to be established 
by the Owner.  The Owner agrees to provide the Town with written notice of any assignment of 
the Owner’s rights or obligations within fifteen (15) days after such assignment.  In the event of 
a complete assignment by Owner of all rights and obligations of Owner hereunder, Owner’s 
liability hereunder shall terminate effective upon the assumption by Owner’s assignee.  Nothing 
in this Agreement shall operate to restrict the Owner’s ability to assign any of its rights and 
obligations under this Agreement to those entities that acquire all or any portion of the Property. 

18. Names and Plans. The Owner shall be the sole owner of all names, plans, drawings, 
specifications, ideas, programs, designs and work products of every nature at any time 
developed, formulated or prepared by or at the instance of the Owner in connection with the 
Property; provided, however, that in connection with any conveyance of portions of the Property 
to the Town such rights pertaining to the portions of the Property so conveyed shall be assigned, 
to the extent that such rights are assignable to the Town. 

19. No Owner Representations. Nothing contained herein or in the PUD shall be deemed   
obligate the Town or the Owner to complete any part or all of the development of the Property. 

20.    Good Standing; Authority. Each of the parties and their assigns represents and warrants 
(and will represent and warrant) to the other that: (i) it is duly formed and validly existing limited 
liability company under the laws of Arizona, with respect to the Owner, or a municipal 
corporation within the State of Arizona, with respect to the Town; (ii) that it is an Arizona 
municipal corporation or limited liability company duly qualified to do business in the State of 
Arizona and is in good standing under applicable state laws, and (iii) that the individual(s) 



 

 B-18 

executing this Agreement (or who will execute this Agreement) on behalf of their respective 
parties are authorized and empowered to bind the party on whose behalf each such individual is 
signing. 

20. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is declared void or unenforceable, such 
provision shall be severed from this Agreement, which shall otherwise remain in full force and 
effect.  If any applicable law or court of competent jurisdiction prohibits or excuses the Town 
from undertaking any contractual commitment to perform any act hereunder, this Agreement 
shall remain in full force and effect, but the provision requiring such action shall be deemed to 
permit the Town to take such action at its discretion, if such a construction is permitted by law. 

21. Governing Law. This Agreement is entered into in Arizona and shall be construed and 
interpreted under the laws of Arizona. 

22. Choice of Forum. Notwithstanding A.R.S. § 12-408, any suit or action brought under this 
Agreement shall be commenced in Superior Court of the State of Arizona in and for the County 
of Pinal and may be removed therefrom only upon the mutual agreement of the Town and 
Owner. 

23. Recordation. This Agreement shall be recorded in its entirety in the official records of 
Pinal County, Arizona, not later than ten (10) days after this Agreement is executed by the Town 
and the Owner. 

24. Notice.  Any notice (delivered by mail, hand or federal express), assignment, payment or 
other communication provided for or required by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 
deemed to have been given when delivered by hand or when deposited in the United States 
Postal Service, certified or registered, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, properly 
addressed to the person to whom such notice is intended to be given at its respective addresses as 
follows: 

The Town:  Town Manager 
Town of Florence 
775 N. Main Street 
PO Box 2670 
Florence, Arizona 85132 

 
With Copy To: Town Attorney 

Town of Florence 
775 N. Main Street 
PO Box 2670 
Florence, Arizona 85132 

 
The Owner:  Robert L. Shaw 

Magic Lake 80, L.L.C. 
c/o McRae Group 
8800 N. Gainy Center Drive, Suite 255 
Scottsdale, Arizona 85258 



 

 B-19 

 
 
The parties entitled to notice, including any assignees of this Agreement, may be changed 
by sending notice to the other parties of the name and address of the individual thereafter 
entitled to notice under this Agreement. 

 
25. Effective Date and Term.  This Agreement shall become effective and shall be binding 
upon and enforceable by all parties hereto, their successors and assigns, immediately upon the 
approval by the Town Council of this document. The term of this Agreement (the “Term”) shall 
be for a period of the earlier of: (i) complete build-out of the Property, (ii) mutual termination by 
the parties, or (iii) twenty (20) years from the date of recordation of this Agreement. 

26. Attorneys’ Fees.  If any legal proceeding is initiated by any party hereto (or their 
successor(s)) with respect to this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, in 
addition to any other relief to which it is entitled, its cost of suit incurred in connection with such 
legal proceeding, and its reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

27. Insurance Requirements.  The Owner, at its own expense, shall purchase and maintain the 
herein stipulated minimum insurance with companies duly licensed, possessing a current A.M. 
Best, Inc. rating of “A”, or approved and licensed to do business in the State of Arizona with 
policies and forms satisfactory to the Town.  All insurance required herein shall be maintained in 
full force and effect during the time that construction improvements are being made during the 
term of this Agreement; failure to do so may, at the sole discretion of the Town, constitute an 
event of default by the Owner under this Agreement.  The Owner’s insurance shall be primary 
insurance, and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Town shall not contribute to it.  
Any failure to comply with the claim reporting provisions of the policies or any breach of an 
insurance policy warranty shall not affect coverage afforded under the policy to protect the 
Town.  The insurance policies required by this Agreement shall name the Town, its agents, 
officers, officials and employees as additional Insureds. 

(a) General Liability. The Owner shall, at its expense, maintain a policy of 
comprehensive public liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 
for each occurrence and with a $1,000,000 general aggregate limit.  The policy 
shall include coverage for bodily injury, broad form property damage, personal 
injury, and blanket contractual coverage including, but not limited to, the liability 
assumed under the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, which coverage 
will be at least as broad as Insurance Service Office, Inc., Policy Form CG 
000211093 (October 2001 version).  The coverage shall not exclude X, C, and U.  
Such policy shall contain a severability of interest provision, and shall not contain 
a sunset provision or commutation clause, or any provision which would serve to 
limit third party action over claims.  The Commercial General Liability additional 
insured endorsement shall be at least as broad as Insurance Service Office, Inc., 
Additional Insured, Form B, CG2O101185 (October 2001 version). 

(b) Automobile Liability. The Owner shall, at its expense, maintain a commercial/ 
business automobile liability insurance policy with a combined single limit for 
bodily injury and property damage of not less than $1,000,000.00 each occurrence 



 

 B-20 

with respect to any of the Owner’s owned, hired and non-owned vehicles assigned 
to or used in performance of this Agreement.  Coverage will be at least as broad 
as coverage code I, “any auto”, Insurance Service Office, Inc., Policy Form CA 
00011293, or any replacements thereof. Such insurance shall include coverage for 
loading and off loading hazards. If hazardous substances, materials or wastes are 
to be transported, MCS 90 endorsement shall be included and $5,000,000.00 per 
accident limits for bodily injury and property shall apply. 

(c) Indemnification.  Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, to 
the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall protect, defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless the Town, its Council members, agents, officers, officials and 
employees from and against all suits, claims, demands, damages, losses, 
liabilities, fines, charges, penalties, administrative and judicial proceedings and 
orders, judgments, remedial actions of any kind, and all costs and cleanup actions 
of any kind, together with expenses (including but not limited to reasonable 
attorneys’ fees, court costs, the cost of appellate proceedings, and all claim 
adjusting and handling expenses), relating to, arising out of, resulting from or 
alleged to have resulted from the Owner’s acts, errors, mistakes or omissions 
relating to any action or inaction of the Owner under this Agreement, including 
but not limited to the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services of the 
Owner’s agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors or anyone for whose acts 
they or the Owner may be liable in the performance of this Agreement, and 
regardless of whether or not such claims, demands, damages, losses, liabilities, 
fines, charges, penalties, administrative and judicial proceedings, orders, 
judgments, remedial actions, costs, cleanup actions and expenses are caused in 
part by the passive negligence of the Town, its Council members, agents, officers, 
officials and employees.  The Town shall remain responsible to the fullest extent 
permitted by law for any acts of active negligence or intentional misconduct by 
the Town, its Council members, agents, officers, officials and employees. 

(i) The Owner’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Town, its 
Council members, agents, officers, officials and employees shall arise in 
connection with any suits, claims, damages, losses or expenses that are 
attributable to or otherwise relate to, result from, or are alleged to have 
resulted from the Owner’s acts, errors, mistakes or omissions relating to 
any action or inaction of the Owner under this Agreement, including but 
not limited to the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services of the 
Owner’s agents, employees, contractors or anyone for whose acts they or 
Owner may be liable in the performance of this Agreement, regardless of 
the legal or equitable grounds upon which such suits, claims, damages, 
losses and expenses are based.  

(ii) The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth herein 
are separate and independent from the indemnity provisions of this 
Agreement and shall not be construed in any way to limit the scope and 
magnitude of the indemnity provisions of this Agreement. The indemnity 
provisions of this Agreement shall not be construed in any way to limit the 



 

 B-21 

scope, magnitude and applicability of the insurance provisions of this 
Agreement.   

(iii) The indemnity provisions of this Agreement shall survive the termination 
of this Agreement. 

28. Lot Sale.  It is the intention of the parties that although recorded, this Agreement shall not 
create conditions or exceptions to title or covenants running with any individual lots into which 
the Property is subdivided.  Any title insurer can rely on this section when issuing any 
commitment to insure title to any individual lot or when issuing a title insurance policy for any 
individual lot. So long as not prohibited by law, this Agreement shall automatically terminate as 
to any individual lot (and not in bulk), without the necessity of any notice, agreement or 
recording by or between the parties, upon conveyance of the lot to a homebuyer by a recorded 
deed.  For this section, “lot” shall be any lot upon which a home has been approved by the Town. 

29. No Partnership; Third Parties.  This Agreement is not intended to, and nothing contained 
in this Agreement shall, create any partnership, joint venture or other arrangement between 
Owner and the Town or between any parties comprising Owner. 

30. Compliance With Certain Federal and State Laws. The Owner hereby agrees to comply 
with all applicable provisions of the American with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform 
and Control Act of 1986 and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989. If the Agreement contains 
provisions relating to the construction of public infrastructure improvements or the formation of 
a Community Facilities District pursuant to A.R.S. § 48 - 701 et seq., the Owner hereby agrees to 
comply with all applicable provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes (“A.R.S.”) § 34 - 301 
“Employment of Aliens on Public Works Prohibited”, A.R.S. § 34 - 302 “Residence 
Requirements for Employees”, and A.R.S. § 41-4401 “Government Procurement” (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Immigration Laws”).  A breach of the Immigration Laws shall constitute a 
default of this Agreement and, if uncured, may subject the Owner to additional penalties 
including termination of the Agreement at the sole discretion of the Town.  Notwithstanding 
anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, Town retains the legal right to inspect the 
immigration papers or other residency documents of the Owner’s, contractor’s or any 
subcontractor’s employees who perform work under this Agreement, to ensure that Owner, 
contractor and any subcontractors are complying with the Immigration Laws. Owner agrees not 
to hinder the Town in regard to any such inspections.  The Town may, in its sole discretion, 
conduct random verification of the employment records of the Owner, contractor and any 
subcontractors to ensure compliance with the Immigration Laws.  Owner shall not be deemed to 
have materially breached the Immigration Laws if the Owner establishes that it has complied 
with the employment verification requirements of the federal Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 
U.S.C.A. §1324(a) and 8 U.S.C.A. §1324 (b)(1)(A), et seq., the E-Verify requirements of A.R.S. 
§ 23 - 214(A) and if Owner includes the provisions of this section in any contract the Owner 
enters into with any and all of its contractors, which contracts shall contain provisions which 
require such contractors to include the provisions of this section in such contractors’ contracts 
with any subcontractors who provide services relating to the construction of public infrastructure 
improvements. “Services”, as used herein, are defined as the furnishing of labor, time or effort in 
the State of Arizona by Owner, a contractor or any subcontractor. “Services” also includes 



 

 B-22 

construction or maintenance of any structure, building, transportation facility or improvement of 
real property. 
 
  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the dates 
written below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 B-23 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation 
 
 
 
    
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor  Date 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  James Mannato, Town Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 B-24 

MAGIC LAKE 80, L.L.C., 
an Arizona limited liability company 
 

By: KT/RMG Manager, L.L.C., an Arizona 
 limited liability company 

Its:  Manager      
 

By:___________________________      
 
Its: Authorized Officer      
 
Date: July ____, 2014 

 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
    ) ss. 
County of   ) 
 
 
 The foregoing Development Agreement for      was acknowledged 
before me this    day of July, 2014, by    , as Authorized Officer  of KT/RMG 
Manager, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company, Manager of MAGIC LAKE  80, L.L.C., 
an Arizona limited liability company, and being authorized to do so executed the forgoing 
instrument on behalf of the company for the purposes therein stated. 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 
 
 
 
              
      Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires: 
 
      
 
 
 



 

 B-25 

EXHIBITS 
 
Exhibit A - Legal Description 
 
Exhibit B – Legal Description Map 
 
Exhibit C - Land Use Plan 
 
Exhibit D – Access Depictions 
 

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LOOKOUT MOUNTAIN LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
A portion of the Northeast Quarter of Section 10, Township 4 South, Range 8 East of the Gila and 
Salt River Meridian, Pinal County, Arizona, more particularly described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at the East Quarter corner of said Section 10 from which the Northeast corner of said 
Section 10 bears N00°11’14”W a distance of 2,636.06 feet; 
 
THENCE S89°34’14”W along the East-West Mid-Section line of said Section 10, a distance of 
2,645.47 to the center of said Section; 
 
THENCE N00°13’24”W along the North-South Mid-Section line of said Section, a distance of 
665.53 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE N89°42’10”E, a distance of 1,322.83 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE N00°13’06”W, a distance of 662.17 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE N00°12’13”W, a distance of 661.88 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE N89°59’07”E, a distance of 555.42 feet to a point on the Southwesterly right-of-way line 
of Hunt Highway as recorded in Docket 974, Page 739 of Pinal County Records; 
 
THENCE S37°38’44”E along said right-of-way line, a distance of 194.78 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE S52°21’16”W, a distance of 380.64 feet; 
 
THENCE S00°25’46”E, a distance of 320.97 feet; 
 
THENCE S52°21’16”W, a distance of 98.77 feet; 
 
THENCE S00°01’34”E, a distance of 270.62 feet; 
 
THENCE S37°38’44”E, a distance of 59.70 feet; 
 
THENCE S00°12’59”E, a distance of 368.30 feet; 
 
THENCE N89°34’14”E, a distance of 818.22 feet to a point of curvature of a non tangent curve to 
the right, of which the radius point bears N78°48’29”E, a radial distance of 613.00 feet; 
 
THENCE Northerly along said arc, through a central angle of 50°30’08”, a distance of 540.32 feet, 
to a point on the Southwesterly right-of-way line of Hunt Highway; 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

THENCE S37°38’53”E along said right-of-way line, a distance of 76.05 feet, to a point on the East 
line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 10; 
 
THENCE S00°11’14”E along said East line, a distance of 975.81 feet, to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 
 
Containing 2,226,732.75 square feet or 51.1188 acres, more or less. 



3205 W. Ray Road

united engineering group

Phone: 480.705.5372

Fax: 480.705.5376

Chandler, AZ 85226

www.unitedeng.com









Tract

Street "A"

Street "B"

Street "C"

Str
ee

t "E
"

Str
ee

t "F
"

Str
ee

t "E
"

Str
ee

t "F
"

Street "D"

Tract

Tract

Tract

Str
ee

t "G
"

Str
ee

t "H
"

Str
ee

t "I
"

Str
ee

t "K
"

Street "J"

Exhibit C

0 550Feet



Tract

Street "A"

Street "B"

Street "C"

Str
ee

t "E
"

Str
ee

t "F
"

Str
ee

t "E
"

Str
ee

t "F
"

Street "D"

Tract

Tract

Tract

Str
ee

t "G
"

Str
ee

t "H
"

Str
ee

t "I
"

Str
ee

t "K
"

Street "J"

Parkway

Exhibit D

0 550Feet



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE
COUNCIL ACTION 

FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
15e. 

MEETING DATE: July 21, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Contract amendment with Haydon Building  
                     Corp., for currently contracted design-build  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Padilla Park at Silver King Plaza 
Contract Amendment 

7/21/14 
1 

 

                     construction services for Padilla Park at  
                     Silver King Plaza. 

 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to authorize the Town Manager to approve an amendment to the Town’s 
current contract with Haydon Building Corp., in an amount not to exceed 
$172,000, for additional design-build construction services required to complete 
the proposed Padilla Park at Silver King Plaza project. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
In 2008, the Town began to aggressively complete restoration efforts on one of 
the finest examples of Victorian architecture in Florence.  The Silver King Hotel 
rehabilitation project allowed this significant building to be occupied and leased 
for commercial purposes. 
 
Soon after the rehabilitation was completed, funding to finish the rest of the 
exterior lot behind the Silver King Hotel diminished.  The rebounding economy 
and recent acquisition of the adjacent lot from the Padilla family created an 
opportunity to complete this restoration project with complementary site 
improvements. 
 
By assessing current amenities and needs in downtown, staff (Parks and 
Recreation, Community Development, Administration, Public Works and others) 
came up with a variety of creative ideas to enhance the subject space and ways 
to attract and keep people in downtown.  Staff was unified in creating a public 
space that is flexible and could accommodate different activities that are not 
currently offered in or around the downtown area.  
 



Padilla Park at Silver King Plaza 
Contract Amendment 

7/21/14 
2 

 

These general ideas were then conveyed to generous business partners who 
donated their time, talents and funding to the Town for the creation of the 
proposed public space.  The WLB Group, Inc. created the final plat for the 
expanded subject site that was approved by the Town Council on August 19, 
2013.  Swaback Partners and the Londen Company graciously contributed their 
time and funds to the conceptual design of the Padilla Park at the Silver King 
Plaza.  All parties desired to give back to the Town and appreciated how this 
quality project would benefit the Town as a whole.  
 
The concept design for the park, which was presented at a Town Council work 
session on October 21, 2013, incorporated many beneficial and welcoming 
design elements.  Due to the large size of the acquired property and the 
connection to an existing historic building, the design focus was to create an 
open space that was multi-functioning; thus the Park has three main zones: 
 

1. The park has a passive patio area for dining and socializing. This area can 
be an extension of the indoor restaurant spaces. This zone also includes 
new restrooms to benefit the park and future restaurants. 

 
2. The park has an active component with the splash pad feature and 

adjacent sloped turf areas. 
 

3. The park has a special event and structured activity component with the 
sloped turf field and stage area. 

 
On March 17, 2014, the Mayor and Town Council authorized the Town Manager 
to enter into a contract with Haydon Building Corp., to complete the design and 
construction of the subject park.  The Haydon team and the Town’s project team 
worked hard to finalize construction plans for the site, all while keeping various 
Commissions, Boards and the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) 
involved in the project.  During the first week of site exaction on the site in June, 
Haydon came across a historical find on the site, largely consisting of likely 
hundreds of historic bottles neatly arranged about one foot under the surface of 
what was the Padilla property.  Construction work was immediately halted and 
consultations with SHPO and the Arizona State Museum (ASM) commenced. 
ASM provided the Town and Haydon guidance under the Arizona Antiquities Act 
and Logan Simpson was hired to perform a site evaluation and report to the 
ASM.  
 
ASM and SHPO have provided the Town and Haydon with the direction needed 
to ensure that the project team is taking all steps necessary to appropriately 
document and preserve the historical findings on the site, while concurrently 
working to complete the park that has been planned for the site.  Logan Simpson 
has been included on the project team and will provide the Town and Haydon 
with ongoing support, direction and an additional direct line of communication 
with ASM and SHPO.  With the updated approach to completing this park, some 



Padilla Park at Silver King Plaza 
Contract Amendment 

7/21/14 
3 

 

additional excavation for preservation purposes will be done on site, the Town 
will modify some elements of the park design to assist in our preservation efforts 
and historical interpretative signs will be added to highlight the new historical find 
(as well as other historical highlights).  Furthermore, with the consent from ASM, 
the Town would like to have some bottles retained locally in the Pinal County 
Historical Society and Museum.  A preservation easement will be applied over 
the site to avoid future disturbances.  Project completion now expected this 
October. 
  
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The additional financial impact of completing the proposed work is $172,000. 
This is additional to the $500,000 attributed to the original contract; thus, the total 
cost of this project is now at $672,000.  
 
The project is still largely broken up into the following core components: 
 
General landscape and hardscape improvements*      
Fencing            
Electrical improvements          
Bathrooms        
Project management, final design, plans and overhead                                            
 
*Includes significant number of plants that will be graciously donated to the Town 
by Harold and Katie Christ. 
 
With this amendment, there are additional costs directly attributed to the 
archeological find, particularly with an archeologist being added to the project 
team.  Staff and Haydon would also like to use this opportunity to add planned 
(and budgeted) future signs to the site now to avoid any non-essential additional 
ground construction/excavation work any time in the near future.  With this 
contract amendment, we have also allowed for a $10,155 contingency. 
 
Staff has consulted with the Town Manager and the Finance Director and 
confirmed the availability of funds in the current fiscal year budget for these 
contract changes. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to authorize the Town Manager to approve an amendment to the Town’s 
current contract with Haydon Building Corp., in an amount not to exceed 
$172,000, for additional design-build construction services required to complete 
the proposed Padilla Park at Silver King Plaza project. 

 



Padilla Park at Silver King Plaza 
Contract Amendment 

7/21/14 
4 

 

ATTACHMENT: 
 
Contract Amendment from Haydon Building Corp. 

Logan Simpson Report 























 

 

 
Evaluation of Archaeological Resources within Blocks 78 and 79 of the Town of Florence,  
Padilla Park at Silver King Plaza Project, Florence, Pinal County, Arizona 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared for: 

Haydon Building Corporation  

 

 

Prepared by: 

Mark R. Hackbarth, M.A., RPA 

Helana Ruter, M.A. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Logan Simpson Design Inc. 

51 West Third Street, Suite 450 

Tempe, AZ  85281 

 

 

 

 

June 26, 2014 

 

 

LSD Technical Report No. 145367 



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 i

ABSTRACT AND MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 

Report Title Evaluation of Archaeological Resources within Blocks 78 and 79 of the Town of 
Florence, Padilla Park at Silver King Plaza Project, Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona 

Sponsoring Agency Town of Florence 
Haydon Building Corporation  

ASM Permit No. 2014-007bl 

LSD Project No. 145367 

Disposition of  
Remains 

All project-related notes, records, photographs, artifacts, and samples collected 
or produced during testing/data recovery will be curated at the Arizona State 
Museum or a local repository.  

Project Location Logan Simpson Design (LSD) conducted an archaeological evaluation of 
discoveries made within the proposed Padilla Park at Silver King Plaza (Park) 
project on Blocks 78 and 79 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, Arizona. The 
two blocks include the historic Silver King Hotel, a historic adobe structure, and 
open space. The Park project is within the E½ of the NE¼ of the SE¼, Section 
35, T4S, R9E, Gila and Salt River Baseline and Meridian (USGS Florence, Ariz. 
7.5’ 1965/1981). 

Methods Hand removal of construction disturbance spoils and surface inspection of 
exposed archaeological resources. 

Summary  
LSD conducted an evaluation of archaeological resources exposed during construction activities related 
to the Park development within the historic Florence Town site, a historic district listed in the National 
Register of Historic Places (NRHP) in 1982 (#82001623). The Park is situated within Blocks 78 and 79 of 
the historic Florence town site and located less than 60 feet (18.3 m) south of the McFarland State Park. 
The historic Silver King Hotel, a building eligible for listing in the NRHP, is situated along the eastern edge 
of Block 79. During archaeological resources evaluation eight archaeological features were identified and 
recorded. A review of the historic Sanborn maps indicates architectural structures were present within the 
blocks as early as 1890, including two buildings identified as “vacant” and “roof falling in” suggesting 
considerable antiquity before the 1890 map was produced. 
 
LSD recommends the Park APE be recorded as an archaeological site and additional archaeological 
investigations are recommended. Archaeological monitoring is not considered an option due to physical 
constraints of the APE and construction schedule (Arthur Oldham [Haydon Building Corporation] and 
Town of Florence Staff, personal communications 2014). However, the current construction plans for the 
Park may be modified to preserve portions of archaeological resources in place within the park (Mayor 
Tom Rankin, Arthur Oldham, and Jeffry Swan [Swan Architects], personal communications 2014). 
Therefore, LSD makes the following comments and recommendations: 

 Evaluation of features exposed during construction indicates historic archaeological resources are 
present. 

 Archaeological resources within Park are recommended as eligible for listing in the NRHP.  
 Archival research indicates locations within the park that may contain additional preserved 

resources. 
 Excavations are recommended within park locations identified by the archival evidence, with the 

caveat that if redesign of the proposed park facilities can preserve the resources in situ then 
excavations may not be needed. 



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 ii

 Archaeological excavations should sample a variety of locations on Block 79, e.g. the burned hotel 
(Feature 6), the courtyard behind the hotel, privies along Granite Street, and former buildings 
along Ruggles Street. 

 Archaeological excavations should sample a variety of locations on Block 78, e.g. features 
exposed during construction activities (Features 1–5, and 7), and other selected locations within 
the block. 

 Additional archival research is recommended to contextualize the archaeological discoveries. 
Topics of potential significance include the founding of Florence, the impact of the Economic Panic 
of 1873, the role of mining, farming, and ranching within the growth and development of Florence, 
and social history of Florence.  

 
Phase II data recovery are recommended in locations where archival research and the current evaluation 
indicate the proposed investigations have good potential for making additional discoveries. Redesign of 
the park may provide opportunities to avoid some archaeological resources at the same time as 
highlighting where archaeological investigations could be conducted within the park that would be 
impacted by construction activities. Preservation in place is recommended for locations that will remain 
unaffected by the redesigned park. Depending on the depth of disturbance and potential impact to buried 
cultural resources, it may be possible to cover the site or leave areas untouched by construction activities. 
 
LSD also recommends that the Town of Florence include a public education project as part of the Park 
improvements. Signage in the park and/or in the adjacent Silver King Market Place that describes the 
result of the archaeological investigations would provide opportunities for the public to learn about the 
town’s past. Likewise, a cooperative venture with the Pinal County Historical Society and Museum would 
be an appropriate venue to display artifacts recovered from the park and develop a narrative of Florence’s 
history as exemplified in the Park. 
 

 



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 iii

Table of Contents 
Introduction ....................................................................................................................................................................... 1 
Project Description ............................................................................................................................................................ 1 
Project Background .......................................................................................................................................................... 4 
Results of Evaluation ........................................................................................................................................................ 6 
Feature Descriptions ......................................................................................................................................................... 7 
Artifact Discussion .......................................................................................................................................................... 12 
Recommendations .......................................................................................................................................................... 13 
References Cited ............................................................................................................................................................ 16 
Appendix A. Park Conceptual Plan ................................................................................................................................ 17 

 

List of Figures 
Figure 1. General project location. ................................................................................................................................... 2 
Figure 2. Location of the Park. ......................................................................................................................................... 3 
Figure 3. The original Silver King Hotel, renamed the Florence Hotel ca. 1890. ............................................................. 4 
Figure 4. 1890 Sanborn map. ........................................................................................................................................... 5 
Figure 5. 1915 Sanborn map. ........................................................................................................................................... 5 
Figure 6. The Silver King Hotel in 1991 showing the rear adobe sections. Photo by Robert Stryker. ............................. 6 
Figure 7. Overview of the proposed Park, view to southeast. .......................................................................................... 7 
Figure 8. Park discoveries. ............................................................................................................................................... 9 
Figure 9. Feature 1, view to north. .................................................................................................................................. 10 
Figure 10. Feature 2, view to west. ................................................................................................................................ 10 
Figure 11. Feature 4, view to south. ............................................................................................................................... 11 
Figure 12. Footer (Feature 6) and burned layer situated to the left of the footer, view to south. ................................... 11 
Figure 13. Feature 7, view to west. ................................................................................................................................ 12 
Figure 14. Cartridge on occupation surface, north side of Feature 2. ............................................................................ 14 
Figure 15. Earthenware sherds at northeast end of Feature 2, on occupational surface. ............................................. 14 
 

List of Tables 
Table 1. Feature list. ......................................................................................................................................................... 8 

 
 



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 1

INTRODUCTION 

Haydon Building Corporation (HBC) requested Logan Simpson Design Inc. (LSD) conduct an 

archaeological evaluation of construction disturbances that exposed glass bottles within the Padilla Park at 

Silver King Plaza (Park) project area (Figure 1). The Park project (Appendix A) is funded with general funds 

of the Town of Florence and is located within the Florence Historic Town Site, a district listed in the 

National Register of Historic Places (NRHP). The Town of Florence is also a Certified Local Government 

and the Park is within a locally-defined historic district. The Park is adjacent to the historic building currently 

known as Silver King Market Place, which received Heritage Funds in 2000 for stabilization. The park is 

bounded on the north by Ruggles Street (formerly Fifth Street), Sixth Street on the south, Main Street on 

the east, and Quartz Street on the west (Figure 2). The former alignment of Granite Street divides the 

proposed park into two equal-sized east and west units, each 165 ft by 165 ft (50 m by 50 m). 

 

Archaeological evaluation of the discoveries was undertaken within Blocks 78 and 79, an approximate 

1.2-acre parcel that includes the historic Silver King Market Place and one adobe outbuilding. The Silver 

King Market Place is the current name for the historic Sliver King Hotel, which replaced the Florence Hotel 

after it burned in 1894. The park is located within the E½ of the NE¼ of the SE¼ of Section 35, T4S, R9E 

Gila and Salt Rivers Baseline and Meridian (USGS Florence, Ariz. 7.5’ 1965/1981).  

 

Construction activities started on June 19, 2014 but were suspended the same day following the discovery 

of large numbers of bottles at three separate locations within Block 78 of the Park project. HBC did an 

initial assessment of the extent of the bottles that indicated the three locations of the bottles were over a 

50–65 foot (15–20 m) location in the northern portion of Block 78. In addition, HBC identified two separate 

foundations along Sixth Street—one on Block 78 and the other on Block 79—both appear to be historic.  

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The Town of Florence requested HBC evaluate the discoveries and determine appropriate action for the 

Park discoveries. HBC contacted the Arizona State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO), which referred 

HBC to the Arizona State Museum (ASM). Dr. Todd Pietzel, Curator at the ASM, requested that HBC hire 

an accredited archaeological firm to conduct an evaluation of the discoveries. HBC contracted with LSD to 

conduct an evaluation, which was completed on June 23, 2014. The evaluation of archaeological resources 

and inspection of the APE was conducted by Mark R. Hackbarth, M.A., RPA. 

 

The evaluation consisted of mapping the perimeter of the Park project, a judgmental survey of the area of 

potential effects (APE); inspecting trench profiles; cleaning and removing loose fill at the bottle discoveries; 

photographing the bottle discoveries; sample in-field analysis of maker’s marks; and mapping the location 

of features exposure during construction. A review of historic Sanborn maps was completed for the APE 

and compared to the location of the archaeological discoveries. LSD also consulted the National Register 

Information System database.  



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 2

 

 
Figure 1. General project location. 
 



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 3

 
 

 
Figure 2. Location of the Park.   



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 4

 

LSD discussed the Park construction activity with HBC’s Senior Project Manager, Arthur Oldham, Jeffry 

Swan, Principal of Swan Architects, and Florence’s Mayor, Tom Rankin. Mayor Rankin is a long-time 

resident of Florence and provided information about buildings that were formerly within the APE. 

 

PROJECT BACKGROUND  

The Park project area is adjacent to the currently named Silver King Market Place, a historic structure 

located on Block 79 of the Florence town site. The market place previously was named the Silver King 

Hotel, constructed ca. 1876 by William Long, a co-owner of the Silver King Mine near Globe. With the 

decline of the mine and ultimate closure in 1890, the hotel was re-branded the Florence Hotel (Figure 3).  

 

 
Figure 3. The original Silver King Hotel, renamed the Florence Hotel ca. 1890. 

 

The 1890 Sanborn map illustrates the Florence Hotel as an L-shaped adobe "Hotel" that wrapped the 

southeast corner of Block 79 from Main Street to 6th Street (Figure 4). The building was noted as having a 

kitchen, dining room, bar, and office with rooms on the 6th Street side of the block. The building in its 

entirety was one story. Unnamed buildings/structures lined Fifth Street from the northwest corner of the lot. 

Privies are located along the northeastern portion of Granite Street. 

 

The adjacent Block 78 possessed buildings/structures located on the northwest, northeast, and southwest 

corners of the block. The building at the northeast is noted as "Tailor" and "dwg" and there is a note on the 

northwest corner that a building/structure has a "roof falling in" as well as a building listed as vacant, 

indicating that early use on the block was followed by abandonment by 1890. 



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 5

 
Figure 4. 1890 Sanborn map. 

 

In 1894, a fire struck the hotel destroying the eastern portion of the hotel containing the dining room and 

bar. The western portion of the building was severely damaged leaving only the walls. Between 1898 and 

1911 the western portions of the hotel fronting Sixth Street were re-constructed with adobe walls and a 

second story was added to the westernmost portion of the building by 1915.  
 

The 1898 Sanborn map of Block 78 shows the former Tailor/dwelling as "rooms" with a building and 

attached corral at the northwest corner of the block as well as structures listed as having "no roofs." By 

1911, these buildings and structures had been demolished and replaced with hay warehouses. The 1915 

Sanborn map indicates considerable development on Block 79, but much less on Block 78 (Figure 5). By 

1941, the block was vacant of buildings and structures.  
 

The hotel fell into disrepair and caught fire in 1995 destroying the roof. The Florence Preservation 

Foundation raised the funds to purchase and rehabilitate the building which re-opened as a multi-use 

commercial space in 2009 (Figure 6).  

 

 
Figure 5. 1915 Sanborn map. 

 



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 6

 
Figure 6. The Silver King Hotel in 1991 showing the rear adobe sections. Photo by Robert 
Stryker. 

 

RESULTS OF EVALUATION 

Inspection of the APE began with examining the elevation and slope of the parcel. The highest point of the 

ground surface is in the southeast corner, adjacent to the Silver King Market Place’s foundation, on 

Block 79. The ground level slopes away from the structure and is estimated to be 50 cm lower on the north 

side of Block 79 than the high point along Sixth Street (Figure 7). Block 78 has a level surface and 

generally has a lower elevation than Block 79. The condition of the APE gives the appearance of a natural 

terrace sloping towards the Gila River, to the north. 

 

Construction activities in the park include removal of Granite Street’s pavement and sidewalks. In addition, 

two small trenches were excavated on Block 79 for new utilities. A small trench was previously excavated 

near the intersection of Sixth and Granite streets, east of Granite Street. A second trench was excavated 

near the Ruggles and Granite streets intersection for an underground telephone line installation.  

 

Construction within Block 78 started with the removal of up to 40 cm of soil in a narrow 2-m wide band that 

parallels Ruggles and Quartz streets from the north half of Block 78. Soil from this disturbance was added 

to the south half of the block. The excavations in Block 78 affected an area measuring less than 2 m by 

50 m before artifacts were encountered and work activities were stopped. 

 



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 7

 
Figure 7. Overview of the proposed Park, view to southeast. 

 

An inspection completed on June 23, 2014 identified eight features (Table 1; Figure 8). Dozens of artifacts, 

mainly glass bottles, were part of the features on Blocks 78 and 79.  

 

FEATURE DESCRIPTIONS 

Eight historic archaeological features were identified within construction disturbances to Blocks 78 and 79 

of the Florence town site (see Table 1). The documented features include three sidewalks or paths 

constructed of multiple materials.  

 

Feature 1 consists of a north-to-south alignment of glass bottles oriented vertically and up-side-down in a 

sandy matrix (Figure 9). The bottles were placed contiguous to each other and create a level surface with a 

variable width. The feature extends to the south an unknown distance into an undisturbed portion of the 

APE, but the north end has been truncated by construction activities. 

 

Feature 2 is a sidewalk or path constructed with two parallel rows of bottles placed up-side-down and 

canted outward towards the top. The space between the rows of bottles consisted of an adobe surface 

(Figure 10). The east end of the feature is truncated by construction activities and the west end extends an 

unknown distance into an undisturbed portion of the APE. 

 



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 8

Table 1. Feature list. 

Feature Feature type 

Exposed 
dimensions 

(approximate) Age Comment 

1 Sidewalk/path, bottles 3-4 m by 1.2 m Post 1870a Curving alignment, generally north-to-south, ca. 20 cm below 
the modern ground surface. 

2 Sidewalk/path, bottles 
and adobe 

2 m by 0.9 m Post 1870a Straight alignment oriented east-to-west 

3 Occupational surface 3 m by 3 m Post 1870a Earthenware fragment and cartridge on surface that 
surrounds Feature 2. 

4 Bottle concentration, 
possible sidewalk/path 

2 m by 0.8 m Post 1870a Glass and stoneware artifacts crushed during construction 
activities. 

5 Adobe wall/footer and 
floor 

0.3 m by 1 m Unknown Possibly the east wall of a structure on 1890 Sanborn 
identified as Vacant (10 East Fifth Street). 

6 Concrete and malpais 
footer 

42 by 0.5 m Ca. 1876 L-shaped footer along Sixth and Granite streets composed of 
concrete and malpais rock. Within excavation next to concrete 
footer is burned and charred wood and metal. Concrete footer 
along Granite Street is badly weathered cement matrix with 
variable size aggregate. Malpais rock used as footer exposed 
along Sixth Street is probably a foundation for the Florence 
Hotel, which burned in 1894. 

7 Concrete footer 6.7 m by 0.3 m Pre-1911b Stem wall is badly weathered and consisted of aggregate of 
variable size in a weakly-cemented matrix.   

8 Bottle base, possible 
sidewalk/path 

0.3 m diameter Post 1870a Possible continuation of Feature 4. No exploration was 
completed at the feature, which was identified as 7 bottle 
bases less than 1 cm below the current ground level. 

a Date based on artifact analysis and most likely age of deposition. 
b Date based on Sanborn map. 

 

North and south of Feature 2 is an occupation surface (Feature 3) that is at the same level as the upper 

elevation of the bottles. The feature is represented by a thin, discontinuous layer of charcoal-stained soil 

with some sand. Three earthenware sherds and one cartridge were found on the historic surface. 

 

Feature 4 is a massive deposit of broken glass exposed during mechanical excavation (Figure 11). 

Fragments of bottles in the north and south sides of the trench are oriented up-side-down and appear to 

form a sidewalk or path similar to Feature 1. The disturbed back dirt of Feature 4 also included fragments 

of adobe; an adobe footer (Feature 5) is present in the north profile of the construction trench just west of 

the glass. The adobe footer extends south into the construction disturbance an unknown distance and may 

be associated with a floor or wall melt found while clearing loose soil from the excavation. 

 

Feature 6 is a footer made of two materials. The section along Granite Street is concrete with a worn 

surface (Figure 12). An excavation for a modern utility next to Feature 6 exposed a 35-cm-thick layer of 

burned wood, daub, and metal. The footer along Sixth Street includes malpais rock set in concrete. Both 

materials are close to the modern sidewalk or street and are probably associated with the historic Silver 

King Hotel. 

 



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 9

 

 
Figure 8. Park discoveries. 
 



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 10

 

 
Figure 9. Feature 1, view to north.  
 

 
Figure 10. Feature 2, view to west. 

 



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 11

 

 
Figure 11. Feature 4, view to south. 

 

 
Figure 12. Footer (Feature 6) and burned layer situated to the left of the footer, 
view to south.   



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 12

Feature 7 is a weathered concrete footer in the southwest corner of the park near the intersection of Quartz 

and Sixth Street (Figure 13). A cross section of the footer exhibits aggregate of various sizes in a weakly 

cemented matrix. The footer is likely related to a “Hay Warehouse” depicted on the 1911 Sanborn map. 

During the field assessment, Mayor Rankin related that he remembered a structure being present when he 

was younger. The structure is not depicted on the 1941 Sanborn map. 

 

 
Figure 13. Feature 7, view to west.  

 

Feature 8 is an isolated group of seven or more bottle bases located south of Feature 4. The intervening 

ground surface between Features 4 and 8 has not been excavated and it is unknown whether the bottles 

are a continuation of the same feature. 

 

ARTIFACT DISCUSSION 

In-field analysis was conducted on a judgmental sample of glass bottles. All artifacts were left at the work 

site and no collections were made. In general, the artifacts suggest a mid- to late-nineteenth century date 

of manufacture. 

 

Maker’s marks were recorded from the base of 15 bottles in Feature 1 without removing the bottles from 

the soil. The most common maker’s mark was found on six vessels: “A/DeSGCo,” which is probably from 

the DeSteiger Glass Company (1878–1882) (Lindsey 2014). Three maker’s marks were “H” and although 



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 13

there are multiple manufacturers that used this symbol, all of their dates of business are later than the 

expected age of the feature, therefore the manufacturer is unidentifiable. One bottle had a mark of 

“+/MGCo” and another “MGCo,” both are likely used by the Mississippi Glass Co. and represent a 

manufacturing age of 1878–1884. One vessel had an “A” as a mark that possibly represents John Agnew & 

Sons (1872–1876) or Agnew & Co (1876–1893) or Adams & Co (1865–1875). One recorded mark of 

“I/MIL” likely represents a manufacture in Milwaukee. Two bottles have “41/DS,” which is an unknown 

bottle manufacturer. Other marks were present, but the condition of the glass made it difficult to 

conclusively identify the mark. All but three bottles were dark brown and likely represent beer or whiskey 

containers. One vessel is dark green glass and has a kick up, a common feature of wine bottles. One 

aqua-colored bottle fragment was found displaced on the surface and one finish from a medicine bottle was 

present. 

 

Five nearly complete bottles that were from previously removed from Feature 1 were examined for 

evidence of manufacturing methods. The inspected vessels indicate the bottles were manufactured using 

turn paste molds, a finishing tool, and most often had either a base mold or post bottom mold. Turn paste 

molding began as early as 1865, but improvements to the method were patented in the 1870s and 1880s 

and contributed to its wide-spread use. Turn paste molds continued in use to the 1920s (Jones and 

Sullivan 1989:30–31). The lip and finish of the vessels were worked with wooden tools to form a smooth 

surface, which was a common method used from the 1820s to the 1920s (Jones and Sullivan 1989:42–43). 

 

All but five of the artifacts identified during the evaluation were glass bottles likely used as beer or whiskey 

containers. The exceptions are one gun cartridge (Figure 14), one stoneware bottle finish (probably an ale 

or stout container), one glass medicine bottle finish, one metal can, and three fragments of earthenware, 

possibly representing an olla (Figure 15).  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

LSD completed an evaluation of cultural resources exposed during construction activities within the 

proposed 1.2-acre Park development in Florence, Pinal County, Arizona. The Park is located within the 

NRHP-listed Florence Town Site district, within Blocks 78 and 79 of the town site. The discoveries likely 

date to the mid- to late-nineteenth century, based on the manufacturing date of artifacts and archival 

records. The 1890 Sanborn map for the park area indicate Block 78 was used as a warehouse or vacant 

land except for four building, two of which were vacant or dilapidated. Sanborn maps of Block 79 indicate a 

hotel and small rooms; archival information suggests the hotel was constructed ca. 1876. The Sanborn 

maps provide evidence for intensive commercial use of Block 79 from 1898 to 1941; Block 78 has evidence 

of small structures and vacant land from 1890 to 1941.  

 

Eight archaeological features identified during the evaluation are within the Park and have good- to 

excellent preservation. Damage to Block 78 from construction activities is minimal and covers less than 

0.08 acre, whereas the existing hotel and outbuilding on Block 79 cover less than 0.2 acre. Therefore, 

nearly 0.9 acres of the Park APE is relatively undisturbed. 

 

 



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 14

 
Figure 14. Cartridge on occupation surface, north side of Feature 2. 

 

 
Figure 15. Earthenware sherds at northeast end of Feature 2, on occupational 
surface. 

 



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 15

LSD recommends the Park APE be recorded as an archaeological site and additional archaeological 

investigations should be conducted within the site. Archaeological monitoring is not considered an option 

due to physical constraints of the APE and construction schedule (Arthur Oldham and Town of Florence 

staff, personal communication 2014). However, the current construction plans for the Park may be modified 

to preserve portions of archaeological resources in place within the park (Mayor Tom Rankin, Arthur 

Oldham, and Jeffry Swan, personal communications 2014). Therefore, LSD makes the following comments 

and recommendations: 

 Evaluation of features exposed during construction indicates historic archaeological resources are 

present. 

 Archaeological resources within the Park are recommended as eligible for listing in the NRHP.  

 Archival research indicates locations within the park that may contain additional preserved 

resources. 

 Excavations are recommended within the Park locations identified by the archival evidence, with the 

caveat that if redesign of the proposed park facilities can preserve the resources in situ then 

excavations may not be needed. 

 Archaeological excavations should sample a variety of locations on Block 79, e.g. the burned hotel 

(Feature 6), the courtyard behind the hotel, privies along Granite Street, and former buildings along 

Ruggles Street. 

 Archaeological excavations should sample a variety of locations on Block 78, e.g. features exposed 

during construction activities (Features 1–5, and 7), and other selected locations within the block. 

 Additional archival research is recommended to contextualize the archaeological discoveries. 

Topics of potential significance include the founding of Florence, the impact of the Economic Panic 

of 1873, the role of mining, farming, and ranching within the growth and development of Florence, 

and social history of Florence.  

 

Phase II data recovery are recommended in locations where archival research and the current evaluation 

indicate the proposed investigations have good potential for making additional discoveries. Redesign of the 

park may provide opportunities to avoid some archaeological resources at the same time as highlighting 

where archaeological investigations could be conducted within the park that would be impacted by 

construction activities. Preservation in place is recommended for locations that will remain unaffected by 

the redesigned park. Depending on the depth of disturbance and potential impact to buried cultural 

resources, it may be possible to cover the site or leave areas untouched by construction activities. 

 

LSD also recommends that the Town of Florence include a public education project as part of the Park 

improvements. Signage in the park and/or in the adjacent Silver King Market Place that describes the result 

of the archaeological investigations would provide opportunities for the public to learn about the town’s 

past. Likewise, a cooperative venture with the Pinal County Historical Society and Museum would be an 

appropriate venue to display artifacts recovered from the park and develop a narrative of Florence’s history 

as exemplified in the Park. 

 



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 16

REFERENCES CITED 

Jones, O. and C. Sullivan 

  1989 The Parks Canada Glass Glossary for the Description of Containers, Tableware, Closures, and Flat 

Glass. National Historic Parks and Sites, Canadian Park Service, Ottawa. 

 

Lindsey, B. 

  2014 Glassmaking and Glassmakers: Bottle and Glass Makers Markings. Electronic document at 

http://www.sha.org/bottle/makersmarks.htm accessed June 24, 2014.  



 
Padilla Park Discovery June 2013 
Cultural Resources Report 
LSD Technical Report No. 145367 17

APPENDIX A. PARK CONCEPTUAL PLAN 
 



 P
adilla P

ark D
iscovery 

June 2013
 

C
ultural R

esources R
eport 

LS
D

 T
echnical R

eport N
o. 14536

7  
18 

  



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
15f.  

MEETING DATE:  July 21, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia 
                                     Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
nd
Subject: Town Manager Employment Agreement  Meeting Date: July 21, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

SUBJECT:   Town Manager Employment Agreement 
 2  Reading 

 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve the employment agreement between the Town of Florence and the 
Town Manager. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
An executive session was held on July 7, 2014, pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-432.03(A)(1), to 
discuss the employment agreement of the Town Manager, Charles A. Montoya.   
 
Some of the points of the agreement include:  
 Three year agreement commencing on July 21, 2014 through June 30, 2017  
 Thirty day notice for voluntary resignation, unless otherwise agreed to by the 

parties in writing   
 Four month severance package 
 Removal of vehicle allowance and provides a Town vehicle                                                          
 Sick and vacation leave accrual same as other employees 
 Medical, dental, life, and vision benefits same as other employees 

    
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The Town agrees to compensate the Town Manager, pursuant to the agreement, an 
annual salary of $130,000.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the employment agreement. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Town Manager Employment Agreement 



 
 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
TOWN MANAGER 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 21st day of July, 2014, by and 
between the Town of Florence, an Arizona municipal corporation, hereinafter referred 
to as the “Town” or as “Employer”, and Charles A. Montoya, hereinafter referred to as 
“Employee” or the “Town Manager”, both of whom understand and agree as follows: 
 
 Whereas, Arizona Revised Statutes (“A.R.S.”), § 9-303(A), allows the Town to 
create the office of Town Manager; and 
 
 Whereas, A.R.S. § 9-303(B) allows the Town to specify the powers and duties 
relating to the affairs of the Town Manager; and 
 
 Whereas, the Town has established the office of the Town Manager pursuant to 
Florence Town Code § 31.065; and 
 
 Whereas, the Town desires to hire Employee as Town Manager; and  
 
 Whereas, Employee desires to serve as Town Manager; and  
 
 Whereas, it is the intention of the parties hereto to provide for the terms and 
conditions by which the Town shall receive the services of Employee and to provide for 
him to remain in such employment; to make possible full work productivity by assuring 
his morale and peace of mind with respect to future security; to deter against 
malfeasance or dishonesty for personal gain on his part; and to provide for terminating 
his services at such time as he may be unable to fully discharge his duties or when the 
Town may otherwise desire his separation from service.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual consideration and covenants 
herein contained, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged by the Town and 
Employee, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
Section 1: Term 
 
A. The initial term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2014 until June 30, 2017.  
 
Section 2: Duties and Authority 
 
Employer agrees to employ Charles A. Montoya as Florence Town Manager to assume 
the powers and perform the functions and duties specified in Florence Town Code §§ 
31.065 and 31.071 and to perform other legally permissible and proper functions, 
including but not limited to, budgetary and fiscal responsibility for the Town, 
departmental oversight and supervision, and community relations. Employee further 



 2

agrees to discharge such responsibilities according to the standards and in the manner 
customary to the profession of municipal management. Employee agrees that he will, at 
all times, exercise the appropriate degree of professional care in the discharge of his 
duties, that he will keep the Mayor and Florence Town Council fully informed as to 
matters which are of concern to the Council, and will endeavor to effectively manage the 
Town’s municipal departments and employees.  
 
Section 3: Compensation 
 
A.  Base Salary: Employer agrees to pay Employee an annual base salary of 
$130,000.00 [One Hundred Thirty Thousand Dollars], payable in installments at the 
same time and in the same manner that other management employees of the Town are 
paid. 
B. This Agreement shall be automatically amended to reflect any salary 
adjustments, cost of living increases, or other payments which are provided in the 
Town’s discretion or required by the Town’s compensation policies to be paid to the 
classified employees of the Town.  
C. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, consideration shall 
be given on an annual basis to an increase in Employee’s compensation if so requested 
by Employee.  
 
Section 4: Health, Disability and Life Insurance Benefits 
 
A. Employer agrees to provide and to pay the premiums for health, hospitalization, 
surgical, dental, vision and comprehensive medical insurance for Employee and his 
dependents in the same amounts and in the same manner as provided to all other 
employees of the Town. 
B. Employer agrees to put into force and to make the required premium payments 
for long term disability coverage for Employee in the same amounts and in the same 
manner as provided to all other employees of the Town.  
C. Employer shall pay the amount of premium due for life insurance in the same 
amounts and in the same manner as provided to all other employees of the Town. 
D. Employee may elect to submit to any medical examinations which are provided 
without application of a deductible under the Town’s health insurance plan in the same 
manner as any other employee of the Town. 
 
Section 5: Vacation, Sick, and Military Leave 
 
A. Employee shall accrue vacation leave in the amount of 13.34 hours per month 
and sick leave in the amount of 8 hours per month. 
B. The Employee is entitled to accrue unused vacation leave in the maximum 
amount and in the same manner as all other employees of the Town. In the event 
Employee is terminated from employment, either voluntarily or involuntarily, Employee 
shall be compensated for all unused vacation leave to date. 
C. The Employee shall be entitled to military reserve leave time pursuant to state 
law and Town policy. 



 3

 
Section 6: Town Vehicle  
 
In lieu of a vehicle allowance, Employer agrees to provide Employee with a suitable 
Town vehicle for the use of Employee in the course and scope of his employment.  
 
Section 7: Retirement 
 
Employer agrees to enroll Employee in the Arizona State Retirement System (“ASRS”) 
and to make all appropriate contributions of the Employer’s share as required by state 
law and Town policy. Employer shall deduct Employee’s share from Employee’s salary 
and make the required contribution of Employee’s share to ASRS in the same manner 
as all other employees of the Town. 
 
Section 8: General Business Expenses 
 
A. Employer agrees to budget for and to pay for professional dues and 
subscriptions of the Employee necessary for continuation and full participation in 
national, regional, state and local associations or other organizations necessary and 
desirable for the Employee’s continued professional participation, growth and 
advancement, and for the good of Employer. 
B. Employer agrees to budget for and to pay for travel and subsistence expenses of 
Employee for professional and official travel, meetings and other occasions to 
adequately continue the professional development of Employee and to pursue 
necessary official functions for Employer, including but not limited to the Arizona League 
of Cities and Towns, and such other national, regional, state and local governmental 
groups and committees in which Employee serves as a member. 
C. Employer agrees to budget for and to pay for travel and subsistence expenses of 
Employee for short courses, institutes and seminars that are necessary for Employee’s 
professional development and for the good of the Employer. 
D. Employer recognizes that certain expenses of a non-personal but job related 
nature are incurred by Employee, and agrees to reimburse or to pay said general 
expenses. The Town Finance Director is authorized to disburse such moneys upon 
receipt of duly executed expense or petty cash vouchers, receipts, statements or 
personal affidavits. 
E. The Employer acknowledges the value of having Employee participate and be 
directly involved in local civic clubs or organizations. Accordingly, Employer shall pay for 
the reasonable membership fees and/or dues to enable Employee to become an active 
member in local civic clubs or organizations for the good of the Employer. 
 
Section 9: Termination 
 
A. Employee acknowledges and agrees that the Town may terminate Employee at 
any time during the term of this Agreement, without any cause whatsoever. 
 



 4

Therefore, for the purposes of this Agreement, termination shall occur 
when: 
 
B. At least four (4) members of the Florence Town Council vote to terminate the 
Employee at a duly authorized public meeting. 
 
C. The Employer, citizens, or state legislature act to amend any provisions of the 
Town Code or state law pertaining to the role, powers, duties, authority or 
responsibilities of the Employee’s position that substantially changes the form of 
government.  
 
D. The Employer reduces the base salary, compensation or any other financial 
benefit of the Employee, unless such reduction is applied in no greater percentage than 
the average reduction of all department heads of the Town. 
 
E. If Employee voluntarily resigns his position as Town Manager before the 
expiration of any term of this Agreement, then Employee shall give the Town at least 
thirty (30) days notice in advance of such resignation, unless otherwise agreed to by the 
parties in writing. In such case, Employee shall not be entitled to the payment of any 
severance pay whatsoever and the provisions of Section 10 below shall be inapplicable. 
 
Section 10: Severance 
 
A. Severance shall be paid to Employee when his employment is terminated as 
defined in Section 9 above and at such time he is willing and able to perform his duties 
under this Agreement. 
 
B. If the Employee is so terminated, the Employer shall provide a minimum 
severance payment equal to four months salary at the current rate of pay. This 
severance pay shall be payable in the same periodic manner as the Employee was paid 
prior to termination. Severance pay shall include the payment of health insurance, life 
insurance and retirement benefits. However, payment of these emoluments shall cease 
at such time that Employee becomes re-employed. “Re-employment” is defined for 
purposes of this section as the date as of which Employee has received an offer of 
employment which has been accepted by employee. 
 
C. Notwithstanding the above, if Employee is terminated because of conviction of 
any felony or a misdemeanor offense involving moral turpitude, Employer shall have no 
obligation to pay any severance pay to Employee whatsoever. 
 
D As a condition precedent to receiving any severance payment described above, 
Employee agrees to execute a severance agreement acceptable to both parties, which 
shall contain at minimum the following: 1) Employee’s covenant not to sue or otherwise 
make claim against the Town, its agents, employees or elected officials, with such 
covenant to be evidenced by a signed release of any and all claims, including demands 
for damages, causes of action however denominated, whether at law or in equity, 



 5

arising out of Employee’s employment or termination by the Town; and 2) Employee’s 
agreement to forbear from initiating any suit, claim, grievance, proceeding or 
investigation of any kind or character, under any contract, agreement, statute or 
regulation pertaining to his employment with the Town.  
 
Section 11: Performance Evaluation 
 
Employer shall conduct a performance and merit evaluation for Employee in May, 2015 
and in May, 2016 for the purpose of reviewing Employee’s performance and discussing 
requests for increased compensation. In May of 2017 Employer and Employee shall 
renegotiate the terms of this Agreement. 
 
Section 12: Hours of Work 
 
A. It is recognized that the Employee must devote a great deal of time outside the 
normal office hours on business for the Employer, and to that end Employee shall be 
allowed to establish an appropriate work schedule. 
 
 
Section 13: Outside Activities 
 
The employment provided for by this Agreement shall be the Employee’s sole 
employment. Employee shall not engage in any other employment or occupation for 
compensation without the prior written consent of the Town Council. Employee shall not 
directly or indirectly render services which are similar in nature to the duties to be 
performed by Employee as Town Manager, whether compensated or not. Employee 
may devote a reasonable amount of time to civic and community activities and 
participation in professional organizations related to the profession of town 
management.  
 
Section 14: Residency 
 
A. Employee agrees to reside within the Town of Florence during the term of this 
Agreement.  
 
Section 15: Indemnification 
 
A. The Employer shall maintain a comprehensive general liability, errors and 
omissions policy which protects the Employee from any and all claims associated with 
the reasonable performance of the Town Manager’s duties. 
 
B. The Employer shall defend, indemnify and save harmless Employee against any 
tort, professional liability claim, or other demand or legal action, groundless or 
otherwise, whether arising at law or in equity, from any alleged act or omission 
occurring in the performance of Employee’s duties as Town Manager. The Council may 
compromise and settle any such claim or suit in its sole discretion.  



 6

 
Section 16: Bonding 
 
Employer shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds required of the Employee 
under any law, ordinance or the policy of the Town. 
 
Section 17: Notices 
 
Any notices required hereunder shall be given by depositing in the custody of the United 
States Postal Service, first class postage prepaid, and addressed as follows: 
 
If to the Employer: 
 
Lisa Garcia 
Town Clerk 
Town of Florence 
P.O. Box 2670, Florence, AZ 85132 
 
If to the Employee: 
 
Charles Montoya 
3079 N. Princeton Dr. 
Florence, AZ 85132 
 
Alternatively, notices required pursuant to this Agreement may be personally served in 
the same manner as described in the Arizona Rules of Civil Procedure. Notice shall be 
deemed given as of the date of personal service or as of the date of deposit of such 
written notice in the course of transmission in the United States Postal Service. 
 
Section 18: Miscellaneous Provisions 
 
A. Governing Law. This Agreement is entered into in Arizona and shall be construed 
and interpreted under the laws of the state of Arizona. 
 
B. Choice of Forum. Notwithstanding A.R.S. § 12-408, any suit or action brought under 
this Agreement shall be commenced in Superior Court of the State of Arizona in and for 
the County of Pinal and may be removed therefrom only upon the mutual agreement of 
the Employer and Employee. 
 
C. Integration. This Agreement sets forth and establishes the entire understanding 
between Employer and Employee relating to the employment of the Employee by the 
Employer. Any prior discussions, negotiations or representations by or between the 
parties are merged into and rendered null and void by this Agreement. The parties by 
mutual written agreement may amend any provision of this Agreement during the term 
of the Agreement. Such amendments, if any, shall be incorporated and made a part of 
this Agreement. 



 7

 
D. Binding Affect. This Agreement shall be binding on the Employer and the Employee 
as well as their heirs, assigns, executors, personal representatives and successors in 
interest. However, this Agreement may not be assigned by either the Employer or the 
Employee.  
 
E. Effective Date. The Affective Date of this Agreement shall be the date last executed 
by either of the parties hereto.  
 
F. Severability. The invalidity or partial invalidity of any portion of this Agreement will not 
affect the validity of any other provision. In the event that any provision of this 
Agreement is held to be invalid, the remaining provisions shall be deemed to be in full 
force and effect as if they have been executed by both parties subsequent to the 
expungement or judicial modification of the invalid provision. 
 
G. Breach of Agreement. In the event of a breach of this Agreement by either the 
Employer or Employee which results in damages to either party, that party may recover 
from the party breaching this Agreement any and all damages sustained thereby. In the 
event that legal action is necessary for either party to enforce any term of the 
Agreement, the parties agree that the prevailing party shall be entitled to its reasonable 
attorney fees and all costs and expenses of suit. 
 
 IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement the day 
and year mentioned above.  
 

CHARLES A. MONTOYA  
 
By:      

             Charles A. Montoya  
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal 
corporation 
 
By:        
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
By:      
      Lisa Garcia - Town Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By: __      
      James E. Mannato - Town Attorney  



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
15g. 

MEETING DATE:  July 21, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Town Attorney 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    FY 2014-2015 Town Attorney  
                     Employment Contract  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Town Attorney Contract for FY 2014-2015                                        Meeting Date:  July 21, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve employment contract with Town Attorney James E. Mannato for 
Fiscal Year 2014 - 2015. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Attorney James E. Mannato graduated from California Western School of Law, an ABA 
accredited law school chartered in 1924, on May 5, 1991; and after passing the 
California bar exam was admitted to the practice of law December 20, 1991 at San 
Diego, CA.  He has been continuously engaged in the practice of law since that time. 
He was admitted to the practice of law in the State of Arizona on August 14, 1997, and 
has practiced law exclusively within the State of Arizona since then.  On December 20, 
2014, he will have 23 years of experience as an attorney and counselor of law. 
 
Mr. Mannato is entitled to practice in all state courts of Arizona and California, as well as 
the United States District Court for the District of Arizona and the United States District 
Court for the District of Southern California.  Prior to working for the Town, he served 2 
½ years as the Pinal County Superior Court – Family Law Commissioner and then 
became Judge of the Coolidge Municipal Court. 
 
James “Jim” Mannato was engaged by the Town of Florence to act as the Florence 
Town Attorney in January of 2003, and has provided the Town with all of its legal 
services since that time.  The Town elected to hire Mr. Mannato as an employee of the 
Town in 2005, under a contract of employment.  
 
Among other things, as Town Attorney he is required to act as legal advisor to the 
Florence Town Council; prepare legal opinions in writing when requested; advise all 
Town departments, boards and commissions on legal matters affecting each 
department; review all Town  contracts; negotiate and draft  real estate development 
agreements;  draft all Town transactional legal documents for the purchase, sale and 
rental of real property; prepare and record easements and licenses for the use of real 



Subject:  Town Attorney Contract for FY 2014-2015                                        Meeting Date:  July 21, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

property; draft indemnification and confidentiality agreements; review public record 
requests; draft and record liens and other legal instruments for the Finance and 
Community Development  Departments; assist the Finance Department in the collection 
of unpaid local taxes and utility user fees; represent the Town in all legal proceedings 
involving the Town which are not transferred to the Town’s insurer (AMRRP); review 
and approve the bi-weekly Council Agenda and Council Packets prior to issuance; and 
represent the Town in employee disciplinary grievances under the Town’s merit system.  
 
In addition, the Town attorney also acts as District Attorney for Florence Community 
Facilities Districts #1 and #2, where he is required to negotiate and draft agreements for 
creation of CFD districts; review district taxes and assessments, and ensure the legality 
of all District operations, including the issuance of general obligation and assessment 
lien bonds. 
 
The Town Attorney also supervises the activities of the Assistant Town Attorney, whose 
duties include acting as the Florence Town Prosecutor for the Town of Florence.  The 
Florence Town Prosecutor is required to prosecute all misdemeanor and petty offenses 
occurring within the Town limits.  The Prosecutor is required to appear in the Florence 
Municipal Court each Thursday.  Other prosecution duties include charging reviews and 
the issuance of criminal complaints; providing legal advice to the Florence Police 
Department and its officers - both as to general matters and case-specific legal issues; 
provide victim notification under the Arizona Victim’s Rights Law; and appear before the 
court for bench and jury trials when necessary. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The employment contract of the Town Attorney for Fiscal Year 2013 – 2014 provided for 
a salary of $110,041.05 plus benefits. 
 
For Fiscal Year 2014 – 2015, the Town Attorney is requesting a contract increase of 
4%, for a contract salary amount of $114,442.69. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Draft contract for Town Attorney FY 2014 – 2015 



Page 1 of 6 

TOWN ATTORNEY EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 1st day of 
July, 2014 by and between the TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal 
corporation, hereinafter referred to as “TOWN” or “TOWN COUNCIL” or “COUNCIL”, 
and JAMES E. MANNATO, hereinafter referred to as “EMPLOYEE” or 
“ATTORNEY”, both of whom understand as follows: 
 
 WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town and Employee entered into that certain Employment 
Contract for Legal Services (the “Agreement”) on July 1, 2013; and 
 

WHEREAS, Town and Employee now wish to replace and supersede the 
Agreement as more fully set forth below. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein 
contained, and for such other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
  
SECTION 1.  DUTIES 
 
A. Council hereby agrees to employ Employee as Town Attorney and Employee 
agrees to assume the powers and perform the function and duties specified in Florence 
Town Code Title III, Chapter 31, §31.045 et seq., including but not limited to:  

 
i. The drafting and/or review and certification of all ordinances and contracts 

or other legal documents enacted by the Mayor and Council as required by Arizona law 
and the Florence Town Code. 
 

ii. Legal advice to the Council, Town Manager and Departments on an as 
needed basis or as requested by the Council, Town Manager or Department supervisors. 
 

iii. Prosecution of all criminal complaints filed in Florence Magistrate Court 
except in the event of a conflict as defined by Rule 42 of the Rules of the Arizona 
Supreme Court – Rules of Professional Conduct. 
 

iv. Attendance at all regular council meetings, and other meetings as 
requested by the Council or Manager. 
 

v. The defense or prosecution of all civil actions involving the Town and its 
various departments as directed by the Council and Manager, except in the event of a 
conflict as defined by Rule 42 of the Rules of the Arizona Supreme Court – Rules of 
Professional Conduct. 
 



Page 2 of 6 

vi. Such other legal services as required by the Town other than those which 
the Council and Attorney agree require special expertise and should be referred to 
another attorney; and 
 
Employee further agrees that he will discharge such responsibilities in a manner which is 
customary to the profession of attorneys and practice of law. Employee agrees that he 
will at all times exercise the appropriate degree of professional care in the discharge of 
his duties, that he will keep the Mayor and Council fully informed as to legal matters 
which are of concern to the Town or the Council, and will endeavor to effectively advise 
the Town’s departments and employees. 

 
B. Employee will devote his full time, efforts and attention to his employment as 
Town Attorney. During his employment, the Town Attorney shall not, without the prior 
consent of the Town Manager, directly or indirectly render services which are similar in 
nature to the duties to be performed by Town Attorney under this Agreement to or for 
any other person, firm or entity. The Town Attorney may devote a reasonable amount of 
time to civic and community activities and to participating in professional organizations 
related to the profession of attorneys and practice of law. 

 
SECTION 2.  TERM 

 
A. The term of this Agreement shall be one (1) year, commencing from July 1, 2014. 
Thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the Agreement, the Council shall again review 
the Agreement for renewal of a second term of one (1) year, and shall so review the 
Agreement for renewal each successive term thereafter. 

 
B. Nothing in this Agreement, subject to Section 3 below, shall prevent, limit or 
otherwise interfere with the right of the Council to terminate the services of Employee at 
any time. 

 
C. Nothing in this Agreement, subject to Section 3 below, shall prevent, limit or 
otherwise interfere with the right of Employee to resign at any time from his position as 
Town Attorney. 
 
 
SECTION 3.  SEPARATION FROM SERVICE 
 
A. An affirmative vote of at least four (4) members of the Council may suspend the 
Employee from his duties as Town Attorney with full pay and benefits at any time during 
the term of this Agreement. 
 
B. The Council may terminate Employee at any time during the term of this 
Agreement, without any cause whatsoever, by an affirmative vote of at least four (4) 
members of the Council. 
 
C. In the event that Employee is involuntarily terminated by the Council before the 
expiration of any term of this Agreement, and at such time is willing and able to perform 



Page 3 of 6 

his duties under this Agreement, then Council shall give Employee thirty (30) days 
written notice prior to the effective date of termination, subject to subparagraph (D) 
below. During such thirty (30) day period, Employee shall be responsible for performing 
all his duties as Town Attorney under this Agreement, if so requested by the Council.   
 

i. At the end of such thirty (30) day period, Council agrees to pay Employee four (4) 
months aggregate salary plus emoluments (payment of health insurance, life 
insurance and retirement benefits), with such payments to be made periodically in the 
same manner as during the term of this Agreement. The payment of such health 
insurance, life insurance and retirement benefits shall cease at such time as Employee 
becomes re-employed. For purposes of this paragraph, “re-employment” is defined as 
the date as of which Employee has received compensation for legal services which is 
substantially equivalent to that required under this Agreement. 
 
ii. If Employee is terminated because of conviction of a felony or misdemeanor 
offense involving moral turpitude, then in such case, Town shall have no obligation to 
pay any severance sum(s) to Employee whatsoever. 

 
D. If Employee voluntarily resigns his position as Town Attorney before the 
expiration of any term of this Agreement, then Employee shall give the Town thirty (30) 
days notice in advance of such resignation, unless the Employee and Council otherwise 
agree. In such case, Employee is not entitled to the payment of any severance sum 
whatsoever. 
 
E. As a condition precedent to receiving any severance payment described above, 
Employee agrees to execute a severance agreement acceptable to both parties, which 
shall contain at minimum 1) Employee’s full release of the Town, Town Council, and all 
of its agents and employees from any and all claims, including but not limited to 
demands, damages, causes of action or liability, whether at law or in equity, arising out of 
Employee’s employment or termination by Town, including employment or age 
discrimination actions, and 2) Employee’s agreement not to initiate or cause to be 
initiated any suit, claim, grievance, proceeding or investigation of any kind, under any 
contract, Agreement, statute or regulation pertaining to his employment with Town. 
 
 
SECTION 4.  SALARY AND COMPENSATION 
 
A. Town agrees to pay Employee for his services rendered pursuant to this Agreement, 

an annual salary of $114,442.69 plus all benefits payable to classified employees of 
the Town per any Town personnel policies or regulations in force at the time the 
Agreement is executed. 
 

B. Any Cost of Living (“COLA”) adjustment provided to classified employees shall be 
equally awarded to Employee. 

 
 



Page 4 of 6 

 
SECTION 5.  HOURS OF WORK 
 
A. It is recognized that Employee must devote a certain amount of time outside 
normal office hours to the business of the Town. Therefore, Town agrees that Employee 
may be allowed to adjust his hours as deemed appropriate by Employee so long as he is 
available and the legal affairs of the Town are not harmed. 
 
 
SECTION 6.  PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
 
A. Town shall compensate Employee for all reasonable travel and business 
expenditures of Town Attorney in accordance with the general personnel policies of the 
Town, including but not limited to the payment of professional association dues, 
membership fees and expenses in civic organizations, subscriptions to professional 
periodicals and educational materials, and appropriate professional conferences. 
 
SECTION 7.  VACATION AND SICK LEAVE 
 
A. Employee shall earn four (4) weeks vacation per year beginning with the date this 
Agreement is executed. Any such vacation time taken shall be coordinated with the 
Town’s departments and staff to ensure effective management of the Town during the 
Town Attorney’s vacation(s).  
 
B. Employee shall accrue sick leave in the same manner provided to other Town 
employees. 
 
SECTION 8.  INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 
 
A. The Town shall maintain a comprehensive general liability, errors and omissions 
policy which protects the Employee from any and all claims associated with the 
reasonable performance of the Town Attorney’s duties. 
 
B. The Town shall defend, save harmless and indemnify Employee against any tort, 
professional liability claim, or other demand or legal action, groundless or otherwise, 
whether arising at law or in equity, from any alleged act or omission occurring in the 
performance of Employee’s duties as Town Attorney. The Council may compromise and 
settle any such claim or suit in its sole discretion. 
 
SECTION 9.  NOTICES 
 
A. Any notices required to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be given by 
deposit in the custody of the Unites States Postal Service, postage prepaid, or through 
overnight carrier service, addressed as follows or as such address(es) may be changed 
from time to time upon notice to the other: 
 



Page 5 of 6 

  
Town:  Town of Florence 

   Town Clerk 
775 N. Main Street 
P.O. Box 2670 

   Florence, AZ 85132 
 
 Employee: James E. Mannato 
   6773 W. Olberg Rd. 
   Queen Creek, AZ 85142     
    
SECTION 10. BREACH OF AGREEMENT; ATTORNEY FEES; 
   VENUE 
 
A. In the event of a breach of this Agreement by either the Town or Employee 
resulting in damages to either party, that party may recover from the party breaching this 
Agreement all damages that may be sustained. 
 
B. In the event it becomes necessary for either party to bring legal action or suit to 
enforce any provision of this Agreement, the parties agree that the prevailing party shall 
be entitled to reasonable attorney fees and all costs of suit. 
 
C. The venue for any suit, claim, arbitration or other legal action pertaining to this 
Agreement shall be in Pinal County, Arizona. 
 
SECTION 11. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
A. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between Town and Employee. No 
other promises, representations, warranties or covenants have been relied upon by either 
Town or Employee in executing this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 12 . ASSIGNMENT 
 
A. This Agreement is not assignable, either in whole or in part, by either Town or 
Employee. 
 
SECTION 13. INTERESTS OF HEIRS AND EXECUTORS  
 
A. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs at law 
and executors of Employee, if any. 
 
SECTION 14. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
A. This Agreement shall become effective as of the date of its execution by both the 
Town and Employee and shall replace and supersede any prior Agreements between the 
Town and Employee as of the effective date. 



Page 6 of 6 

 
B. If any provision or portion thereof of this Agreement is held unenforceable, 
invalid, unlawful or unconstitutional, the remainder of this Agreement shall be deemed 
severable, shall not be affected, and shall remain in full force and effect.   
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town of Florence has caused this Agreement to 
be signed and executed by and on its behalf by its Mayor, and duly attested by its Town 
Clerk, and Employee has signed and executed this Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 
 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE: APPROVED AND ACCEPTED AS TO 

FORM: 
 
 
            

Tom J. Rankin, Mayor   James E. Mannato, Town Attorney  
 
 
 
ATTEST:       
 
 
      
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 

 
 

 
 
 

        
  
 


	July 21, 2014 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5

	July 21, 2014 MRCFD1 Agenda
	July 21, 2014 MRCFD2 Agenda
	8. MRCFD1
	8a. Ordinance No. MRCFD1 111-14 Secondary Property Tax

	10. MRCFD2
	10a. Ordinance No. MRCFD2 210-14 Secondary Property Tax

	12.PUBLIC HEARING & PRESENTATION
	12a. Resolution No. 1455-14 AZ Farms MGPA
	12b. Resolution No. 1456-14 N-S Freeway Corridor MGPA
	12c. Resolution No. 1457-14 Reserve at Lookout Mtn MGPA

	13. CONSENT
	13a. Superstition Fire Maintenance Agmt
	13b. TOPAZ Agreement with City of Mesa
	13c. SCADA Purchase from Ripple Industries
	13d. Silver King Marketplace Lease  Carol Johnson
	13e. June 18, 2014 TC Minutes
	13e. June 23, 2014 TC Minutes

	13f i. April 17, 2014 PZ Mintues


	14. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	14a. Ordinance No. 612-14 Property Tax Levy

	15. NEW BUSINESS
	15a. Resolution No. 1461-14 Superstition Springs R-14 Assoc PADA
	15b. Resolution No. 1462-14 RES AZ Crestview LLC PADA
	15c. Resolution No. 1463-14 RMB Lucky 65 LLC PADA
	15d. Resolution NO. 1464-14 Magic Lake 80 LLC PADA
	15e. Haydon Building Corp. contract amendment
	15f. Town Manager Employment Contract
	15g. Town Attorney Employment Contract




